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The information in this Prospectus is not complete and may be changed. The selling shareholders may not sell these securities until the registration
statement filed with the SEC is effective. This Prospectus is not an offer to sell and it is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any state
where the offer or sale is not permitted.

 
Preliminary Prospectus Subject to Completion Dated October 29, 2018

 

 
PROSPECTUS

 
960,000 shares of common stock

 
This prospectus relates to the sale by the selling shareholders identified in this prospectus, or their assigns (each a “Selling Shareholder” and

collectively the “Selling Shareholders”) of up to an aggregate of 960,000 shares of our common stock.
 
The Selling Shareholders may sell these shares using a number of different methods, and they will sell the shares at a fixed price of $2.50 per

share, until our common stock is listed on a national securities exchange or is quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board, the OTCQX or the OTCQB, at which
time the Selling Shareholders will sell their shares at a price based on the market price. We provide more information about how the Selling Shareholders
may sell their shares of common stock in the section of this prospectus entitled “Plan of Distribution” beginning on page 17.

 
The Selling Shareholders received an aggregate of 2,400,000 shares (the “Series E Shares”) of our Series E Convertible Preferred Stock

(“Series E Preferred”) and warrants to purchase 960,000 shares of our common stock (the “Warrants”). We are not selling any shares of common stock
in this resale offering. We are registering shares that are issuable to the Selling Shareholders upon the conversion of the Series E Shares (the “Conversion
Shares” or the “Registered Shares”). We, therefore, will not receive any proceeds from the sale of the Registered Shares by the Selling Shareholders. We
are not registering herein the shares of common stock underlying the exercise of the Warrants. The Series E Shares and Warrants were issued to the
Selling Shareholders in private transactions and the Registered Shares will also be issued to the Selling Shareholders in private transactions. Further
details of the Selling Shareholders’ securities may be found in the section of this prospectus entitled “Private Placement of Securities” beginning on page
11.

 



We will bear all costs associated with this registration statement.
 
The offering price of the Registered Shares has been determined arbitrarily by us and the Selling Shareholders. The price does not bear any

relationship to our assets, book value, earnings, or other established criteria for valuing a company. In determining the number of shares to be offered and
the offering price, we took into consideration our capital structure and the amount of money we would need to implement our business plans. Accordingly,
the offering price should not be considered an indication of the actual value of our securities.
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Our common stock is currently quoted on the OTC Pink marketplace maintained by OTC Markets Group, Inc. under the symbol “ICNB.” The
closing price of our common stock as reported on the OTC Pink Marketplace on October 24, 2018, was $1.025.

 
The Selling Shareholders may be deemed “underwriters” within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), in

connection with the resale of the Registered Shares.
 



This offering will terminate on the earlier of (i) the date when all the Registered Shares have been sold pursuant to this prospectus or Rule 144
under the Securities Act, and (ii) the date that all of the securities may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 without volume or manner-of-sale restrictions, unless
we terminate it earlier.

 
Investing in the common stock involves risks. Iconic Brands, Inc. is a development stage company with limited operations, limited

income, and limited assets, and you should not invest unless you can afford to lose your entire investment. See “Risk Factors” beginning on
page 5.

 
Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or

determined if this Prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense. Our common stock is governed
under The Securities Enforcement and Penny Stock Reform Act of 1990, and as a result you may be limited in your ability to sell our stock.
 

The date of this Prospectus is __________________, 2018.
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ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS
 

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we filed on behalf of the Selling Shareholders with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “Commission”) to permit the Selling Shareholders to sell the Registered Shares described in this prospectus in one or more transactions.
The Selling Shareholders and the plan of distribution of the Registered Shares being offered by them are described in this prospectus under the headings
“Selling Shareholders” and “Plan of Distribution.”

 
You should rely only on the information that is contained in this prospectus. We and the Selling Shareholders have not authorized anyone to

provide you with information that is in addition to or different from that contained in this prospectus. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent
information, you should not rely on it.

 
The shares of common stock offered by this prospectus are not being offered in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale of such common stock is

not permitted. You should not assume that the information contained in this prospectus is accurate as of any date other than the date of this prospectus
regardless of the date of delivery of this prospectus or any sale of the common stock offered by this prospectus. Our business, financial condition,
liquidity, results of operations and prospects may have changed since those dates. The rules of the Commission may require us to update this prospectus in
the future.
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PROSPECTUS SUMMARY
 

ICONIC BRANDS, INC.
 

This summary highlights selected information contained in greater detail elsewhere in this prospectus. This summary does not contain all the
information you should consider before investing in our common stock. You should read the entire prospectus, including our financial statements and
related notes and the information set forth under the heading “Risk Factors” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” before investing in our common stock. In this prospectus, the “Company,” “we,” “us,” and “our” refer to Iconic Brands, Inc.
 
Overview
 

We are a beverage company with expertise in developing, from inception to completion, alcoholic beverages for ourselves and third parties. We
also market and place the products into national distribution through long standing industry relationships. We engage in “Celebrity Branding” of
beverages, procuring superior and unique products from around the world and branding products with internationally recognized celebrities.

 
Our mission is to be the industry leader in brand development, marketing, and sales of the alcoholic beverages by capitalizing on our ability to

procure products from around the world. Our relationships with internationally recognized celebrities will be leveraged to add value to a product and
create brand awareness in unbranded niche categories.

 
We intend to seek, investigate and, if such investigation warrants, acquire an interest in one or more business opportunities presented to it by

persons or firms who or which desire to seek the perceived advantages of a publicly held corporation.
 

Brands and Products
 
Bellissima Prosecco

 
Bellissima Spirits LLC, our subsidiary, entered into a License Agreement with Christie Brinkley, Inc. an entity owned by Christie Brinkley, to

use Brinkley’s endorsement, signature, and other intellectual property owned by it. Bellissima by Christie Brinkley is a line of Organic Prosecco. The line
includes a DOC Brut, Sparkling Rose and a Zero Sugar, Zero Carb option which are all natural and gluten free with all certified organic and vegan.

 
BiVi Vodka

 
BiVi LLC, our subsidiary, owns the brand “BiVi 100 percent Sicilian Vodka.” BiVi LLC’s mission is to promote and support the sales

endeavors of the distribution network through targeted and national marketing endeavors and working with the celebrity partner, Mr. Chazz Palminteri.
 
BiVi Vodka is the creation of Master Distiller Giovanni La Fauci. BiVi Vodka is made from semolina wheat grown out of the rich volcanic soil

and pure mountain spring water of Sicily.
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Corporate Information
 

Iconic Brands, Inc., formerly Paw Spa, Inc. (“Iconic Brands” or “Iconic”), was incorporated in the State of Nevada on October 21, 2005.
Effective December 31, 2016, Iconic closed on a May 15, 2015 agreement to acquire a 51% interest in BiVi LLC, and closed on a December 13, 2016
agreement to acquire a 51% interest in Bellissima Spirits LLC. These transactions involved entities under common control of our Chief Executive Officer
and represented a change in reporting entity.

 
BiVi LLC was organized in Nevada on May 4, 2015. Bellissima Spirits LLC was organized in Nevada on November 23, 2015.

 
On October [●], 2018, we conducted a reverse split of our common stock at a rate of one share for every two hundred fifty shares (1-for-250).

 
Our corporate headquarters are located in New York, NY. Our mailing address is 44 Seabro Avenue, Amityville, NY 11701, and our telephone

number is (866) 219-8112. Our website is www.jpgnicbrandsusa.com. Information contained on our website is not incorporated into, and does not
constitute any part of, this Prospectus.
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The Offering
 
Securities Offered:  Up to  960,000 shares of common stock that are issuable to the Selling Shareholders (the “Registered Shares”). The Selling

Shareholders may acquire the Registered Shares upon conversion of the Series E Shares.
  
Selling Shareholders:  See “Selling Shareholders” beginning on page 14.
  
Common Stock
Outstanding

 

Before Offering:  6,039,765*
After the Offering:  6,999,765*
  
Terms of the Offering:  The Selling Shareholders will sell the shares at a fixed price of $2.50 per share, until our common stock is listed on a national

securities exchange or is quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board, the OTCQX or the OTCQB, at which time the Selling
Shareholders will sell their shares at a price based on the market price. The Selling Shareholders will determine when and
how they sell the Registered Shares offered in this prospectus, as described in “Plan of Distribution” beginning on page 17.

  
Use of Proceeds:  The Selling Shareholders will receive all of the proceeds from the sale of the Registered Shares offered for sale under this

prospectus. We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of Registered Shares by the Selling Shareholders in this offering.
See “Use of Proceeds” on page 11.

  
Risk factors:  The Registered Shares offered hereby involve a high degree of risk. See “Risk Factors” beginning on page 5.
  
Trading Symbol:  ICNB
_______________ 

The Selling Shareholders may sell the Registered Shares from time to time in the over-the-counter market or other national securities exchange or
automated interdealer quotation system on which our common stock is then listed or quoted, through negotiated transactions or otherwise at market prices
prevailing at the time of sale or at negotiated prices. In any case, the Selling Shareholders will sell the shares at a fixed price of $2.50 per share, until our
common stock is listed on a national securities exchange or is quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board, the OTCQX or the OTCQB, at which time the Selling
Shareholders will sell the Registered Shares at a price based on the market price.

 
This offering will terminate on the earlier of (i) when all Registered Shares are sold, and (ii) the date that all of the securities may be sold

pursuant to Rule 144 without volume or manner-of-sale restrictions, unless we terminate it earlier .
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RISK FACTORS
 

Any investment in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should consider carefully the following information, together with the
other information contained in this registration statement, before you decide to buy our common stock. If one or more of the following events actually
occurs, our business will suffer, and as a result our financial condition or results of operations will be adversely affected. In this case, the market price, if
any, of our common stock could decline, and you could lose all or part of your investment in our common stock.

 
Currently, our focus is on the production and distribution of our alcoholic beverages. We face risks in selling our current products and in

developing new product candidates and eventually bringing them to market. We also face risks that our business model may become obsolete. The
following risks are material risks that we face. If any of these risks occur, our business, our ability to achieve revenues, our operating results and our
financial condition could be seriously harmed.

 
Risk Factors Related to the Business of the Company

 
We face inventory risk, and if it fails to predict accurately demand for products, we may face write-downs or other charges.
 
We are exposed to inventory risks that may adversely affect operating results as a result of new product launches, changes in product cycles and

pricing, limited shelf-life of certain of our products, changes in consumer demand, and other factors. We endeavor to predict accurately, based on
information from retailers and reasonable assumptions, the expected demand for our products in order to avoid excessive inventory. Demand for products,
however, can change significantly between the time of production and the date of sale. It may be more difficult to make accurate predictions regarding
new products.

 
We are exposed to disruptions in our supply chain that could have a substantial adverse impact on our ability to produce our wines and the

cost of our raw materials.
 
We are exposed to production risks, especially in the case of Bellissima Prosecco and Sparking Wines due to weather conditions. The growing

and harvest of the grapes we need to make our wines are directly affected by the weather. Adverse weather conditions would decrease the availability of
grapes, increase the cost of grapes, and have a negative impact on our profitability.

 
We produce our wines at two production facilities: one in Sicily, Italy (BiVi) and another in Treviso, Italy (Bellissima). A disruption from fire or

other catastrophic event at one of these facilities would halt production and have a material adverse effect on our financial condition.
 
We have a history of losses, and may not achieve or maintain profitability in the future.
 
We have had a limited number of quarters or years of profitability and historically raised additional capital to meet its growth needs. Our losses

from operations and our inability to raise sufficient working capital have resulted in negative equity and working capital positions as shown on our
Balance Sheets at December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2018.
 
 

4



 

Table of Contents
 

We expect to make significant investments in order to develop and expand our business, which, we believe, will result in additional sales,
marketing and general and administrative expenses that will require increased sales to recover these additional costs. Once we become a fully reporting
company, we expect to continue to incur legal, accounting, and other administrative expenses that are material. Our revenue has been subject to volatility
in recent periods and this volatility may cause us to not cover our costs and successfully compete in the highly competitive alcohol market.

 
We face significant competition which could adversely affect profitability.
 
The wine industry is intensely competitive. Our wines compete in several super-premium and ultra-premium wine market segments with many

other super-premium and ultra-premium domestic and foreign wines, with imported wines coming from the Burgundy and Bordeaux regions of France, as
well as Italy, Chile, Argentina, South Africa and Australia. Our wines also compete with other alcoholic and, to a lesser degree, non-alcoholic beverages,
for shelf space in retail stores and for marketing focus by independent distributors, many of which carry extensive brand portfolios. As a result of this
intense competition there has been and may continue to be upward pressure on selling and promotional expenses. In addition, the wine industry has
experienced significant consolidation. Many competitors have greater financial, technical, marketing and public relations resources. Our sales may be
harmed to the extent we are not able to compete successfully against such wine or alternative beverage producers’ costs. There can be no assurance that in
the future we will be able to successfully compete with current competitors or that we will not face greater competition from other wineries, beverage
manufacturers and distributors.

 
Because a significant amount of our business is made through retail outlets any change in relationships with the retail partners could harm

the business.
 
Our agreements with direct retail partners are informal and therefore subject to change. If one or more of the direct retail partners chose to

purchase fewer products, or we are forced to reduce the prices, our sales and profits would be reduced and the business would be harmed.
 
We will need additional funding in the future, and if we are unable to raise capital when needed, we may be forced to delay, reduce or

eliminate our product candidate development programs, commercial efforts, or sales efforts.
 
Producing and marketing our developed products is costly. We will need to raise substantial additional capital in the future in order to execute

our business plan and help us and our collaboration partners fund the development and commercialization of our product candidates.
 
We may intend to finance future cash needs through public or private equity offerings and may also use debt financings or strategic collaboration

and licensing arrangements. To the extent that we raise additional funds by issuing equity securities, our shareholders may experience additional dilution,
and debt financing, if available, may involve restrictive covenants and may result in high interest expense. If we raise additional funds through
collaboration and licensing arrangements, it may be necessary to relinquish some rights to our product candidates, processes and technologies or our
development projects or to grant licenses on terms that are not favorable to us. We cannot be certain that additional funding will be available on acceptable
terms, or at all. If adequate funds are not available from the foregoing sources, we may consider additional strategic financing options, including sales of
assets, or we may be required to delay, reduce the scope of, or eliminate one or more of our research or development programs or curtail some of our
commercialization efforts of our operations. We may seek to access the public or private equity markets whenever conditions are favorable, even if we do
not have an immediate need for additional capital.
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We may engage in strategic transactions that fail to enhance shareholder value.
 
From time to time, we may consider possible strategic transactions, including the potential acquisitions or licensing of products or technologies

or acquisition of companies, and other alternatives with the goal of maximizing shareholder value. We may never complete a strategic transaction, and in
the event that we do complete a strategic transaction, implementation of such transactions may impair shareholder value or otherwise adversely affect our
business. Any such transaction may require us to incur non-recurring or other charges and may pose significant integration challenges and/or management
and business disruptions, any of which could harm our results of operation and business prospects.

 
We are dependent on the services of key personnel and failure to attract qualified management could limit our growth and negatively impact

our results of operations.
 
We are highly dependent on our Chief Executive Officer. We will continue to depend on his industry experience. At this time, we do not know of

the availability of such experienced management personnel or how much it may cost to attract and retain such personnel. The loss of the services of any
member of senior management or the inability to hire experienced operations management personnel could have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations.

 
We distribute our products through an entity wholly-owned and controlled by our Chief Executive Officer and if he were to leave, this

relationship may end.
 
We have entered into a Distribution Agreement with United Spirits, Inc. (“United”) for United to distribute and wholesale our products and to act

as the licensed importer and wholesaler. The Distribution Agreement provides United the exclusive right through 2025 to sell our products for an agreed
distribution fee equal to $1.00 per case of product sold. United is owned and managed by Richard DeCicco, our controlling shareholder, President, CEO,
and Director.

 
United is a variable interest entity (“VIE”) of the Company. Because we are the primary beneficiary of United, United’s assets, liabilities and

operations have been consolidated in our financial statements. See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the three months ended June 30,
2018 and 2017. However, we do not own United and Mr. DeCicco has sole ownership and authority with respect to the operations of United. These
decisions may impact the Company in a way that may not be favorable to all of our shareholders. Potential acquirers of the Company will not include
United when determining the value of the Company and this may have an adverse impact on the value of consideration that shareholders may receive if
the Company is acquired.
 

The Selling Shareholders may elect to enforce certain provisions of the Registration Rights Agreement that would require us to pay certain
liquidated damages and affect our profitability .

 
We have entered into a Registration Rights Agreement with the Selling Shareholders described in further detail under “Registration Rights

Agreement” on page 12 . If we cannot meet certain obligations under this agreement, the Selling Shareholders have the right to collect partial liquidated
damages equal to 1.0% multiplied by the total amount they have invested. These partial liquidated damages are payable at the time of breach and each
month thereafter that the breach is not cured (up to a maximum of 6.0% of the total amount invested). Interest will accrue at a rate of 18% per annum on
any amount due under this provision that is not paid within seven days after the date payable.

 
The Registration Rights Agreement required us to file an initial registration statement by June 8, 2018, but we filed the initial registration

statement on September 19, 2018. While we have a verbal agreement with the Selling Shareholders to extend the filing deadline in the Registration Rights
Agreement, the Selling Shareholders may seek to enforce their rights to partial liquidated damages . If this were to occur, we would be forced to pay back
part of the investment they received, plus interest. This payment would reduce the cash available for us to conduct our operations, causing us to slow our
growth or seek additional financing that may not be advantageous to our business.
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Risks Related To Our Common stock

 
The market price of our common stock may be volatile and may be affected by market conditions beyond our control.
 
The market price of our common stock is subject to significant fluctuations in response to, among other factors:
 

 · variations in our operating results and market conditions specific to companies in our industry;
   
 · changes in financial estimates or recommendations by securities analysts;
   
 · announcements of innovations or new products or services by us or our competitors;
   
 · the emergence of new competitors;
   
 · operating and market price performance of other companies that investors deem comparable;
   
 · changes in our board or management;
   
 · sales or purchases of our common stock by insiders;
   
 · commencement of, or involvement in, litigation;
   
 · changes in governmental regulations; and
   
 · general economic conditions and slow or negative growth of related markets.
 

In addition, if the market for stocks in our industry or the stock market in general, experiences a loss of investor confidence, the market price of
our common stock could decline for reasons unrelated to our business, financial condition or results of operations. If any of the foregoing occurs, it could
cause the price of our common stock to fall and may expose us to lawsuits that, even if unsuccessful, could be costly to defend and a distraction to the
board of directors and management.

 
If we are unable to pay the costs associated with being a public, reporting company, we may be forced to discontinue operations.
 
We expect to have significant costs associated with being a public, reporting company, which may raise substantial doubt about our ability to

continue as a going concern. Our ability to continue as a going concern will depend on positive cash flow, if any, from future operations and on our ability
to raise additional funds through equity or debt financing. If we are unable to achieve the necessary product sales or raise or obtain needed funding to
cover the costs of operating as a public, reporting company, we may be forced to discontinue operations.

 
Our common stock is listed for quotation on the OTC Pink tier of the marketplace maintained by OTC Markets Group, Inc., which may

make it more difficult for investors to resell their shares due to suitability requirements.
 
Our common stock is currently quoted on the OTC Pink tier of the marketplace maintained by OTC Markets Group, Inc. Broker-dealers often

decline to trade in over-the-counter stocks given the market for such securities are often limited, the stocks are more volatile, and the risk to investors is
greater. These factors may reduce the potential market for our common stock by reducing the number of potential investors. This may make it more
difficult for investors in our common stock to sell shares to third parties or to otherwise dispose of their shares. This could cause our stock price to decline.

 
We may be unable to become eligible for quotation of our common stock on the OTCQB tier or a prominent national securities exchange and

this will have a negative impact on our market price. The OTC Pink marketplace also does not provide as much liquidity as the OTCQB or national
exchanges. Many broker-dealers will not trade or recommend OTC Pink stocks for their clients. Because the OTCQB and national exchanges generally
increase transparency by maintaining higher reporting standards and requirements and imposing management certification and compliance requirements,
broker-dealers are more likely to trade stocks on national exchanges and the OTCQB marketplace.
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Our principal shareholders have the ability to exert significant control in matters requiring shareholder approval and could delay, deter, or
prevent a change in control of our company.

 
Richard DeCicco, our Chief Executive Officer and Director, owns one (1) share of our Series A Preferred Stock (the only shares of our Series A

Preferred Stock that is authorized, issued and outstanding). This share of Series A Preferred Stock gives Mr. DeCicco two (2) votes for every one (1) vote
of our outstanding voting securities. As a result, he has the ability to influence matters affecting our shareholders, including the election of our directors,
the acquisition or disposition of our assets, and the future issuance of our shares. Because he controls this share, investors may find it difficult to replace
our management if they disagree with the way our business is being operated. Because the influence by Mr. DeCicco could result in management making
decisions that are in his best interest and not in the best interest of other shareholders, you may lose some or all of the value of your investment in our
common stock. Investors who purchase our common stock should be willing to entrust all aspects of operational control to Mr. DeCicco and our current
management team.

 
We do not intend to pay dividends in the foreseeable future.
 
We do not intend to pay any dividends in the foreseeable future. We do not plan on making any cash distributions in the manner of a dividend or

otherwise. Our Board presently intends to follow a policy of retaining earnings, if any.
 
We have the right to issue additional common stock and preferred stock without consent of shareholders. This would have the effect of

diluting investors’ ownership and could decrease the value of their investment.
 
We are authorized to issue up to 200,000,000 shares of common stock, of which there were 6,039,765 shares issued and outstanding as of

October 24, 2018. Another 4,822,396 shares may be issued and outstanding if the Series E Shares are converted to common stock and the Warrants are
exercised. Further, approximately 84,000 additional shares may be issued if outstanding warrants other than the Warrants are exercised.

 
In addition, our certificate of incorporation authorizes the issuance of up to 100,000,000 shares of preferred stock, the rights, preferences,

designations and limitations of which may be set by the Board of Directors. We have designated and authorized, one (1) share of Series A Preferred
Stock, 1,000,000 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, 1,000 shares of Series C Preferred Stock, and 10 shares of Series D Convertible
Preferred Stock. As of October 24 , 2018, there were issued and outstanding (i) one (1) share of our Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, (ii) no shares of
our Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, (iii) 1,000 shares of our Series C Preferred Stock, (iv) 10 shares of our Series D Convertible Preferred Stock,
and 6,027,994 shares of our Series E Convertible Preferred Stock.
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The shares of authorized but undesignated preferred stock may be issued upon filing of an amended certificate of incorporation and the payment
of required fees; no further shareholder action is required. If issued, the rights, preferences, designations and limitations of such preferred stock would be
set by our Board and could operate to the disadvantage of the outstanding common stock. Such terms could include, among others, preferences as to
dividends and distributions on liquidation. We have designated five series of preferred stock, four of which have shares issued and outstanding. A
description of the terms, rights and preferences of these series of preferred stock are described under “Description of Securities” beginning on page 18.

 
Our officers and directors can sell some of their stock, which may have a negative effect on our stock price and ability to raise additional

capital, and may make it difficult for investors to sell their stock at any price.
 
Our officers and directors, as a group, are the owners of 246,594 shares of our common stock, representing approximately 4.1% of our total

issued shares, with shares of Series D Preferred Stock that they may convert to acquire another 6,286,286 shares of our common stock, representing
approximately 51.0% of our total issued and outstanding shares of common stock after conversion. Each individual officer and director may be able to
sell up to 1% of our outstanding common stock (currently approximately 60,398 shares) every ninety (90) days in the open market pursuant to Rule 144,
which may have a negative effect on our stock price and may prevent us from obtaining additional capital. In addition, if our officers and directors are
selling their stock into the open market, it may make it difficult or impossible for investors to sell their stock at any price. However, our officers and
directors have entered into Lock-Up Agreements and have agreed to refrain from selling any shares of our common stock for 90 days after the effective
date of the registration statement

 
Our common stock is governed under The Securities Enforcement and Penny Stock Reform Act of 1990.
 
The Securities Enforcement and Penny Stock Reform Act of 1990 requires additional disclosure relating to the market for penny stocks in

connection with trades in any stock defined as a penny stock. The Commission has adopted regulations that generally define a penny stock to be any
equity security that has a market price of less than $5.00 per share, subject to certain exceptions. Such exceptions include any equity security listed on
NASDAQ and any equity security issued by an issuer that has (i) net tangible assets of at least $2,000,000, if such issuer has been in continuous operation
for three years; (ii) net tangible assets of at least $5,000,000, if such issuer has been in continuous operation for less than three years; or (iii) average
annual revenue of at least $6,000,000, if such issuer has been in continuous operation for less than three years. Unless an exception is available, the
regulations require the delivery, prior to any transaction involving a penny stock, of a disclosure schedule explaining the penny stock market and the risks
associated therewith.
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SPECIAL NOTE ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
 

We have made forward-looking statements in this Prospectus, including the sections entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and “Business,” that are based on our management’s beliefs and assumptions and on information currently
available to our management. Forward-looking statements include the information concerning our possible or assumed future results of operations,
business strategies, financing plans, competitive position, industry environment, potential growth opportunities, the effects of future regulation, and the
effects of competition. Forward-looking statements include all statements that are not historical facts and can be identified by the use of forward-looking
terminology such as the words “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,” “estimate” or similar expressions. These statements are only predictions
and involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties, including the risks outlined under “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Prospectus.
 

Although we believe that the expectations reflected in our forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results, events,
levels of activity, performance or achievement. We are not under any duty to update any of the forward-looking statements after the date of this
Prospectus to conform these statements to actual results, unless required by law.
 

USE OF PROCEEDS
 

This Prospectus relates to shares of our common stock that may be offered and sold from time to time by the Selling Shareholders. We will not
receive any proceeds from the sale of shares of common stock by the Selling Shareholders in this offering.

 
The proceeds we have received pursuant to the issuance of the Series E Shares and Warrants, and the proceeds that we may receive from the

exercise of Warrants, will be used for working capital and general corporate purposes. This anticipated use of net proceeds represents our intentions based
upon our current plans and business conditions. If any of these factors change, we may reallocate some of the net proceeds. The portion of any net
proceeds not immediately required will be invested in certificates of deposit or similar short-term interest bearing instruments.
 

We will pay for expenses of this offering, except that the Selling Shareholders will pay any broker discounts or commissions or equivalent
expenses applicable to the sale of their shares.
 

PRIVATE PLACEMENT OF SECURITIES
 
Securities Purchase Agreement
 

On October 27, 2017, we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (as amended, the “Purchase Agreement”) with the Selling Shareholders
pursuant to which we sold a total of 480,000 shares of our common stock (the “Common Shares”) and 480,000 Warrants for a total of $300,000 cash.

 
On May 21, 2018, we entered into a Share Exchange Agreement (the “Exchange Agreement”) with the Selling Shareholders and Amendment

No. 1 to the Purchase Agreement. Pursuant to the Exchange Agreement, the Selling Shareholders exchanged the Common Shares for 1,200,000 Series E
Shares. Each Series E Share is convertible into 0.4 shares of our common stock. In addition, we entered into an amendment to the Purchase Agreement.
Under the amended Purchase Agreement, the Selling Shareholders bought an additional 1,200,000 Series E Shares and an additional 480,000 Warrants for
an aggregate of $300,000 in cash.
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The Registered Shares being registered in this registration statement are only the shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the Series
E Shares that were issued pursuant to the Exchange Agreement, and (ii) the shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the Series E Shares that
were issued shortly after effectiveness of the registration statement, pursuant to the Purchase Agreement.

 
The Warrants are immediately exercisable and have a term of five (5) years. The Selling Shareholders may exercise the Warrants at their option

at any time into shares of our common stock. The exercise price is $2.50. However, on October 27, 2018, the exercise price will be permanently reduced
to the lower of (i) the exercise price, as adjusted per the terms of the Warrants, and (ii) 50% of the average of the four lowest closing bid prices for our
common stock on the primary trading market during the forty (40) trading days immediately prior to such date.

 
If we sell any of our common stock or equivalent at an effective price per shares less than the exercise price of the Warrants, then the exercise

price of the Warrants will be reduced to the price of the shares sold, and additional warrant shares will be issuable so that the aggregate exercise price does
not change. The Warrants also have the right to pro rata distributions of any dividend, stock, stock rights or other distribution to holders of our common
stock.

 
Cashless exercise of the Warrants is available because after the six-month anniversary of the closing date of the Purchase Agreement, there was

no registration statement registering the resale of the shares issuable upon exercise of the Warrants.
 
The Warrants and Series E Preferred also require that we reserve and keep available out of our authorized and unissued common stock a

sufficient number of shares to provide for issuance of the shares issuable upon exercise of the Warrants and conversion of the Series E Preferred, requiring
an initial reserve of 1,920,000 authorized shares.

 
Pursuant to the terms of the Series E Preferred and Warrants, we cannot sell or issue shares to a Selling Shareholder if such shares would cause

the Selling Shareholder to beneficially own, as determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act, more than 4.99% of our common stock.
However, in the case of both the Warrants and the Series E Preferred, the Selling Shareholder can raise this limit to 9.99% but not until 61 days after
giving us notice. We have not received such a notice. As a result, as of the date of this Prospectus, a Selling Shareholder cannot own more than
approximately 336,000 shares after giving effect to any issuance to the Selling Shareholder. If our total number of outstanding shares of common stock
increases, or if the Selling Shareholder subsequently disposes of shares acquired from us in the open market, then we would be able to sell more shares to
the Selling Shareholder before reaching the 4.99% threshold.

 
Because of this limitation on the Selling Shareholders’ ownership of our stock, the Selling Shareholders may not be able to convert all of their

Series E Shares or exercise all of their Warrants.
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Registration Rights Agreement
 

On October 27, 2017, we also entered into a Registration Rights Agreement with the Selling Shareholders in connection with the Purchase
Agreement. In the Registration Rights Agreement, we agreed to prepare and file a registration statement with the Commission covering the resale of all of
the Registered Shares and the shares issuable upon exercise of Warrants. On May 21, 2018, we entered into Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Rights
Agreement with the Selling Shareholders. Per the Registration Rights Agreement, as amended, we agreed to (i) file an initial registration statement by
June 8, 2018 (a date which has been extended by verbal agreement among the parties), (ii) have it declared effective no later than 150 days after its filing,
and (iii) keep it continuously effective until the securities are sold or may be sold under Rule 144 of the Securities Act without volume or manner-of-sale
restrictions. If we cannot meet these obligations, the Selling Shareholders have the right to collect partial liquidated damages equal to 1.0% multiplied by
the total amount they have invested . These partial liquidated damages are payable at the time of breach and each month thereafter that the breach is not
cured (up to a maximum of 6.0% of the total amount invested). Interest will accrue at a rate of 18% per annum on any amount due under this provision
that is not paid within seven days after the date payable. These partial liquidated damages apply in addition to any other remedies the Selling Shareholders
may have.

 
If all of the securities cannot be registered on one registration statement, we agreed to file subsequent registration statements to register the

remaining securities as promptly as allowed. We are only able to register the Registered Shares at this time. Shares issuable upon exercise of the Warrants
will need to be registered separately or sold pursuant to an exemption from registration.

 
The issuance of the Warrants, the shares issuable upon exercise of the Warrants, the Series E Shares, and the Registered Shares to the Selling

Shareholders under the Purchase Agreement is exempt from registration under the Securities Act, pursuant to the exemption for transactions by an issuer
not involving any public offering under Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act and Rule 506 of Regulation D promulgated thereunder.
 

DILUTION
 

The issuance of our common stock to the Selling Shareholders upon conversion of the Series E Shares and exercise of the Warrants will have a
dilutive impact on our shareholders. As a result, our net income per share, if any, would decrease in future periods and the market price of our common
stock could decline.
 

Our net tangible book value as of June 30, 2018 was approximately ($1,686,135), or ($0.325) per share. Net tangible book value per share is
determined by dividing our total tangible assets, less total liabilities, by the number of shares of our common stock outstanding as of June 30, 2018.
 

After giving effect to the issuance and conversion of the Series E Shares and the issuance and exercise of the Warrants, assuming receipt of
exercise price payments on the Warrants of $2,400,000, and assuming the sale of all 960,000 shares of common stock by the Selling Shareholders at the
sale price of $2.50, our pro forma as adjusted net tangible book value as of June 30, 2018 would have been approximately $713,865, or $0.10 per share of
Common Stock. This represents an immediate increase in pro forma as adjusted net tangible book value of $0.425 per share to our existing shareholders
and an immediate dilution of $2.075 per share to our new shareholders.
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SELLING SHAREHOLDERS
 

The common stock being offered by the Selling Shareholders are those shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of their Series E
Shares. For additional information regarding the Series E Shares, see “Private Placement of Securities” on page 11 above. We are registering the shares of
common stock in order to permit the Selling Shareholders to offer the shares for resale from time to time. Except for the ownership of the shares of
common stock, Series E Shares and Warrants, the Selling Shareholders have not had any material relationship with us within the past three years.
 

The table below lists the Selling Shareholders and other information regarding the beneficial ownership of the shares of common stock by each
of the Selling Shareholders. The second column lists the number of shares of common stock beneficially owned by each Selling Shareholder, based on its
ownership as of October 24, 2018, assuming conversion of the Series E Shares and exercise of the Warrants held by the Selling Shareholders on that date,
subject to limitations on exercises as set forth in our Series E Preferred and the Warrants.

 
The third column lists the shares of common stock being offered in this prospectus by the Selling Shareholders.
 
In accordance with the terms of a registration rights agreement with the Selling Shareholders, this prospectus generally covers the resale of

shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the Series E Shares held by the Selling Shareholders, subject to adjustment as provided in the
registration rights agreement. The fourth column assumes the sale of all of the shares offered by the selling shareholders pursuant to this prospectus.
 

Under the terms of the Series E Shares and Warrants, a Selling Shareholder may not convert the Series E Shares or exercise the Warrants to the
extent such conversion or exercise would cause such Selling Shareholder, together with its affiliates and attribution parties, to beneficially own a number
of shares of common stock which would exceed 4.99% of our then outstanding common stock. The Selling Shareholders may sell all, some or none of
their shares in this offering. See “Plan of Distribution” beginning on page 17.

 
As of October 24, 2018, there were approximately 5,793,171 shares of our common stock held by or currently issuable to non-affiliates,

representing approximately 95.9% of the outstanding common stock. The 960,000 shares we are registering for resale by the Selling Shareholders
represents approximately 16.6% of the outstanding common stock held by non-affiliates (and approximately 14.2% of the outstanding common stock held
by non-affiliates after the issuance thereof).
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All information with respect to common stock ownership of the Selling Shareholders has been furnished by or on behalf of the Selling
Shareholders and is as of October 24, 2018. Because the Selling Shareholders may sell some or all of the shares included in this Prospectus, and because
there are currently no agreements, arrangements or understandings with respect to the sale of any of the shares, no estimate can be given as to the number
of shares available for resale hereby that will be held by the Selling Shareholders in the future. In addition, the Selling Shareholders may have sold,
transferred or otherwise disposed of, or may sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of, at any time and from time to time, the common stock it holds in
transactions exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act after the date on which it provided the information set forth on the table
below. We have, therefore, assumed for the purposes of the following table, that the Selling Shareholders will sell all of the shares owned beneficially by
it listed in the table below that are covered by this Prospectus. Shares in the table below refer to shares of our outstanding common stock.

 

Selling Shareholder  

Shares of
Common

Stock
Beneficially

Owned Prior
to the

Offering   

Maximum
Number of
Shares of
Common

Stock Being
Offered

Hereby (4)   

Shares of
Common

Stock
Beneficially

Owned After
Completion of
the Offering

(5)   

Percent of
Outstanding

Common Stock
Beneficially

Owned After
Completion of
the Offering  

The Special Equities Group, LLC (1)   317,213(3)  320,000   367,633   0%
Iroquois Master Fund Ltd. (2)   317,213(6)  240,000   367,633   0%
Iroquois Capital Investment Group, LLC (2)   213,334(8)  80,000   160,001   0%
Gregory M. Castaldo (7)   317,213(3)  320,000   367,633   0%
___________________
(1) Based on information provided to us, Jonathan Schechter and Joseph Reda are the individuals who share dispositive and voting power of the shares.

Mr. Schechter and Mr. Reda disclaim any beneficial ownership of these shares. The address of The Special Equities Group is 106 Woods Drive,
Roslyn, NY 11576.

  
(2) Based on information provided to us, Richard Abbe is the individual who holds dispositive and voting power of the shares. Mr. Abbe disclaims any

beneficial ownership of these shares. The address of Iroquois Master Fund Ltd. and Iroquois Capital Investment Group, LLC is c/o Iroquois Capital
Management, 205 E. 42nd Street, 20th Floor, New York, NY 10017.

  
(3) Amount shown consists solely of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the Series E Shares and exercise of the Warrants. The

Selling Shareholder may receive up to 870 ,000 shares of common stock upon conversion of its Series E Shares and exercise of the Warrants
(subject to certain adjustments under the terms of each). However, a Selling Shareholder may not convert the Series E Shares or exercise the
Warrants, if the conversion or exercise would cause the Selling Shareholder to own more than 4.99% of our outstanding common stock after the
conversion or exercise. The number of shares listed here is the maximum number of shares the Selling Shareholder could acquire through exercise
of its warrants or conversion of its Series E Shares. See “Private Placement of Securities” on page 11 for more details on the Series E Shares and
Warrants.

  
(4) Represents the maximum number of shares each Selling Shareholder may sell pursuant to this registration statement and represents shares of

common stock that may be issuable pursuant to the Series E Shares and Warrants. See “Private Placement of Securities” on page 11 for more
details.

  



(5) Assumes that all Series E Shares were converted, all Warrants were exercised, and all underlying Registered Shares were sold in the offering.
However, a Selling Shareholder may not convert the Series E Shares or exercise the Warrants, if the conversion or exercise would cause the Selling
Shareholder to own more than 4.99% of our outstanding common stock after the conversion or exercise. See “Private Placement of Securities” on
page 11 for more details on the Series E Shares and Warrants.
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(6) Amount shown consists solely of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the Series E Shares and exercise of the Warrants. The Selling
Shareholder may receive up to 656,666 shares of common stock upon conversion of its Series E Shares and exercise of the Warrants (subject to
certain adjustments under the terms of each). However, a Selling Shareholder may not convert the Series E Shares or exercise the Warrants, if the
conversion or exercise would cause the Selling Shareholder to own more than 4.99% of our outstanding common stock after the conversion or
exercise. The number of shares listed here is the maximum number of shares the Selling Shareholder could own at any one time. See “Private
Placement of Securities” on page 11 for more details on the Series E Shares and Warrants.

  
(7) Mr. Castaldo’s address is 3776 Steven James Drive, Garnet Valley, PA 19060.
  
(8) Amount shown consists solely of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the Series E Shares and exercise of the Warrants. The Selling

Shareholder may receive up to 213,334 shares of common stock upon conversion of its Series E Shares and exercise of the Warrants (subject to
certain adjustments under the terms of each). However, a Selling Shareholder may not convert the Series E Shares or exercise the Warrants, if the
conversion or exercise would cause the Selling Shareholder to own more than 4.99% of our outstanding common stock after the conversion or
exercise. The number of shares listed here is the maximum number of shares the Selling Shareholder could own at any one time. See “Private
Placement of Securities” on page 11 for more details on the Series E Shares and Warrants.

 
Beneficial ownership for the purposes of the table above is determined in accordance with the rules and regulations of the SEC. These rules

generally provide that a person is the beneficial owner of securities if such person has or shares the power to vote or direct the voting thereof, or to dispose
or direct the disposition thereof or has the right to acquire such powers within 60 days. Except as disclosed in the table above, we believe that the Selling
Shareholders and their affiliates identified herein possess sole voting and investment power over all shares of common stock shown as beneficially owned
by such Selling Shareholders and affiliates.
 
Resales
 

The Selling Shareholders and intermediaries through whom shares are sold may be deemed “underwriters” within the meaning of the Securities
Act with respect to the shares offered by this Prospectus, and any profits realized or commissions received may be deemed underwriting compensation.
 

If required, we will add transferees, successors and donees by prospectus supplement in instances where the transferee, successor or donee has
acquired its shares from a Selling Shareholder named in this Prospectus after the effective date of this Prospectus.
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION
 

The Selling Shareholders and any of their pledgees, assignees and successors-in-interest may, from time to time, sell any or all of the Registered
Shares on the principal trading market on which our common stock trades or any other stock exchange, market or trading facility on which the shares are
traded or in private transactions. These sales will be at a fixed price of $2.50 per share, until our common stock is listed on a national securities exchange
or is quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board, the OTCQX or the OTCQB, at which time the Selling Shareholders may sell the Registered Shares at a fixed
price, a price based on the market price or at a negotiated price. The Selling Shareholders may use any one or more of the following methods when selling
shares:

 
 · ordinary brokerage transactions and transactions in which the broker‑dealer solicits purchasers;
   

 · block trades in which the broker‑dealer will attempt to sell the shares as agent but may position and resell a portion of the block as principal to
facilitate the transaction;

   
 · purchases by a broker‑dealer as principal and resale by the broker‑dealer for its account;
   
 · an exchange distribution in accordance with the rules of the applicable exchange;
   
 · privately negotiated transactions;
   
 · settlement of short sales;
   

 · in transactions through broker‑dealers that agree with the Selling Shareholders to sell a specified number of such shares at a stipulated price
per share;

   
 · through the writing or settlement of options or other hedging transactions, whether through an options exchange or otherwise;
   
 · a combination of any such methods of sale; or
   



 · any other method permitted pursuant to applicable law.
 

The Selling Shareholders may also sell shares under Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, if available, rather than under this
Prospectus.

 
Broker-dealers engaged by the Selling Shareholders may arrange for other brokers‑dealers to participate in sales. Broker‑dealers may receive

commissions or discounts from the Selling Shareholders (or, if any broker‑dealer acts as agent for the purchaser of shares, from the purchaser) in amounts
to be negotiated, but, except as set forth in a supplement to this Prospectus, in the case of an agency transaction not in excess of a customary brokerage
commission in compliance with FINRA Rule 2440; and in the case of a principal transaction a markup or markdown in compliance with FINRA IM-2440.

 
In connection with the sale of the securities or interests therein, the Selling Shareholders may enter into hedging transactions with broker-dealers

or other financial institutions, which may in turn engage in short sales of the securities in the course of hedging the positions they assume. The Selling
Shareholders may also sell securities short and deliver these securities to close out their short positions, or loan or pledge the securities to broker-dealers
that in turn may sell these securities. The Selling Shareholders may also enter into option or other transactions with broker-dealers or other financial
institutions or create one or more derivative securities which require the delivery to such broker-dealer or other financial institution of Registered Shares,
which securities such broker-dealer or other financial institution may resell pursuant to this prospectus (as supplemented or amended to reflect such
transaction).
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The Selling Shareholders and any broker-dealers or agents that are involved in selling the Registered Shares may be deemed to be
“underwriters” within the meaning of the Securities Act in connection with such sales. In such event, any commissions received by such broker-dealers or
agents and any profit on the resale of the Registered Shares purchased by them may be deemed to be underwriting commissions or discounts under the
Securities Act. Each Selling Shareholder has informed us that it does not have any written or oral agreement or understanding, directly or indirectly, with
any person to distribute the Registered Shares.

 
We are required to pay certain fees and expenses incurred for registration of the Registered Shares. We have agreed to indemnify the Selling

Shareholders against certain losses, claims, damages and liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act.
 
We agreed to keep this prospectus effective until the earlier of (A) the date on which the all of the Registered Shares have been sold pursuant to

this prospectus or Rule 144 under the Securities Act, and (B) the date that all of the Registered Shares may be sold pursuant to rule 144 without volume or
manner-of-sale restrictions. The Registered Shares will be sold only through registered or licensed brokers or dealers if required under applicable state
securities laws. In addition, in certain states, the resale securities covered hereby may not be sold unless they have been registered or qualified for sale in
the applicable state or an exemption from the registration or qualification requirement is available and is complied with.

 
Under applicable rules and regulations under the Exchange Act, any person engaged in the distribution of the resale securities may not

simultaneously engage in market making activities with respect to the common stock for the applicable restricted period, as defined in Regulation M, prior



to the commencement of the distribution. In addition, the Selling Shareholders will be subject to applicable provisions of the Exchange Act and the rules
and regulations thereunder, including Regulation M, which may limit the timing of purchases and sales of the common stock by the Selling Shareholders
or any other person. We will make copies of this prospectus available to the Selling Shareholders and have informed them of the need to deliver a copy of
this prospectus to each purchaser at or prior to the time of the sale (including by compliance with Rule 172 under the Securities Act).

 
DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES

 
Our authorized capital stock consists of 200,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, and 100,000,000 shares of preferred

stock. As of October 24, 2018, there were issued and outstanding (i) 6,039,765 shares of our common stock, (ii) one (1) share of our Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock, (iii) no shares of our Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, (iv) 1,000 shares of our Series C Preferred Stock, (v) 10 shares of our Series
D Convertible Preferred Stock, and (vi) 6,027,994 shares of our Series E Convertible Preferred Stock.

 
Common Stock. Each shareholder of our common stock is entitled to a pro rata share of cash distributions made to shareholders, including

dividend payments. The holders of our common stock are entitled to one vote for each share of record on all matters to be voted on by shareholders. There
is no cumulative voting with respect to the election of our directors or any other matter. Therefore, the holders of more than 50% of the shares voted for
the election of those directors can elect all of the directors. The holders of our common stock are entitled to receive dividends when and if declared by our
Board of Directors from funds legally available therefore. Cash dividends are at the sole discretion of our Board of Directors. In the event of our
liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the holders of common stock are entitled to share ratably in all assets remaining available for distribution to them
after payment of our liabilities and after provision has been made for each class of stock, if any, having any preference in relation to our common
shareholders of shares of our common stock have no conversion, preemptive or other subscription rights, and there are no redemption provisions
applicable to our common stock.
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Preferred Stock. We are authorized to issue 100,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share, of which we have designated and
authorized, one (1) share of Series A Preferred Stock, 1,000,000 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, 1,000 shares of Series C Preferred Stock,
10 shares of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock, and 10,000,000 shares of Series E Convertible Preferred Stock.

 
Below are brief descriptions of each series of preferred stock. These descriptions are qualified in their entirety by the Certificates of Designation

that set forth the terms of each series and are included as exhibits to the registration statement that includes this prospectus.
 
Series A Preferred Stock
 

The Series A Preferred Stock has a stated value amount of One Dollar ($1) per share. The holder of the Series A Preferred Stock is not entitled to
dividends of any kind. The Series A Preferred Stock is not convertible and does not have any rights with in the event of any liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the Company. The holder of our Series A Preferred Stock votes together with the holders of our common stock and has two (2) votes for
every share of common stock deemed outstanding and entitled to a vote on all matters submitted to the shareholders. Therefore, the holder of our Series A
Preferred Stock will have at least two-thirds of all votes on any matter to be voted upon by the shareholders.

 
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock

 
The Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series B Preferred Stock”) ranks senior to any other class or series of our stock as to distribution of

assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company. Upon liquidation, and prior to any distribution to holders of other classes of stock, the
holders of the Series B Preferred Stock will receive an amount equal to the sum of $1,000 per share of Series B Preferred Stock and an amount equal to all
unpaid dividends on the Series B Preferred Stock, if any.



 
Holders of Series B Preferred Stock may at their option convert all or any portion of their shares of Series B Preferred Stock into common stock

at any time or from time to time. The conversion price is Two Dollars ($2.00) per share, provided, however, if the market price shall be less than Two
Dollars ($2.00) per share at any one or more conversion date then the Series B conversion price shall be equal to 100% of the VWAP per share of
common stock, as traded on any national securities exchange, for the twenty (20) trading days immediately prior to the conversion date, or such other
dollar amount (or fraction thereof) into which such Series B Preferred Stock conversion price may be adjusted.

 
Holders of the Series B Preferred Stock shall vote together as a separate class on all matters which impact the rights, value or conversion terms,

or ranking of the Series B Preferred Stock, as provided herein.  Except as set forth above, the Series B Preferred Stock shall not vote on any matter
submitted to the stockholders of the Company and holder(s) of the Series B Preferred Stock shall have no other voting rights.

 
In addition, the holders of the Series B Preferred Stock are entitled to piggy-back registration rights.
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Series C Preferred Stock
 

The holders of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock have preferential rights in comparison to holders of our common stock. Upon any Sale, as
defined in the Certificate of Designation, the holders of the Series C Preferred Stock, in the aggregate, shall be entitled to receive out of the proceeds of
such Sale (in whatever form, be it cash, securities, or other assets), a distribution from the Company equal to 76.93% of all such proceeds received by the
Company prior to any distribution of such proceeds to all other classes of equity securities, including any series of preferred stock designated subsequent
to this Series C Preferred Stock.

 
In the Certificate of Designation for the Series C Preferred Stock, a “Sale” means a sale of the majority of the assets held by, or majority of the

membership interests (equity) of BiVi LLC.  Other than with respect to a Sale, the Series C Preferred Stock will, with respect to rights on liquidation,
dissolution and winding-up of the Company, rank on parity with the Common Stock.
 



Series D Convertible Preferred Stock
 

On December 13, 2016, our Board of Directors approved the creation of a new class of preferred stock in order to facilitate Closing of the
Securities Purchase Agreement with Bellissima Spirits LLC and Bellissima Spirits LLC’s members under which the Company acquired a 51% Majority
Interest in Bellissima Spirits LLC in exchange for the issuance of a total of 10 shares of newly designated Iconic Series D Convertible Preferred Stock.
Each share of Iconic Series D Convertible Preferred Stock is convertible into the equivalent of 5.1% of Iconic common stock issued and outstanding at
the time of conversion.

 
Series E Convertible Preferred Stock
 

On May 31, 2018, our Board of Directors created a new class of preferred stock, the Series E Preferred, in connection with the Exchange
Agreement as discussed above under the section “Private Placement of Securities,” beginning on page 11. Each shares of our Series E Preferred is
convertible into 100 shares of our common stock. However, the conversion of our Series E Preferred may not be converted into common stock if the
conversion would result in the holder having beneficial ownership of more than 4.99% of our outstanding shares of common stock immediately after
giving effect to the issuance of the conversion shares. A holder of our Series E Preferred may elect to increase this limitation to 9.99% of our outstanding
shares of common stock, but such increase will not be effective until 61 days after notice of the election is given to the Company.
 

The Series E Preferred is not redeemable.
 
Each share of Series E Preferred is entitled to 100 votes on all matters to come before the common shareholders or shareholders generally. The

voting rights of the Series E Preferred are subject to similar limitations placed on the conversion of Series E Preferred shares. A holder of Series E
Preferred may not vote more than 4.99% (or 9.99% if the beneficial ownership limitation is increased by notice to the Company at least 61 days prior to
taking effect) of all votes eligible to be cast on matters to come before the common shareholders or shareholders generally.
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Shares of Series E Preferred are entitled to dividends on an as-converted-to-common stock basis. No dividends may be paid to common
shareholders unless dividends are also paid to the Series E Preferred shareholders.

 
Upon liquidation, each share of Series E Preferred is entitled to a distribution of $0.25 prior to any payment to common shareholders or

subsequent series of preferred stock.
 
Without approval from the holders of at least 75% of the outstanding Series E Preferred, we may not sell the Company’s assets or effect a

reorganization, merger or consolidation transaction that results in the holders of the Company’s capital stock owning less than 50% of the voting power of
the Company after the transaction.

 
Dividend Policy. We have not declared or paid a cash dividend on our capital stock in our last two fiscal years and we do not expect to pay cash

dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. We currently intend to retain our earnings, if any, for use in our business. Any dividends
declared in the future will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and subject to any restrictions that may be imposed by our lenders.

 
Options and Warrants. In addition to the Warrants, there are outstanding warrants to acquire 1, 710 ,000 shares of our common stock at $2.50

per share. Of these warrants, The Special Equities Group, LLC holds 435,000 George M. Castaldo holds 435,000, Iroquois Master Fund Ltd. holds
328,333, Iroquois Capital Investment Group, LLC holds 106,667, 32 Entertainment LLC holds 40,000, Alpha Capital Anstalt holds 115,000, Jason
DiPaola holds 40,000, Richard Molinsky holds 40,000, Andrew Arno holds 40,000, Paul Rachmuth, Esq. holds 100,000 and Clyde Snow & Sessions, PC
holds 30,000.

 
Other than as set forth above, as of the date of this prospectus, we do not have any outstanding options, warrants, or other convertible securities.

 
INTEREST OF NAMED EXPERTS AND COUNSEL



 
Clyde Snow & Sessions, PC serves as our legal counsel in connection with this offering. Clyde Snow & Sessions, PC is the holder of warrants to

acquire 30,000 shares of our common stock.
 
 

20



 

Table of Contents
 

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
 
Corporate History



 
Iconic Brands, Inc., formerly Paw Spa, Inc. (“Iconic Brands,” the “Company,” “Iconic,” “we,” “us,” or “our”), was incorporated in the State of

Nevada on October 21, 2005. Effective December 31, 2016, we closed on a May 15, 2015 agreement to acquire a 51% interest in BiVi LLC, the brand
owner of “BiVi 100 percent Sicilian Vodka,” and closed on a December 13, 2016 agreement to acquire a 51% interest in Bellissima Spirits LLC.

 
BiVi LLC was organized in Nevada on May 4, 2015. Bellissima Spirits LLC was organized in Nevada on November 23, 2015.

 
Acquisition of BiVi
 

On May 15, 2015, the Company entered into a Securities Exchange Agreement, by and among the members of BiVi LLC under which the
Company acquired a 51% majority interest in BiVi LLC in exchange for the issuance (a) 4,000 shares of restricted common stock and (b) 1,000 shares of
newly created Series C Convertible Preferred Stock.

 
Under the terms of the Securities Exchange Agreement, the Company shall provide working capital, from time to time, of up to $750,000.00

pursuant to a Working Capital Facility, which shall be repaid by BiVi LLC from working capital generated from BiVi LLC’s operations. Provided that, in
the event that the Company fails to provide working capital of at least $40,000.00 per month, and such failure shall continue for a period of sixty (60)
calendar days thereafter then BiVi LLC may, at its option, by written notice to the Company, declare a default. In the event of such default, the Company
shall surrender the Majority Interest back to the other members of BiVi LLC for retirement and the Holders of the Series C Preferred Stock shall surrender
all outstanding shares back to Iconic for retirement (“BiVi Unwind”). In the event of the BiVi Unwind, BiVi LLC shall issue a 5% promissory note to the
Company with a principal amount equal to the then outstanding unpaid balance of the Working Capital Facility advanced to BiVi LLC prior to the
Unwind, payable upon the acquisition of the majority of the outstanding stock or assets of BiVi LLC, including but not limited to the BiVi Brand of
products, by a third party, but in no event later than 36 months from issuance.

 
Prior to the Closing, BiVi LLC was beneficially owned and controlled by Richard DeCicco, the Majority shareholder, President, CEO and

Director of Iconic Brands, Inc.
 
A copy of the Securities Exchange Agreement was attached to our Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 21, 2015 as Exhibit 4.1. The description

of the Agreement herein is qualified by the terms of the full text of the agreement attached thereto and the terms thereof are incorporated herein by
reference.

 
Acquisition of Bellissima Spirits LLC

 
On December 13, 2016, we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with Bellissima Spirits LLC and Bellissima Spirits LLC’s members

under which we acquired a 51% Majority Interest in Bellissima Spirits LLC in exchange for the issuance of a total of 10 shares of newly designated Iconic
Series D Convertible Preferred Stock.
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Our Business
 

Iconic Brands is a beverage company that develops, from inception to completion, alcoholic beverages for itself and third parties. Iconic Brands
also markets and places the products into national distribution through long standing industry relationships. Iconic is also a leader in “Celebrity Branding”
of beverages, procuring superior and unique products from around the world and branding its products with internationally recognized celebrities.
 

BiVi LLC produces and markets BiVi 100 percent Sicilian Vodka. BiVi LLC’s mission is to promote and support the sales endeavors of the
distribution network through targeted and national marketing endeavors and working with the celebrity partner Mr. Chazz Palminteri.
 

Bellissima Spirits LLC entered into a License Agreement with Christie Brinkley, Inc. an entity owned by Christie Brinkley, to use Brinkley’s
endorsement, signature, and other intellectual property owned by Bellissima Spirits LLC. Bellissima by Christie Brinkley is a line of Organic Prosecco.
The line includes a DOC Brut, Sparkling Rose and a Zero Sugar, Zero Carb option which are All Natural and Gluten Free with all Certified Organic and
Vegan.
 

Bellissima Spirits LLC produces it products in Treviso, Italy. The products are produced at a winery that has invested an enormous amount of
time and financial resources to produce and deliver Bellissima Prosecco and Sparkling Wines. We have a “one stop” shop with our winery partners and
they manage all of the procurement of all raw materials required to produce a finished product of either the DOC Brut, Sparkling Rose Pinot Grigio and
our Zero Sugar, Zero Carb Sparkling Wine Expression.

 
We distribute our products through United Spirits Inc., a variable interest entity of the Company, pursuant to a distribution agreement.  United

Spirits holds all s tate and f ederal licenses to distribute the our products.
 
Our products are produced overseas and shipped to the United States either directly to our customers or to United Spirits’ warehouse.  Products

that are shipped to the warehouse are then shipped via ground freight to wholesalers or distributors to fulfill orders as they are placed.
 
By law, our alcoholic products can only be sold to a licensed United States wholesaler or distributor.  Wholesalers and distributors then sell the

product to licensed retailers for “on” or “off” premise consumption. An “on” premise retailer is an establishment where the alcohol is consumed, such as a
bar or restaurant.  An “off” premise retailer is an establishment where alcohol is sold for consumption elsewhere, such as a liquor store or, in some state
jurisdictions, a supermarket.

 
One of our the wholesalers and distributors, Southern Glazer’s Wine and Spirits, LLC, purchased a $2.1 million order during the fourth quarter

of 2017 for sales to Publix Supermarkets. The order was related to a holiday program, and it was authorized for all of Publix’s seven markets: Florida,
Georgia, Tennessee, Alabama, North Carolina, South Carolina and Virginia. The program featured Bellissima Prosecco and Sparkling Wines in all Publix
stores for the 2017 holiday season. The brand also was featured as the “BOGO” (Buy One Get One) brand in Publix's circular that ran in early
January 2018. As a condition of being included in the promotion, the Company was required to provide a $597,138 rebate for each product sold during



this promotion. Note, we do not sell directly to Publix or any retail licensee. All of our sales must be made to wholesalers and distributors, who then
distribute to retailers.

 
We intend to seek, investigate and, if such investigation warrants, acquire an interest in one or more business opportunities presented to it by

persons or firms who or which desire to seek the perceived advantages of a publicly held corporation.
 
Competition
 

The beverage alcohol industry is highly competitive. We compete on the basis of quality, price, brand recognition and distribution strength. Our
beverage alcohol products compete with other alcoholic and non-alcoholic beverages for consumer purchases, as well as shelf space in retail stores,
restaurant presence and wholesaler attention. We compete with numerous multinational producers and distributors of beverage alcohol products, some of
which have greater resources than we do. Our principal competitors include La Marca Prosecco owned by Gallo, Mionetto and a large number of
independent small importers with a significant number of competitive products. We also compete with Diageo, the largest drinks company in the world,
and others such as Constellation Brands, William Grant and Sons and Jim Beam Brands to name a few.

 
With the release of our new line of Aperitis, “Bella Sprizz” we are in direct competition with Gruppo Campari the producer of Aperol. The

Elderflower version of Bella Sprizz is competing with the category Leader St. Germain. Management is confident that with our very aggressive price point
on the Bella Sprizz Line coupled with the incredible packaging and liquid quality we will quickly carve our niche in the category.
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Governmental Regulation of the Wine Industry

 
The production and sale of wine is subject to extensive regulation by the U.S. Department of the Treasury, Alcohol and Tobacco Tax and Trade

Bureau and state liquor commissions and agencies.
 
In addition, most states in which our wines are sold impose varying excise taxes on the sale of alcoholic beverages. Prompted by growing

government budget shortfalls and public reaction against alcohol abuse, government entities often consider legislation that could potentially affect the
taxation of alcoholic beverages. Excise tax rates being considered are often substantial. The ultimate effects of such legislation, if passed, cannot be
assessed accurately. Any increase in the taxes imposed on wines can be expected to have a potentially adverse impact on overall sales of such products.
However, the impact may not be proportionate to that experienced by distributors of other alcoholic beverages and may not be the same in every state.

 
The agreements we have in place with United Spirits and Dan Kay International provide the required licensing conduits that allow us to capture

the sales relative to alcoholic beverages in the United States. The United States alcohol beverage business is based upon what is known as a “three-tier
system.” The three tiers consist of an import or supplier tier if the product is domestically produced. The second tier is the wholesale tier. The third tier is
known as the retail tier, consisting of an on and off premise split. The import/supply tier sells to the wholesale tier that then sells to the retail tier.

 
United Spirits, Inc. possesses the import/supply tier licensing as well as the required licenses in the states where we sell alcoholic beverages to the

wholesale tier. We have contracted with United to facilitate the sales of the products using the licensing United has in place. This is a common third party



provider relationship in the United States alcohol beverage business.
 
Dan-Kay International is the company that we contract warehousing services for the alcohol beverage products that come to rest in the United

States. Dan-Kay maintains a required New York State warehousing license. This license has a level allowing the third party warehousing classified as
“product of others.”
 
Employees
 

As of the date hereof, we do not have any employees other than our officers and directors. Our officers and directors will continue to work for us
for the foreseeable future. We anticipate hiring appropriate personnel on an as-needed basis, and utilizing the services of independent contractors as
needed.
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY
 

We lease our office and warehouse space in North Amityville, New York from United. On March 27, 2018, we entered into a lease extension
with United. The extension has a term of three years from February 1, 2018 to January 31, 2021 and provides for monthly rent of $4,478.
 

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
 

We are not a party to or otherwise involved in any legal proceedings.
 
In the ordinary course of business, we are from time to time involved in various pending or threatened legal actions. The litigation process is

inherently uncertain and it is possible that the resolution of such matters might have a material adverse effect upon our financial condition and/or results
of operations. However, in the opinion of our management, other than as set forth herein, matters currently pending or threatened against us are not
expected to have a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations.
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MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY

SECURITIES
 

Our common stock is quoted on the OTC Pink tier of the marketplace maintained by OTC Markets Group, Inc. under the symbol “ICNB.” O ur
usual symbol i s temporarily replaced with the symbol “ICNBD” but will revert back to “ICNB” when 20 days has passed from the date our reverse split
took effect. Our common stock trades on a limited or sporadic basis and should not be deemed to constitute an established public trading market. There is
no assurance that there will be liquidity in the common stock.

 
The following table sets forth the high and low transaction price for each quarter within the fiscal years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, as

provided by OTC Markets Group, Inc. The information reflects prices between dealers, and does not include retail markup, markdown, or commission,
and may not represent actual transactions.

 
    Transaction Prices  

Fiscal Year Ended December 31,  Period  High   Low  
2018  Third Quarter  $ 1.375  $ 0.450 
  Second Quarter  $ 1.500  $ 0.750 

  First Quarter  $ 1.700  $ 0.725 

           
2017  Fourth Quarter  $ 0.0095  $ 0.0045 
  Third Quarter  $ 0.0140  $ 0.0036 
  Second Quarter  $ 0.0199  $ 0.0086 
  First Quarter  $ 0.0339  $ 0.0082 
           
2016  Fourth Quarter  $ 0.0120  $ 0.0001 



  Third Quarter  $ 0.0012  $ 0.0001 
  Second Quarter  $ 0.0005  $ 0.0001 
  First Quarter  $ 0.0050  $ 0.0003 

 
The Securities Enforcement and Penny Stock Reform Act of 1990 requires additional disclosure relating to the market for penny stocks in

connection with trades in any stock defined as a penny stock. The Commission has adopted regulations that generally define a penny stock to be any
equity security that has a market price of less than $5.00 per share, subject to a few exceptions which we do not meet. Unless an exception is available,
the regulations require the delivery, prior to any transaction involving a penny stock, of a disclosure schedule explaining the penny stock market and the
risks associated therewith.
 
Holders
 

As of October 24 , 2018, there were 6,039,765 shares of our common stock issued and outstanding and held by 121 holders of record, not
including shares held in “street name” in brokerage accounts which is unknown.
 
Dividend Policy
 

We have not paid any dividends on our common stock and do not expect to do so in the foreseeable future. We intend to apply our earnings, if
any, in expanding our operations and related activities. The payment of cash dividends in the future will be at the discretion of the Board of Directors and
will depend upon such factors as earnings levels, capital requirements, our financial condition and other factors deemed relevant by the Board of
Directors.
 
Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans
 

We do not currently have a stock option or grant plan.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
 

  

As of and for
the Quarter

Ended
June 30,   

As of and for
the Quarter

Ended
June 30,   

As of and for
the Year
Ended

December 31,   

As of and for
the Year
Ended

December 31,  
Iconic Brands, Inc.  2018   2017   2017   2016  

  
(unaudited)

  
(unaudited)

  
(audited and

restated)   
(audited and

restated)  
             
Statement of Operations Data:             
             
Revenue  $ 143,551  $ 190,084  $ 3,219,881  $ 371,815 
Net operating income (loss)  $ (297,350)  $ (121,071)  $ 168,736  $ (704,393)
Net income (loss)  $ (679,680)  $ 2,844,567  $ 4,242,883  $ (6,029,362)
                 
Balance Sheet Data:                 
                 
Cash  $ 294,467  $ 26,124  $ 1,237,432  $ 2,216 
Current assets  $ 694,947  $ 393,172  $ 1,613,353  $ 217,344 
Total assets  $ 694,947  $ 393,172  $ 1,613,353  $ 217,344 
                 
Current liabilities  $ 1,949,082  $ 2,205,218  $ 2,148,579  $ 9,275,780 
Total liabilities  $ 2,381,082  $ 2,205,218  $ 2,844,579  $ 9,275,780 
Accumulated deficit  $ (17,414,887)  $ (14,481,549)  $ (17,075,829)  $ (21,042,207)
                 



Net loss per common share – basic and diluted  $ 0.00  $ 0.00  $ 0.00  $ (2.50)
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION
 



Disclaimer Regarding Forward Looking Statements
 

You should read the following discussion in conjunction with our financial statements and the related notes and other financial information
included in this prospectus. In addition to historical financial information, the following discussion contains forward-looking statements that reflect our
plans, estimates and beliefs. Our actual results could differ materially. Factors that could cause or contribute to these differences include those discussed
below and elsewhere in this prospectus, particularly in the Section titled Risk Factors.
 

Although the forward-looking statements in this registration statement reflect the good faith judgment of our management, such statements can
only be based on facts and factors currently known by them. Consequently, and because forward-looking statements are inherently subject to risks and
uncertainties, the actual results and outcomes may differ materially from the results and outcomes discussed in the forward-looking statements. You are
urged to carefully review and consider the various disclosures made by us in this report and in our other reports as we attempt to advise interested parties
of the risks and factors that may affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations and prospects.

 
The following discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations of the Company is based upon, and should be read in

conjunction with, our audited and unaudited financial statements and related notes elsewhere in this prospectus, which have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

 
Summary Overview
 

We are a beverage company with expertise in developing, from inception to completion, alcoholic beverages for ourselves and third parties. We
also market and place products into national distribution through long standing industry relationships. We engage in “Celebrity Branding” of beverages,
procuring products from around the world and branding products with internationally recognized celebrities.

 
We intend to seek, investigate and, if such investigation warrants, acquire an interest in one or more business opportunities presented to it by

persons or firms who or which desire to seek the perceived advantages of a publicly held corporation.
 

Our Products
 

BiVi LLC, our subsidiary, is made up of BiVi 100 percent Sicilian Vodka. BiVi LLC’s mission is to promote and support the sales endeavors of
the distribution network through targeted and national marketing endeavors and working with celebrity partner Chazz Palminteri.

 
Bellissima Spirits LLC, our subsidiary, entered into a License Agreement with Christie Brinkley, Inc. an entity owned by Christie Brinkley, to

use Brinkley’s endorsement, signature, and other intellectual property owned by Bellissima Spirits LLC. Bellissima by Christie Brinkley is a line of
Organic Prosecco. The line includes a DOC Brut, Sparkling Rose and a Zero Sugar, Zero Carb option which are All Natural and Gluten Free with all
Certified Organic and Vegan.
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Results of Operations for the Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
 
Introduction
 

We had revenues of $143,551 and $190,084 for the three months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Our operating expenses were
$359,057 and $220,145, for the three months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Our operating expenses consisted mostly of professional fees,
marketing and advertising costs, occupancy costs, and travel and entertainment. During the six months ended June 30, 2018, we also incurred expenses for
a special promotion program with a customer of $597,138, described in further detail below.

 
Revenues and Net Operating Loss

 
Our revenue, operating expenses, net operating loss, and net loss for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

 
  Three Months  Three Months  Six Months   Six Months  
  June 30,   June 30,   June 30,   June 30,  
  2018   2017   2018   2017  
Sales  $ 143,551  $ 190,084  $ 205,270  $ 490,973 
Cost of Sales   81,843   91,008   119,252   213,246 

Gross profit   61,708   99,074   86,018   277,725 
   43.0%  52.1%  41.9%  56.6%
Operating expenses:                 

Officers compensation   3,207   -   3,207   - 
Professional and consulting fees   59,121   24,019   71,407   40,335 
Royalties   (75,002)   19,586   (68,412)   50,235 
Special promotion program with customer   -   -   597,138   - 
Marketing and advertising   192,740   4,226   252,055   21,688 

Occupancy costs   36,696   35,956   80,494   55,971 
Travel and entertainment   68,986   29,809   109,301   81,583 
Other operating expenses   73,309   106,549   103,562   159,783 

Total operating expenses   359,057   220,145   1,148,752   409,595 
                 
Net operating loss   (297,350)   (121,071)   (1,062,734)   (131,870)

Other income (expense)   (382,330)   2,965,638   284,577   6,172,752 



                 
Net loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries
and variable interest entity   91,352   16,854   439,099   15,897 

                 
Net income (loss)  $ (588,328)  $ 2,861,421  $ (339,058)  $ 6,056,779 
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Sales
 

Our sales are comprised of sales of BiVi Sicilian Vodka and Bellissima Prosecco and Sparkling Wine. We had sales of $143,551 and $190,084
for the three months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. We had sales of $205,270 and $490,973 for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and
2017, respectively. Sales declined in both the three months and six months ended June 30, 2018 as compared to the same two periods in 2017 due mainly



to large fourth quarter sales in 2017 that resulted in lower orders during the first two quarters of 2018.
 

Cost of Sales
 

Cost of sales for the three months ended June 30, 2018 were $81,843 compared to $91,008 during the three months ended June 30, 2017, a
decrease of $9,165. Cost of sales for the six months ended June 30, 2018 were $119,252 compared to $213,246 during the six months ended June
30, 2017, a decrease of $93,994. Cost of sales included the cost of the products purchased from our Italian suppliers, freight-in costs and import duties.
The decreased cost of sales in the current period was primarily due to lower sales in the current period.
 
Officers Compensation

 
Officers compensation for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 was $3,207. We had no officers compensation for the three or six

months ended June 30, 2017. During the time period through June 30, 2018, the Company used the services of its chief executive officer Richard DeCicco
and its assistant secretary Roseann Faltings under informal compensation arrangements (without any employment agreements). Both entered into
employment agreements effective July 1, 2018.

 
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company accrued compensation of $250,000 per year ($150,000 for Mr. DeCicco;

$100,000 for Ms. Faltings) for their services rendered. In 2016, the compensation was allocated 50% to Iconic ($125,000), 30% to Bellissima ($75,000),
and 20% to BiVi ($50,000). In 2017, the compensation was allocated 50% to Iconic ($125,000), 40% to Bellissima ($100,000), and 10% to BiVi
($25,000). The $500,000 liability at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 is included in “Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses” on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017.
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Professional and Consulting Fees
 

Professional and consulting fees expense was $59,121, for the three months ended June 30, 2018, compared to $24,019, for the three months
ended June 30, 2017, an increase of $35,102, or 146%. Professional and consulting fees expense was $71,407, for the six months ended June 30, 2018,
compared to $40,335, for the six months ended June 30, 2017, an increase of $31,072, or 77%.

 
Professional and consulting fees consist primarily of legal and, accounting and auditing services. The increase of these fees was primarily due to

increased use of professionals relating to financing and auditing activity. In May 2018, we recognized $23,250 of stock-based compensation charged to
professional and consulting fees in connection with the issuance of 7,500,000 warrants to a law firm for services rendered.

 
Royalties

 
Royalties for the three months ended June 30, 2018 were $(75,002) compared to $19,586 during the three months ended June 30, 2017, a decrease

of $94,588. Royalties for the six months ended June 30, 2018 were $(68,412) compared to $50,235 during the six months ended June 30, 2017, a decrease
of $118,647. Royalties are paid to entities controlled by Christie Brinkley (on sales of Bellissima products) and Chazz Palminteri (on sales of BiVi
products). The decrease in royalties in 2018 was due to a June 2018 reduction of an over accrual of estimated royalties payable at December 31, 2017.

 
Special Promotion Program with Customer

 
During the six months ended June 30, 2018, we incurred a marketing expense of $597,138 associated with the sale of approximately $2.1 million

of the Bellissima product. This expense related to a “buy one get one free offer” which was offered by a major retailer for which redemptions were



submitted in the first quarter of 2018. This was a one-time expense and we did not have this expense in any other period.
 

Marketing and Advertising
 
Marketing and advertising expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2018 were $192,740 compared to $4,226 during the three months ended

June 30, 2017, an increase of $188,514. Marketing and advertising expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2018 were $252,055 compared to $21,688
during the six months ended June 30, 2017, an increase of $230,367. The increase of marketing and advertising expenses in the current period was
primarily due to (1) costs relating to certain conventions which we participated in to promote a new line of Bellissima products; (2) promotional programs
with our Bellissima customer servicing Publix; and (3) a $65,000 obligation to a consultant who we contracted to find new customers for Bellissima
products.
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Occupancy Costs
 

Occupancy costs for the three months ended June 30, 2018 were $36,696 compared to $35,956 during the three months ended June 30, 2017, an
increase of $740. Occupancy costs for the six months ended June 30, 2018 were $80,494 compared to $55,971 during the six months ended June 30, 2017,
an increase of $24,523. Occupancy costs consist primarily of lease payments for office and warehouse space in Amityville, New York and office space in
New Hampshire. The increased occupancy costs in the current period was primarily due to an increase in monthly rent for the Amityville, New York
space commencing February 2018.
 
Travel and Entertainment
 



Travel and entertainment expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2018 were $68,986 compared to $29,809 during the three months ended
June 30, 2017, an increase of $39,177. Travel and entertainment expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2018 were $109,301 compared to $81,583
during the six months ended June 30, 2017, an increase of $27,718, or 34%. Travel and entertainment expenses consist primarily of airfare, hotel and
related costs incurred in connection with trips made by our CEO and assistant secretary for marketing and potential new product purposes.
 
Other Operating Expenses
 

Other operating expenses were $73,309, for the three months ended June 30, 2018, compared to $106,549, for the three months ended June 30,
2017, a decrease of $33,240, or 31%. Other operating expenses were $103,562, for the six months ended June 30, 2018, compared to $159,783, for the six
months ended June 30, 2017, a decrease of $56,221, or 35%. Other operating expenses include automobile, insurance, compliance, and office expenses
and expenses relating to Christie Brinkley appearances at Bellissima promotions.
 
Net Operating Loss
 

Net operating loss was $297,350 for the three months ended June 30, 2018, compared to $121,071, for the three months ended June 30, 2017, an
increase of $176,279. Net operating loss was $1,062,734 for the six months ended June 30, 2018, compared to $131,870, for the six months ended June
30, 2017, an increase of $930,864. Net operating loss increased for the six months ended June 30, 2018, primarily due to the special promotion program
with customer described above, lower sales revenue and higher marketing expenses.
 
Other Income/Expense
 

Other expense was $382,330 for the three months ended June 30, 2018, compared to other income of $2,965,638 for the three months ended June
30, 2017, a decrease of $3,347,968. Other expense for the three months ended June 30, 2018 included expense from derivative liability of $321,017
compared to income from derivative liability of $2,989,230 for the three months ended June 30, 2017. Other income was $284,577 for the six months
ended June 30, 2018, compared to other income of $6,172,752 for the six months ended June 30, 2017, a decrease of $5,888,175. Other income for the six
months ended June 30, 2018 included income from derivative liability of $405,848 compared to income from derivative liability of $6,228,292 for the
three months ended June 30, 2017.
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The change in other income attributable to derivative liabilities is based on the various debt and warrant issuances outstanding as of the balance
sheet dates. The $6,228,292 income from derivative liability for the six months ended June 30, 2017 resulted primarily from a $535,352 decrease in
convertible notes payable with variable conversion features from $962,623 at December 31, 2016 to $427,271 at June 30, 2017.

 
Income of $405,848 from derivative liabilities during the six months ended June 30, 2018 consisted of $141,848 from convertible notes (largely

due to the decrease in our stock price from $1.625 per share at December 31, 2017 to $1.20 per share at June 30, 2018) and $264,000 from warrants (also
largely due to the decrease in our stock price from $1.625 per share at December 31, 2017 to $1.20 per share at June 30, 2018).

 
Net Loss (Income) Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests in Subsidiaries and Variable Interest Entity
 

Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries and variable interest entity represents 49% of the net loss of Bellissima and BiVi
(which we own 51%) and 100% of United Spirits (which we own 0%) and is accounted for as a reduction in the net loss attributable to the Company. This
net loss for the three months ended June 30, 2018 was $91,352 compared to net loss of $16,854 for the three months ended June 30, 2017. Net loss from
other entities increased for the three months ended June 30, 2018 primarily due to the higher net loss of Bellissima in 2018.

 
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries and variable interest entity for the six months ended June 30, 2018 was $439,099

compared to net loss of $15,897 for the six months ended June 30, 2017. Net loss from other entities increased during the six months ended June 30, 2018,
primarily due to the higher net loss of Bellissima in 2018.
 
Net Income/Loss
 

Net loss attributable to the Company for the three months ended June 30, 2018 was $588,328 or $(0.00) per share compared to net income
attributable to the Company of $2,861,421 or $0.00 per share for the three months ended June 30, 2017. Net income (loss) attributable to the Company
decreased during the three months ended June 30, 2018, as set forth above, primarily due to a change in the income from derivative liability from
$2,989,230 in 2017 to a loss of $321,017 in 2018.
 

Net loss attributable to the Company for the six months ended June 30, 2018 was $(339,058) or $(0.00) per share compared to net income



attributable to the Company of $6,056,779 or $2.50 per share for the six months ended June 30, 2017. Net income (loss) attributable to the Company
decreased during the six months ended June 30, 2018, as set forth above, primarily due to a change in the income from derivative liability from
$6,228,292 in 2017 to $405,848 in 2018.
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Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
 
Introduction



 
We had revenues of $3,219,881 and $371,815 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Our operating expenses were

$1,264,519 for the year ended December 31, 2017 compared to $828,134 for the year ended December 31, 2016, an increase of $436,385, or 53%. Our
operating expenses included royalties of $321,741 in 2017. Under a license agreement dated May 25, 2015, BiVi LLC pays a royalty fee equal to 5% of
monthly gross sales of BiVi Brand products with minimum royalty fees of $100,000 in the first year, $150,000 in the second year, $165,000 in the third
year, $181,500 in the fourth year, $199,650 in the fifth year and $219,615 in the sixth year and each subsequent year. Under a license agreement,
Bellissima Spirits LLC pays a royalty fee equal to 10% of monthly gross sales of Bellissima Brand products.
 
Revenues and Net Operating Loss
 
Our revenues, operating expenses, and net operating loss for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 were as follows:
 
  Year Ended   Year Ended     
  December 31,   December 31,   Increase /  
  2017   2016   (Decrease)  
          
Sales  $ 3,219,881  $ 371,815  $ 2,848,066 

Cost of Sales   1,786,626   248,074   1,538,552 
Gross Profit   1,433,255   123,741   1,309,514 
             
Operating expenses:             

Royalties   321,741   33,778   287,963 
Professional fees   87,671   90,074   (2,403)
Other operating expenses   771,094   704,282   66,812 

Total operating expenses   1,264,519   828,134   436,385 
             
Net operating income (loss)   168,736   (704,393)   873,129 

Other income (expense)   4,074,147   (5,324,969)   9,399,116 
             
Net loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries and variable interest
entity   (276,505)   58,120   (334,625)
             
Net income (loss)  $ 3,966,378  $ (5,971,242)  $ 9,937,620 
 
Sales
 

Our sales are comprised of sales of BiVi Sicilian Vodka and Bellissima Prosecco and Sparkling Wine. Sales were $3,219,881 for the year ended
December 31, 2017 compared to $371,815 for the year ended December 31, 2016, an increase of $2,848,066, or 766%. The 766% increase in sales in
2017 over 2016 is primarily due to a full year of selling the Bellisma product in 2017 (sales began in October 2016) and significant sales to our Bellissima
customer servicing Publix during the fourth quarter of 2017.
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Cost of Sales
 

Cost of sales for the year ended December 31, 2017 were $1,786,626 compared to $248,074 during the year ended December 31, 2016, an
increase of $1,538,552. Cost of sales includes the cost of the products purchased from our Italian suppliers, freight-in costs and import duties. The
increased cost of sales in the current period was primarily due to higher sales in 2017 compared to 2016.
 
Officers Compensation
 

Officers compensation for the year ended December 31, 2017 was $250,000 compared to $271,521 for the year ended December 31, 2016, a
decrease of $21,521 or 8%.

 
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company accrued compensation of $250,000 per year ($150,000 for Mr. DeCicco;

$100,000 for Ms. Faltings) for their services rendered. In 2016, the compensation was allocated 50% to Iconic ($125,000), 30% to Bellissima ($75,000),
and 20% to BiVi ($50,000). In 2017, the compensation was allocated 50% to Iconic ($125,000), 40% to Bellissima ($100,000), and 10% to BiVi
($25,000). The $500,000 liability at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 is included in “Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses” on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017.
 
Professional and Consulting Fees
 

Professional and consulting fees expense was $87,671, for the year ended December 31, 2017, compared to $90,074, for the year ended
December 31, 2016, a decrease of $2,403, or about 3%.

 
Professional and consulting fees consist primarily of legal and, accounting and auditing services.

 
Royalties
 

We expensed royalties of $321,741 for the year ended December 31, 2017 compared to $33,778 for the year ended December 31, 2016, an
increase of $287,963, or 853%. Royalties increased due to the higher sales in 2017 compared to 2016.
 
Marketing and Advertising
 

Marketing and advertising expenses for the year ended December 31, 2017 were $84,013 compared to $108,155 during the year ended December
31, 2016, a decrease of $24,142.
 
Occupancy Costs
 

Occupancy costs for the year ended December 31, 2017 were $107,118 compared to $50,125 during the year ended December 31, 2016, an
increase of $56,993. Occupancy costs consist primarily of lease payments for office and warehouse space in Amityville, New York and office space in
New Hampshire.
 



 

33



 



Table of Contents
 
Travel and Entertainment
 

Travel and entertainment expenses for the year ended December 31, 2017 were $141,821 compared to $164,656 for the year ended December
31, 2016, a decrease of $22,835, or about 14%. Travel and entertainment expenses consist primarily of airfare, hotel and related costs incurred in
connection with trips made by our CEO and assistant secretary for marketing and potential new product purposes.
 
Other Operating Expenses
 

Other operating expenses were $272,155 for the year ended December 31, 2017 as compared to $109,825 for the year ended December 31, 2016,
an increase of $162,330, or about 148%. For the year ended December 31, 2017, other operating expenses include automobile, insurance, office expenses
and expenses relating to Christie Brinkley appearances at Bellissima promotions.
 
Net Operating Income/Loss
 

Net operating income for the year ended December 31, 2017 was $168,736, compared to a net operating loss of ($704,393) for the year ended
December 31, 2016, an increase of $873,129. Net operating income (loss) increased, as set forth above, primarily because sales increased by $2,848,066,
offset by increases in cost of sales and operating expenses.
 
Other Income/Expense
 

Other income for the year ended December 31, 2017 was $4,074,147, compared to other expenses of ($5,324,969) for the year ended December
31, 2016, an increase of $9,399,116. The increase was primarily due to fluctuations of our derivative liabilities from an expense of ($5,357,645) for the
year ended December 31, 2016 to income of $7,429,979 for the year ended December 31, 2017. We also reported losses on conversion of debt of
($3,178,010) for the year ended December 31, 2017 and ($202,162) for the year ended December 31, 2016.

 
Our convertible notes contain variable conversion features based on the future trading price of our common stock. Therefore, the number of

shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the notes are indeterminate. Accordingly, we recorded the $7,260,885 fair value of the embedded
conversion features at December 31, 2016 as a derivative liability. The $6,802,813 decrease in the fair value of the derivative liability from $7,260,885 at
December 31, 2016 to $458,072 at December 31, 2017 was credited to income from derivative liability. For further details, see Note 8 of our consolidated
financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.
 
Net Loss (Income) attributable to Noncontrolling Interests in Subsidiaries and Variable Interest Entity
 

Net loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries and variable interest entity represents 49% of the net loss of Bellissima
and BiVi (which we own 51%) and 100% of United Spirits (which we own 0%) and is accounted for as a reduction in the net loss attributable to the
Company. This net loss (income) for the year ended December 31, 2017 was $(276,505) compared to net loss of $58,120 for the year ended December 31,
2016, a decrease of $334,625. Net loss (income) from other entities decreased during the year ended December 31, 2017 primarily due to net income of
Bellissima in 2017.
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Net Income/Loss
 

Net income attributable to the Company for the year ended December 31, 2017 was $3,966,378, or $0.00 per share, compared to a net loss of
($5,971,242, or $(0.01) per share, for the year ended December 31, 2016, an increase of $9,937,620. Net income (loss) increased, as set forth above,
primarily due to the $2,848,066 increase of our sales and income from derivative liabilities of $7,429,979, offset by a loss on conversion of debt of
($3,178,010).
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources
 
Introduction

 
During the year ended December 31, 2017, because we generated sufficient revenue, we had positive operating cash flows. Our cash on hand as

of June 30, 2018 was $294,467. Our average monthly cash flow burn rate for 2017 was approximately $20,000 while our average monthly cash provided
by operating activities was approximately $56,000.We have medium cash needs in the short term, and as our operating expenses increase, we will face
strong to medium long term cash needs. We anticipate that our cash flows from operations will satisfy our cash flow needs for the next year, but if
revenues do not keep up with our expenses, it will be necessary to seek other methods to finance our operations and any growth opportunities, including
the sale of convertible debt and equity securities.

 
Our cash, current assets, total assets, current liabilities, and total liabilities as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively, are as

follows:
 
  June 30,   December 31,     
  2018   2017   Change  
          
Cash  $ 294,467  $ 1,237,432  $ (942,965)
Total Current Assets   694,947   1,613,353   (918,406)
Total Assets   694,947   1,613,353   (918,406)
Total Current Liabilities   1,949,082   2,148,579   (199,497)
Total Liabilities  $ 2,381,082  $ 2,844,579  $ (463,497)
 

Our cash and total current assets decreased primarily due to the $1,062,734 loss from operations in the six months ended June 30, 2018. Our total
current liabilities decreased primarily due to the $241,021 decrease in accounts payable and accrued expense and the $141,848 decrease in derivative
liability on convertible debt, offset by increases in other current liabilities. Our working capital deficit increased from ($535,226) to ($1,254,135), and our
stockholders’ deficit increased by $454,909 to $1,686,135.
 

We hope that the revenues we generate from sales of our products will be able to satisfy our obligations in full without the need to raise
significant capital from other sources. There is no assurance, however, that we will be successful in these efforts. Please see the “Risk Factors” beginning
on page 5.
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Cash Requirements

 
Our cash on hand as of June 30, 2018 was $294,467. We anticipate that the funding from our existing contractual relationships will be enough to

sustain us for the next 12 months.
 

Sources and Uses of Cash for the Six Month Periods Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
 

Operations
 
We had net cash used in operating activities of $1,305,072 for the six months ended June 30, 2018, compared to $256,647 for the six months

ended June 30, 2017. The $1,048,425 increase was primarily due to the $1,062,734 loss from operations.
 

Investments
 
We had no net cash provided by or used in investing activities for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. Our future plans

include raising additional working capital for the purpose of funding marketing, inventory purchases, sales efforts and staffing increases along with other
operational opportunities.

 
Financing

 
Our net cash provided by financing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2018 was $362,107, which consisted of $300,000 of proceeds

from the sale of Series E Preferred Stock and warrants, compared to net cash provided by financing activities of $327,076 for the six months ended June
30, 2017, which consisted of proceeds from the issuance of debt of $300,894 and net proceeds from loans payable to an officer and affiliated entity of
$26,182.

 
Sources and Uses of Cash for the Year Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

 
Operations

 
Our net cash provided by (used in) operating activities for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was $674,030 and ($235,752),

respectively, an increase of $909,782. The increase was primarily due to the $873,129 increase in income (loss) from operations from $(704,393) in 2016
to $168,736 in 2017.

 
Investments

 
We had no net cash provided by or used in investing activities for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016. Our future plans include raising

additional working capital for the purpose of funding marketing, inventory purchases, sales efforts and staffing increases along with other operational
opportunities.

 
Financing

 
Our net cash provided by financing activities for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was $561,186 and $232,159, respectively, an

increase of $329,027, or 142%. The increase was primarily a result of proceeds from the issuance of debt-net in 2017 of $341,837, compared to $223,303
in 2016, and proceeds of $300,000 from the sale of common stock and warrants in 2017 while we had no such proceeds in 2016.
 
 

36



 

Table of Contents
 
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
 
Principles of Consolidation

 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Iconic, its two 51% owned subsidiaries BiVi LLC and Bellissima Spirits LLC, and

United Spirits, Inc., a variable interest entity of Iconic (see Note 5 of our consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2017 and
2016) (collectively, the “Company”). All inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
 
Use of Estimates

 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to

make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments

 
Generally accepted accounting principles require disclosing the fair value of financial instruments to the extent practicable for financial

instruments which are recognized or unrecognized in the balance sheet. The fair value of the financial instruments disclosed herein is not necessarily
representative of the amount that could be realized or settled, nor does the fair value amount consider the tax consequences of realization or settlement.

 
In assessing the fair value of financial instruments, we use a variety of methods and assumptions, which are based on estimates of market

conditions and risks existing at the time. For certain instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued
expenses, it was estimated that the carrying amount approximated fair value because of the short maturities of these instruments. All debt is carried at face
value less any unamortized debt discounts.

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents

 
We consider all liquid investments purchased with original maturities of ninety days or less to be cash equivalents. At December 31, 2017, cash

included approximately $931,076 not covered by FDIC insurance.
 

Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
 
We extend unsecured credit to customers in the ordinary course of business but mitigates risk by performing credit checks and by actively

pursuing past due accounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on customer historical experience and the aging of the related accounts
receivable. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the allowance for doubtful accounts was $0.

 
Inventories
 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market, with due consideration given to obsolescence and to slow moving
items. Inventory at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 consists of cases of BiVi Vodka and cases of Bellissima sparkling wines purchased from
our Italian suppliers.
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Revenue Recognition

 
Revenue from product sales is recognized when all of the following criteria are met: (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (2) the

price is fixed or determinable, (3) collectability is reasonably assured, and (4) delivery has occurred. Persuasive evidence of an arrangement and fixed
price criteria are satisfied through purchase orders. Collectability criteria are satisfied through credit approvals. Delivery criteria are satisfied when the
products are shipped to a customer and title and risk of loss passes to the customer in accordance with the terms of sale. We have no obligation to accept
the return of products sold other than for replacement of damaged products. Other than quantity price discounts negotiated with customers prior to billing
and delivery (which are reflected as a reduction in sales), we do not offer any sales incentives or other rebate arrangements to customers.

 
Shipping and Handling Costs

 
Shipping and handling costs to deliver product to customers are reported as operating expenses in the accompanying statements of operations.

Shipping and handling costs to purchase inventory are capitalized and expensed to cost of sales when revenue is recognized on the sale of product to
customers.

 
Stock-Based Compensation

 
Stock-based compensation is accounted for at fair value in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 718,

“Compensation-Stock Compensation”. For the year ended December 31, 2017, stock-based compensation was $20,000. For the year ended September 30,
2016, stock-based compensation was $0.

 
Income Taxes

 
Income taxes are accounted for under the assets and liability method. Current income taxes are provided in accordance with the laws of the

respective taxing authorities. Deferred income taxes are provided for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is not more likely than not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will be realized.

 
Net Income (Loss) per Share

 
Basic net income (loss) per common share is computed on the basis of the weighted average number of common shares outstanding and to be

issued to Escrow Agent (see Note 8 of our consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016) during the period of the
financial statements.
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Diluted net income (loss) per common share is computed on the basis of the weighted average number of common shares and to be issued to
Escrow Agent (see Note 8 of our consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016) and dilutive securities (such as
stock options, warrants, and convertible securities) outstanding. Dilutive securities having an anti-dilutive effect on diluted net income (loss) per share are
excluded from the calculation.

 
The following is a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator we used in our computation of diluted earnings per common share for the

year ended December 31, 2017:
 
Numerator:     
 Net income attributable to Iconic Brands, Inc.  $ 3,966,378 
 Add interest expense on convertible debt assumed to be converted at later of issuance date or January 1, 2017   70,649 
 Net income available to common shareholders  $ 4,037,027 
Denominator:      
 Basic weighted average common shares outstanding and to be issued to Escrow Agent   1,311,739,126 
 Add: Convertible Debt   255,250,127 
  Warrants   - 
  Series D Preferred Stock   1,630,947,998 
 Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding and to be issued to Escrow Agent   3,197,937,251 
 

We did not include any outstanding warrants from the diluted shares calculation as the $2.50 exercise price of the outstanding warrants was
higher than the average trading price of our common stock for the relevant periods.

 
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

 
Certain accounting pronouncements have been issued by the FASB and other standard setting organizations which are not yet effective and have

not yet been adopted by the Company. The impact on our financial position and results of operations from adoption of these standards is not expected to
be material.
 

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH
ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

 
We have no disclosure required by this item.
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DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, PROMOTERS, AND CONTROL PERSONS
 
The following table sets forth the names, ages, and biographical information of each of our current directors and executive officers, and the

positions with the Company held by each person, and the date such person became a director or executive officer of the Company. Our executive officers
are elected annually by the Board of Directors. The directors serve one-year terms until their successors are elected. The executive officers serve terms of
one year or until their death, resignation or removal by the Board of Directors. Family relationships among any of the directors and officers are described
below.
 
Name  Age  Position(s)
  
Richard DeCicco  60  Chief Executive Officer, Director
  
Roseann Faltings  61  Secretary, Director
 

Richard DeCicco, age 60, is our Chief Executive Officer and a member of our Board of Directors. Mr. DeCicco has served as our President,
Secretary and Director since 2007 (with the only exception of the period between September 2014 and April 2015). With over 34 years’ experience in the
global liquor industry, Mr. DeCicco has been a senior executive and a leader in the wine and spirits industry. Previously, Mr. DeCicco served as President
of Harbrew Imports Ltd. since its inception in 1999. Prior to his appointment at Harbrew Imports Ltd, Mr. DeCicco was the CEO and President of Harbor
Industries from 1990 to 1997. Harbor Industries is a production facility, which handles over 2 million cases of products per year and with over 600
employees. In addition to having been the national provider for The Paddington Corporation brands from 1990 to 1997, Mr. DeCicco pioneered what is
now known within the field as Value Added Packaging (VAP). Mr. DeCicco is uniquely qualified to serve as an officer and director because he brings a
great deal of creativity, market savvy, and brand development knowledge to our company. Furthermore, h is experience and relationships within the
industry are extremely valuable to our business.

 
Roseann Faltings, age 61, is our Secretary and a member of our Board of Directors. Ms. Faltings is an international liquor industry veteran of

more than 12 years with experience in brand development, marketing, sales and distribution across the beer, wine and spirits categories. Throughout her
executive career, Roseann has worked on United Spirits’ current brand portfolio, as well as Danny DeVito’s Premium Limoncello, Yanjing Beer, (The
National Beer of China), Johnny Bench 5 Scotch Whisky and other private label products. Ms. Faltings was previously an employee of the Company,
beginning in 2003. In 2005, she was appointed VP of Sales and Marketing for Iconic Brands, Inc. and she continued to serve in that role until she resigned
pursuant to the terms of the merger with MMBA in September of 2014. Ms. Faltings was chosen to serve as an officer and director because she maintains
strong relationships within the U.S. distribution and wholesale supply chain. In addition, her marketing and executive management expertise within our
industry provides substantial benefits to the Company . One of highlights of her career was the negotiations with Paramount Studios in the development of
“The Godfather Vodka” that she spearheaded.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
 
Narrative Disclosure of Executive Compensation

 
The Company uses the services of its chief executive officer Richard DeCicco and its assistant secretary Roseann Faltings under Employment

Agreements that took effect on July 1, 2018. Prior to that date, they provided their services according to informal compensation arrangements (without any
employment agreements).

 
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company accrued compensation of $250,000 per year ($150,000 for Mr. DeCicco;

$100,000 for Ms. Faltings) for their services rendered. We have not yet paid these amounts to the officers, and the $500,000 liability at June 30, 2018 and
December 31, 2017 is included in “Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses” on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at June 30, 2018 and December 31,
2017.

 
Employment Agreements

 
Richard DeCicco

 
Effective July 1, 2018, we entered into an Employment Agreement with Mr. DeCicco. Pursuant to his Employment Agreement, Mr. DeCicco will

receive a base salary of $265,000 per year. In exchange for services previously performed, Mr. DeCicco was also granted a stock award under the
Employment Agreement equal to 300,000 shares of our common stock. His stock award includes registration rights to be included in the next registration
statement after issuance. We will provide Mr. DeCicco with a car and cover its expenses. Mr. DeCicco will also be entitled to participate in our employee
benefit plans and receive equity incentive awards as determined by the Board of Directors.

 
If we sell any brand that we own, we will pay Mr. DeCicco 23% of the gross sales proceeds of the sale. This provision survives any termination of

his Employment Agreement.
 
If we terminate Mr. DeCicco without Cause or he resigns for Good Reason, as defined in the Employment Agreement, we must pay Mr. DeCicco

a severance equal to twice his annual base salary. We will also pay him any earned but unpaid bonuses.
 

Roseann Faltings
 
Effective July 1, 2018, we entered into an Employment Agreement with Ms. Faltings. Pursuant to his Employment Agreement, Ms. Faltings will

receive a base salary of $150,000 per year. In exchange for services previously performed, Ms. Faltings was also granted a stock award under the
Employment Agreement equal to 100,000 shares of our common stock. Her stock award includes registration rights to be included in the next registration
statement after issuance. We will provide Ms. Faltings with a car and cover its expenses. Ms. Faltings will also be entitled to participate in our employee
benefit plans and receive equity incentive awards as determined by the Board of Directors.
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If we sell any brand that we own, we will pay Ms. Faltings 23% of the gross sales proceeds of the sale. This provision survives any termination of

her Employment Agreement.
 
If we terminate Ms. Faltings without Cause or she resigns for Good Reason, as defined in the Employment Agreement, we must pay Ms. Faltings

a severance equal to twice her annual base salary. We will also pay her any earned but unpaid bonuses.
 
Summary Compensation Table
 

The following table sets forth information with respect to compensation earned by our Chief Executive Officer and Secretary for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016.
 

Name and
Principal Position  Year  

Salary
($)   

Bonus
($)   

Stock
Awards

($)   

Option
Awards

($)   

Non-Equity
Incentive

Plan
Compensation

($)   

Nonqualified
Deferred

Compensation
($)   

All Other
Compensation

($)   
Total

($)  
                           
Richard DeCicco,  2017   150,000   -0-   -0-   -0-   -0-   -0-   -0-   150,000 
Chief Executive Officer
(1)  2016   150,000   -0-   -0-   -0-   -0-   -0-   -0-   150,000 
                                   
Roseann Faltings,  2017   100,000   -0-   -0-   -0-   -0-   -0-   -0-   100,000 
Secretary (2)  2016   100,000   -0-   -0-   -0-   -0-   -0-   -0-   100,000 
 
Director Compensation
 

We do not currently have an established policy to provide compensation to members of our Board of Directors for their services in that capacity.
We may develop such a policy in the future, but for now all of our directors are also officers, and we do not currently intend to provide for additional
compensation related to their duties as directors.
 
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End
 

We do not currently have a stock option or grant plan.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN
BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

 
The following table sets forth, as of October 24, 2018, certain information with respect to our equity securities owned of record or beneficially

by (i) each Officer and Director of the Company; (ii) each person who owns beneficially more than 5% of each class of our outstanding equity securities;
and (iii) all Directors and Executive Officers as a group.

  

NAME AND ADDRESS: (1)  
Richard

DeCicco (6)   
Roseann

Faltings (6)   
Total Officers
and Directors  

          
COMMON STOCK:          
          

Common Stock Shares   18,527,858(7)   2,067,503(8)   31,184,979(9)
             

Percentage of Outstanding Common Stock (2)   76.2%(7)  25.5%(8)  84.3%(9)

             
PREFERRED STOCK:             
             
Series A Preferred Stock Shares   1   -   1 
             

Percentage of Outstanding Series A Preferred Stock (3)   100%   -   100%

             
Series C Preferred Stock Shares   1,000   -   1,000 
             

Percentage of Outstanding Series C Preferred Stock (4)   100%   -   100%
             
Series D Convertible Preferred Stock Shares   5   5   10 
             

Percentage of Outstanding Series D Convertible Preferred Stock (5)   50%   50%   100%
             
Series E Convertible Preferred Stock Shares   -   -   - 
             

Percentage of Outstanding Series E Convertible Preferred Stock   -   -   - 
______________
(1) Unless otherwise indicated, the address of the shareholder is c/o Iconic Brands, Inc., 44 Seabro Avenue, Amityville, NY 11701.



(2) Based on 6,039,765 shares of common stock, 1 share of Series A Preferred Stock, 1,000 shares of Series C Preferred Stock, 10 shares of Series D
Convertible Preferred Stock and 6,027,994 shares of Series E Convertible Preferred Stock, issued and outstanding. Shares of common stock subject
to options or warrants currently exercisable, or exercisable within 60 days, are deemed outstanding for purposes of computing the percentage of the
person or group holding such options or warrants, but are not deemed outstanding for purposes of computing the percentage of any other person.

(3) Based on one (1) share of Series A Preferred Stock issued and outstanding.
(4) Based on one thousand (1,000) shares of Series C Preferred Stock issued and outstanding.
(5) Based on ten (10) shares of Series D Preferred Stock issued and outstanding.
(6) Indicates one of our officers or directors.
(7) Includes 246,393 shares of common stock and 2,067,302 shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of all five (5) shares of Series D

Preferred Stock. Also includes 16,214,133 shares that represent the votes granted by the Series A Preferred Stock after conversion of the Series D
Preferred Stock. Each share of Series A Preferred Stock is entitled to two (2) votes for every outstanding share of common stock, giving the holder
50% of all votes eligible to be cast on matters voted on by the common shareholders.

(8) Includes 201 shares of common stock and 2,067,302 shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of all five (5) shares of Series D Preferred
Stock. The Percentage of Outstanding Common Stock represents the beneficial ownership percentage of total outstanding shares after conversion of
the shareholder’s shares of Series D Preferred Stock. However, Ms. Faltings holds 8.5% of all eligible votes because of the one share of outstanding
Series A Preferred Stock held by Mr. DeCicco. Each share of Series A Preferred Stock is entitled to two (2) votes for every outstanding share of
common stock, giving the holder 50% of all votes eligible to be cast on matters voted on by the common shareholders.

(9) Includes 246,594 shares of common stock and 6,286,286 shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of all ten (10) shares of Series D
Preferred Stock. Also includes 24,652,100 shares that represent the votes granted by the Series A Preferred Stock after conversion of the Series D
Preferred Stock. Each share of Series A Preferred Stock is entitled to two (2) votes for every outstanding share of common stock, giving the holder
50% of all votes eligible to be cast on matters voted on by the common shareholders.
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Other than as set forth above, the issuer is not aware of any person who owns of record, or is known to own beneficially, five percent (5%) or
more of the outstanding securities of any class of the issuer.

 
There are no current arrangements which will result in a change in control.
 

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
 
Share Exchange Agreement and Subsequent Unwind of Merger
 

On September 10, 2014, we entered into a Share Exchange Agreement (the “Agreement”) and merger with Medical Marijuana Business
Academy, LLC, a company organized pursuant to the laws of the State of Colorado (“MMBA”), and MJ Business Academy, Inc., a Nevada corporation
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“Merger Sub”), pursuant to which, on September 10, 2014, MMBA merged with and into Merger Sub,
with Merger Sub continuing as the surviving entity that succeeded to all of the assets, liabilities and operations of MMBA and whereby MMBA
effectively became our wholly-owned operating subsidiary (the “Merger”).

 
At the effective time of the Merger, the outstanding membership interest units of MMBA, held by Phillip Stark and Charles Houghton, were

exchanged for a total of 240,000 newly issued shares of our common stock as consideration for the Merger, and as such, Mr. Stark and Mr. Houghton, as
the sole members of MMBA, held a controlling voting interest in our outstanding common stock. At Closing, our CEO, Richard DeCicco, also transferred
his One (1) Share of Series A Preferred Stock to Mr. Stark and Mr. Houghton, giving them control of the our preferred stock, as well.

 
The Agreement contained customary terms and conditions for agreements of this type, including completion of due diligence by the parties and



approval of the Merger by MMBA members. At the effective time of the Merger, MMBA’s current officers and directors were appointed as officers and
directors of the Company. The Merger became effective on September 10, 2014.

 
A copy of the Agreement was attached to our Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 21, 2015 as Exhibit 2.1. The description of the Agreement

herein is qualified by the terms of the full text of the agreement attached thereto and the terms thereof are incorporated herein by reference.
 
Effective on April 9, 2015, the Company, MMBA and Merger Sub entered into an Unwind Agreement (the “Unwind Agreement”) whereby Mr.

Houghton and Mr. Stark agreed to transfer their 240,000 shares of our common stock, and to return the One (1) Share of Series A Preferred Stock to Mr.
DeCicco, in exchange for the unwinding of the merger, and a return to Mr. Houghton and Mr. Stark of all of the membership interest units in MMBA.

 
At the Closing of the Unwind Agreement on April 23, 2015, Richard DeCicco was appointed President and Director of the Company and Merger

Sub. Following Mr. DeCicco’s appointment, Mr. Stark and Mr. Houghton resigned all officer and director positions in both the Company and Merger Sub,
and Mr. DeCicco remains as sole officer and director of Iconic Brands, Inc. and MJ Business Academy, Inc.
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As of the Closing of the Unwind Agreement, neither the Company, nor Merger Sub holds any right, title or interest in or to any of the assets of
Medical Marijuana Business Academy, LLC, and MMBA is a private entity once again owed solely by its Managing Members, Phillip Stark and Charles
Houghton.

 
A copy of the Unwind Agreement was attached to our Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 21, 2015 as Exhibit 10.2. The description of the

Agreement herein is qualified by the terms of the full text of the agreement attached thereto and the terms thereof are incorporated herein by reference.
 

From the Closing of the Merger on September 10, 2014 to the Unwind on April 23, 2015, Charles Houghton and Phillip Stark, held the Control
Block consisting of the 240,000 new shares of common stock which were issued by the Company and the One (1) Share of Series A Preferred Stock
which was transferred from Richard DeCicco to Mr. Stark and Mr. Houghton. During that time period, Mr. Stark served as CEO and Mr. Houghton served
as our President, and they were our only Directors, but the operations and assets of MMJBA were never integrated into the Company, and MMJBA was
operated as a separate business.
 



On April 23, 2015, with the Closing of the Unwind Agreement, Mr. Stark and Mr. Houghton transferred their 240,000 shares of our common
stock, and they transferred their One (1) Share of Series A Preferred Stock back to Richard DeCicco. These transfers were finalized by our transfer agent
on May 8, 2015, once again giving Richard DeCicco voting control of the Company, Mr. DeCicco was appointed President, CEO and Director of Iconic
Brands, Inc. and MJ Business Academy, Inc., and immediately thereafter, Mr. Stark and Mr. Houghton resigned from all officer and director positions
held in the Company and Merger Sub.
 
Acquisition of BiVi LLC
 

On May 15, 2015, we entered into a Securities Exchange Agreement, with the members of BiVi LLC, a Nevada limited liability company under
which we acquired a 51% majority interest in BiVi LLC in exchange for the issuance (a) 4,000 shares of restricted common stock and (b) 1,000 shares of
newly created Series C Convertible Preferred Stock. The remaining 49% interest in BiVi LLC is owned by Richard DeCicco, Roseann Faltings and
PNBM Holdings.

 
Upon satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the Securities Exchange Agreement, the Closing was held on May 31, 2015. At Closing, BiVi

LLC became our majority owned subsidiary. Under the terms of the Securities Exchange Agreement, we must provide working capital, from time to time,
of up to $750,000.00 pursuant to a Working Capital Facility, to be repaid by BiVi LLC from working capital generated from BiVi LLC’s operations.
Provided that, in the event that we fail to provide working capital of at least $40,000.00 per month, and such failure shall continue for a period of sixty
(60) calendar days thereafter then BiVi LLC may, at its option, by written notice to us, declare a default. In the event of such default, we shall surrender
the Majority Interest back to BiVi LLC for retirement and the Holders of the Series C Preferred Stock shall surrender all outstanding shares back to Iconic
for retirement (“BiVi Unwind”). In the event of the BiVi Unwind, BiVi LLC shall issue a 5% promissory note to us with a principal amount equal to the
then outstanding unpaid balance of the Working Capital Facility advanced to BiVi LLC prior to the Unwind, payable upon the acquisition of the majority
of the outstanding stock or assets of BiVi LLC, including but not limited to the BiVi Brand of products, by a third party, but in no event later than 36
months from issuance.
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Prior to the Closing, BiVi LLC was beneficially owned and controlled by Richard DeCicco, the majority shareholder, President, CEO and
Director of Iconic Brands, Inc.

 
The Company initially provided BiVi with working capital for the BiVi product. However, because the parties are under common control, the

Working Capital Facility had been abandoned and the parties have now formally terminated it, and any rights BiVi may have had pursuant to the
Working Capital Facility.
 

A copy of the Securities Exchange Agreement was attached to our Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 21, 2015 as Exhibit 10.3. The
description of the Agreement herein is qualified by the terms of the full text of the agreement attached thereto and the terms thereof are incorporated
herein by reference.
 
Distribution Agreement
 

On May 1, 2015, BiVi entered into a Distribution Agreement with United Spirits, Inc. (“United”) for United to distribute and wholesale BiVi’s
product and to act as the licensed importer and wholesaler. The Distribution Agreement provides United the exclusive right for a term of ten years to sell
BiVi’s product for an agreed distribution fee equal to $1.00 per case of product sold. United is owned and managed by Richard DeCicco, the controlling
shareholder, President, CEO, and Director of Iconic.

 
In November 2015, Bellissima and United agreed to have United distribute and wholesale Bellissima’s Products under the same terms contained

in the Distribution Agreement with BiVi described in the preceding paragraph.
 
Lease Agreement
 



We lease our office and warehouse space in North Amityville, New York from United. On March 27, 2018, we entered into a lease extension
with United. The extension has a term of three years from February 1, 2018 to January 31, 2021 and provides for monthly rent of $4,478.
 

DISCLOSURE OF COMMISSION POSITION ON
INDEMNIFICATION FOR SECURITIES ACT LIABILITIES

 
Section 4 of our Articles of Incorporation provides that, to the fullest extent permitted by Section 78 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, as the same

may be amended and supplemented, the directors of the corporation are not personally liable to the Company or its stockholders for damages for breach of
fiduciary duty as a director or officer, but may be personally liable for (i) acts or omissions which involve intentional misconduct, fraud or a knowing
violation of law; or (ii) the payment of distributions in violation of NRS 78.300, as amended. Paragraph 1 of Section 78.037 states that the articles of
incorporation of a Nevada corporation may contain any provision, not contrary to the laws of the State of Nevada, for the management of the business and
for the conduct of the affairs of the corporation.

 
Section 5 of our Articles of Incorporation provides that, the corporation shall, to the fullest extent permitted by Section 78.751 of the Nevada

Revised Statutes, as the same may be amended and supplemented, indemnify any person made or threatened to be made a party to any threatened,
pending or completed action or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (whether or not by or in the right of the Company) by
reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director of the Company or is or was serving as a director, officer, employee or agent of another entity at the
request of the Company or any predecessor of the Company against judgments, fines, penalties, excise taxes, amounts paid in settlement and costs,
charges and expenses (including attorneys’ fees and disbursements) that he or she incurs in connection with such action or proceeding. Section 78.751
states that the articles of incorporation of a Nevada corporation may provide that the expenses of officers and directors incurred in defending a civil or
criminal action, suit or proceeding must be paid by the corporation as they are incurred and in advance of the final disposition. It further states that
indemnification does not exclude any other rights that an officer or director may have pursuant to the articles, bylaws, shareholders agreement or
otherwise, and that it continues for a person who has ceased to be a director, officer, or employee of the Company.
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Article IX of our Bylaws further addresses indemnification, including procedures for indemnification claims. Indemnification applies to any
person that is made a party to, or threatened to be made a party to, any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative,
by reason of the fact that he or she was an officer or director of the Company.

 
Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Act”) may be permitted to directors, officers and

controlling persons of the Company pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the registrant has been informed that in the opinion of the
Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Act and is, therefore, unenforceable.
 

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION
 

We have filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission a registration statement on Form S-1, together with all amendments and exhibits
thereto, under the Securities Act of 1933 with respect to the common stock offered hereby. This Prospectus, which constitutes a part of the registration
statement, does not contain all of the information set forth in the registration statement and the exhibits and schedules thereto. You should refer to the
registration statement and its exhibits and schedules for further information. Statements contained in this Prospectus as to the contents of any contract or
other document referred to are not necessarily complete and in each instance reference is made to the copy of such contract or other document filed as an
exhibit to the registration statement, each such statement being qualified in all respects by such reference.

 
Copies of documents we file with the Commission, including this prospectus, the registration of which it is a part and the related exhibits, may be

read and copies at the Commission’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for
further information on the public reference room. Our filings with the Commission are also available through the Commission’s website at the following
address: http://www.sec.gov.

 
We are not currently subject to the information and periodic reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. However, we have



filed periodic reports and other information with the OTC Markets. Such periodic reports and other information are available on the OTC Markets website
at http://www.otcmarkets.com/stock/ICNB/disclosure. Upon registration of this offering, we will file periodic reports and other information with the
Commission. We maintain a website at www.jpgnicbrandsusa.com. You may access our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q,
current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports, filed or furnished pursuant to section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act with the
Commission free of charge at our website as soon as reasonably practicable after this material is electronically filed with, or furnished to, the
Commission. The reference to our website or web address does not constitute incorporation by reference of the information contained at that site.
 

EXPERTS
 

The audited financial statements of Iconic Brands, Inc. as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 appearing in this prospectus which is part of a
registration statement have been so included in reliance on the report of BMKR, LLP, given on the authority of such firm as experts in accounting and
auditing.
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Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

 
   June 30,   December 31,  
   2018   2017  
   (Unaudited)   (Restated)  
Assets        
        
Current assets:        

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 294,467  $ 1,237,432 
Accounts receivable    193,693   311,074 
Inventory    206,787   59,847 
Prepaid inventory    -   5,000 

          
Total current assets    694,947   1,613,353 



          
Total assets   $ 694,947  $ 1,613,353 
          
Liabilities and Stockholders' Deficiency          
          
Current liabilities:          

Current portion of debt   $ 597,109  $ 495,404 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses    854,974   1,095,995 
Loans payable to officer and affiliated entity          

- non interest bearing and due on demand    122,481   60,374 
Accrued interest payable    58,294   38,734 
Derivative liability on convertible debt    316,224   458,072 

          
Total current liabilities    1,949,082   2,148,579 
          
Derivative liability on warrants    432,000   696,000 
Total liabilities    2,381,082   2,844,579 
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)          
          
Stockholders' deficiency:          

Preferred stock, $.001 par value; authorized 100,000,000 shares:          
Series A, 1 and 1 share issued and outstanding, respectively    1   1 
Series C, 1,000 and 1,000 shares issued and outstanding, respectively    1   1 
Series D, 10 and 10 shares issued and outstanding, respectively    -   - 
Series E, 2,400,000 and 0 shares issued and outstanding, respectively    2,400   - 

          
Common stock, $.001 par value; authorized 2,000,000,000 shares,          
1,329,313,572 and 1,104,391,831 shares issued and outstanding respectively    1,329,313   1,104,392 
          
Common stock to be issued to Escrow Agent, $.001 par value; 133,550,779 and 478,472,520 shares, respectively    133,551   478,473 
          
Additional paid-in capital    14,624,522   14,183,672 
          
Accumulated deficit    (17,414,887)   (17,075,829)
          
Total Iconic Brands, Inc. stockholders’ equity    (1,325,099)   (1,309,290)
          
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries and variable interest entity    (361,036)   78,064 
          
Total stockholders' equity (deficiency)    (1,686,135)   (1,231,226)
          
Total liabilities and stockholders' deficiency   $ 694,947  $ 1,613,353 
 

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(Unaudited)
 

  

Three months
Ended

June 30,
2018   

Six months
Ended

June 30,
2018   

Three months
Ended

June 30,
2017   

Six months
Ended

June 30,
2017  

             
Sales  $ 143,551  $ 205,270  $ 190,084  $ 490,973 

Cost of Sales   81,843   119,252   91,008   213,246 
Gross profit   61,708   86,018   99,074   277,725 
                 
Operating expenses:                 

Officers compensation   3,207   3,207   -   - 
Professional and consulting fees   59,121   71,407   24,019   40,335 
Royalties   (75,002)   (68,412)   19,586   50,235 
Special promotion program with customer   -   597,138   -   - 
Marketing and advertising   192,740   252,055   4,226   21,688 
Occupancy costs   36,696   80,494   35,956   55,971 
Travel and entertainment   68,986   109,301   29,809   81,583 
Other   73,309   103,562   106,549   159,783 

                 
Total operating expenses   359,057   1,148,752   220,145   409,595 

                 
Income (loss) from operations   (297,350)   (1,062,734)   (121,071)   (131,870)
                 
Other income (expense):                 

Income (expense) from derivative liability   (321,017)   405,848   2,989,230   6,228,292 
Interest expense   (10,139)   (19,560)   (12,886)   (44,834)
Amortization of debt discounts   (50,055)   (101,711)   (10,656)   (10,656)
Other Income (expense)   (1,119)   -   (50)   (50)

                 
Total other income (expense) - net   (666,622)   284.577   2,965,638   6,172,752 

                 
Net income (loss)   (679,680)   (778,157)   2,844,567   6,040,882 
                 
Net loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries and

variable interest entity   91,352   439,099   16,854   15,897 
                 
Net income (loss) attributable to Iconic Brands, Inc.  $ (588,328)  $ (339,058)  $ 2,861,421  $ 6,056,779 
                 
Net income (loss) per common share:                 
                 



Basic  $ (0.00)  $ (0.00)  $ 0.00  $ 0.01 
                 
Weighted average common shares                 

outstanding and to be issued to Escrow Agent:                 
Basic   1,529,531,018   1,556,197,684   1,388,284,259   1,113,913,267 

 
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Deficiency

(Unaudited)
 



  
 

Series A
Preferred Stock 

$.001 par

  
 

Series C 
Preferred Stock 

$.001 par

  
 

Series D
Preferred Stock 

$.001 par

  
 

Series E 
Preferred Stock 

$.001 par

  
 
 

Common Stock 
$.001 par

   Common Stock to be
issued to Escrow Agent 

$0.001 par

   
Additional

Paid-in

  

Noncontrolling
Interests in
Subsidiaries
and Variable

Interest

  
 
Accumulated

    

  Shares  Amount  Shares  Amount  Shares  Amount  Shares   Amount  Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount   Capital   Entity   Deficit   Total  
Balance at
December 31,
2017

  1  
$  1    1,000

  $  1    10
 
$  - 

 
 - $  - 

 
 1,104,391,831

  $ 1,104,392
   478,472,520

 
$  478,473

 
$ 14,183,672

 
$  78,064

  $  (17,075,829)$ (1,231,228)
                                                 
Common
stock issued to
Escrow Agent

 
 -

  
 -

  
 -

  
 -

  
 -

  
 -

  
 -

  
 -

  
 344,921,741

  
 344,921

  
 (344,921,741) 

 
 (344,921)

 
 -

  
  -

  
 -

  
 -

 

                                                 
Series E
Preferred
Stock and
warrants sold
to two
investors  -  -  -  -  -  -  1,200,000  1,200  -  -  -  -  298,800  -  -  300,000 
Series E
Preferred
Stock to be
issued in
exchange for
common
stock pursuant
to Share
Exchange
Agreement
dated May 21,
2018  -  -  -  -  -  -  1,200,000  1,200  (120,000,000) (120,000) -  -  118,800  -  -  - 
Warrants
issued to law
firm for
services  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  23,250  -  -  23,250 
                                                 
Net income
attributable to
noncontrolling
interests in
subsidiaries
and variable
interest entity  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  (439,099) -  (439,099)
                                                 
Net income   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   (339,058)  (339,058)
                                                 
Balance at
June 30, 2018   1   $  1    1,000  $  1    10  $  -   2,400,000 $  2,400    1,329,313,572 $  1,329,313   133,550,779  $  133,551  $ 14,624,522 $  (361,036)$  (17,414,887)$ (1,686,135)
 

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Unaudited)
 
  Six months Ended June 30,  

  2018   2017  
Operating Activities:       
Net income (loss) attributable to Iconic Brands, Inc.  $ (339,058)  $ 6,056,779 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided         

by (used in) operating activities:         
Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries and variable interest entity   (439,099)   (15,897)
Stock-based compensation   23,250   - 
Expense (income) from derivative liability   (405,848)   (6,148,292)
Amortization of debt discounts   101,711   10,656 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:         
Accounts receivable   117,381   57,584 
Inventory   (146,940)   (25,737)
Prepaid expenses   5,000   (106,822)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses   (241,029)   (49,752)
Accrued interest payable   19,560   44,834 

         
Net cash used in operating activities   (1,305,072)   (256,647)

         
Financing Activities :         

Proceeds from issuance of debt-net   -   300,894 
Proceeds from sale of Series E Preferred Stock and warrants   300,000   - 
Loans payable to officer and affiliated entity   62,107   26,182 

         
Net cash provided by financing activities   362,107   327,076 

         
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   (942,965)   70,429 
         
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period   1,237,432   2,216 
         
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period  $ 294,467  $ 72,645 
         
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:         

Income taxes paid  $ -  $ - 
Interest paid  $ -  $ - 

         
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:         



         
Issuance of common stock in satisfaction of         

debt and accrued interest  $ -  $ 72,867 
         

Agreements to issue common stock in satisfaction         
of debt and accrued interest  $ -  $ 1,099,064 

         
Issuance of common stock to Escrow Agent in connection with         

Settlement Agreement and Amended Settlement Agreement  $ 344,922  $ 71,194 
         

Series E Preferred Stock to be issued in exchange for common stock pursuant to Share Exchange Agreement dated
May 21, 2018  

$  120,000
  

$  -
 

 
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(Unaudited)
 
1. ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
 
Iconic Brands, Inc., formerly Paw Spa, Inc. (“Iconic Brands” or “Iconic”), was incorporated in the State of Nevada on October 21, 2005. Effective
December 31, 2016, Iconic closed on a May 15, 2015 agreement to acquire a 51% interest in BiVi LLC (“BiVi”), the brand owner of “BiVi 100 percent
Sicilian Vodka,” and closed on a December 13, 2016 agreement to acquire a 51% interest in Bellissima Spirits LLC (“Bellissima”), the brand owner of
Bellissima sparkling wines. These transactions involved entities under common control of the Company’s chief executive officer and represented a
change in reporting entity. The financial statements of the Company have been retrospectively adjusted to reflect the operations at BiVi and Bellissima
from their inception.
 



BiVi was organized in Nevada on May 4, 2015, Bellissima was organized in Nevada on November 23, 2015.
 
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 
(a) Principles of Consolidation
 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Iconic, its two 51% owned subsidiaries BiVi and Bellissima, and United Spirits, Inc., a
variable interest entity of Iconic (see Note 5) (collectively, the “Company”). All inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.
 
(b) Use of Estimates
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
 
(c) Fair Value of Financial Instruments
 
Generally accepted accounting principles require disclosing the fair value of financial instruments to the extent practicable for financial instruments which
are recognized or unrecognized in the balance sheet. The fair value of the financial instruments disclosed herein is not necessarily representative of the
amount that could be realized or settled, nor does the fair value amount consider the tax consequences of realization or settlement.
 
In assessing the fair value of financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions, which are based on estimates of market
conditions and risks existing at the time. For certain instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued
expenses, it was estimated that the carrying amount approximated fair value because of the short maturities of these instruments. All debt is carried at face
value less any unamortized debt discounts.
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(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents
 
The Company considers all liquid investments purchased with original maturities of ninety days or less to be cash equivalents.
 
(e) Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
 
The Company extends unsecured credit to customers in the ordinary course of business but mitigates risk by performing credit checks and by actively
pursuing past due accounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on customer historical experience and the aging of the related accounts
receivable. At June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the allowance for doubtful accounts was $0.
 
(f) Inventories
 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market, with due consideration given to obsolescence and to slow moving items.
Inventory at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 consists of cases of BiVi Vodka and cases of Bellissima sparkling wines purchased from our Italian
suppliers.
 
(g) Revenue Recognition
 
Revenue from product sales is recognized when all of the following criteria are met: (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (2) the price is fixed
or determinable, (3) collectability is reasonably assured, and (4) delivery has occurred. Persuasive evidence of an arrangement and fixed price criteria are
satisfied through purchase orders. Collectability criteria are satisfied through credit approvals. Delivery criteria are satisfied when the products are



shipped to a customer and title and risk of loss passes to the customer in accordance with the terms of sale. The Company has no obligation to accept the
return of products sold other than for replacement of damaged products. Other than quantity price discounts negotiated with customers prior to billing and
delivery (which are reflected as a reduction in sales), the Company does not offer any sales incentives or other rebate arrangements to customers.
 
(h) Shipping and Handling Costs
 
Shipping and handling costs to deliver product to customers are reported as operating expenses in the accompanying statements of operations. Shipping
and handling costs to purchase inventory are capitalized and expensed to cost of sales when revenue is recognized on the sale of product to customers.
 
(i) Stock-Based Compensation
 
Stock-based compensation is accounted for at fair value in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 718, “Compensation-Stock
Compensation”. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, stock-based compensation was $23,250. For the six months ended June 30, 2017,
stock-based compensation was $0.
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(j) Income Taxes
 
Income taxes are accounted for under the assets and liability method. Current income taxes are provided in accordance with the laws of the respective
taxing authorities. Deferred income taxes are provided for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Deferred
tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is not more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred
tax assets will be realized.
 



(k) Net Income (Loss) per Share
 
Basic net income (loss) per common share is computed on the basis of the weighted average number of common shares outstanding and to be issued to
Escrow Agent (see Note 10) during the period of the financial statements.
 
Diluted net income (loss) per common share is computed on the basis of the weighted average number of common shares and to be issued to Escrow
Agent (see Note 10) and dilutive securities (such as stock options, warrants, and convertible securities) outstanding. Dilutive securities having an anti-
dilutive effect on diluted net income (loss) per share are excluded from the calculation.
 
(l) Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
 
Certain accounting pronouncements have been issued by the FASB and other standard setting organizations which are not yet effective and have not yet
been adopted by the Company. The impact on the Company’s financial position and results of operations from adoption of these standards is not expected
to be material.
 
3. INVESTMENT IN BIVI LLC
 
On May 15, 2015, Iconic entered into a Securities Exchange Agreement by and among the members of BiVi LLC, a Nevada limited liability company
(“BiVi”), under which Iconic acquired a 51% majority interest in BiVi in exchange for the issuance of (a) 1,000,000 shares of restricted common stock
and (b) 1,000 shares of newly created Series C Convertible Preferred Stock.
 
Prior to May 15, 2015, BiVi was beneficially owned and controlled by Richard DeCicco, the controlling shareholder, President, CEO and Director of
Iconic Brands, Inc.
 
4. INVESTMENT IN BELLISSIMA SPIRITS LLC
 
On December 13, 2016, Iconic entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with Bellissima Spirits LLC (“Bellissima”) and Bellissima’s members under
which Iconic acquired a 51% Majority Interest in Bellissima in exchange for the issuance of a total of 10 shares of newly designated Iconic Series D
Convertible Preferred Stock. Each share of Iconic Series D Convertible Preferred Stock is convertible into the equivalent of 5.1% of Iconic common stock
issued and outstanding at the time of conversion.
 
Prior to December 13, 2016, Bellissima was controlled by Richard DeCicco, the controlling shareholder, President, CEO and Director of Iconic.
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5. UNITED SPIRITS, INC.
 
United Spirits, Inc. (“United”) is owned and managed by Richard DeCicco, the controlling shareholder, President, CEO, and Director of Iconic. United
provides distribution services for BiVi and Bellissima (see Note 12) and is considered a variable interest entity (“VIE”) of Iconic. Since Iconic has been
determined to be the primary beneficiary of United, we have included United’s assets, liabilities, and operations in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements of Iconic. Summarized financial information of United follows:
 

Balance Sheets:  
June 30,

2018   
December 31,

2017  
       
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 94,139  $ 1,181,076 
Intercompany receivable from Iconic (A)   294,961   230,226 
Total assets  $ 389,100  $ 1,411,302 
Intercompany payable to Bellissima (A)  $ 385,755  $ 1,376,729 
Intercompany payable to BiVi (A)   56,591   88,259 
Current portion of debt   15,470   15,470 
Loans payable to officer and affiliated entity

  76,696   71,052 
Accounts payable and accrued expense   222   - 
Total Liabilities   534,734   1,551,510 
Noncontrolling interest in VIE   (145,634)   (140,208)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficiency  $ 389,100  $ 1,411,302 
      
  Six months ended June 30, 
Statements of operations:  2018   2017  
Intercompany distribution income (A)   3,619   - 



Operating expense   9,044   6,795 
Net loss  $ (5,425)   (6,795)
         
(A) Eliminated in consolidation         
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6. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of:
 

  
June 30,

2018   

December
31,

2017  
Accounts payable  $ 64,715  $ 261,767 
Accrued officers compensation   500,000   500,000 
Accrued royalties   202,909   271,321 
Other   87,350   62,909 
Total  $ 854,974  $ 1,095,997 

 
7. DEBT
 
Debt consists of:
 
  June 30,   December 31,  

  2018   2017  
       
Equity Markets Advisory Inc. (“Equity Markets”):       
       

$159,000 Promissory Notes dated April 15, 2010,       
November 1, 2013, and January 15, 2014,       
interest at 12%, due December 31, 2017 (B) (D)   11,227   11,227 

         
Total Equity Markets   11,227   11,227 
         
Alpha Capital Anstalt (“Alpha”):         
         

$50,000 Promissory Note dated June 9, 2017, interest at         
5%, due June 30, 2018 -less unamortized debt discount of $23,446 at December 31,2017 (G)   50,000   26,554 

         
Total Alpha   50,000   26,554 
         
Sky-Direct LLC (“Sky”):         
         

$21,000 Promissory Notes dated January 27, 2016         
and March 4, 2016, interest at 12%, due June 30, 2018         
(C)(D)(H)   8,350   8,350 

         
$15,000 Promissory Note assigned March 25,

        
2016, interest at 12%, due June 30, 2018         
(A) (B) (D)(H)   15,000   15,000 

         
$14,975 Promissory Notes dated October 19 2016,         
November 29, 2016, and December 30, 2016, interest at         
12%, due June 30, 2018 (C)(H)   14,975   14,975 

         
$80,700 Promissory Note dated January 30, 2017,         
interest at 12%, due June 30, 2018 (C)(H)   80,700   80,700 

         
$80,000 Promissory Note dated February 28, 2017,         
interest at 12%, due June 30, 2018 (C)(H)   80,000   80,000 
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$7,000 Promissory Note dated June 30, 2017,       
interest at 12%, due June 30, 2018 (C)(H)   7,000   7,000 

         
$3,000 Promissory Note dated April 28, 2017,         

interest at 12%, due June 30, 2018 (C)(H)   3,000   3,000 
         
$5,000 Promissory Note dated May 19, 2017,         

interest at 10%, due June 30, 2018 -less unamortized         
debt discount of $1,905 at December 31, 2017 (H)   5,000   3,095 

         
$80,000 Promissory Note dated July 31, 2017, interest         

at 10%, due July 31, 2018- less unamortized debt discount of $6,135 and $46,465, respectively (H)   73,865   33,535 
         
Total Sky   287,890   245,655 
         
Oscaleta Partners LLC (“Oscaleta”):         
         
$30,019 Promissory Note dated April 20, 2017,         

interest at 5%, due June 30, 2018 -less unamortized         
debt discount of $12,463 at December 31, 2017 (G)   30,019   17,556 

         
$25,000 Promissory Note dated June 9, 2017,         

interest at 5%, due June 30, 2018 -less unamortized         
debt discount of $11,722 at December 31, 2017 (G)   25,000   13,278 

         
Total Oscaleta   55,019   30,834 
         
East Six Opportunity Fund LLC:         
         
$25,000 Promissory Note dated June 13, 2017,         

interest at 5%, due June 30, 2018 -less unamortized         
debt discount of $11,845 at December 31, 2017 (G)   25,000   13,155 

         
Other:         
         
$10,000 Promissory Note to Sable Ridge Special         

Equity Fund LP dated October 10, 2014, interest         
at 10%, past due   10,000   10,000 

         
$10,000 Promissory Note to Durham Property         

Management Inc. dated November 1, 2013,         
interest at 12%, past due   10,000   10,000 

         
Loans from Peter Levine and affiliates,         

non-interest bearing, no terms of repayment   147,973   147,973 
         
Total Other   167,973   167,973 
         
Total   597,109   495,404 
         



Less current portion   (597,109)   (495,404)
         
Non-current portion  $ -  $ - 
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Legend
  
(A) Assigned by Equity Markets Advisory Inc.
(B) Convertible into ICNB common stock at a Conversion Price equal to the lesser

of (1) $0.01 per share or (2) 50% discount from the lowest closing bid price during the 30 days prior to the Notice of Conversion. See Note 8
(Derivative Liability).

(C) Convertible into ICNB common stock at a Conversion Price equal to a 50% discount to market. See Note 8 (Derivative Liability).
(D) On December 7, 2016, the Conversion Price on these notes was amended to $0.0015 per share. See Note 8 (Derivative Liability).
(E) On March 28, 2017, pursuant to a Settlement Agreement and Release, these notes and related accrued interest (totaling $892,721) were satisfied

through the Company's agreement to issue of a total of 482,926,829 shares of its common stock. See Note 10.
(F) On May 5, 2017, pursuant to an Amended Settlement Agreement and Release, these notes and related accrued interest (totaling $1,099,094) were

satisfied through the Company’s agreement to issue a total of 613,000,000 shares of its common stock. See Note 10.
(G) Convertible into ICNB common stock at a Conversion Price of $0.01 per share. Contains “down round” price protection. See Note 8 (Derivative

Liability).
(H) In November 2017, the Conversion Price was amended to $0.0025 per share and the due date was amended to June 30, 2018.
 
As of August 10, 2018, a total of $455,271 of debt is past due. The Company is presently negotiating with the lenders to extend the due dates of the notes.
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8. DERIVATIVE LIABILITY ON CONVERTIBLE DEBT
 
The derivative liability consists of:
 
  June 30, 2018   December 31, 2017  

  Face Value   
Derivative
Liability   Face Value   

Derivative
Liability  

             
Equity Markets Advisory Inc. (“Equity Markets”):             
             

$159,000 Promissory Notes dated April 15, 2010,             
November 1, 2013, and January 15, 2014,             



interest at 12%, due December 31, 2017 (B)(D)   11,227   24,699   11,227   37,423 
                 

Total Equity Markets   11,227   24,699   11,227   37,423 
                 
Alpha Capital Anstalt (“Alpha”):                 
                 

$50,000 Promissory Note dated June 9, 2017, interest                 
at 5%, due June 30, 2018 (G)   50,000   1,500   50,000   10,000 

                 
Total Alpha   50,000   1,500   50,000   10,000 
                 
Sky-Direct LLC (“Sky”):                 
                 

$21,000 Promissory Notes dated January 27, 2016                 
and March 4, 2016, interest at 12%, due June 30, 2018                 
(C) (D) (H)   8,350   8,350   8,350   15,030 

                 
$15,000 Promissory Note assigned March 25,                 

2016, interest at 12%, due June 30, 2018                 
(A) (B) (D) (H)   15,000   15,000   15,000   27,000 

                 
$14,975 Promissory Notes dated October 19 2016,                 

November 29, 2016, and December 30, 2016,
interest at 12%, due June 30, 2018 (C) (H)   14,975   14,975   14,975   26,955 

                 
$80,700 Promissory Note dated January 30, 2017,                 

interest at 12%, due June 30, 2018 (C) (H)   80,700   80,700   80,700   145,260 
                 

$80,000 Promissory Note dated February 28, 2017,                 
interest at 12%, due June 30, 2018 (C) (H)   80,000   80,000   80,000   144,000 

                 
$7,000 Promissory Note dated June 30, 2017,                 

interest at 12%, due June 30, 2018 (C) (H)   7,000   7,000   7,000   12,600 
                 

$3,000 Promissory Note dated April 28, 2017,                 
interest at 12%, due June 30, 2018 (C)(H)   3,000   3,000   3,000   5,400 
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$5,000 Promissory Note dated May 19, 2017,             
interest at 10%, due May 18, 2018 (H)   5,000   5,000   5,000   800 

                 
$80,000 Promissory Note dated July 31, 2017,

interest at 10%, due July 31, 2018 (H)   80,000   73,600   80,000   17,600 
Total Sky   294,025   287,625   294,025   394,645 
                 
Oscaleta Partners LLC (“Oscaleta”):                 
                 

$30,019 Promissory Note dated April 20, 2017,                 
interest at 5%, due June 30, 2018 (G)   30,019   900   30,019   6,004 

                 
$25,000 Promissory Note dated June 9, 2017,                 

interest at 5%, due June 30, 2018 (G)   25,000   750   25,000   5,000 
                 
Total Oscaleta   55,019   1,650   55,019   11,004 
                 
East Six Opportunity Fund LLC:                 
                 

$25,000 Promissory Note dated June 13, 2017,                 
interest at 5%, due June 30, 2018 (G)   25,000   750   25,000   5,000 

                 
Total  $ 435,271  $ 316,224  $ 435,271  $ 458,072 
 
The above convertible notes contain variable conversion features based on the future trading price of the Company common stock. Therefore, the number
of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the notes are indeterminate. Accordingly, we recorded the $316,224 fair value of the embedded
conversion features at June 30, 2018 as a derivative liability. The $141,848 decrease in the fair value of the derivative liability from $458,072 at
December 31, 2017 to $ 316,224 at June 30, 2018 was credited to income from derivative liability.
 
The fair values of the embedded conversion features are measured quarterly using the Black Scholes option pricing model. Assumptions used to calculate



the derivative liability at December 31, 2017 include stock price of $0.0065 per share, (2) exercise prices ranging from $0.0015 to $0.01 per share, (3)
terms ranging from 3 months to 9 months, (4) expected volatility of 159%, and (5) risk free interest rates ranging from 1.28% to 1.53%. Assumptions used
to calculate the derivative liability at June 30, 2018 include (1) stock price of $0.0048 per share, (2) exercise prices ranging from $0.0015 to $0.01 per
share, (3) terms ranging from 1 month to 3 months, (4) expected volatility of 134%, and (5) risk free interest rates ranging from 1.77% to 1.93%.
 
9. DERIVATIVE LIABILITY ON WARRANTS
 
From September 2017 to November 2017, in connection with the sale of a total of 120,000,000 shares of common stock (see Note 10), the Company
issued a total of 120,000,000 Common Stock Purchase Warrants (the “Warrants”) to the respective investors. The Warrants are exercisable into ICNB
common stock at a price of $0.01 per share, expire five years from date of issuance, and contain “down round” price protection.
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The down round provision of the above Warrants requires a reduction in the exercise price if there are future issuances of common stock equivalents at a
lower price than the $0.01 exercise price of the Warrants. Accordingly, we have recorded the $432,000 fair value of the Warrants at June 30, 2018 as a
derivative liability.
 
The fair value of the Warrants is measured quarterly using the Black Scholes option pricing model. Assumptions used to calculate the fair value of the



Warrants at June 30, 2018 include (1) stock price of $0.0048 per share, (2) exercise price of $0.01 per share, (3) term of 4 years, (4) expected volatility of
134%, and (5) risk free interest rate of 2.68%.
 
10. CAPITAL STOCK
 
Preferred Stock
 
The one share of Series A Preferred Stock, which was issued to Richard DeCicco on June 10, 2009, entitles the holder to two votes for every share of
Common Stock Deemed Outstanding and has no conversion or dividend rights.
 
The 1000 shares of Series C Preferred Stock, which were issued to Richard DeCicco on May 15, 2015 pursuant to the Securities Exchange Agreement (see
Note 3) for the Company’s 51% investment in BiVi, entitles the holder in the event of a Sale (as defined) to receive out of the proceeds of such Sale (in
whatever form, be it cash, securities, or other assets), a distribution from the Company equal to 76.93% of all such proceeds received by the Company
prior to any distribution of such proceeds to all other classes of equity securities, including any series of preferred stock designated subsequent to this
Series C Preferred Stock.
 
The 10 shares of Series D Preferred Stock, which were issued to Richard DeCicco and Roseann Faltings (5 shares each) on December 13, 2016 pursuant
to the Securities Purchase Agreement (See Note 4) for the Company’s 51% investment in Bellissima, entitles the holders to convert each share of Series D
Preferred Stock to the equivalent of 5.1% of the common stock issued and outstanding at the time of conversion.
 
Effective May 21, 2018, the Company entered into a Share Exchange Agreement with the four investors who purchased 120,000,000 shares of common
stock pursuant to a Securities Purchase Agreement dated October 27, 2017. Effective May 21, 2018, the Company sold a total of 1,200,000 shares of
Series E Preferred Stock and 120,000,000 warrants to four investors referred to in the preceding sentence for $300,000 cash pursuant to an Amendment
No.1 to Securities Purchase Agreement. The Exchange Agreement provides for the exchange of the 120,000,000 shares of common stock for 1,200,000
shares of Series E Preferred stock. Each share of Series E Preferred Stock is convertible into 100 shares of common stock, is entitled to 100 votes on all
matters to come before the common stockholders or shareholders generally, is entitled to dividends on an as-converted-to-common stock basis, is entitled
to a distribution preference of $0.25 upon liquidation, and is not redeemable.
 
 

F-15



 

Table of Contents
 

Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(Unaudited)
 

Effective May 21, 2018, the Company sold a total of 1,200,000 shares of Series E Preferred Stock and 120,000,000 warrants to four investors referred to
in the preceding paragraph for $300,000 cash pursuant to an Amendment No.1 to Securities Purchase Agreement.
 
Common Stock
 
In February 2017, the Company issued an aggregate of 5,965,129 shares of its common stock in settlement of convertible notes payable totaling $72,773.
 
On March 28, 2017, the Company executed a Settlement Agreement and Release (the “Settlement Agreement”) with 4 holders of convertible notes
payable. Notes payable and accrued interest totaling $892,721 were satisfied through the Company’s agreement to irrevocably reserve a total of
482,926,829 shares of its common stock and to deliver such shares in separate tranches to the Escrow Agent upon receipt of a conversion notice delivered
by the Escrow Agent to the Company.
 
On May 5, 2017, the Company executed an Amended Settlement Agreement and Release (the “Amended Settlement Agreement”) replacing the
Settlement Agreement and Release dated March 28, 2017 (see preceding paragraph). The Amended Settlement Agreement is with 5 holders of convertible
notes payable (the 4 holders who were parties to the Settlement Agreement and Release dated March 28, 2017 and one additional holder) and provided for
the satisfaction of notes payable and accrued interest totaling $1,099,094 (a $206,373 increase from the $892,721 amount per the Settlement Agreement
and Release dated March 28, 2017) through the Company’s agreement to irrevocably reserve a total of 613,000,000 shares of its common stock (a
130,073,171 share increase from the 482,926,829 shares per the Settlement Agreement and Release dated March 28, 2017) and deliver such shares in
separate tranches to the Escrow Agent upon receipt of a conversion notice delivered by the Escrow Agent to the Company.
 
In the quarterly period ended June 30, 2017, the Company issued an aggregate of 71,194,147 shares of its common stock to the Escrow Agent pursuant to
the Amended Settlement Agreement. In the quarterly period ended September 30, 2017, the Company issued an aggregate of 63,333,333 shares of its



common stock to the Escrow Agent pursuant to the Amended Settlement Agreement.
 
On June 29, 2017, the Company issued 10,018,893 shares of its common stock in settlement of convertible notes payable and accrued interest payable
totaling $50,094.
 
On July 17, 2017 and July 25, 2017, the Company issued a total of 15,089,720 shares of its common stock in settlement of convertible notes payable and
accrued interest payable totaling $75,449.
 
On August 17, 2017, the Company issued 4,000,000 shares of its common stock to a marketing entity for services rendered. The shares were valued at
$0.005 per share and $20,000 was expensed and included in marketing and advertising expenses in the three months ended September 30, 2017.
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From September 2017 to November 2017, pursuant to a Securities Purchase Agreement dated October 27, 2017 (the “SPA”), the Company issued a total
of 120,000,000 shares of its common stock and 120,000,000 warrants to four investors for a total of $300,000 cash. The Warrants are exercisable into
ICNB common stock at a price of $0.01 per share, expire five years from date of issuance, and contain “down round” price protection (see Note 9).
 
On January 2, 2018, the Company issued 25,861,627 shares of its common stock to the Escrow Agent pursuant to the Amended Settlement Agreement.



 
On January 19, 2018, the Company issued 54,031,807 shares of its common stock to the Escrow Agent pursuant to the Amended Settlement Agreement.
 
On March 14, 2018, the Company issued 31,666,667 shares of its common stock to the Escrow Agent pursuant to the Amended Settlement Agreement.
 
On April 5, 2018, the Company issued 43,000,000 shares of its common stock to the Escrow Agent pursuant to the Amended Settlement Agreement.
 
On April 9, 2018, the Company issued 70,073,973 shares of its common stock to the Escrow Agent pursuant to the Amended Settlement Agreement.
 
On April 12, 2018, the Company issued 120,287,667 shares of its common stock to the Escrow Agent pursuant to the Amended Settlement Agreement.
 
Effective May 21, 2018, the Company entered into a Share Exchange Agreement with the four investors who purchased 120,000,000 shares of common
stock pursuant to a Securities Purchase Agreement dated October 27, 2017. Effective May 21, 2018, the Company sold a total of 1,200,000 shares of
Series E Preferred Stock and 120,000,000 warrants to four investors referred to in the preceding sentence for $300,000 cash pursuant to an Amendment
No.1 to Securities Purchase Agreement. The Exchange Agreement provides for the exchange of the 120,000,000 shares of common stock for 1,200,000
shares of Series E Preferred stock. Each share of Series E Preferred Stock is convertible into 100 shares of common stock, is entitled to 100 votes on all
matters to come before the common stockholders or shareholders generally, is entitled to dividends on an as-converted-to-common stock basis, is entitled
to a distribution preference of $0.25 upon liquidation, and is not redeemable.
 
Warrants
 
In connection with the Company’s issuance of a total of $135,019 convertible notes payable in the three months ended June 30, 2017, the Company issued
a total of 13,500,000 Common Stock Purchase Warrants (the ‘Warrants”) to the respective lenders. The Warrants are exercisable into ICNB common
stock at a price of $0.01 per share and expire at dates ranging from June 22, 2022 to June 30, 2022.
 
As discussed in Note 9, the Company issued a total of 120,000,000 warrants to three investors from September 2017 to November 2017. The Warrants are
exercisable into ICNB common stock at a price of $0.01 per share and expire five years from date of issuance.
 
 

F-17



 

Table of Contents
 

Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(Unaudited)
 
Effective May 21, 2018, the Company issued 7,500,000 warrants to a law firm for services rendered. The warrants are exercisable into ICNB common
stock at a price of $0.01 per share and expire five years from date of issuance. The $23,250 fair value of the warrants was expensed in the three months
ended June 30, 2018.
 
As discussed in Preferred Stock above, the Company issued a total of 120,000,000 warrants to four investors in effective May 21, 2018 in connection with
the sale of 120,000 shares of Series E Preferred stock for $300,000 cash. These warrants are exercisable into ICNB common stock at a price of $0.01 per
share and expire five years from date of issuance.
 
11. INCOME TAXES
 
No income taxes were recorded in the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 since the Company had taxable losses in these periods.
 
The provision for (benefit from) income taxes differs from the amount computed by applying the statutory United States federal income tax rate (21% in
2018; 35% in 2017) for the periods presented to income (loss) before income taxes. The sources of the difference are as follows:
 

  

Six months
ended June

30,
2018   

Six months
ended June

30,
2017  

       
Expected tax at 21% and 35%  $ (163,413)  $ 2,114,309 
         



Nontaxable income from derivative liability   (85,228)   (2,179,902)
         
Nondeductible amortization of debt discount   21,359   3,730 
         
Increase (decrease) in valuation allowance   227,282   61,863 
         
Income tax provision  $ -  $ - 
 
Significant components of the Company's deferred income tax assets are as follows:
 

  
June 30,

2018   
December 31,

2017  
       
Net operating loss carryforward  $ 3,450,111  $ 3,222,829 
         
Less valuation allowance   (3,450,111)   (3,222,829)
         
Deferred income tax assets - net  $ -  $ - 
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Six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(Unaudited)
 
Based on management’s present assessment, the Company has not yet determined that a deferred tax asset attributable to the future utilization of the net
operating loss carryforward as of June 30, 2018 will be realized. Accordingly, the Company has maintained a 100% valuation allowance against the
deferred tax asset in the financial statements at June 30, 2018. The Company will continue to review this valuation allowance and make adjustments as
appropriate.
 
Current United States income tax laws limit the amount of loss available to be offset against future taxable income when a substantial change in
ownership occurs. Therefore, the amount available to offset future taxable income may be limited.
 
All tax years remain subject to examination by major taxing jurisdictions.
 
12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
 

a. Iconic Guarantees
 
On May 26, 2015, BiVi LLC (“BiVi”) entered into a License Agreement with Neighborhood Licensing, LLC (the “BiVi Licensor”), an entity owned by



Chazz Palminteri (“Palminteri”), to use Palminteri’s endorsement, signature and other intellectual property owned by the BiVi Licensor. Iconic has agreed
to guarantee and act as surety for BiVi’s obligations under certain sections of the License Agreement and to indemnify the BiVi Licensor and Palminteri
against third party claims.
 
On November 12, 2015, Bellissima Spirits LLC (“Bellissima”) entered into a License Agreement with Christie Brinkley, Inc. (the “Bellissima Licensor”),
an entity owned by Christie Brinkley (“Brinkley”), to use Brinkley’s endorsement, signature, and other intellectual property owned by the Bellissima
Licensor. Iconic has agreed to guarantee and act as surety for Bellissima’s obligations under certain sections of the License Agreement and to indemnify
the Bellissima Licensor and Brinkley against third party claims. Also, Brinkley was granted a 24 month option to purchase 1% of the outstanding shares of
Iconic common stock on a fully diluted basis (as of the date of Brinkley’s exercise of the option) at an exercise price of $0.001 per share.
 

b. Royalty Obligations of BiVi and Bellissima
 
Pursuant to the License Agreement with the Bivi Licensor (see Note 12a. above), BiVi is obligated to pay the BiVi Licensor a Royalty Fee equal to 5% of
monthly gross sales of BiVi Brand products payable monthly subject to an annual Minimum Royalty Fee of $100,000 in year 1, $150,000 in year 2,
$165,000 in year 3, $181,500 in year 4, $199,650 in year 5, and $219,615 in year 6 and each subsequent year.
 
Pursuant to the License Agreement and Amendment No. 1 to the License Agreement effective June 30, 2017 with the Bellissima Licensor (see Note 12a.
above), Bellissima is obligated to pay the Bellissima Licensor a Royalty Fee equal to 10% of monthly gross sales (12.5% for sales in excess of defined
Case Break Points) of Bellissima Brand products payable monthly. The Bellissima Licensor has the right to terminate the endorsement if Bellissima fails
to sell 10,000 cases of Bellissima Brand products in year 1, 15,000 cases in year 2, or 20,000 cases in year 3 and each subsequent year.
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(Unaudited)
 

c. Distribution Agreement
 
On May 1, 2015, BiVi entered into a Distribution Agreement with United Spirits, Inc. (“United”) for United to distribute and wholesale BiVi’s product
and to act as the licensed importer and wholesaler. The Distribution Agreement provides United the exclusive right for a term of ten years to sell BiVi’s
product for an agreed distribution fee equal to $1.00 per case of product sold. United is owned and managed by Richard DeCicco, the controlling
shareholder, President, CEO, and Director of Iconic.
 
In November 2015, Bellissima and United agreed to have United distribute and wholesale Bellissima’s Products under the same terms contained in the
Distribution Agreement with BiVi described in the preceding paragraph.
 

d. Compensation Arrangements
 
The Company uses the services of its chief executive officer Richard DeCicco and its assistant secretary Roseann Faltings under informal compensation
arrangements (without any employment agreements).
 



For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company accrued compensation of $250,000 per year ($150,000 for DeCicco; $100,000 for
Faltings) for their services rendered. In 2016, the compensation was allocated 50% to Iconic ($125,000), 30% to Bellissima ($75,000), and 20% to BiVi
($50,000). In 2017, the compensation was allocated 50% to Iconic ($125,000), 40% to Bellissima ($100,000), and 10% to BiVi ($25,000). The $500,000
liability at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 are included in “Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses” on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at June
30, 2018 and December 31, 2017.
 

e. Registration Rights Agreement
 
As part of the SPA financing discussed in Note 10, the Company and the three investors also executed a Registration Rights Agreement (the “RRA”).
Among other things, the RRA provides for the Company to file a Registration Statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) to
register for resale the shares of common stock and the shares underlying the Warrants issued to the three investors pursuant to the SPA. The Company is
to use its best efforts to cause the Registration Statement to be declared effective as promptly as possible after the filing thereof but no later than the
applicable Effectiveness Date (defined as 150 calendar days following the earlier of (i) the Filing Date <20th calendar day following completion of the
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2016> and (ii) date on which the Initial Registration
Statement is filed with the SEC).
 
If the Registration Statement is not declared effective by the Effectiveness Date (or certain other events occur), the Company will be obligated to pay the
investors liquidated damages equal to 1% of the Subscription Amounts at the Event Date and 1% on each monthly anniversary of the Event Date until the
Event is cured subject to maximum liquidated damages equal to 6% of the Subscription Amounts.
 

f. Lease Agreement
 
On March 27, 2018, United Spirits, Inc. executed a lease extension for the Company’s office and warehouse space in North Amityville New York. The
extension has a term of three years from February 1, 2018 to January 31, 2021 and provides for monthly rent of $4,478.
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13. RESTATEMENT OF PREVIOUSLY ISSUED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 
The Company has restated the consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2017 and for the year then ended (which were previously included in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements filed with OTC Markets on May 7, 2018) in order to correct an error relating to the nonaccrual of a
$261,766 invoice from the Company’s supplier of Bellissima sparkling wines for inventory delivered directly to our customer in December 2017.
 
The effect of the restatement adjustments on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2017 follows:
 

   

As
Previously
Reported   

Restatement
Adjustments   As Restated  

Assets           
Current assets:           

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 1,237,432  $ -  $ 1,237,432 
Accounts receivable    311,074   -   311,074 
Inventory    59,847   -   59,847 
Prepaid expenses    5,000   -   5,000 

              



Total current assets    1,613,353   -   1,613,353 
Total assets   $ 1,613,353  $ -  $ 1,613,353 
              
Liabilities and Stockholders' Deficiency              

Current liabilities:              
Current portion of debt   $ 495,404  $ -   495,404 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses    834,230   261,766   1,095,996 

Loans payable to officer and affiliated entity              
 -non interest bearing and due on demand    60,374   -   60,374 

Accrued interest payable    38,734   -   38,734 
Derivative liability on convertible debt    458,072   -   458,072 

Total current liabilities    1,886,814   261,766   2,148,580 
               
Derivative liability on warrants    696,000   -   696,000 
Total liabilities    2,582,814   261,766   2,844,580 
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)              
               
Stockholders' deficiency:              

Preferred stock, $.001 par value    2   -   2 
Common stock, $.001 par value    1,104,392   -   1,104,392 
Common stock to be issued to Escrow Agent, $.001 par value    478,473   -   478,473 
Additional paid-in capital    14,183,672   -   14,183,672 
Accumulated deficit    (16,942,328)   (133,502)   (17,075,830)
Total Iconic Brands, Inc. stockholders’ equity    (1,175,789)   -   (1,309,291)
               
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries and variable interest entity    206,328   (128,264)   (78,064)
Total stockholders’ equity (deficiency)    (969,461)   (261,766)   (1,231,227)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficiency   $ 1,613,353  $ -  $ 1,613,353 
 
14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
 
The Company has evaluated the subsequent events through the filing date of this filing and has determined that there were no subsequent events to
recognize or disclose in these financial statements.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

 
To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Iconic Brands Inc.
 
Opinion on the Financial Statements
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Iconic Brands Inc. (the Company) as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, consolidated stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the two year period ended December 31,
2017, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the financial statements). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years
in the two year period ended December 31, 2017, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
 
Basis for Opinion
 
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's financial
statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have,



nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an understanding
of internal control over financial reporting, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
 
Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and
performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
 
 

BMKR LLP
 
We have served as the Company's auditor since 2016.
Hauppauge, NY
July 18, 2018
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  December 31,   December 31,  
  2017   2016  
  (Asrestated)    
Assets       
       
Current assets:       

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 1,237,432  $ 2,216 
Accounts receivable   311,074   176,365 
Inventory   59,847   38,763 
Prepaid expenses   5,000   - 

         
Total current assets   1,613,353   217,344 



         
Total assets  $ 1,613,353  $ 217,344 
         
Liabilities and Stockholders' Deficiency         
         
Current liabilities:         

Current portion of debt  $ 495,404  $ 1,130,596 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses   1,095,995   399,125 
Loans payable to officer and affiliated entity -noninterest bearing and due on demand   60,374   141,025 
Accrued interest payable   38,734   344,149 
Derivative liability on convertible debt   458,072   7,260,885 

         
Total current liabilities   2,148,579   9,275,780 
         
Derivative liability on warrants   696,000   - 
         
Total liabilities   2,844,579   9,275,780 
         
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)         
         
Stockholders' deficiency:         

Preferred stock, $.001 par value; authorized 100,000,000 shares:         
Series A, 1 and 1 share issued and outstanding, respectively   1   1 
Series C, 1,000 and 1,000 shares issued and outstanding, respectively   1   1 
Series D, 10 and 10 shares issued and outstanding, respectively   -   - 

         
Common stock, $.001 par value; authorized 2,000,000,000 shares, 1,104,391,831 and 814,790,609 shares issued and
outstanding respectively   1,104,392   814,791 
         
Common stock to be issued to Escrow Agent, $.001 par value; 478,472,520 and 0         
shares, respectively   478,473   - 
         
Additional paid-in capital   14,183,672   11,367,419 
         
Accumulated deficit   (17,075,829)   (21,042,207)
         
Total Iconic Brands, Inc. stockholders’ equity   (1,309,290)   (8,859,995)
         
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries and variable interest entity   78,064   (198,441)
         
Total stockholders' equity (deficiency)   (1,231,226)   (9,058,436)
         
Total liabilities and stockholders' deficiency  $ 1,613,353  $ 217,344 
 

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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  Year Ended December 31,  
  2017   2016  
  (As restated)     
Sales  $ 3,219,881  $ 371,815 

Cost of Sales   1,786,626   248,074 
Gross profit   1,433,255   123,741 
         
Operating expenses:         

Officers compensation   250,000   271,521 
Professional and consulting fees   87,671   90,074 
Royalties   321,741   33,778 
Marketing and advertising   84,013   108,155 
Occupancy costs   107,118   50,125 
Travel and entertainment   141,821   164,656 
Other   272,155   109,825 

         
Total operating expenses   1,264,519   828,134 

         
Income (loss) from operations   168,736   (704,393)
         
Other income (expense):         

Gain from settlement of debt   -   100,000 
Income (expense) from derivative liability   7,429,979   (5,357,645)
Loss on conversion of debt

  (3,178,010)   (202,162)
Interest expense   (70,649)   (125,835)
Amortization of debt discounts   (107,173)   - 
Other Income   -   260,673 

         
Total other income (expense) - net   4,074,147   (5,324,969)

         
Net income (loss)   4,242,883   (6,029,362)
         
Net loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries and variable interest entity   (276,505)   58,120 
         
Net income (loss) attributable to Iconic Brands, Inc.  $ 3,966,378  $ (5,971,242)
         
Net income (loss) per common share:         
         

Basic  $ 0.00  $ (0.01)
Diluted  $ 0.00  $ (0.01)

         



Weighted average common shares outstanding and to be issued to Escrow Agent:         
         

Basic   1,311,739,126   563,710,428 
Diluted   3,197,937,251   563,710,428 

 
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Deficiency

 



  Series A
Preferred Stock

$.001 par

  Series C
Preferred Stock

$.001 par

  Series D
Preferred Stock

$.001 par

  
Common Stock

$.001 par

  Common Stock to be
issued to Escrow Agent

$0.001 par

  
Additional

Paid-in

  

Noncontrolling
Interests in
Subsidiaries
and Variable

Interest

  

Accumulated

    

  Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount   Capital   Entity   Deficit   Total  
                                           
Balance at
December 31,
2015   1  $ 1   1,000  $ 1   -  $ -   125,500,013  $ 125,500   -   -  $11,807,341  $ (140,321) $ (15,070,965) $ (3,278,443)
                                                         
Issuance of
common
shares in
satisfaction of
convertible
notes payable
and accrued
interest   -   -   -   -   -   -   689,290,596   689,291   -   -   (439,922)  -   -   249,369 
                                                         
Issuance of
Series D
Preferred
Shares   -   -   -   -   10   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 
                                                         
Net loss
attributable to
noncontrolling
interests In
subsidiaries
and variable
interest entity   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   (58,120)  -   (58,120)
                                                         
Net loss   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   (5,971,242)  (5,971,242)
                                                         
Balance at
December 31,
2016   1  $ 1   1,000  $ 1   10  $ -   814,790,609  $ 814,791   -   -  $11,367,419  $ (198,441) $ (21,042,207) $ (9,058,436)
                                                         
Issuance of
common
shares in
satisfaction of
convertible
notes payable
and accrued
interest   -   -   -   -   -   -   31,073,742   31,074   -   -   1,775,359   -   -   1,806,433 
                                                         
Common
stock to be
issued to
Escrow Agent
pursuant to
Settlement
Agreements
dated March
28,2017 and
May 5, 2017
in satisfaction
of convertible
notes payable
and accrued
interest   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   6613,000,000   613,000   486,094   -   -   1,099,094 
                                                         
Common
stock issued to
Escrow Agent   -   -   -   -   -   -   134,527,480   134,527   (134,527,480)  (134,527)  -   -   -   - 
                                                         
Issuance of
common
shares for
marketing
services   -   -   -   -   -   -   4,000,000   4,000   -   -   38,800   -   -   42,800 
                                                         
Sale of
common
shares and
warrants
($300,000
gross
proceeds less
$200,000
attributable to
fair value of
warrants
credited to
derivative
liability)   -   -   -   -   -   -   120,000,000   120,000   -   -   516,000   -   -   636,000 
                                                         
Net income
attributable to
noncontrolling
interests in
subsidiaries
and variable
interest entity
(As restated)   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   276,505   -   276,505 
                                                         
Net income
(As restated)   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   3,966,378   3,966,378 
                                                         
Balance at
December 31,
2017 (As
restated)   1  $ 1   1,000  $ 1   10  $ -   1,104,391,831  $1,104,392   478,472,520  $ 478,473  $14,183,672  $ 78,064  $ (17,075,829) $ (1,231,226)
 



See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiaries



Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
 
  Year Ended December 31,  
  2017   2016  

 (As restated)     
Operating Activities:       

Net income (loss) attributable to Iconic Brands, Inc.  $ 3,966,378  $ (5,971,242)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:         

Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries and variable interest entity   276,505   (58,120)
Expense (income) from derivative liability   (7,429,981)   5,357,645 
Stock-based marketing expense   20,000   - 
Gain from settlement of debt   -   (100,000)
Amortization of debt discounts   107,173   - 
Loss on conversion   3,178,010   202,162 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:         
Accounts receivable   (134,709)   (163,438)
Inventory   (21,084)   3,237 
Prepaid expenses   (5,000)   - 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses   696,871   311,093 
Accrued interest payable   19,867   182,911 

         
Net cash used in operating activities   674,030   (235,752)

         
Financing Activities:         

Proceeds from issuance of debt-net   341,837   223,303 
Proceeds from sale of common stock and warrants   300,000   - 
Loans payable to officer and affiliated entity   (80,651)   8,856 

         
Net cash provided by financing activities   561,186   232,159 

         
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   1,235,216   (3,593)
         
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period   2,216   5,809 
         
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period  $ 1,237,432  $ 2,216 
         
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:         

Income taxes paid  $ -  $ - 
Interest paid  $ -  $ - 

         
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:         
         

Issuance of common stock in satisfaction of debt and accrued interest  $ 198,316  $ 67,999 
         

Agreements to issue common stock in satisfaction of debt and accrued interest  $ 1,099,094  $ - 
         

Issuance of common stock to Escrow Agent in connection with Settlement Agreement and Amended Settlement
Agreement  $ 201,791  $ - 

 
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

 
1. ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
 
Iconic Brands, Inc., formerly Paw Spa, Inc. (“Iconic Brands” or “Iconic”), was incorporated in the State of Nevada on October 21, 2005. Effective
December 31, 2016, Iconic closed on a May 15, 2015 agreement to acquire a 51% interest in BiVi LLC (“BiVi”), the brand owner of “BiVi 100 percent
Sicilian Vodka,” and closed on a December 13, 2016 agreement to acquire a 51% interest in Bellissima Spirits LLC (“Bellissima”), the brand owner of
Bellissima sparkling wines. These transactions involved entities under common control of the Company’s chief executive officer and represented a
change in reporting entity. The financial statements of the Company have been retrospectively adjusted to reflect the operations at BiVi and Bellissima
from their inception.
 
BiVi was organized in Nevada on May 4, 2015, Bellissima was organized in Nevada on November 23, 2015.
 
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 
(a) Principles of Consolidation
 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Iconic, its two 51% owned subsidiaries BiVi and Bellissima, and United Spirits, Inc., a
variable interest entity of Iconic (see Note 5) (collectively, the “Company”). All inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.
 
(b) Use of Estimates
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
 
(c) Fair Value of Financial Instruments
 
Generally accepted accounting principles require disclosing the fair value of financial instruments to the extent practicable for financial instruments which
are recognized or unrecognized in the balance sheet. The fair value of the financial instruments disclosed herein is not necessarily representative of the
amount that could be realized or settled, nor does the fair value amount consider the tax consequences of realization or settlement.
 
In assessing the fair value of financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions, which are based on estimates of market
conditions and risks existing at the time. For certain instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued
expenses, it was estimated that the carrying amount approximated fair value because of the short maturities of these instruments. All debt is carried at face
value less any unamortized debt discounts.
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(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents
 
The Company considers all liquid investments purchased with original maturities of ninety days or less to be cash equivalents. At December 31, 2017,
cash included approximately $931,076 not covered by FDIC insurance.
 
(e) Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
 
The Company extends unsecured credit to customers in the ordinary course of business but mitigates risk by performing credit checks and by actively
pursuing past due accounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on customer historical experience and the aging of the related accounts
receivable. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the allowance for doubtful accounts was $0.
 
(f) Inventories
 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market, with due consideration given to obsolescence and to slow moving items.
Inventory at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 consists of cases of BiVi Vodka and cases of Bellissima sparkling wines purchased from our
Italian suppliers.
 
(g) Revenue Recognition
 
Revenue from product sales is recognized when all of the following criteria are met: (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (2) the price is fixed
or determinable, (3) collectability is reasonably assured, and (4) delivery has occurred. Persuasive evidence of an arrangement and fixed price criteria are
satisfied through purchase orders. Collectability criteria are satisfied through credit approvals. Delivery criteria are satisfied when the products are
shipped to a customer and title and risk of loss passes to the customer in accordance with the terms of sale. The Company has no obligation to accept the
return of products sold other than for replacement of damaged products. Other than quantity price discounts negotiated with customers prior to billing and
delivery (which are reflected as a reduction in sales), the Company does not offer any sales incentives or other rebate arrangements to customers.
 
(h) Shipping and Handling Costs
 
Shipping and handling costs to deliver product to customers are reported as operating expenses in the accompanying statements of operations. Shipping
and handling costs to purchase inventory are capitalized and expensed to cost of sales when revenue is recognized on the sale of product to customers.
 
(i) Stock-Based Compensation
 
Stock-based compensation is accounted for at fair value in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 718, “Compensation-Stock
Compensation”. For the year ended December 31, 2017, stock-based compensation was $20,000. For the year ended September 30, 2016, stock-based
compensation was $0.
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(j) Income Taxes
 
Income taxes are accounted for under the assets and liability method. Current income taxes are provided in accordance with the laws of the respective
taxing authorities. Deferred income taxes are provided for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Deferred
tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is not more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred
tax assets will be realized.
 
(k) Net Income (Loss) per Share
 
Basic net income (loss) per common share is computed on the basis of the weighted average number of common shares outstanding and to be issued to
Escrow Agent (see Note 8) during the period of the financial statements.
 
Diluted net income (loss) per common share is computed on the basis of the weighted average number of common shares outstandings and to be issued to
Escrow Agent (see Note 8) and dilutive securities (such as stock options, warrants, and convertible securities) outstanding. Dilutive securities having an
anti-dilutive effect on diluted net income (loss) per share are excluded from the calculation.
 
The following is a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator we used in our computation of diluted earnings per common share for the year ended
December 31, 2017:
 
Numerator:
 

Net income attributable to Iconic Brands, Inc.  $ 3,966,378 
     
Add interest expense on convertible debt assumed to be converted at later of issuance date or January 1, 2017   70,649 
     
Net income available to common shareholders  $ 4,037,027 

 
Denominator:  
 

Basic weighted average common shares outstanding and to be issued to Escrow Agent   1,311,739,126 
     
Add:     

Convertible debt   255,250,127 
Warrants   - 
Series D Preferred Stock   1,630,947,998 

     
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding and to be issued to Escrow Agent   3,197,937,251 

 
We did not include any outstanding warrants from the diluted shares calculation as the $0.01 exercise price of the outstanding warrants was higher than
the average trading price of our common stock for the relevant periods.
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(l) Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
 
On July 13, 2017, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2017-11. Among other things, ASU
2017-11 provides guidance that eliminates the requirement to consider “down round” features when determining whether certain financial instruments or
embedded features are indexed to an entity’s stock and need to be classified as liabilities. ASU 2017-11 provides for entities to recognize the effect of a
down round feature only when it is triggered and then as a dividend and a reduction to income available to common stockholders in basic earnings per
share. The guidance is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Although early adoption is permitted, the Company has decided
not to early adopt ASU 2017-11.
 
Certain other accounting pronouncements have been issued by the FASB and other standard setting organizations which are not yet effective and have not
yet been adopted by the Company. The impact on the Company’s financial position and results of operations from adoption of these standards is not
expected to be material.
 
3. INVESTMENT IN BIVI LLC
 
On May 15, 2015, Iconic entered into a Securities Exchange Agreement by and among the members of BiVi LLC, a Nevada limited liability company
(“BiVi”), under which Iconic acquired a 51% majority interest in BiVi in exchange for the issuance of (a) 1,000,000 shares of restricted common stock
and (b) 1,000 shares of newly created Series C Convertible Preferred Stock.
 
Prior to May 15, 2015, BiVi was beneficially owned and controlled by Richard DeCicco, the controlling shareholder, President, CEO and Director of
Iconic Brands, Inc.
 
4. INVESTMENT IN BELLISSIMA SPIRITS LLC
 
On December 13, 2016, Iconic entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with Bellissima Spirits LLC (“Bellissima”) and Bellissima’s members under
which Iconic acquired a 51% majority interest in Bellissima in exchange for the issuance of a total of 10 shares of newly designated Iconic Series D
Convertible Preferred Stock. Each share of Iconic Series D Convertible Preferred Stock is convertible into the equivalent of 5.1% of Iconic common stock
issued and outstanding at the time of conversion.
 
Prior to December 13, 2016, Bellissima was controlled by Richard DeCicco, the controlling shareholder, President, CEO and Director of Iconic.
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5. UNITED SPIRITS, INC.
 
United Spirits, Inc. (“United”) is owned and managed by Richard Decicco, the controlling shareholder, President, CEO, and Director of Iconic. United
provides distribution services for Bivi and Bellessima (see Note 12) and is considered a variable interest entity (“VIE”) of Iconic. Since Iconic has been
determined to be the primary beneficiary of United, we have included United’s assets, liabilities, and operations in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements of Iconic. Summarized financial information of United for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 follows:
 

  December 31,  
 2017   2016  

Balance Sheets:       
       
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 1,181,076  $ 1,500 
Intercompany receivable from Iconic(A)   230,226   - 
Intercompany receivable from Bellissima(A)   -   113,116 
Total assets  $ 1,411,302  $ 114,616 
Intercompany payable to Iconic(A)  $ -  $ 76,433 
Intercompany payable to Bellissima (A)   1,376,729   - 
Intercompany payable to Bivi (A)   88,259   86,967 
Current portion of debt   15,470   15,470 
Loans payable to officer and affiliated entity

  71,052   120,728 
Total Liabilities   1,551,510   299,598 
Noncontrolling interest in VIE   (140,208)   (184,982)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficiency  $ 1,411,302  $ 114,616 

 
  Year ended December 31,  

 2017   2016  
Statements of operations:       
       
Intercompany distribution fees(A)  $ 60,696  $ 6,046 
Professional and consulting fees   -   1,049 
Occupancy costs   -   36,264 
Other operating expenses   15,922   45,641 



Total operating expenses   15,922   82,954 
Net loss  $ 44,774   (76,908)

 
(A) Eliminated in consolidation.
 
6. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of:
 

  December 31,  
  2017   2016  
Accrued officers compensation  $ 500,000  $ 250,000 
Accounts payable   261,765   - 
Accrued royalties   271,321   21,639 
Other   62,909   127,486 
Total  $ 1,095,995  $ 399,125 
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7. DEBT
 
Debt consists of:
 
  December 31,   December 31,  
  2017   2016  
Southridge Partners II, L.P. and Tarpon Bay Partners LLC (“Southridge”):       

       
$50,000 Promissory Note assigned September 8, 2015, interest at 12%, due December 31, 2017 (A) (B) (D) (E)
(F)  $ -  $ 46,320 

         
$185,000 Promissory Notes dated in 2015, interest at 12%, due December 31, 2017 (B) (D) (E) (F)   -   5,000 



         
$248,600 Promissory Notes dated in 2015, interest at 12%, due December 31, 2017 (B) (D) (E) (F)   -   248,600 

         
Total Southridge   -   299,920 
         
Equity Markets Advisory Inc. (“Equity Markets”):         
         

$159,000 Promissory Notes dated April 15, 2010, November 1, 2013, and January 15, 2014, interest at 12%, due
December 31, 2017 (B) (D) (E) (F)   11,227   159,000 

         
$41,235 Promissory Notes assigned in 2013, interest at 12%, due December 31, 2017 (D) (E) (F)   -   41,235 

         
$80,000 Promissory Notes assigned by Southridge in October 2016, interest at 12%, due December 31, 2017 (B)
(D) (E) (F)   -   80,000 

         
Total Equity Markets   11,227   280,235 
         

Beaufort Capital Partners, LLC (“Beaufort”):         
         

$50,000 Promissory Note assigned January 7, 2016, interest at 12%, due December 31, 2017 (A) (B) (D) (E) (F)   -   5,445 
         

$40,000 Promissory Note assigned February 8, 2016, interest at 12%, due December 31, 2017 (A) (B) (D) (E) (F)   -   40,000 
         

$100,000 Promissory Note dated January 7, 2016, interest at 12%, due December 31, 2017 (B) (D) (E) (F)   -   100,000 
         
Total Beaufort   -   145,445 
         
Alpha Capital Anstalt (“Alpha”):         
         

$100,000 Promissory Note dated August 28, 2015, interest at 12%, due December 31, 2017 (B) (D) (F)   -   100,000 
         

$100,000 Promissory Notes dated May 22, 2015 and June 4, 2015, interest at 12%, due December 31, 2017 (B)
(D) (F)   -   93,873 

         
$50,000 Promissory Note dated June 9, 2017, interest at 5%, due June 30, 2018 -less unamortized debt discount of
$23,446 at December 31,2017 (G)   26,554  - 
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Total Alpha   26,554   193,873 
         
Sky-Direct LLC (“Sky”):         
         

$21,000 Promissory Notes dated January 27, 2016 and March 4, 2016, interest at 12%, due June 30, 2018 (C)(D)
(H)   8,350   18,350 

         
$15,000 Promissory Note assigned March 25, 2016, interest at 12%, due June 30, 2018 (A) (B) (D) (H)   15,000   15,000 

         
$14,975 Promissory Notes dated October 19 2016, November 29, 2016, and December 30, 2016, interest at 12%,
due June 30, 2018 (C)(H)   14,975   9,800 

         
$80,700 Promissory Note dated January 30, 2017, interest at 12%, due June 30, 2018 (C)(H)   80,700   - 

         
$80,000 Promissory Note dated February 28, 2017, interest at 12%, due June 30, 2018 (C)(H)   80,000   - 

         
$7,000 Promissory Note dated March 31, 2017, interest at 12%, due June 30, 2018 (C)(H)   7,000   - 

         
$3,000 Promissory Note dated April 28, 2017, interest at 12%, due June 30, 2018 (C)(H)   3,000   - 

         
$5,000 Promissory Note dated May 19, 2017, interest at 10%, due May 18, 2018 -less unamortized debt discount
of $1,905 at December 31, 2017 (G)   3,095  - 

         
$80,000 Promissory Note dated July 31, 2017, interest at 10%, due July 31, 2018- less unamortized debt discount
of $46,465 at December 31, 2017 (G)   33,535  - 

         
Total Sky   245,655   43,150 
         
Oscaleta Partners LLC (“Oscaleta”):         
         

$30,019 Promissory Note dated April 20, 2017, interest at 5%, due June 30, 2018 -less unamortized debt discount
of $12,463 at December 31, 2017 (G)   17,556   - 

         



$25,000 Promissory Note dated June 9, 2017, interest at 5%, due June 30, 2018 -less unamortized debt discount of
$11,722 at December 31, 2017 (G)   13,278   - 

         
Total Oscaleta   30,834   - 
         
East Six Opportunity Fund LLC:         
         

$25,000 Promissory Note dated June 13, 2017, interest at 5%, due June 30, 2018 -less unamortized debt discount
of $11,845 at December 31, 2017 (G)   13,155   - 

         
Other:         
         

$10,000 Promissory Note to Sable Ridge Special Equity Fund LP dated October 10, 2014, interest at 10%, past
due   10,000   10,000 
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$10,000 Promissory Note to Durham Property Management Inc. dated November 1, 2013, interest at 12%, past
due   10,000   10,000 

         
Loans from Peter Levine and affiliates, non-interest bearing, no terms of repayment   147,973   147,973 

         
Total Other   167,973   167,973 
         
Total   495,404   1,130,596 
         



Less current portion   (495,404)   (1,130,596)
         
Non-current portion  $ -  $ - 
 
Legend
 
(A) Assigned by Equity Markets Advisory Inc.

 
(B) Convertible into ICNB common stock at a Conversion Price equal to the lesser

of (1) $0.01 per share or (2) 50% discount from the lowest closing bid price during the 30 days prior to the Notice of Conversion. See Note 8
(Derivative Liability).
 

(C) Convertible into ICNB common stock at a Conversion Price equal to a 50% discount to market. See Note 8 (Derivative Liability).
 

(D) On December 7, 2016, the Conversion Price on these notes was amended to $0.0015 per share (subject to a lower December 31, 2017 reset price if
the average of the closing bid price of the Company's common stock for the 60 trading days ending December 31, 2017 is less than $0.0015 per
share). If the Market Price is greater than or equal to $0.0015, then no reset shall occur. See Note 8 (Derivative Liability).
 

(E) On March 28, 2017, pursuant to a Settlement Agreement and Release, these notes and related accrued interest (totaling $892,721) were satisfied
through the Company's agreement to issue of a total of 482,926,829 shares of its common stock. See Note 10.
 

(F) On May 5, 2017, pursuant to an Amended Settlement Agreement and Release, these notes and related accrued interest (totaling $1,099,094) were
satisfied through the Company’s agreement to issue a total of 613,000,000 shares of its common stock. See Note 10.
 

(G) Convertible into ICNB common stock at a Conversion Price of $0.01 per share. Contains “down round” price protection. See Note 8 (Derivative
Liability). 

  
(H) In October 2017, the Conversion Price was amended to $0.0025 per share and the due date was amended to June 30, 2018. Contains “down round”

price protection. See Note 8 (Derivative Liability).
 
On December 7, 2016, Southridge agreed to retire $100,000 of notes payable with no further recourse. Accordingly, the Company recognized a $100,000
gain on retirement of debt in the three months ended December 31, 2016.
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8. DERIVATIVE LIABILITY ON CONVERTIBLE DEBT
 
The derivative liability consists of:
 
  December 31, 2017   December 31, 2016  

  Face Value   
Derivative
Liability   Face Value   

Derivative
Liability  

Southridge Partners II, L.P. and Tarpon Bay Partners LLC (“Southridge”):             
             

$50,000 Promissory Note assigned September 8, 2015, interest at 12%, due
December 31, 2017 (A) (B) (D) (E) (F)  $ -  $ -  $ 46,320  $ 352,032 

                 
$185,000 Promissory Notes dated in 2015, interest at 12%, due December
31, 2017 (B) (D) (E) (F)   -   -   5,000   38,000 

                 
$248,600 Promissory Notes dated in 2015, interest at 12%, due December
31, 2017 (B) (D) (E) (F)   -   -   248,600   1,889,360 

                 
Total Southridge   -   -   299,920   2,279,392 
                 
Equity Markets Advisory Inc. (“Equity Markets”):                 
                 

$159,000 Promissory Notes dated April 15, 2010, November 1, 2013, and
January 15, 2014, interest at 12%, due December 31, 2017 (B)(D)(E)(F)   11,227   37,423   159,000   1,208,400 

                 
$41,235 Promissory Notes assigned in 2013, interest at 12%, due December
31, 2017 (D) (E) (F)   -   -   41,235   313,386 



                 
$80,000 Promissory Notes assigned by Southridge, in October 2016, interest
at 12%, due December 31, 2017 (B) (D) (E) (F)   -   -   80,000   608,000 

                 
Total Equity Markets   11,227   37,423   280,235   2,129,786 
                 
Beaufort Capital Partners, LLC (“Beaufort”):                 
                 

$50,000 Promissory Note assigned January 7, 2016, interest at 12%, due
December 31, 2017 (B) (B) (D) (E) (F)   -   -   5,445   41,382 

   -   -   40,000   304,000 
$40,000 Promissory Note assigned February 8, 2016, interest at 12%, due
December 31, 2017 (B) (B) (D) (E) (F)                 

                 
$100,000 Promissory Note dated January 7, 2016, interest at 12%, due
December 31, 2017 (B) (D) (E) (F)   -   -   100,000   760,000 

                 
Total Beaufort   -   -   145,445   1,105,382 
                 
Alpha Capital Anstalt (“Alpha”):                 
                 

$100,000 Promissory Notes dated May 22, 2015 and June 4, 2015, interest at
12%, due December 31, 2017 (B) (D) (F)   -   -   93,873   713,435 

                 
$100,000 Promissory Note dated August 28, 2015, interest at 12%, due
December 31, 2017(B)(D)(F)   -   -   100,000   760,000 

 
 

F-35



 

Table of Contents
 

Iconic Brands, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

 
$50,000 Promissory Note dated June 9, 2017, interest at 5%, due June 30,
2018 (G)   50,000   10,000   -   - 

                 
Total Alpha   50,000   10,000   193,873   1,473,435 
                 
Sky-Direct LLC (“Sky”):                 
                 

$21,000 Promissory Notes dated January 27, 2016 and March 4, 2016, interest
at 12%, due June 30, 2018 (C) (D) (H)   8,350   15,030   18,350   139,460 

                 
$15,000 Promissory Note assigned March 25, 2016, interest at 12%, due June
30, 2018 (A) (B) (D) (H)   15,000   27,000   15,000   114,000 

                 
$14,975 Promissory Notes dated October 19 2016, November 29, 2016, and
December 30, 2016, interest at 12%, due June 30, 2018 (C) (H)   14,975   26,955   9,800   19,430 

                 
$80,700 Promissory Note dated January 30, 2017, interest at 12%, due June
30, 2018 (C) (H)   80,700   145,260   -   - 

                 
$80,000 Promissory Note dated February 28, 2017, interest at 12%, due June
30, 2018 (C) (H)   80,000   144,000   -   - 

                 



$7,000 Promissory Note dated March 31, 2017, interest at 12%, due June 30,
2018 (C) (H)   7,000   12,600   -   - 

                 
$3,000 Promissory Note dated April 28, 2017, interest at 12%, due June 30,
2018 (C)(H)   3,000   5,400   -   - 

                 
$5,000 Promissory Note dated May 19, 2017, interest at 10%, due May 18,
2018 (G)   5,000   800   -   - 

                 
$80,000 Promissory Note dated July 31, 2017, interest at 10%, due July 31,
2018 (G)   80,000   17,600   -   - 

                 
Total Sky   294,025   394,645   43,150   272,890 
                 
Oscaleta Partners LLC (“Oscaleta”):                 
                 

$30,019 Promissory Note dated April 20, 2017, interest at 5%, due June 30,
2018 (G)   30,019   6,004   -   - 

                 
$25,000 Promissory Note dated June 9, 2017, interest at 5%, due June 30,
2018 (G)   25,000   5,000   -   - 

                 
Total Oscaleta   55,019   11,004   -   - 
                 
East Six Opportunity Fund LLC:                 
                 

$25,000 Promissory Note dated June 13, 2017, interest at 5%, due June 30,
2018 (G)   25,000   5,000   -   - 

                 
Total  $ 435,271  $ 458,072  $ 962,623  $ 7,260,885 
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The above convertible notes contain variable conversion features based on the future trading price of the Company common stock. Therefore, the number
of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the notes are indeterminate. Accordingly, we recorded the $7,260,885 fair value of the embedded
conversion features at December 31, 2016 as a derivative liability. The $6,802,813 decrease in the fair value of the derivative liability from $7,260,885 at
December 31, 2016 to $458,072 at December 31, 2017 was credited to income from derivative liability.
 
The fair values of the embedded conversion features are measured quarterly using the Black Scholes option pricing model. Assumptions used to calculate
the derivative liability at December 31, 2016 include (1) stock price of $0.0115 per share, (2) exercise price ranging from $0.0015 to $0.00575 per shares,
(3) terms of 1 year, (4) expected volatility of 491%, and (5) risk free interest rates of 0.85%. Assumptions used to calculate the derivative liability at
December 31, 2017 include (1) stock price of $0.0065 per share, (2) exercise prices ranging from $0.0015 to $0.01 per share, (3) terms ranging from 3
months to 9 months, (4) expected volatility of 159%, and (5) risk free interest rates of 1.28%.
 
9. DERIVATIVE LIABILITY ON WARRANTS
 
From September 2017 to November 2017, in connection with the sale of a total of 120,000,000 shares of common stock (see Note 10), the Company
issued a total of 120,000,000 Common Stock Purchase Warrants (the “Warrants”) to the respective investors. The Warrants are exercisable into ICNB
common stock at a price of $0.01 per share, expire five years from date of issuance, and contain “down round” price protection.
 
The down round provision of the above Warrants requires a reduction in the exercise price if there are future issuances of common stock equivalents at a
lower price than the $0.01 exercise price of the Warrants. Accordingly, we have recorded the $696,000 fair value of the Warrants at December 31, 2017
as a derivative liability.
 
The fair value of the Warrants is measured quarterly using the Black Scholes option pricing model. Assumptions used to calculate the fair value of the
Warrants at December 31, 2017 include (1) stock price of $0.0065 per share, (2) exercise price of $0.01 per share, (3) term of 5 years, (4) expected
volatility of 159%, and (5) risk free interest rate of 2.20 %.
 
10. CAPITAL STOCK



 
Preferred Stock
 
The one share of Series A Preferred Stock, which was issued to Richard DeCicco on June 10, 2009, entitles the holder to two votes for every share of
Common Stock Deemed Outstanding and has no conversion or dividend rights.
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The 1000 shares of Series C Preferred Stock, which were issued to Richard DeCicco on May 15, 2015 pursuant to the Securities Exchange Agreement (see



Note 3) for the Company’s 51% investment in BiVi, entitles the holder in the event of a Sale (as defined) to receive out of the proceeds of such Sale (in
whatever form, be it cash, securities, or other assets), a distribution from the Company equal to 76.93% of all such proceeds received by the Company
prior to any distribution of such proceeds to all other classes of equity securities, including any series of preferred stock designated subsequent to this
Series C Preferred Stock.
 
The 10 shares of Series D Preferred Stock, which were issued to Richard DeCicco and Roseann Faltings (5 shares each) on December 13, 2016 pursuant
to the Securities Purchase Agreement (See Note 5) for the Company’s 51% investment in Bellissima, entitles the holders to convert each share of Series D
Preferred Stock to the equivalent of 5.1% of the common stock issued and outstanding at the time of conversion.
 
As discussed in Note 13(Subsequent Events), 1,200,000 shares of Series E Convertible Preferred Stock were issued to three investors on May 31, 2018.
Each share of Series E Convertible Stock is convertible into 100 shares of ICNB common stock, is entitled to 100 votes on all matters to come before the
common shareholders or shareholders generally, is entitled to dividends on an as-converted-to-common stock basis, and is entitled upon liquidation to a
distribution of $0.25 prior to any payment to common shareholders or subsequent series of preferred stock. The additional 120,000,000 Warrants are
exercisable into ICNB common stock at a price of $0.01 per share and have a term of 5 years. On October 27, 2018, the exercise price of the additional
120,000,000 Warrants will be reduced to the lower of (i) the exercise price, as adjusted per the terms of the Warrants, and (ii) 50% of the average of the
four lowest closing bid prices for our common stock on the primary trading market during the 4 trading days immediately prior to such date.
 
Common Stock
 
For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company issued an aggregate of 689,290,596 shares of its Common Stock in settlement of convertible notes
payable and accrued interest payable totaling $67,999.
 
In February 2017, the Company issued an aggregate of 5,965,129 shares of its common stock in settlement of convertible notes payable totaling $72,773.
 
On March 28, 2017, the Company executed a Settlement Agreement and Release (the “Settlement Agreement”) with 4 holders of convertible notes
payable. Notes payable and accrued interest totaling $892,721 were satisfied through the Company’s agreement to irrevocably reserve a total of
482,926,829 shares of its common stock and to deliver such shares in separate tranches to the Escrow Agent upon receipt of a conversion notice delivered
by the Escrow Agent to the Company.
 
On May 5, 2017, the Company executed an Amended Settlement Agreement and Release (the “Amended Settlement Agreement”) replacing the
Settlement Agreement and Release dated March 28, 2017 (see preceding paragraph). The Amended Settlement Agreement is with 5 holders of convertible
notes payable (the 4 holders who were parties to the Settlement Agreement and Release dated March 28, 2017 and one additional holder) and provided for
the satisfaction of notes payable and accrued interest totaling $1,099,094 (a $206,373 increase from the $892,721 amount per the Settlement Agreement
and Release dated March 28, 2017) through the Company’s agreement to irrevocably reserve a total of 613,000,000 shares of its common stock (a
130,073,171 share increase from the 482,926,829 shares per the Settlement Agreement and Release dated March 28, 2017) and deliver such shares in
separate tranches to the Escrow Agent upon receipt of a conversion notice delivered by the Escrow Agent to the Company.
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In the quarterly period ended June 30, 2017, the Company issued an aggregate of 71,194,147 shares of its common stock to the Escrow Agent pursuant to
the Amended Settlement Agreement. In the quarterly period ended September 30, 2017, the Company issued an aggregate of 63,333,333 shares of its
common stock to the Escrow Agent pursuant to the Amended Settlement Agreement. At December 31, 2017, the remaining number of shares of common
stock to be issued to the Escrow Agent is 478,472,520 shares.
 
On June 29, 2017, the Company issued 10,018,893 shares of its common stock in settlement of convertible notes payable and accrued interest payable
totaling $50,094.
 
On July 17, 2017 and July 25, 2017, the Company issued a total of 15,089,720 shares of its common stock in settlement of convertible notes payable and
accrued interest payable totaling $75,449.
 
On August 17, 2017, the Company issued 4,000,000 shares of its common stock to a marketing entity for services rendered. The shares were valued at
$0.005 per share and $20,000 was expensed and included in marketing and advertising expenses in the three months ended September 30, 2017.
 
From September 2017 to November 2017, pursuant to a Securities Purchase Agreement dated October 27, 2017 (the “SPA”), the Company issued a total
of 120,000,000 shares of its common stock and 120,000,000 warrants to three investors for a total of $300,000 cash. The Warrants are exercisable into
ICNB common stock at a price of $0.01 per share, expire five years from date of issuance, and contain “down round” price protection (see Note 9).
 
Warrants
 
In connection with the Company’s issuance of a total of $135,019 convertible notes payable in the three months ended June 30, 2017, the Company issued
a total of 13,500,000 Common Stock Purchase Warrants (the ‘Warrants”) to the respective lenders. The Warrants are exercisable into ICNB common
stock at a price of $0.01 per share and expire at dates ranging from June 22, 2022 to June 30, 2022.
 
As discussed in Note 9 and in the second preceding paragraph of this Note 10, the Company issued a total of 120,000,000 warrants to three investors from
September 2017 to November 2017. These 120,000,000 Warrants are exercisable into ICNB common stock at a price of $0.01 per share and expire five
years from date of issuance.
 
11. INCOME TAXES
 
No income taxes were recorded in the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 since the Company had taxable losses in these periods.
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The provision for (benefit from) income taxes differs from the amount computed by applying the statutory United States federal income tax rate
of 35% for the periods presented to income (loss) before income taxes. The sources of the difference are as follows:
 

  

Year ended
December

31,
2017   

Year ended
December

31,
2016  

       
Expected tax at 35%  $ 1,485,009  $ (2,110,277)
         
Nondeductible expense (nontaxable income) from derivative liability   (2,600,493)   1,875,176 
         
Nontaxable loss on conversion of debt   1,112,304   70,757 
         
Remeasurement of deferred income tax assets from 35% to 21% (a)   2,184,740   - 
         
Increase (decrease) in valuation allowance   (2,181,560)   (164,344)
         
Income tax provision  $ -  $ - 

 
Significant components of the Company's deferred income tax assets are as follows:
 

  

December
31,

2017   

December
31,

2016  
       
Net operating loss carryforward  $ 3,277,110  $ 5,458,670 
         
Less valuation allowance   (3,277,110)   (5,458,670)
         
Deferred income tax assets - net  $ -  $ - 

 
(a) As a result of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (Tax Legislation) enacted on December 22, 2017, the United Sates corporate income tax rate
is 21% effective January 1, 2018. Accordingly, we have reduced our deferred income tax asset relating to our net operating loss carryforward (and the
valuation allowance thereon) by $2,184,740 from $5,461,850 to $3,277,110 as of December 31, 2017.
 
Based on management’s present assessment, the Company has not yet determined that a deferred tax asset attributable to the future utilization of the net
operating loss carryforward as of December 31, 2017 will be realized. Accordingly, the Company has maintained a 100% valuation allowance against the
deferred tax asset in the financial statements at December 31, 2017. The Company will continue to review this valuation allowance and make adjustments
as appropriate.
 
Current United States income tax laws limit the amount of loss available to be offset against future taxable income when a substantial change in
ownership occurs. Therefore, the amount available to offset future taxable income may be limited.
 
All tax years remain subject to examination by major taxing jurisdictions.
 
12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
 
a. Iconic Guarantees
 
On May 26, 2015, BiVi LLC (“BiVi”) entered into a License Agreement with Neighborhood Licensing, LLC (the “BiVi Licensor”), an entity owned by
Chazz Palminteri (“Palminteri”), to use Palminteri’s endorsement, signature and other intellectual property owned by the BiVi Licensor. Iconic has agreed
to guarantee and act as surety for BiVi’s obligations under certain sections of the License Agreement and to indemnify the BiVi Licensor and Palminteri
against third party claims.
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On November 12, 2015, Bellissima Spirits LLC (“Bellissima”) entered into a License Agreement with Christie Brinkley, Inc. (the “Bellissima Licensor”),
an entity owned by Christie Brinkley (“Brinkley”), to use Brinkley’s endorsement, signature, and other intellectual property owned by the Bellissima
Licensor. Iconic has agreed to guarantee and act as surety for Bellissima’s obligations under certain sections of the License Agreement and to indemnify
the Bellissima Licensor and Brinkley against third party claims. Also, Brinkley was granted a 24 month option to purchase 1% of the outstanding shares of
Iconic common stock on a fully diluted basis (as of the date of Brinkley’s exercise of the option) at an exercise price of $0.001 per share.
 
b. Royalty Obligations of BiVi and Bellissima
 
Pursuant to the License Agreement with the Bivi Licensor (see Note 12a. above), BiVi is obligated to pay the BiVi Licensor a Royalty Fee equal to 5% of
monthly gross sales of BiVi Brand products payable monthly subject to an annual Minimum Royalty Fee of $100,000 in year 1, $150,000 in year 2,
$165,000 in year 3, $181,500 in year 4, $199,650 in year 5, and $219,615 in year 6 and each subsequent year.
 
Pursuant to the License Agreement and Amendment No. 1 to the License Agreement effective June 30, 2017 with the Bellissima Licensor (see Note 12a.
above), Bellissima is obligated to pay the Bellissima Licensor a Royalty Fee equal to 10% of monthly gross sales (12.5% for sales in excess of defined
Case Break Points) of Bellissima Brand products payable monthly. The Bellissima Licensor has the right to terminate the endorsement if Bellissima fails
to sell 10,000 cases of Bellissima Brand products in year 1, 15,000 cases in year 2, or 20,000 cases in year 3 and each subsequent year.
 
c. Distribution Agreement
 
On May 1, 2015, BiVi entered into a Distribution Agreement with United Spirits, Inc. (“United”) for United to distribute and wholesale BiVi’s product
and to act as the licensed importer and wholesaler. The Distribution Agreement provides United the exclusive right for a term of ten years to sell BiVi’s
product for an agreed distribution fee equal to $1.00 per case of product sold. United is owned and managed by Richard DeCicco, the controlling
shareholder, President, CEO, and Director of Iconic.
 
In November 2015, Bellissima and United agreed to have United distribute and wholesale Bellissima’s Products under the same terms contained in the
Distribution Agreement with BiVi described in the preceding paragraph.
 
d. Compensation Arrangements
 
The Company uses the services of its chief executive officer Richard DeCicco and its assistant secretary Roseann Faltings under informal compensation
arrangements (without any employment agreements).
 
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company accrued compensation of $250,000 per year ($150,000 for DeCicco; $100,000 for
Faltings) for their services rendered. In 2016, the compensation was allocated 50% to Iconic ($125,000), 30% to Bellissima ($75,000), and 20% to BiVi
($50,000). In 2017, the compensation was allocated 50% to Iconic ($125,000), 40% to Bellissima ($100,000), and 10% to BiVi ($25,000). The $500,000
liability at December 31, 2017 and the $250,000 liability at December 31, 2016 are included in “Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses” on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016.
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e. Registration Rights Agreement
 
As part of the SPA financing discussed in Note 10, the Company and the three investors also executed a Registration Rights Agreement (the “RRA”).
Among other things, the RRA provides for the Company to file a Registration Statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) to
register for resale the shares of common stock and the shares underlying the Warrants issued to the three investors pursuant to the SPA. The Company is
to use its best efforts to cause the Registration Statement to be declared effective as promptly as possible after the filing thereof but no later than the
applicable Effectiveness Date (defined as 150 calendar days following the earlier of (i) the Filing Date <20th calendar day following completion of the
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2016> and (ii) date on which the Initial Registration
Statement is filed with the SEC).
 
If the Registration Statement is not declared effective by the Effectiveness Date (or certain other events occur), the Company will be obligated to pay the
investors liquidated damages equal to 1% of the Subscription Amounts at the Event Date and 1% on each monthly anniversary of the Event Date until the
Event is cured subject to maximum liquidated damages equal to 6% of the Subscription Amounts.
 
f. Lease Agreement
 
On March 27, 2018, United Spirits, Inc. executed a lease extension for the Company’s office and warehouse space in North Amityville New York. The
extension has a term of three years from February 1, 2018 to January 31, 2021 and provides for monthly rent of $4,478.
 
13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
 
On January 2, 2018, the Company issued 25,861,627 shares of its common stock to the Escrow Agent pursuant to the Amended Settlement Agreement
(see Note 10).
 
On January 19, 2018, the Company issued 54,031,807 shares of its common stock to the Escrow Agent pursuant to the Amended Settlement Agreement.
 
On March 14, 2018, the Company issued 31,666,667 shares of its common stock to the Escrow Agent pursuant to the Amended Settlement Agreement.
 
At March 31, 2018, the remaining number of shares of common stock to be issued to the Escrow Agent is 446,805,853 shares.
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On May 21, 2018, the Company entered into a Share Exchange Agreement (the “Exchange Agreement”) with the three investors that purchased
120,000,000 shares of ICNB common stock and 120,000,000 Warrants from September 2017 to November 2017 for a total of $300,000.(see Note 10
paragraph 13 above). Pursuant to the Exchange Agreement, the investors exchanged the 120,000,000 shares of INCB common stock for 1,200,000 shares
of Series E Convertible Preferred Stock. Pursuant to an amended SPA also entered into on May 21, 2018, the investors purchased an additional 1,200,000
shares of Series E Convertible Preferred Stock and an additional 120,000,000 Warrants for a total of $300,000 cash. Each share of Series E Convertible
Stock is convertible into 100 shares of ICNB common stock, is entitled to 100 votes on all matters to come before the common shareholders or
shareholders generally, is entitled to dividends on an as-converted-to-common stock basis, and is entitled upon liquidation to a distribution of $0.25 prior
to any payment to common shareholders or subsequent series of preferred stock. The additional 120,000,000 Warrants are exercisable into ICNB common
stock at a price of $0.01 per share and have a term of 5 years. On October 27, 2018, the exercise price of the additional 120,000,000 Warrants will be
reduced to the lower of (i) the exercise price, as adjusted per the terms of the Warrants, and (ii) 50% of the average of the four lowest closing bid prices
for our common stock on the primary trading market during the 4 trading days immediately prior to such date.
 
Effective May 21, 2018, the Company issued 7,500,000 warrants to a law firm for services rendered. The warrants are exercisable into ICNB common
stock at a price of $0.01 per share and expire five years from date of issuance. The fair value of the warrants will be expensed in the three months ended
June 30, 2018.
 
14- RESTATEMENT OF PREVIOUSLY ISSUED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 
The Company has restated the consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2017 and for the year then ended (which were previously included in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements filed with OTC Markets on May 7, 2018) in order to correct an error relating to the nonaccrual of a
$261,766 invoice from the Company’s supplier of Bellissima sparkling wines for inventory delivered directly to our customer in December 2017.
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The effect of the restatement adjustments on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2017 follows:
 

  

As
Previously
Reported   

Restatement
Adjustments   As Restated  

Assets          
Current assets:          

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 1,237,432  $ -  $ 1,237,432 
Accounts receivable   311,074   -   311,074 
Inventory   59,847   -   59,847 
Prepaid expenses   5,000   -   5,000 

             
Total current assets   1,613,353   -   1,613,353 

             
Total assets  $ 1,613,353  $ -  $ 1,613,353 
             
Liabilities and Stockholders' Deficiency             
Current liabilities:             

Current portion of debt  $ 495,404  $ -   495,404 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses   834,230   261,766   1,095,996 
Loans payable to officer and affiliated entity -noninterest bearing and due on demand   60,374   -   60,374 
Accrued interest payable   38,734   -   38,734 
Derivative liability on convertible debt   458,072   -   458,072 

             
Total current liabilities   1,886,814   261,766   2,148,580 
             
Derivative liability on warrants   696,000   -   696,000 
Total liabilities   2,582,814   261,766   2,844,580 
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)             
             
Stockholders' deficiency:             
Preferred stock, $.001 par value   2   -   2 
Common stock, $.001 par value   1,104,392   -   1,104,392 
Common stock to be issued to Escrow Agent, $.001 par value   478,473   -   478,473 
Additional paid-in capital   14,183,672   -   14,183,672 
Accumulated deficit   (16,942,328)   (133,502)   (17,075,830)
Total Iconic Brands, Inc. stockholders’ equity   (1,175,789)   -   (1,309,291)
             
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries and variable interest entity   206,328   (128,264)   (78,064)
Total stockholders’ equity (deficiency)   (969,461)   (261,766)   (1,231,227)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficiency  $ 1,613,353  $ -  $ 1,613,353 
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The effect of the restatement adjustments on the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2017 follows:
 

  
As Previously

Reported   
Restatement
Adjustments   As Restated  

Sales  $ 3,219,881  $ -  $ 3,219,881 
Cost of Sales   1,524,860   261,766   1,786,626 

Gross profit   1,695,021   (261,766)   1,433,254 
             
Operating expenses:             

Officers compensation   250,000   -   250,000 
Professional and consulting fees   87,671   -   87,671 
Royalties   321,741   -   321,741 
Marketing and advertising   84,013   -   84,013 
Occupancy costs   107,118   -   107,118 
Travel and entertainment   141,821   -   141,821 
Other   272,155   -   272,155 

             
Total operating expenses   1,264,519   -   1,264,519 

             
Income (loss) from operations   430,502   (261,766)   168,736 
             
Other income (expense):             

Gain from settlement of debt   -   -   - 
Income (expense) from derivative liability   7,429,979   -   7,429,979 
Loss on conversion of debt   (3,178,010)   -   (3,178,010)
Interest expense   (70,649)   -   (70,649)
Amortization of debt discounts   (107,173)   -   (107,173)
Total other income (expense) - net   4,074,147   -   4,074,147 

Net income (loss)   4,504,649   (261,766)   4,242,883 
             
Net loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries and variable interest
entity   (404,770)   128,265   (276,505)
             
Net income (loss) attributable to Iconic Brands, Inc.  $ 4,099,879  $ (133,501)  $ 3,966,378 
             
Net income (loss) per common share:             
             

Basic   0.00   -   0.00 
Diluted   0.00   -   0.00 

             
Weighted average common shares outstanding and to be issued to Escrow Agent:             
             

Basic   1,311,739,126   -   1,311,739,126 
Diluted   3,197,937,251   -   3,197,937,251 
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The effect of the restatement adjustments on the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2017 follows:
 
  As Previously   Restatement     

  Reported   Adjustments   As Restated  
Operating Activities:          
Net income (loss) attributable to Iconic Brands, Inc.  $ 4,099,879  $ (133,501)  $ 3,966,378 

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:             
             

Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries and variable interest
entity   404,770   (128,265)   276,505 
Expense (income) from derivative liability   (7,429,981)   -   (7,429,981)
Stock-based marketing expense   20,000   -   20,000 
Amortization of debt discounts   107,173   -   107,173 
Loss on conversion   3,178,010   -   3,178,010 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:       -     
Accounts receivable   (134,709)   -   (134,709)
Inventory   (21,084)   -   (21,084)
Prepaid expenses   (5,000)   -   (5,000)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses   435,105   261,766   696,871 
Accrued interest payable   19,867   -   19,867 

Net cash used in operating activities   674,030   -   674,030 
             
Financing Activities:             

Proceeds from issuance of debt-net   341,837   -   341,837 
Proceeds from sale of common stock and warrants   300,000   -   300,000 
Loans payable to officer and affiliated entity   (80,651)   -   (80,651)

Net cash provided by financing activities   561,186   -   561,186 
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   1,235,216       1,235,216 
             
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period   2,216   -   2,216 
             
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period  $ 1,237,432  $ -  $ 1,237,432 
 
 

F-46



 
PART II – INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

 
OTHER EXPENSES OF ISSUANCE AND DISTRIBUTION

 
We will pay all expenses in connection with the registration and sale of the common stock by the selling shareholder, who is an underwriter in

connection with their offering of shares. The estimated expenses of issuance and distribution are set forth below:
 

Registration Fees  Approximately $ 100  
Transfer Agent Fees  Approximately  2,000 
Costs of Printing and Engraving  Approximately  1,000  
Legal Fees  Approximately  30,000  
Accounting and Audit Fees  Approximately  5,000  

Total  $ 38,100  
 

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
 

Section 4 of our Articles of Incorporation provides that, to the fullest extent permitted by Section 78 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, as the same
may be amended and supplemented, the directors of the corporation are not personally liable to us or our stockholders for damages for breach of fiduciary
duty as a director or officer, but may be personally liable for (i) acts or omissions which involve intentional misconduct, fraud or a knowing violation of
law; or (ii) the payment of distributions in violation of NRS 78.300, as amended. Paragraph 1 of Section 78.037 states that the articles of incorporation of a
Nevada corporation may contain any provision, not contrary to the laws of the State of Nevada, for the management of the business and for the conduct of
the affairs of the corporation.

 
Section 5 of our Articles of Incorporation provides that, the corporation shall, to the fullest extent permitted by Section 78.751 of the Nevada

Revised Statutes, as the same may be amended and supplemented, indemnify any person made or threatened to be made a party to any threatened,
pending or completed action or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (whether or not by or in the right of the Company) by
reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director of the Company or is or was serving as a director, officer, employee or agent of another entity at the
request of the Company or any predecessor of the Company against judgments, fines, penalties, excise taxes, amounts paid in settlement and costs,
charges and expenses (including attorneys’ fees and disbursements) that he or she incurs in connection with such action or proceeding. Section 78.751
states that the articles of incorporation of a Nevada corporation may provide that the expenses of officers and directors incurred in defending a civil or
criminal action, suit or proceeding must be paid by the corporation as they are incurred and in advance of the final disposition. It further states that
indemnification does not exclude any other rights that an officer or director may have pursuant to the articles, bylaws, shareholders agreement or
otherwise, and that it continues for a person who has ceased to be a director, officer, or employee of the Company.

 
Article IX of our Bylaws further addresses indemnification, including procedures for indemnification claims. Indemnification applies to any

person that is made a party to, or threatened to be made a party to, any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative,
by reason of the fact that he or she was an officer or director of the Company.
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The indemnification provisions in our Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws may be sufficiently broad to permit indemnification of
our directors and officers for liabilities arising under the Securities Act.
 

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES
 

The following is a list of unregistered sales of our equity securities from January 1, 2015 through the date hereof.
 
Share Exchange Agreement and Subsequent Unwind of Merger
 

On September 10, 2014, we entered into a Share Exchange Agreement (the “Agreement”) and merger with Medical Marijuana Business
Academy, LLC, a company organized pursuant to the laws of the State of Colorado (“MMBA”), and MJ Business Academy, Inc., a Nevada corporation
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“Merger Sub”), pursuant to which, on September 10, 2014, MMBA merged with and into Merger Sub,
with Merger Sub continuing as the surviving entity that succeeded to all of the assets, liabilities and operations of MMBA and whereby MMBA
effectively became our wholly-owned operating subsidiary (the “Merger”).
 

At the effective time of the Merger, the outstanding membership interest units of MMBA, held by Phillip Stark and Charles Houghton, were
exchanged for a total of 240,000 newly issued shares of our common stock as consideration for the Merger, and as such, Mr. Stark and Mr. Houghton, as
the sole members of MMBA, held a controlling voting interest in our outstanding common stock. At Closing, our former CEO, Richard DeCicco, also
transferred his one (1) Share of Series A Preferred Stock to Mr. Stark and Mr. Houghton, giving them control of our preferred stock, as well.

 
The Agreement contained customary terms and conditions for agreements of this type, including completion of due diligence by the parties and

approval of the Merger by MMBA members. At the effective time of the Merger, MMBA’s current officers and directors were appointed as our officers
and directors. The Merger became effective on September 10, 2014.
 

A copy of the Agreement was attached to our Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 21, 2015 as Exhibit 2.1. The description of the Agreement
herein is qualified by the terms of the full text of the agreement attached thereto and the terms thereof are incorporated herein by reference.

 
Effective on April 9, 2015, the Company, MMBA and Merger Sub entered into an Unwind Agreement (the “Unwind Agreement”) whereby Mr.

Houghton and Mr. Stark agreed to transfer their 240,000 shares of our common stock, and to return the One (1) Share of Series A Preferred Stock to Mr.
DeCicco, in exchange for the unwinding of the merger, and a return to Mr. Houghton and Mr. Stark of all of the membership interest units in MMBA.

 
At the Closing of the Unwind Agreement on April 23, 2015, Richard DeCicco was appointed President and Director of the Company and

Merger Sub. Following Mr. DeCicco’s appointment, Mr. Stark and Mr. Houghton resigned all officer and director positions in both the Company and
Merger Sub, and Mr. DeCicco remains as sole officer and director of Iconic Brands, Inc. and MJ Business Academy, Inc.

 
As of the Closing of the Unwind Agreement, neither the Company, nor Merger Sub holds any right, title or interest in or to any of the assets of

Medical Marijuana Business Academy, LLC, and MMBA is a private entity once again owed solely by its Managing Members, Phillip Stark and Charles
Houghton.
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A copy of the Unwind Agreement was attached to our Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 21, 2015 as Exhibit 10.2. The description of the
Agreement herein is qualified by the terms of the full text of the agreement attached thereto and the terms thereof are incorporated herein by reference.
 
Acquisition of BiVi

 
On May 15, 2015, we entered into a Securities Exchange Agreement, by and among the members of BiVi under which we were to acquire a 51%

majority interest in BiVi in exchange for the issuance (a) 4,000 shares of restricted common stock and (b) 1,000 shares of newly created Series C
Convertible Preferred Stock.

 
Upon satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the Securities Exchange Agreement, the Closing was held on May 31, 2015. At Closing, BiVi

became a majority owned subsidiary of the Company. Under the terms of the Securities Exchange Agreement, we shall provide working capital, from
time to time, of up to $750,000.00 pursuant to a Working Capital Facility, which shall be repaid by BiVi from working capital generated from BiVi’s
operations. Provided that, in the event that we fail to provide working capital of at least $40,000.00 per month, and such failure shall continue for a period
of sixty (60) calendar days thereafter then BiVi may, at its option, by written notice to us, declare a default. In the event of such default, we shall
surrender the Majority Interest back to BiVi for retirement and the Holders of the Series C Preferred Stock shall surrender all outstanding shares back to
Iconic for retirement (“BiVi Unwind”). In the event of the BiVi Unwind, BiVi shall issue a 5% promissory note to us with a principal amount equal to the
then outstanding unpaid balance of the Working Capital Facility advanced to BiVi prior to the Unwind, payable upon the acquisition of the majority of the
outstanding stock or assets of BiVi, including but not limited to the BiVi Brand of products, by a third party, but in no event later than 36 months from
issuance.

 
Prior to the Closing, BiVi was beneficially owned and controlled by Richard DeCicco, our majority shareholder, President, CEO and Director.
 
A copy of the Securities Exchange Agreement was attached to our Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 21, 2015 as Exhibit 4.1. The description

of the Agreement herein is qualified by the terms of the full text of the agreement attached thereto and the terms thereof are incorporated herein by
reference.
 
Acquisition of Bellissima Spirits LLC

 
On December 13, 2016, we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with Bellissima and Bellissima’s members under which we acquired a

51% Majority Interest in Bellissima in exchange for the issuance of a total of 10 shares of newly designated Iconic Series D Convertible Preferred Stock.
 
Convertible Notes

 
For the year ended December 31, 2015, we issued an aggregate of 166,942 shares of our common stock in settlement of convertible notes

payable and accrued interest payable totaling $138,280.
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For the year ended December 31, 2016, we issued an aggregate of 2,757,163 shares of our common stock in settlement of convertible notes
payable and accrued interest payable totaling $61,767.
 

In February 2017, we issued an aggregate of 23,861 shares of our common stock in settlement of convertible notes payable totaling $22,773.
 

On March 28, 2017, we executed a Settlement Agreement and Release (the “Settlement Agreement”) with 4 holders of convertible notes
payable. Notes payable and accrued interest totaling $892,721 were satisfied through our agreement to irrevocably reserve a total of 1,931,708 shares of
our common stock and to deliver such shares in separate tranches to the Escrow Agent upon receipt of a conversion notice delivered by the Escrow Agent
to us.
 

On May 5, 2017, we executed an Amended Settlement Agreement and Release (the “Amended Settlement Agreement”) replacing the
Settlement Agreement. The Amended Settlement Agreement is with five (5) holders of convertible notes payable (the 4 holders who were parties to the
Settlement Agreement and Release dated March 28, 2017 and one additional holder) and provided for the satisfaction of notes payable and accrued
interest totaling $1,099,094 (a $206,373 increase from the $892,721 amount per the Settlement Agreement and Release dated March 28, 2017) through
our agreement to irrevocably reserve a total of 2,452,000 shares of our common stock (a 520,293 share increase from the 1,931,708 shares per the
Settlement Agreement and Release dated March 28, 2017) and deliver such shares in separate tranches to the Escrow Agent upon receipt of a conversion
notice delivered by the Escrow Agent to us.
 

In the quarterly period ended June 30, 2017, we issued an aggregate of 284,777 shares of our common stock to the Escrow Agent pursuant to the
Amended Settlement Agreement. In the quarterly period ended September 30, 2017, we issued an aggregate of 253,334 shares of our common stock to
the Escrow Agent pursuant to the Amended Settlement Agreement. At December 31, 2017, the remaining number of shares of common stock to be issued
to the Escrow Agent is 1,913,891 shares.
 

On June 29, 2017, we issued 40,076 shares of our common stock in settlement of convertible notes payable and accrued interest payable totaling
$50,094.
 

On July 17, 2017 and July 25, 2017, we issued a total of 60,359 shares of our common stock in settlement of convertible notes payable and
accrued interest payable totaling $75,449.

 
Other Issuances

 
On August 17, 2017, we issued 16,000 shares of our common stock to a marketing entity for services rendered. The shares were valued at $1.25

per share and $20,000 was expensed and included in marketing and advertising expenses in the three months ended September 30, 2017.
 

From September 2017 to November 2017, pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, we issued a total of 480,000 Common Shares and 480,000
Warrants to the Selling Shareholders for a total of $300,000 cash. The Warrants are exercisable into our common stock at a price of $2.50 per share,
expire five years from date of issuance, and contain “down round” price protection.

 
We have also issued the Series E Shares to the Selling Shareholders. Further details are found above under the heading “Private Placement of

Securities” on page 11 and in Note 9 of the financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, which section and note are
incorporated herein by reference.
 

On July 12, 2018, we issued a total of 120,000 shares of our common stock to Halo Group, Inc., for marketing services rendered. These shares
were granted pursuant to a Settlement and Release Agreement that also granted Halo Group, Inc. registration rights with respect to these shares.

 
Warrants
 

In connection with our issuance of a total of $135,019 convertible notes payable in the three months ended June 30, 2017, we issued a total of
54,000 Common Stock Purchase Warrants to the respective lenders. These warrants are exercisable into our common stock at a price of $2.50 per share
and expire at dates ranging from June 22, 2022 to June 30, 2022.
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As discussed in the second preceding paragraph, we issued a total of 480,000 warrants to three investors from September 2017 to November
2017. These warrants are exercisable into our common stock at a price of $2.50 per share and expire five years from date of issuance.
 

We issued a total of 30,000 warrants to Clyde Snow & Sessions, PC on December 2, 2017 for legal services rendered. These warrants are
exercisable into our common stock at a price of $2.50 per share and expire five years from date of issuance.
 

We issued a total of 100,000 warrants to Paul Rachmuth, Esq. on August 26, 2018 for legal services rendered. These warrants are exercisable
into our common stock at a price of $2.50 per share and expire five years from date of issuance.
  
Sale of Series E Preferred Stock
 

On September 27, 2018, we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with nine (9) accredited investors for the sale of an aggregate of
4,650,000 shares of our Series E Convertible Preferred Stock, plus warrants to acquire 1,860,000 shares of our common stock, for gross proceeds of
$1,162,500.

 
Funding for the financing will take place in three equal tranches. The first tranche is being funded at closing and the second and third tranches

will be funded when certain closing conditions are satisfied as described in the Securities Purchase Agreement which is attached as exhibit hereto. The
securities are sold in units, with each unit consisting of one share of Series E Convertible Preferred Stock and a warrant to purchase 0.4 of one share of
common stock and was sold at $0.25 per unit. Each share of preferred stock is convertible into 0.4 of one share of common stock. The warrants are
exercisable for a period of five years at an exercise price of $1.25 per share . The conversion of preferred stock and exercise of warrants are each subject
to a beneficial ownership limitation. We have agreed to not incur any indebtedness or issue any variable priced securities for the term of the warrants. We
have also agreed to file a resale registration statement for the resale of the shares of common stock underlying the preferred stock and warrants pursuant
to a Registration Rights Agreement. The net proceeds of the offering are expected to be used for working capital purposes and to further execute on our
existing business, while also actively pursuing several additional “iconic” brands. Each of our officers and directors executed a Lock-Up Agreement
whereby they agreed not to sell, transfer, pledge, or otherwise dispose of any of our securities, except for a 10b5-1 plan at a price of $2.50 or higher after
the three month anniversary of the effectiveness of the resale registration statement.

 
The closing of the first tranche took place on October 4, 2018.
 

Elimination of Convertible Notes; Securities Exchange Agreements
 
As a condition to the initial closing of the financing transaction described above, we entered into Securities Exchange Agreements with holders of

convertible notes totaling $519,499 to exchange their convertible notes for an aggregate of 2,077,994 shares of our Series E Convertible Preferred Stock,
plus warrants to acquire approximately 831,198 shares with an exercise price of $1.25 per share, all of which are subject to a lock-up for a period of one
(1) year. Holders of convertible notes totaling $32,912 exchanged their notes for an aggregate of approximately 122,511 shares of our common stock, and
holders of convertible notes totaling $90,296 were paid off with cash. After the exchanges, we have no convertible notes outstanding.

 
The issuance of the securities described above were exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933 pursuant to Section

4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933. All investors were accredited and sophisticated investors, familiar with our operations, and there was no solicitation.
 
 

II-5



 
 

EXHIBITS
 
(a) The following exhibits are filed as part of this registration statement.
  
Exhibit No. Description of Exhibits
   
3.1 (1)  Articles of Incorporation of Iconic Brands, Inc.

 
3.2 ( 1 ) Bylaws of Iconic Brands, Inc., as amended

 
3.3 (2) Certificate of Designation of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock

 
3.4 (2)  Certificate of Designation of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock

 
3.5 (2) Certificate of Designation of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock

 
3.6 (2) Certificate of Designation of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock

 
3.7 (2) Certificate of Designation of Series E Convertible Preferred Stock

 
5.1 Legal Opinion of Clyde Snow & Sessions, PC

 
10.1  Securities Exchange Agreement by and between the Company and BiVi LLC, dated May 15, 2015
   
10.2  Amendment No. 1 to Securities Exchange Agreement by and between the Company and BiVi LLC, dated October 26, 2018
   
10.3  Extension of Lease Agreement by and between the Company and United Spirits, Inc., dated March 27, 2018

 
10.4  Securities Purchase Agreement by and among the Company, The Special Equities Group, LLC, Iroquois Master Fund Ltd. and Gregory

M. Castaldo, dated November 1, 2017
 

10.5  Registration Rights Agreement by and among the Company, The Special Equities Group, LLC, Iroquois Master Fund Ltd. and Gregory
M. Castaldo, dated November 1, 2017
 

10.6  Share Exchange Agreement by and among the Company, The Special Equities Group, LLC, Iroquois Master Fund Ltd., Iroquois Capital
Investment Group LLC and Gregory M. Castaldo, dated May 21, 2018

 
10.7  Amendment No. 1 to Securities Purchase Agreement by and among the Company, The Special Equities Group, LLC, Iroquois Master

Fund Ltd., Iroquois Capital Investment Group LLC and Gregory M. Castaldo, dated May 21, 2018
 

10.8  Amendment No. 1 to Registration Rights Agreement by and among the Company, The Special Equities Group, LLC, Iroquois Master
Fund Ltd., Iroquois Capital Investment Group LLC and Gregory M. Castaldo, dated May 21, 2018
 

10.9  Employment Agreement by and between the Company and Richard DeCicco, dated April 1, 2018

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1350073/000100201407001049/exh31.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1350073/000100201407001049/exh31.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1350073/000100201407001049/exh32.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1350073/000100201407001049/exh32.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1350073/000147793218004551/icnb_ex33.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1350073/000147793218004551/icnb_ex33.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1350073/000147793218004551/icnb_ex34.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1350073/000147793218004551/icnb_ex34.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1350073/000147793218004551/icnb_ex35.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1350073/000147793218004551/icnb_ex35.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1350073/000147793218004551/icnb_ex36.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1350073/000147793218004551/icnb_ex36.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1350073/000147793218004551/icnb_ex37.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1350073/000147793218004551/icnb_ex37.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1350073/000147793218004551/icnb_ex51.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1350073/000147793218004551/icnb_ex51.htm


 
10.1 0  Employment Agreement by and between the Company and Roseann Faltings, dated April 1, 2018

 

23.1  Consent of BMKR, LLP
 

23.2(2) Consent of Clyde Snow & Sessions, PC (included in Exhibit 5.1)
 
(1) Incorporated by reference to Form SB-2 filed on November 30, 2007.
(2) Previously filed.
  
(b) Financial Statement Schedules.
 

No financial statement schedules have been provided because the information is not required or is shown either in the financial statements or the
notes thereto.
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Undertakings
 
A. Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to our directors, officers and controlling persons

pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, we have been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such
indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for
indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by us of expenses incurred or paid by our director, officer or controlling person in
the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities
being registered, we will, unless in the opinion of our counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate
jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and will be governed
by the final adjudication of such issue.

  
B. The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:
 
 (1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration statement:
 



 (a) To include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;

   
 (b) To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most recent post-

effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in the
registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value
of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated
maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) (Section
230.424(b) of Regulation S-K) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than a 20% change in the
maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the “Calculation of Registration Fee” table in the effective registration statement; and

   
 (c) To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the registration statement or any

material change to such information in the registration statement.
 
 (2) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be

a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of the securities at that time shall be deemed to be the
initial bona fide offering thereof.

   
 (3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the

termination of the offering.
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 (4) That, for the purpose of determining liability under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser:
 
 (i) If the registrant is relying on Rule 430B (§230.430B of this chapter):
 
 (a) Each prospectus filed by the registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) (§230.424(b)(3) of this chapter) shall be deemed to be part of

the registration statement as of the date the filed prospectus was deemed part of and included in the registration statement; and
   
 (b) Each prospectus required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2), (b)(5), or (b)(7) (§230.424(b)(2), (b)(5), or (b)(7) of this chapter)

as part of a registration statement in reliance on Rule 430B relating to an offering made pursuant to Rule 415(a)(1)(i), (vii), or (x)
(§230.415(a)(1)(i), (vii), or (x) of this chapter) for the purpose of providing the information required by section 10(a) of the
Securities Act of 1933 shall be deemed to be part of and included in the registration statement as of the earlier of the date such
form of prospectus is first used after effectiveness or the date of the first contract of sale of securities in the offering described in
the prospectus. As provided in Rule 430B, for liability purposes of the issuer and any person that is at that date an underwriter,
such date shall be deemed to be a new effective date of the registration statement relating to the securities in the registration
statement to which that prospectus relates, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona
fide offering thereof. Provided, however, that no statement made in a registration statement or prospectus that is part of the
registration statement or made in a document incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference into the registration statement or
prospectus that is part of the registration statement will, as to a purchaser with a time of contract of sale prior to such effective
date, supersede or modify any statement that was made in the registration statement or prospectus that was part of the registration
statement or made in any such document immediately prior to such effective date; or



 
 (ii) If the registrant is subject to Rule 430C (§230.430C of this chapter), each prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) as part of a

registration statement relating to an offering, other than registration statements relying on Rule 430B or other than prospectuses filed in
reliance on Rule 430A (§230.430A of this chapter), shall be deemed to be part of and included in the registration statement as of the
date it is first used after effectiveness. Provided, however, that no statement made in a registration statement or prospectus that is part of
the registration statement or made in a document incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference into the registration statement or
prospectus that is part of the registration statement will, as to a purchaser with a time of contract of sale prior to such first use, supersede
or modify any statement that was made in the registration statement or prospectus that was part of the registration statement or made in
any such document immediately prior to such date of first use.
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 (5) That, for the purpose of determining liability of the registrant under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser in the initial distribution of the

securities:
 
 (i) The undersigned registrant undertakes that in a primary offering of securities of the undersigned registrant pursuant to this registration

statement, regardless of the underwriting method used to sell the securities to the purchaser, if the securities are offered or sold to such
purchaser by means of any of the following communications, the undersigned registrant will be a seller to the purchaser and will be
considered to offer or sell such securities to such purchaser:

 
 (a) Any preliminary prospectus or prospectus of the undersigned registrant relating to the offering required to be filed pursuant to

Rule 424 (§230.424 of this chapter);



   
 (b) Any free writing prospectus relating to the offering prepared by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant or used or referred to by

the undersigned registrant;
   
 (c) The portion of any other free writing prospectus relating to the offering containing material information about the undersigned

registrant or its securities provided by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant; and
   
 (d) Any other communication that is an offer in the offering made by the undersigned registrant to the purchaser.
 
 (6) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that:
 
 (i) For purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, the information omitted from the form of prospectus filed as

part of this registration statement in reliance upon Rule 430A and contained in a form of prospectus filed by the registrant pursuant to
Rule 424(b) (1) or (4) or 497(h) under the Securities Act shall be deemed to be part of this registration statement as of the time it was
declared effective.

   
 (ii) For the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each post-effective amendment that contains a form of

prospectus shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such
securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
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SIGNATURES
 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the registrant has duly caused this registration statement to be signed on its behalf by
the undersigned, in the City of Amityville, State of New York.
 
 Iconic Brands, Inc.  

   
  /s/ Richard J. DeCicco  
Dated: October 29, 2018 By: Richard J. DeCicco  
 Its: Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and

Principal Accounting Officer  

 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this registration statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities

and on the dates stated.
 
  /s/ Richard J. DeCicco  
Dated: October 29, 2018 Name: Richard J. DeCicco  

Title: Director  
   



  /s/ Roseann Faltings  
Dated: October 29, 2018 Name: Roseann Faltings  
 Title: Director  
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EXHIBIT 5.1
 

 
October 29, 2018

 
Iconic Brands, Inc.
44 Seabro Ave.
Amityville, NY 11701
 

 Re: Iconic Brands, Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-1 for an offering by certain of the Company’s shareholders of up to 960,000
shares of common stock

 
Ladies and Gentlemen:
 

We have acted as counsel to Iconic Brands, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), in connection with the proposed offering by certain of
the Company’s shareholders of 960,000 shares of the Company’s common stock issuable to the selling shareholders upon the conversion of Series E
Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Securities”) pursuant to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (the “Registration Statement”)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Act”).

 
This opinion is being furnished in accordance with the requirements of Item 16 of Form S-1 and Item 601(b)(5)(i) of Regulation S-K.
 
We have reviewed the Company's charter documents and the corporate proceedings taken by the Company in connection with the offer, issuance

and sale of the Securities. Based on such review, we are of the opinion that the Securities have been duly authorized and, when issued and delivered upon
conversion in accordance with the terms of the Series E Convertible Preferred Stock, will be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.

 
We consent to the filing of this opinion letter as Exhibit 5.1 to the Registration Statement and to the reference to this firm under the caption

“Legal Matters” in the prospectus which is part of the Registration Statement. In giving this consent, we do not thereby admit that we are within the
category of persons whose consent is required under Section 7 of the Act, the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission
promulgated thereunder, or Item 509 of Regulation S-K.

 
This opinion letter is rendered as of the date first written above and we disclaim any obligation to advise you of facts, circumstances, events or

developments which hereafter may be brought to our attention and which may alter, affect or modify the opinion expressed herein. Our opinion is
expressly limited to the matters set forth above and we render no opinion, whether by implication or otherwise, as to any other matters relating to the
Company or the Securities.
 
Very truly yours,
 
Clyde Snow & Sessions
 
by /s/ Brian A. Lebrecht  
 
Brian A. Lebrecht
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EXHIBIT 10.2
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1
SECURITIES EXCHANGE AGREEMENT

 
This First Amendment to the Securities Exchange Agreement (this “Amendment”) is entered into on October 26, 2018 by and among Iconic

Brands, Inc., a Nevada corporation (“Iconic”), and BiVi LLC, a Nevada limited liability company (the “Company”). Each of Iconic and the Company
may be referred to herein as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”
 

RECITALS
 

WHEREAS, the Parties are parties to that certain Securities Exchange Agreement dated May 15, 2015 (the “Agreement”);
 
WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend certain terms of the Agreement as set forth in this Amendment.
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby

agree as follows:
 

AGREEMENT
 

1. The definition of “Working Capital Facility” in Section 1.1 of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety.
 
2. Section 4.2 of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety. Any prior default of Iconic pursuant to Section 4.2 is hereby waived by the

Company, and the Company agrees that any remedies and rights it may have had under Section 4.2 are hereby forever forfeited in their entirety.
 
3. Other than as set forth herein, the terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

 
[remainder of page intentionally left blank; signature page to follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Amendment No. 1 to the Securities Exchange Agreement as of the date first
above written.
 
“Iconic”  “Company”  
     
Iconic Brands, Inc.,  BiVi, LLC  
a Nevada corporation  a Nevada limited liability company  
    
 /s/ Richard J. DeCicco   /s/ Richard J. DeCicco  
By: Richard J. DeCicco  By: Richard J. DeCicco  
Its: Chief Executive Officer  Its: Manager  
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EXHIBIT 10.3
 

 
 



EXHIBIT 10.4
 

SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT
 

This Securities Purchase Agreement (this “Agreement”) is dated as of November 1, 2017, between Iconic Brands, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the
“Company”), and each purchaser identified on the signature pages hereto (each, including its successors and assigns, a “Purchaser” and collectively, the
“Purchasers”).

 
WHEREAS, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and pursuant to Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as

amended (the “Securities Act”), and Rule 506(b) promulgated thereunder, the Company desires to issue and sell to each Purchaser, and each Purchaser,
severally and not jointly, desires to purchase from the Company, securities of the Company as more fully described in this Agreement.

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable

consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the Company and each Purchaser agree as follows:
 

ARTICLE I.
DEFINITIONS

 
1.1 Definitions. In addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement, for all purposes of this Agreement, the following terms have the

meanings set forth in this Section 1.1:
 

“Acquiring Person” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.5.
 
“Action” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(j).
 
“Affiliate” means any Person that, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls or is controlled by or is under

common control with a Person, as such terms are used in and construed under Rule 405 under the Securities Act.
 
“Audit” means the examination of the Company’s financial statements for the applicable fiscal year by Company’s accounting firm for

purposes of rendering an opinion on the fairness, consistency and conformity with GAAP of such financial statements and the delivery of an
opinion by the Company’s accounting firm with respect to such financial statements.

 
“Board of Directors” means the board of directors of the Company.
 
“Business Day” means any day except any Saturday, any Sunday, any day which is a federal legal holiday in the United States or any day

on which banking institutions in the State of New York are authorized or required by law or other governmental action to close.
 
“Closings” means the First Closing and the Second Closing, each, a “Closing”.
 
“Closing Date” means the First Closing Date and the Second Closing Date, as applicable.

 
 
 



 

 
 

“Closing Statement” means the Closing Statement in the form on Annex A attached hereto.
 
“Commission” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.
 
“Common Stock” means the common stock of the Company, par value $0.001 per share, and any other class of securities into which such

securities may hereafter be reclassified or changed.
 
“Common Stock Equivalents” means any securities of the Company or the Subsidiaries which would entitle the holder thereof to acquire

at any time Common Stock, including, without limitation, any debt, preferred stock, right, option, warrant or other instrument that is at any time
convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for, or otherwise entitles the holder thereof to receive, Common Stock.

 
“Company Auditor” means BMKR, LLP, with offices located at 1200 Veterans Memorial Highway, Suite 350, Hauppauge, New York

11788, and any successor accounting firm of the Company.
 
“Company Counsel” means Austin Legal Group, APC, with offices located at 3990 Old Town Avenue, Suite A-112, San Diego,

California 92110.
 
“Disclosure Schedules” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1.
 
“EGS” means Ellenoff Grossman & Schole LLP, with offices located at 1345 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York 10105-

0302.
 
“Effective Date” means the earliest of the date that (a) the Registration Statement registering all of the Shares has been declared effective

by the Commission, (b) all of the Shares and Warrant Shares have been sold pursuant to Rule 144 or may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 without the
requirement for the Company to be in compliance with the current public information required under Rule 144 and without volume or manner-of-
sale restrictions, (c) following the one year anniversary of the Closing Date provided that a holder of Shares or Warrant Shares is not an Affiliate of
the Company, or (d) all of the Shares and Warrant Shares may be sold pursuant to an exemption from registration under Section 4(a)(1) of the
Securities Act without volume or manner-of-sale restrictions and Company Counsel has delivered to such holders a standing written unqualified
opinion that resales may then be made by such holders of the Shares and Warrant Shares pursuant to such exemption which opinion shall be in
form and substance reasonably acceptable to such holders.

 
“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.
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“Exempt Issuance” means the issuance of (a) shares of Common Stock or options to employees, officers or directors of the Company
pursuant to any stock or option plan duly adopted for such purpose, by a majority of the non-employee members of the Board of Directors or a
majority of the members of a committee of non-employee directors established for such purpose for services rendered to the Company, (b)
securities upon the exercise or exchange of or conversion of any Securities issued hereunder and/or other securities exercisable or exchangeable for
or convertible into shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding on the date of this Agreement, provided that such securities have not been
amended since the date of this Agreement to increase the number of such securities or to decrease the exercise price, exchange price or conversion
price of such securities (other than in connection with stock splits or combinations) or to extend the term of such securities, (c) securities issued
pursuant to acquisitions or strategic transactions approved by a majority of the disinterested directors of the Company, provided that any such
issuance shall only be to a Person (or to the equityholders of a Person) which is, itself or through its subsidiaries, an operating company or an
owner of an asset in a business synergistic with the business of the Company and shall provide to the Company additional benefits in addition to the
investment of funds, but shall not include a transaction in which the Company is issuing securities primarily for the purpose of raising capital or to
an entity whose primary business is investing in securities, and (d) securities issued upon conversion or exercise of any securities issued in
connection with an issuance pursuant to clause (a) herein.

 
“FCPA” means the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended.
 
“FDA” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(kk).
 
“FDCA” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(kk).
 
“First Closing Date” means the Trading Day on which all of the Transaction Documents have been executed and delivered by the

applicable parties thereto, and all conditions precedent to (i) the Purchasers’ obligations to pay the initial Subscription Amount and (ii) the
Company’s obligations to deliver the Securities purchased at such First Closing, in each case, have been satisfied or waived, but in no event later
than the third Trading Day following the date hereof.

 
“GAAP” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(h).
 
“Indebtedness” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(bb).
 
“Intellectual Property Rights” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(p).
 
“Legend Removal Date” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.1(c).
 
“Liens” means a lien, charge pledge, security interest, encumbrance, right of first refusal, preemptive right or other restriction.
 
“Lock-Up Agreement” means the Lock-Up Agreement, dated as of the date hereof, by and among the Company and the directors and

officers of the Company, in the form of Exhibit D attached hereto.
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“Material Adverse Effect” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 3.1(b).
 
“Material Permits” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(n).
 
“Participation Maximum” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.11(a).
 
“Per Share Purchase Price”, as to each Closing, equals $0.0025, subject to adjustment for reverse and forward stock splits, stock dividends,

stock combinations and other similar transactions of the Common Stock that occur after the date of this Agreement.
 
“Person” means an individual or corporation, partnership, trust, incorporated or unincorporated association, joint venture, limited liability

company, joint stock company, government (or an agency or subdivision thereof) or other entity of any kind.
 
“Pharmaceutical Product” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(jj).
 
“Pre-Notice” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.11(b).
 
“Pro Rata Portion” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.11(e).
 
“Proceeding” means an action, claim, suit, investigation or proceeding (including, without limitation, an informal investigation or partial

proceeding, such as a deposition), whether commenced or threatened.
 
“Public Company Date” means the date on which the Company (or any successor/surviving entity in a reverse merger or other business

combination transaction) becomes subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act.
 
“Public Information Failure” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.2(b).
 
“Public Information Failure Payments” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.2(b).
 
“Purchaser Party” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.8.
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“Registrable Securities” means, as of any date of determination, (a) all Shares then issued and issuable pursuant to this Agreement, (b) all
Warrant Shares then issued and issuable upon exercise of the Warrants (assuming on such date the Warrants are exercised in full without regard to
any exercise limitations therein), (c) any additional shares of Common Stock issued and issuable in connection with any anti-dilution provisions in
the Agreement or the Warrants (without giving effect to any limitations on issuance set forth in the Agreement or any limitations on exercise set
forth in the Warrants) and (d) any securities issued or then issuable upon any stock split, dividend or other distribution, recapitalization or similar
event with respect to the foregoing; provided, however, that any such Registrable Securities shall cease to be Registrable Securities (and the
Company shall not be required to maintain the effectiveness of any, or file another, Registration Statement hereunder with respect thereto) for so
long as (a) a Registration Statement with respect to the sale of such Registrable Securities is declared effective by the Commission under the
Securities Act and such Registrable Securities have been disposed of by the Holder in accordance with such effective Registration Statement, (b)
such Registrable Securities have been previously sold in accordance with Rule 144, or (c) such securities become eligible for resale without volume
or manner-of-sale restrictions and without current public information pursuant to Rule 144 as set forth in a written opinion letter to such effect,
addressed, delivered and acceptable to the Transfer Agent and the affected Holders (assuming that such securities and any securities issuable upon
exercise, conversion or exchange of which, or as a dividend upon which, such securities were issued or are issuable, were at no time held by any
Affiliate of the Company, and all Warrants are exercised by “cashless exercise” as provided in Section 2(c) of each of the Warrants), as reasonably
determined by the Company, upon the advice of counsel to the Company.

 
“Registration Rights Agreement” means the Registration Rights Agreement, dated on or about the date hereof, among the Company and

the Purchasers, in the form of Exhibit A attached hereto.
 
“Registration Statement” means a registration statement meeting the requirements set forth in the Registration Rights Agreement and

covering the resale by the Purchasers of the Shares and the Warrant Shares.
 
“Required Approvals” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(e).
 
“Rule 144” means Rule 144 promulgated by the Commission pursuant to the Securities Act, as such Rule may be amended or interpreted

from time to time, or any similar rule or regulation hereafter adopted by the Commission having substantially the same purpose and effect as such
Rule.

 
“Rule 424” means Rule 424 promulgated by the Commission pursuant to the Securities Act, as such Rule may be amended or interpreted

from time to time, or any similar rule or regulation hereafter adopted by the Commission having substantially the same purpose and effect as such
Rule.

 
“SEC Reports” means all reports, schedules, forms, statements and other documents required to be filed by the Company under the

Securities Act and the Exchange Act, including pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) thereof, including the exhibits thereto and documents
incorporated by reference therein.

 
“Second Closing” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 2.1(b).
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“Second Closing Date” means the date of the Second Closing.
 
“Securities” means the Shares, the Warrants and the Warrant Shares.
 
“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.
 
“Shares” means the shares of Common Stock issued or issuable to each Purchaser pursuant to this Agreement.
 
“Short Sales” means all “short sales” as defined in Rule 200 of Regulation SHO under the Exchange Act (but shall not be deemed to

include locating and/or borrowing shares of Common Stock).
 
“Subscription Amount” means, as to each Purchaser, the aggregate amount to be paid for Shares and Warrants purchased hereunder as

specified below such Purchaser’s name on the signature page of this Agreement and next to the heading “Subscription Amount,” in United States
dollars and in immediately available funds.

 
“Subsequent Closing” means a Closing following the First Closing.
 
“Subsequent Financing” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.11(a).
 
“Subsequent Financing Notice” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.11(b).
 
“Subsidiary” means any subsidiary of the Company as set forth on Schedule 3.1(a) and shall, where applicable, also include any direct or

indirect subsidiary of the Company formed or acquired after the date hereof.
 
“Trading Day” means a day on which the principal Trading Market is open for trading.
 
“Trading Market” means any of the following markets or exchanges on which the Common Stock is listed or quoted for trading on the date

in question: the NYSE American, the Nasdaq Capital Market, the Nasdaq Global Market, the Nasdaq Global Select Market, the New York Stock
Exchange, OTCQB, OTCQX or “Pink Sheets” published by OTC Markets Group, Inc. (or any successors to any of the foregoing).

 
“Transaction Documents” means this Agreement, the Warrants, the Lock-Up Agreement, the Registration Rights Agreement, all exhibits

and schedules thereto and hereto and any other documents or agreements executed in connection with the transactions contemplated hereunder.
 
“Transfer Agent” means Island Stock Transfer, the current transfer agent of the Company, with a mailing address of 15500 Roosevelt

Boulevard, Suite 301, Clearwater, Florida 33760 and a facsimile number of (727) 289-0069, and any successor transfer agent of the Company.
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“Variable Rate Transaction” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.12(b).
 
“VWAP” means, for any date, the price determined by the first of the following clauses that applies: (a) if the Common Stock is then

listed or quoted on a Trading Market, the daily volume weighted average price of the Common Stock for such date (or the nearest preceding date)
on the Trading Market on which the Common Stock is then listed or quoted as reported by Bloomberg L.P. (based on a Trading Day from 9:30
a.m. (New York City time) to 4:02 p.m. (New York City time)), (b) if OTCQB or OTCQX is not a Trading Market, the volume weighted average
price of the Common Stock for such date (or the nearest preceding date) on OTCQB or OTCQX as applicable, (c) if the Common Stock is not then
listed or quoted for trading on OTCQB or OTCQX and if prices for the Common Stock are then reported in the “Pink Sheets” published by OTC
Markets Group, Inc. (or a similar organization or agency succeeding to its functions of reporting prices), the most recent bid price per share of the
Common Stock so reported, or (d) in all other cases, the fair market value of a share of Common Stock as determined by an independent appraiser
selected in good faith by the Purchasers of a majority in interest of the Securities then outstanding and reasonably acceptable to the Company, the
fees and expenses of which shall be paid by the Company.

 
“Warrants” means, collectively, the Common Stock purchase warrants delivered to the Purchasers at the Closing in accordance with

Section 2.2(a) hereof, which Warrants shall be exercisable immediately and have a term of exercise equal to five (5) years, in the form of Exhibit C
attached hereto.

 
“Warrant Shares” means the shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants.

 
ARTICLE II.

PURCHASE AND SALE
 

2.1 Closings.
 

(a) First Closing. On the First Closing Date, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein, substantially concurrent with
the execution and delivery of this Agreement by the parties hereto, the Company agrees to sell, and the Purchasers, severally and not jointly, agree to
purchase, up to an aggregate of $250,000 of Shares and Warrants. Each Purchaser shall deliver to the Company, via wire transfer or a certified check,
immediately available funds equal to such Purchaser’s Subscription Amount as set forth on the signature page hereto executed by such Purchaser, and the
Company shall deliver to each Purchaser its respective Shares and a Warrant, as determined pursuant to Section 2.2(a), and the Company and each
Purchaser shall deliver the other items set forth in Section 2.2 deliverable at the Closing (the “First Closing”). Upon satisfaction of the covenants and
conditions set forth in Sections 2.2 and 2.3, the First Closing shall occur at the offices of EGS or such other location as the parties shall mutually agree. In
connection with one or more Closings, the Company acknowledges and agrees that SEG (as defined in Section 5.2) or another Purchaser hereunder may
deliver all or a portion of its applicable Subscription Amount (and accordingly reduce the applicable Subscription Amount payable to the Company at the
applicable Closing) to the Company Auditor for the payment of fees and expenses in connection with Audit for each of Company’s fiscal years ended
December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2016 as contemplated by clause (i) of Section 4.7 herein.
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(b) Second Closing. On the Second Closing Date, upon the terms and conditions set forth herein, the Company agrees to sell, and the
Purchasers, severally and not jointly, agree to purchase, up to an aggregate of $250,000 of Shares and Warrants which closing shall occur on, or as soon
as reasonably practicable following, and in any event within 5 Trading days of, the date on which on which (i) the Audit for the Company’s fiscal years
ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2016 are completed, (ii) the Common Stock is registered under Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act, (iii) the
Company is current in filing of reports required by the Exchange Act and (iv) the Common Stock is quoted for trading on OTCQB (the “Second
Closing”); provided, however, that, to the extent that a Purchaser determines, in its sole discretion, that such Purchaser (together with such Purchaser’s
Affiliates, and any Person acting as a group together with such purchaser or any of such Purchaser’s Affiliates) would beneficially own in excess of the
Beneficial Ownership Limitation, such Purchaser may elect to reduce the number of Shares purchased so as to not beneficially own in excess of the
Beneficial Ownership Limitation. The “Beneficial Ownership Limitation” shall be 9.99% of the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding
immediately after giving effect to the issuance of Securities on the applicable Closing Date. Each Purchaser shall deliver to the Company, via wire transfer
or a certified check, immediately available funds equal to such Purchaser’s Subscription Amount as set forth on the signature page hereto executed by
such Purchaser, and the Company shall deliver to each Purchaser its respective Shares and a Warrant, as determined pursuant to Section 2.2(a), and the
Company and each Purchaser shall deliver the other items set forth in Section 2.2 deliverable at the Second Closing. Upon satisfaction of the covenants
and conditions set forth in Sections 2.2 and 2.3, the Second Closing shall occur at the offices of EGS or such other location as the parties shall mutually
agree.

 
2.2 Deliveries.

 
(a) On or prior to each Closing Date (except as otherwise indicated), the Company shall deliver or cause to be delivered to each Purchaser

the following:
 

(i) as to the First Closing, this Agreement duly executed by the Company;
 
(ii) as to the First Closing, a legal opinion of Company Counsel, substantially in the form of Exhibit B attached hereto, and as to

each subsequent Closing a bring-down letter reasonably satisfactory to the Purchasers;
 
(iii) as to each Closing, a copy of the irrevocable instructions to the Transfer Agent instructing the Transfer Agent to deliver, on

an expedited basis, a certificate evidencing a number of Shares equal to such Purchaser’s Subscription Amount, as to the applicable
Closing, divided by the Per Share Purchase Price, registered in the name of such Purchaser;
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(iv) as to each Closing, a Warrant registered in the name of such Purchaser to purchase up to a number of shares of Common
Stock equal to 100% of such Purchaser’s Shares issued on such applicable Closing, with an exercise price equal to $0.01, subject to
adjustment therein;

 
(v) as to each Closing, the Company shall have provided each Purchaser with the Company’s wire instructions, on Company

letterhead and executed by the Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer;
 
(vi) as to each Subsequent Closing, a bring-down of the Disclosure Schedules;
 
(vii) as to the First Closing, the Lock-Up Agreements;
 
(viii) as to each Closing, a letter from the Transfer Agent to the Purchasers certifying as to the Company’s reservation of at least

250,000,000 shares of Common Stock for issuances upon exercise of the Warrants; and
 
(ix) as to the First Closing, the Registration Rights Agreement duly executed by the Company.

 
(b) On or prior to each Closing Date, each Purchaser shall deliver or cause to be delivered to the Company the following:
 

(i) as to the First Closing, this Agreement duly executed by such Purchaser;
 
(ii) as to each Closing, such Purchaser’s Subscription Amount by wire transfer to the account specified in writing by the

Company, subject to the last sentence of Section 2.1(a), as applicable; and
 
(iii) as to the First Closing, the Registration Rights Agreement duly executed by such Purchaser.

 
2.3 Closing Conditions.
 

(a) The obligations of the Company hereunder in connection with the Closing are subject to the following conditions being met:
 

(i) the accuracy in all material respects (or, to the extent representations or warranties are qualified by materiality or Material
Adverse Effect, in all respects) on the applicable Closing Date of the representations and warranties of the Purchasers contained herein
(unless as of a specific date therein in which case they shall be accurate as of such date);
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(ii) all obligations, covenants and agreements of each Purchaser required to be performed at or prior to the applicable Closing
Date shall have been performed; and

 
(iii) the delivery by each Purchaser of the items set forth in Section 2.2(b) of this Agreement.

 
(b) The respective obligations of the Purchasers hereunder in connection with each Closing are subject to the following conditions being

met:
 

(i) the accuracy in all material respects (or, to the extent representations or warranties are qualified by materiality or Material
Adverse Effect, in all respects) when made and on the applicable Closing Date of the representations and warranties of the Company
contained herein (unless as of a specific date therein in which case they shall be accurate as of such date);

 
(ii) all obligations, covenants and agreements of the Company required to be performed at or prior to the applicable Closing Date

shall have been performed;
 
(iii) the delivery by the Company of the items set forth in Section 2.2(a) of this Agreement;
 
(iv) as to the Second Closing, (i) the Company is current in filing of reports required by the Exchange Act, (ii) the Audits for

Company’s fiscal years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2016 are completed and (iii) the Common Stock is quoted for
trading on OTCQB;

 
(v) as to the Second Closing, the Company shall have acquired Bellissima Spirits LLC and BiVi Vodka LLC, on terms and

conditions reasonably satisfactory to the Purchasers;
 
(vi) there shall have been no Material Adverse Effect with respect to the Company since the date hereof; and
 
(vii) from the date hereof to the Closing Date, trading in the Common Stock shall not have been suspended by the Commission or

the Company’s principal Trading Market, and, at any time prior to the applicable Closing, trading in securities generally as reported by
Bloomberg L.P. shall not have been suspended or limited, or minimum prices shall not have been established on securities whose trades
are reported by such service, or on any Trading Market, nor shall a banking moratorium have been declared either by the United States or
New York State authorities nor shall there have occurred any material outbreak or escalation of hostilities or other national or international
calamity of such magnitude in its effect on, or any material adverse change in, any financial market which, in each case, in the reasonable
judgment of such Purchaser, makes it impracticable or inadvisable to purchase the Securities at the Closing.
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ARTICLE III.
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

 
3.1 Representations and Warranties of the Company. Except as set forth in the Disclosure Schedules, which Disclosure Schedules shall be

deemed a part hereof and shall qualify any representation or otherwise made herein to the extent of the disclosure contained in the corresponding section
of the Disclosure Schedules, the Company hereby makes the following representations and warranties to each Purchaser as of the date hereof and as of
each Closing:
 

(a) Subsidiaries. All of the direct and indirect subsidiaries of the Company are set forth on Schedule 3.1(a). The Company owns, directly
or indirectly, all of the capital stock or other equity interests of each Subsidiary free and clear of any Liens, and all of the issued and outstanding
shares of capital stock of each Subsidiary are validly issued and are fully paid, non-assessable and free of preemptive and similar rights to subscribe
for or purchase securities. If the Company has no subsidiaries, all other references to the Subsidiaries or any of them in the Transaction Documents
shall be disregarded.

 
(b) Organization and Qualification. The Company and each of the Subsidiaries is an entity duly incorporated or otherwise organized,

validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation or organization, with the requisite power and authority to
own and use its properties and assets and to carry on its business as currently conducted. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary is in violation
nor default of any of the provisions of its respective certificate or articles of incorporation, bylaws or other organizational or charter documents.
Each of the Company and the Subsidiaries is duly qualified to conduct business and is in good standing as a foreign corporation or other entity in
each jurisdiction in which the nature of the business conducted or property owned by it makes such qualification necessary, except where the failure
to be so qualified or in good standing, as the case may be, could not have or reasonably be expected to result in: (i) a material adverse effect on the
legality, validity or enforceability of any Transaction Document, (ii) a material adverse effect on the results of operations, assets, business,
prospects or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company and the Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or (iii) a material adverse effect on the
Company’s ability to perform in any material respect on a timely basis its obligations under any Transaction Document (any of (i), (ii) or (iii), a
“Material Adverse Effect”) and no Proceeding has been instituted in any such jurisdiction revoking, limiting or curtailing or seeking to revoke,
limit or curtail such power and authority or qualification.

 
(c) Authorization; Enforcement. The Company has the requisite corporate power and authority to enter into and to consummate the

transactions contemplated by this Agreement and each of the other Transaction Documents and otherwise to carry out its obligations hereunder and
thereunder. The execution and delivery of each of this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents by the Company and the consummation by
it of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of the Company and no further
action is required by the Company, the Board of Directors or the Company’s stockholders in connection herewith or therewith other than in
connection with the Required Approvals. This Agreement and each other Transaction Document to which it is a party has been (or upon delivery
will have been) duly executed by the Company and, when delivered in accordance with the terms hereof and thereof, will constitute the valid and
binding obligation of the Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, except: (i) as limited by general equitable
principles and applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other laws of general application affecting enforcement of
creditors’ rights generally, (ii) as limited by laws relating to the availability of specific performance, injunctive relief or other equitable remedies
and (iii) insofar as indemnification and contribution provisions may be limited by applicable law.
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(d) No Conflicts. The execution, delivery and performance by the Company of this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents to
which it is a party, the issuance and sale of the Securities and the consummation by it of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby do not
and will not: (i) conflict with or violate any provision of the Company’s or any Subsidiary’s certificate or articles of incorporation, bylaws or other
organizational or charter documents, (ii) conflict with, or constitute a default (or an event that with notice or lapse of time or both would become a
default) under, result in the creation of any Lien upon any of the properties or assets of the Company or any Subsidiary, or give to others any rights
of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation (with or without notice, lapse of time or both) of, any agreement, credit facility, debt or
other instrument (evidencing a Company or Subsidiary debt or otherwise) or other understanding to which the Company or any Subsidiary is a
party or by which any property or asset of the Company or any Subsidiary is bound or affected, or (iii) subject to the Required Approvals, conflict
with or result in a violation of any law, rule, regulation, order, judgment, injunction, decree or other restriction of any court or governmental
authority to which the Company or a Subsidiary is subject (including federal and state securities laws and regulations), or by which any property or
asset of the Company or a Subsidiary is bound or affected; except in the case of each of clauses (ii) and (iii), such as could not have or reasonably
be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect.

 
(e) Filings, Consents and Approvals. The Company is not required to obtain any consent, waiver, authorization or order of, give any notice

to, or make any filing or registration with, any court or other federal, state, local or other governmental authority or other Person in connection with
the execution, delivery and performance by the Company of the Transaction Documents, other than: (i) the filings required pursuant to Section 4.4
of this Agreement; (ii) the filing with the Commission pursuant to the Registration Rights Agreement; (iii) the notice and/or application(s) to each
applicable Trading Market for the issuance and sale of the Securities and the listing of the Shares and Warrant Shares for trading thereon in the time
and manner required thereby, (iv) the filing of Form D with the Commission and such filings as are required to be made under applicable state
securities laws, and (v) the filing with the Commission of a registration statement registering the Company’s Common Stock under Section 12(b) or
12(g) of the Exchange Act (collectively, the “Required Approvals”).
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(f) Issuance of the Securities. The Securities are duly authorized and, when issued and paid for in accordance with the applicable
Transaction Documents, will be duly and validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, free and clear of all Liens imposed by the Company other
than restrictions on transfer provided for in the Transaction Documents. The Warrant Shares, when issued in accordance with the terms of the
Transaction Documents, will be validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, free and clear of all Liens imposed by the Company other than
restrictions on transfer provided for in the Transaction Documents. The Company has reserved from its duly authorized capital stock the maximum
number of shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant to this Agreement and the Warrants.

 
(g) Capitalization. The capitalization of the Company is as set forth on Schedule 3.1(g), which Schedule 3.1(g) shall also include the

number of shares of Common Stock owned beneficially, and of record, by Affiliates of the Company as of the date hereof. Except as set forth on
Schedule 3.1(g), the Company has not issued any capital stock, other than pursuant to the exercise of employee stock options under the Company’s
stock option plans, the issuance of shares of Common Stock to employees pursuant to the Company’s employee stock purchase plans and pursuant
to the conversion and/or exercise of Common Stock Equivalents outstanding as of the date of the most recent annual financial statement. No
Person has any right of first refusal, preemptive right, right of participation, or any similar right to participate in the transactions contemplated by
the Transaction Documents. Except as a result of the purchase and sale of the Securities or as set forth on Schedule 3.1(g), there are no outstanding
options, warrants, scrip rights to subscribe to, calls or commitments of any character whatsoever relating to, or securities, rights or obligations
convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for, or giving any Person any right to subscribe for or acquire any shares of Common Stock or the
capital stock of any Subsidiary, or contracts, commitments, understandings or arrangements by which the Company or any Subsidiary is or may
become bound to issue additional shares of Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents or capital stock of any Subsidiary. The issuance and sale
of the Securities will not obligate the Company or any Subsidiary to issue shares of Common Stock or other securities to any Person (other than the
Purchasers) and will not result in a right of any holder of Company securities to adjust the exercise, conversion, exchange or reset price under any
of such securities. There are no outstanding securities or instruments of the Company or any Subsidiary that contain any redemption or similar
provisions, and there are no contracts, commitments, understandings or arrangements by which the Company or any Subsidiary is or may become
bound to redeem a security of the Company or such Subsidiary. The Company does not have any stock appreciation rights or “phantom stock”
plans or any similar plan or agreement. All of the outstanding shares of capital stock of the Company are duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid
and nonassessable, have been issued in compliance with all federal and state securities laws, and none of such outstanding shares was issued in
violation of any preemptive rights or similar rights to subscribe for or purchase securities. No further approval or authorization of any stockholder,
the Board of Directors or others is required for the issuance and sale of the Securities. There are no stockholders agreements, voting agreements or
other similar agreements with respect to the Company’s capital stock to which the Company is a party or, to the knowledge of the Company,
between or among any of the Company’s stockholders.
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(h) SEC Reports; Financial Statements. Attached hereto as Schedule 3.1(h) are the annual financial statements of the Company for the past
three fiscal years. The Company has never been an issuer subject to Rule 144(i) under the Securities Act. The financial statements of the Company
on Schedule 3.1(h) comply in all material respects with applicable accounting requirements and the rules and regulations of the Commission with
respect thereto as in effect at the time of filing. Such financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted
accounting principles applied on a consistent basis during the periods involved (“GAAP”), except as may be otherwise specified in such financial
statements or the notes thereto and except that unaudited financial statements may not contain all footnotes required by GAAP, and fairly present
in all material respects the financial position of the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries as of and for the dates thereof and the results of
operations and cash flows for the periods then ended, subject, in the case of unaudited statements, to normal, immaterial, year-end audit
adjustments. Following the Public Company Date, as of their respective dates, the SEC Reports complied in all material respects with the
requirements of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act, as applicable, and none of the SEC Reports, when filed, contained any untrue statement
of a material fact or omitted to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in the light of
the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading and the Company has filed the SEC Reports on a timely basis or has received a
valid extension of such time of filing and has filed any such SEC Reports prior to the expiration of any such extension.

 
(i) Material Changes; Undisclosed Events, Liabilities or Developments. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.1(i), since the date of the latest

annual financial statement on Schedule 3.1(h): (i) there has been no event, occurrence or development that has had or that could reasonably be
expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect, (ii) the Company has not incurred any liabilities (contingent or otherwise) other than (A) trade
payables and accrued expenses incurred in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice and (B) liabilities not required to be
reflected in the Company’s financial statements pursuant to GAAP, (iii) the Company has not altered its method of accounting, (iv) the Company
has not declared or made any dividend or distribution of cash or other property to its stockholders or purchased, redeemed or made any agreements
to purchase or redeem any shares of its capital stock and (v) the Company has not issued any equity securities to any officer, director or Affiliate,
except pursuant to existing Company stock option plans. Following the Public Company date, except for the issuance of the Securities
contemplated by this Agreement, no event, liability, fact, circumstance, occurrence or development has occurred or exists, or is reasonably
expected to occur or exist, with respect to the Company or its Subsidiaries or their respective businesses, properties, operations, assets or financial
condition, that would be required to be disclosed by the Company under applicable securities laws at the time this representation is made or
deemed made that has not been publicly disclosed at least 1 Trading Day prior to the date that this representation is made
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(j) Litigation. There is no action, suit, inquiry, notice of violation, proceeding or investigation pending or, to the knowledge of the
Company, threatened against or affecting the Company, any Subsidiary or any of their respective properties before or by any court, arbitrator,
governmental or administrative agency or regulatory authority (federal, state, county, local or foreign) (collectively, an “ Action”) which (i)
adversely affects or challenges the legality, validity or enforceability of any of the Transaction Documents or the Securities or (ii) could, if there
were an unfavorable decision, have or reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary, nor
any director or officer thereof, is or has been the subject of any Action involving a claim of violation of or liability under federal or state securities
laws or a claim of breach of fiduciary duty. There has not been, and to the knowledge of the Company, there is not pending or contemplated, any
investigation by the Commission involving the Company or any current or former director or officer of the Company.

 
(k) Labor Relations. No labor dispute exists or, to the knowledge of the Company, is imminent with respect to any of the employees of the

Company, which could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. None of the Company’s or its Subsidiaries’ employees is a
member of a union that relates to such employee’s relationship with the Company or such Subsidiary, and neither the Company nor any of its
Subsidiaries is a party to a collective bargaining agreement, and the Company and its Subsidiaries believe that their relationships with their
employees are good. To the knowledge of the Company, no executive officer of the Company or any Subsidiary is, or is now expected to be, in
violation of any material term of any employment contract, confidentiality, disclosure or proprietary information agreement or non-competition
agreement, or any other contract or agreement or any restrictive covenant in favor of any third party, and the continued employment of each such
executive officer does not subject the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to any liability with respect to any of the foregoing matters. The
Company and its Subsidiaries are in compliance with all U.S. federal, state, local and foreign laws and regulations relating to employment and
employment practices, terms and conditions of employment and wages and hours, except where the failure to be in compliance could not,
individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

 
(l) Compliance. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary: (i) is in default under or in violation of (and no event has occurred that has not

been waived that, with notice or lapse of time or both, would result in a default by the Company or any Subsidiary under), nor has the Company or
any Subsidiary received notice of a claim that it is in default under or that it is in violation of, any indenture, loan or credit agreement or any other
agreement or instrument to which it is a party or by which it or any of its properties is bound (whether or not such default or violation has been
waived), (ii) is in violation of any judgment, decree, or order of any court, arbitrator or other governmental authority or (iii) is or has been in
violation of any statute, rule, ordinance or regulation of any governmental authority, including without limitation all foreign, federal, state and local
laws relating to taxes, environmental protection, occupational health and safety, product quality and safety and employment and labor matters,
except in each case as could not have or reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect.
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(m) Environmental Laws. The Company and its Subsidiaries (i) are in compliance with all federal, state, local and foreign laws relating to
pollution or protection of human health or the environment (including ambient air, surface water, groundwater, land surface or subsurface strata),
including laws relating to emissions, discharges, releases or threatened releases of chemicals, pollutants, contaminants, or toxic or hazardous
substances or wastes (collectively, “Hazardous Materials”) into the environment, or otherwise relating to the manufacture, processing, distribution,
use, treatment, storage, disposal, transport or handling of Hazardous Materials, as well as all authorizations, codes, decrees, demands, or demand
letters, injunctions, judgments, licenses, notices or notice letters, orders, permits, plans or regulations, issued, entered, promulgated or approved
thereunder (“Environmental Laws”); (ii) have received all permits licenses or other approvals required of them under applicable Environmental
Laws to conduct their respective businesses; and (iii) are in compliance with all terms and conditions of any such permit, license or approval where
in each clause (i), (ii) and (iii), the failure to so comply could be reasonably expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Material Adverse
Effect.

 
(n) Regulatory Permits. The Company and the Subsidiaries possess all certificates, authorizations and permits issued by the appropriate

federal, state, local or foreign regulatory authorities necessary to conduct their respective businesses, except where the failure to possess such
permits could not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect (“Material Permits”), and neither the Company nor any Subsidiary
has received any notice of proceedings relating to the revocation or modification of any Material Permit.

 
(o) Title to Assets. The Company and the Subsidiaries have good and marketable title in fee simple to all real property owned by them and

good and marketable title in all personal property owned by them that is material to the business of the Company and the Subsidiaries, in each case
free and clear of all Liens, except for (i) Liens as do not materially affect the value of such property and do not materially interfere with the use
made and proposed to be made of such property by the Company and the Subsidiaries (which Liens shall specifically include purchase money
Liens) and (ii) Liens for the payment of federal, state or other taxes, for which appropriate reserves have been made therefor in accordance with
GAAP and the payment of which is neither delinquent nor subject to penalties. Any real property and facilities held under lease by the Company
and the Subsidiaries are held by them under valid, subsisting and enforceable leases with which the Company and the Subsidiaries are in
compliance.
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(p) Intellectual Property. The Company and the Subsidiaries have, or have rights to use, all patents, patent applications, trademarks,
trademark applications, service marks, trade names, trade secrets, inventions, copyrights, licenses and other intellectual property rights and similar
rights as necessary or required for use in connection with their respective businesses and which the failure to so have could have a Material
Adverse Effect (collectively, the “Intellectual Property Rights”). None of, and neither the Company nor any Subsidiary has received a notice
(written or otherwise) that any of, the Intellectual Property Rights has expired, terminated or been abandoned, or is expected to expire or terminate
or be abandoned, within two (2) years from the date of this Agreement. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary has received, since the date of the
latest annual financial statements, a written notice of a claim or otherwise has any knowledge that the Intellectual Property Rights violate or
infringe upon the rights of any Person, except as could not have or reasonably be expected to not have a Material Adverse Effect. To the
knowledge of the Company, all such Intellectual Property Rights are enforceable and there is no existing infringement by another Person of any of
the Intellectual Property Rights. The Company and its Subsidiaries have taken reasonable security measures to protect the secrecy, confidentiality
and value of all of their intellectual properties, except where failure to do so could not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to
have a Material Adverse Effect.

 
(q) Insurance. The Company and the Subsidiaries are insured by insurers of recognized financial responsibility against such losses and

risks and in such amounts as are prudent and customary in the businesses in which the Company and the Subsidiaries are engaged, including, but
not limited to, directors and officers insurance coverage at least equal to the aggregate Subscription Amount. Neither the Company nor any
Subsidiary has any reason to believe that it will not be able to renew its existing insurance coverage as and when such coverage expires or to obtain
similar coverage from similar insurers as may be necessary to continue its business without a significant increase in cost.

 
(r) Transactions with Affiliates and Employees. None of the officers or directors of the Company or any Subsidiary and, to the knowledge

of the Company, none of the employees of the Company or any Subsidiary is presently a party to any transaction with the Company or any
Subsidiary (other than for services as employees, officers and directors), including any contract, agreement or other arrangement providing for the
furnishing of services to or by, providing for rental of real or personal property to or from, providing for the borrowing of money from or lending of
money to or otherwise requiring payments to or from any officer, director or such employee or, to the knowledge of the Company, any entity in
which any officer, director, or any such employee has a substantial interest or is an officer, director, trustee, stockholder, member or partner, in
each case in excess of $120,000 other than for: (i) payment of salary or consulting fees for services rendered, (ii) reimbursement for expenses
incurred on behalf of the Company and (iii) other employee benefits, including stock option agreements under any stock option plan of the
Company.

 
(s) Internal Accounting Controls. The Company and the Subsidiaries maintain a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to

provide reasonable assurance that: (i) transactions are executed in accordance with management’s general or specific authorizations, (ii)
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP and to maintain asset accountability,
(iii) access to assets is permitted only in accordance with management’s general or specific authorization, and (iv) the recorded accountability for
assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and appropriate action is taken with respect to any differences.
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(t) Certain Fees. No brokerage or finder’s fees or commissions are or will be payable by the Company or any Subsidiary to any broker,
financial advisor or consultant, finder, placement agent, investment banker, bank or other Person with respect to the transactions contemplated by
the Transaction Documents. The Purchasers shall have no obligation with respect to any fees or with respect to any claims made by or on behalf of
other Persons for fees of a type contemplated in this Section that may be due in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Transaction
Documents.

 
(u) Private Placement. Assuming the accuracy of the Purchasers’ representations and warranties set forth in Section 3.2, no registration

under the Securities Act is required for the offer and sale of the Securities by the Company to the Purchasers as contemplated hereby. The issuance
and sale of the Securities hereunder does not contravene the rules and regulations of the Trading Market.

 
(v) Investment Company. The Company is not, and is not an Affiliate of, and immediately after receipt of payment for the Securities, will

not be or be an Affiliate of, an “investment company” within the meaning of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended. The Company
shall conduct its business in a manner so that it will not become an “investment company” subject to registration under the Investment Company
Act of 1940, as amended.

 
(w) Registration Rights. Other than each of the Purchasers, no Person has any right to cause the Company to effect the registration under

the Securities Act of any securities of the Company or any Subsidiary.
 
(x) Maintenance Requirements; DTC. The Company has not, in the 12 months preceding the date hereof, received notice from any Trading

Market on which the Common Stock is or has been listed or quoted to the effect that the Company is not in compliance with the listing or
maintenance requirements of such Trading Market. The Company is, and has no reason to believe that it will not in the foreseeable future continue
to be, in compliance with all applicable listing and maintenance requirements. The Common Stock is currently eligible for electronic transfer
through the Depository Trust Company or another established clearing corporation and the Company is current in payment of the fees to the
Depository Trust Company (or such other established clearing corporation) in connection with such electronic transfer. Following the Public
Company Date, the Company has taken no action designed to, or which to its knowledge is likely to have the effect of, terminating the registration
of the Common Stock under the Exchange Act.

 
(y) Application of Takeover Protections. The Company and the Board of Directors have taken all necessary action, if any, in order to

render inapplicable any control share acquisition, business combination, poison pill (including any distribution under a rights agreement) or other
similar anti‑takeover provision under the Company’s certificate of incorporation (or similar charter documents) or the laws of its state of
incorporation that is or could become applicable to the Purchasers as a result of the Purchasers and the Company fulfilling their obligations or
exercising their rights under the Transaction Documents, including without limitation as a result of the Company’s issuance of the Securities and
the Purchasers’ ownership of the Securities.
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(z) Disclosure. Except with respect to the material terms and conditions of the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents,
the Company confirms that neither it nor any other Person acting on its behalf has provided any of the Purchasers or their agents or counsel with
any information that it believes constitutes or might constitute material, non-public information. The Company understands and confirms that the
Purchasers will rely on the foregoing representation in effecting transactions in securities of the Company. All of the disclosure furnished by or on
behalf of the Company to the Purchasers regarding the Company and its Subsidiaries, their respective businesses and the transactions contemplated
hereby, including the Disclosure Schedules to this Agreement, is true and correct and does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state any material fact necessary in order to make the statements made therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made,
not misleading. The press releases disseminated by the Company during the twelve months preceding the date of this Agreement taken as a whole
do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the
statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made and when made, not misleading. The Company acknowledges and
agrees that no Purchaser makes or has made any representations or warranties with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby other than those
specifically set forth in Section 3.2 hereof.

 
(aa) No Integrated Offering. Assuming the accuracy of the Purchasers’ representations and warranties set forth in Section 3.2, neither the

Company, nor any of its Affiliates, nor any Person acting on its or their behalf has, directly or indirectly, made any offers or sales of any security
or solicited any offers to buy any security, under circumstances that would cause this offering of the Securities to be integrated with prior offerings
by the Company for purposes of (i) the Securities Act which would require the registration of any such securities under the Securities Act, or (ii)
any applicable shareholder approval provisions of any Trading Market on which any of the securities of the Company are listed or designated.

 
(bb) Solvency. Based on the consolidated financial condition of the Company as of the Closing Date, after giving effect to the receipt by

the Company of the proceeds from the sale of the Securities hereunder: (i) the fair saleable value of the Company’s assets exceeds the amount that
will be required to be paid on or in respect of the Company’s existing debts and other liabilities (including known contingent liabilities) as they
mature, (ii) the Company’s assets do not constitute unreasonably small capital to carry on its business as now conducted and as proposed to be
conducted including its capital needs taking into account the particular capital requirements of the business conducted by the Company,
consolidated and projected capital requirements and capital availability thereof, and (iii) the current cash flow of the Company, together with the
proceeds the Company would receive, were it to liquidate all of its assets, after taking into account all anticipated uses of the cash, would be
sufficient to pay all amounts on or in respect of its liabilities when such amounts are required to be paid. The Company does not intend to incur
debts beyond its ability to pay such debts as they mature (taking into account the timing and amounts of cash to be payable on or in respect of its
debt). The Company has no knowledge of any facts or circumstances which lead it to believe that it will file for reorganization or liquidation under
the bankruptcy or reorganization laws of any jurisdiction within one year from the Closing Date. Schedule 3.1(bb) sets forth as of the date hereof
all outstanding secured and unsecured Indebtedness of the Company or any Subsidiary, or for which the Company or any Subsidiary has
commitments. For the purposes of this Agreement, “Indebtedness” means (x) any liabilities for borrowed money or amounts owed in excess of
$10,000 (other than trade accounts payable incurred in the ordinary course of business), (y) all guaranties, endorsements and other contingent
obligations in respect of indebtedness of others, whether or not the same are or should be reflected in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet (or
the notes thereto), except guaranties by endorsement of negotiable instruments for deposit or collection or similar transactions in the ordinary
course of business; and (z) the present value of any lease payments in excess of $50,000 due under leases required to be capitalized in accordance



with GAAP. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary is in default with respect to any Indebtedness.
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(cc) Tax Status. Except for matters that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have or reasonably be expected to result in a Material



Adverse Effect, the Company and its Subsidiaries each (i) has made or filed all United States federal, state and local income and all foreign income
and franchise tax returns, reports and declarations required by any jurisdiction to which it is subject, (ii) has paid all taxes and other governmental
assessments and charges that are material in amount, shown or determined to be due on such returns, reports and declarations and (iii) has set aside
on its books provision reasonably adequate for the payment of all material taxes for periods subsequent to the periods to which such returns, reports
or declarations apply. There are no unpaid taxes in any material amount claimed to be due by the taxing authority of any jurisdiction, and the
officers of the Company or of any Subsidiary know of no basis for any such claim.

 
(dd) No General Solicitation. Neither the Company nor any Person acting on behalf of the Company has offered or sold any of the

Securities by any form of general solicitation or general advertising. The Company has offered the Securities for sale only to the Purchasers and
certain other “accredited investors” within the meaning of Rule 501 under the Securities Act.

 
(ee) Foreign Corrupt Practices. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary, to the knowledge of the Company or any Subsidiary, any agent

or other person acting on behalf of the Company or any Subsidiary, has: (i) directly or indirectly, used any funds for unlawful contributions, gifts,
entertainment or other unlawful expenses related to foreign or domestic political activity, (ii) made any unlawful payment to foreign or domestic
government officials or employees or to any foreign or domestic political parties or campaigns from corporate funds, (iii) failed to disclose fully
any contribution made by the Company or any Subsidiary (or made by any person acting on its behalf of which the Company is aware) which is in
violation of law or (iv) violated in any material respect any provision of FCPA.
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(ff) Accountants. To the knowledge and belief of the Company, the Company Auditor: (i) is a registered public accounting firm as
required by the Exchange Act and (ii) shall express its opinion with respect to the financial statements to be included in the Company’s Annual
Report for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2017.

 
(gg) No Disagreements with Accountants and Lawyers. There are no disagreements of any kind presently existing, or reasonably

anticipated by the Company to arise, between the Company and the accountants and lawyers formerly or presently employed by the Company and
the Company is current with respect to any fees owed to its accountants and lawyers which could affect the Company’s ability to perform any of its
obligations under any of the Transaction Documents.

 
(hh) Acknowledgment Regarding Purchasers’ Purchase of Securities. The Company acknowledges and agrees that each of the Purchasers

is acting solely in the capacity of an arm’s length purchaser with respect to the Transaction Documents and the transactions contemplated thereby.
The Company further acknowledges that no Purchaser is acting as a financial advisor or fiduciary of the Company (or in any similar capacity) with
respect to the Transaction Documents and the transactions contemplated thereby and any advice given by any Purchaser or any of their respective
representatives or agents in connection with the Transaction Documents and the transactions contemplated thereby is merely incidental to the
Purchasers’ purchase of the Securities. The Company further represents to each Purchaser that the Company’s decision to enter into this Agreement
and the other Transaction Documents has been based solely on the independent evaluation of the transactions contemplated hereby by the
Company and its representatives.



 
( i i ) Acknowledgment Regarding Purchaser’s Trading Activity.  Anything in this Agreement or elsewhere herein to the contrary

notwithstanding (except for Section 4.14 hereof), it is understood and acknowledged by the Company that: (i) none of the Purchasers has been
asked by the Company to agree, nor has any Purchaser agreed, to desist from purchasing or selling securities of the Company or to hold the
Securities for any specified term, (ii) past or future open market or other transactions by any Purchaser, before or after the closing of this or future
private placement transactions, may negatively impact the market price of the Company’s publicly-traded securities, and (iii) each Purchaser shall
not be deemed to have any affiliation with or control over any arm’s length counter-party in any “derivative” transaction.

 
(jj) Regulation M Compliance. The Company has not, and to its knowledge no one acting on its behalf has, (i) taken, directly or indirectly,

any action designed to cause or to result in the stabilization or manipulation of the price of any security of the Company to facilitate the sale or
resale of any of the Securities, (ii) sold, bid for, purchased, or paid any compensation for soliciting purchases of, any of the Securities, or (iii) paid
or agreed to pay to any Person any compensation for soliciting another to purchase any other securities of the Company.
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(kk) FDA. As to each product subject to the jurisdiction of the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) under the Federal Food, Drug
and Cosmetic Act, as amended, and the regulations thereunder (“FDCA”) that is manufactured, packaged, labeled, tested, distributed, sold, and/or
marketed by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries (each such product, a “Pharmaceutical Product”), such Pharmaceutical Product is being
manufactured, packaged, labeled, tested, distributed, sold and/or marketed by the Company in compliance with all applicable requirements under
FDCA and similar laws, rules and regulations relating to registration, investigational use, premarket clearance, licensure, or application approval,
good manufacturing practices, good laboratory practices, good clinical practices, product listing, quotas, labeling, advertising, record keeping and
filing of reports, except where the failure to be in compliance would not have a Material Adverse Effect. There is no pending, completed or, to the
Company’s knowledge, threatened, action (including any lawsuit, arbitration, or legal or administrative or regulatory proceeding, charge,
complaint, or investigation) against the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, and none of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries has received any
notice, warning letter or other communication from the FDA or any other governmental entity, which (i) contests the premarket clearance,
licensure, registration, or approval of, the uses of, the distribution of, the manufacturing or packaging of, the testing of, the sale of, or the labeling
and promotion of any Pharmaceutical Product, (ii) withdraws its approval of, requests the recall, suspension, or seizure of, or withdraws or orders



the withdrawal of advertising or sales promotional materials relating to, any Pharmaceutical Product, (iii) imposes a clinical hold on any clinical
investigation by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, (iv) enjoins production at any facility of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, (v) enters
or proposes to enter into a consent decree of permanent injunction with the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or (vi) otherwise alleges any
violation of any laws, rules or regulations by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, and which, either individually or in the aggregate, would have
a Material Adverse Effect. The properties, business and operations of the Company have been and are being conducted in all material respects in
accordance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations of the FDA. The Company has not been informed by the FDA that the FDA will prohibit
the marketing, sale, license or use in the United States of any product proposed to be developed, produced or marketed by the Company nor has the
FDA expressed any concern as to approving or clearing for marketing any product being developed or proposed to be developed by the Company.

 
(ll) [RESERVED]
 
(mm) Stock Option Plans. Each stock option granted by the Company under the Company’s stock option plan was granted (i) in

accordance with the terms of the Company’s stock option plan and (ii) with an exercise price at least equal to the fair market value of the Common
Stock on the date such stock option would be considered granted under GAAP and applicable law. No stock option granted under the Company’s
stock option plan has been backdated. The Company has not knowingly granted, and there is no and has been no Company policy or practice to
knowingly grant, stock options prior to, or otherwise knowingly coordinate the grant of stock options with, the release or other public
announcement of material information regarding the Company or its Subsidiaries or their financial results or prospects.
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(nn) Office of Foreign Assets Control. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary nor, to the Company’s knowledge, any director, officer,
agent, employee or affiliate of the Company or any Subsidiary is currently subject to any U.S. sanctions administered by the Office of Foreign
Assets Control of the U.S. Treasury Department (“OFAC”).

 
(oo) U.S. Real Property Holding Corporation. The Company is not and has never been a U.S. real property holding corporation within the

meaning of Section 897 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Company shall so certify upon Purchaser’s request.
 
(pp) Bank Holding Company Act. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates is subject to the Bank Holding Company

Act of 1956, as amended (the “BHCA”) and to regulation by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the “Federal Reserve”).
Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates owns or controls, directly or indirectly, five percent (5%) or more of the outstanding
shares of any class of voting securities or twenty-five percent or more of the total equity of a bank or any entity that is subject to the BHCA and to
regulation by the Federal Reserve. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates exercises a controlling influence over the
management or policies of a bank or any entity that is subject to the BHCA and to regulation by the Federal Reserve.

 
(qq) Money Laundering. The operations of the Company and its Subsidiaries are and have been conducted at all times in compliance with

applicable financial record-keeping and reporting requirements of the Currency and Foreign Transactions Reporting Act of 1970, as amended,
applicable money laundering statutes and applicable rules and regulations thereunder (collectively, the “Money Laundering Laws”), and no Action



or Proceeding by or before any court or governmental agency, authority or body or any arbitrator involving the Company or any Subsidiary with
respect to the Money Laundering Laws is pending or, to the knowledge of the Company or any Subsidiary, threatened.

 
(rr) No Disqualification Events. With respect to the Securities to be offered and sold hereunder in reliance on Rule 506 under the Securities

Act, none of the Company, any of its predecessors, any affiliated issuer, any director, executive officer, other officer of the Company participating
in the offering hereunder, any beneficial owner of 20% or more of the Company’s outstanding voting equity securities, calculated on the basis of
voting power, nor any promoter (as that term is defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act) connected with the Company in any capacity at the
time of sale (each, an “Issuer Covered Person” and, together, “Issuer Covered Persons”) is subject to any of the “Bad Actor” disqualifications
described in Rule 506(d)(1)(i) to (viii) under the Securities Act (a “Disqualification Event”), except for a Disqualification Event covered by Rule
506(d)(2) or (d)(3). The Company has exercised reasonable care to determine whether any Issuer Covered Person is subject to a Disqualification
Event. The Company has complied, to the extent applicable, with its disclosure obligations under Rule 506(e), and has furnished to the Purchasers
a copy of any disclosures provided thereunder.

 
(ss) Other Covered Persons. The Company is not aware of any person (other than any Issuer Covered Person) that has been or will be paid

(directly or indirectly) remuneration for solicitation of purchasers in connection with the sale of any Securities.
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(tt) Notice of Disqualification Events. The Company will notify the Purchasers in writing, prior to the Closing Date of (i) any
Disqualification Event relating to any Issuer Covered Person and (ii) any event that would, with the passage of time, become a Disqualification
Event relating to any Issuer Covered Person.

 
3.2 Representations and Warranties of the Purchasers. Each Purchaser, for itself and for no other Purchaser, hereby represents and warrants as of

the date hereof and as of each Closing Date to the Company as follows (unless as of a specific date therein, in which case they shall be accurate as of such
date):
 

(a) Organization; Authority. Such Purchaser is either an individual or an entity duly incorporated or formed, validly existing and in good
standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation or formation with full right, corporate, partnership, limited liability company or
similar power and authority to enter into and to consummate the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents and otherwise to carry
out its obligations hereunder and thereunder. The execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents and performance by such Purchaser of the
transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate, partnership, limited liability
company or similar action, as applicable, on the part of such Purchaser. Each Transaction Document to which it is a party has been duly executed
by such Purchaser, and when delivered by such Purchaser in accordance with the terms hereof, will constitute the valid and legally binding



obligation of such Purchaser, enforceable against it in accordance with its terms, except: (i) as limited by general equitable principles and
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other laws of general application affecting enforcement of creditors’ rights
generally, (ii) as limited by laws relating to the availability of specific performance, injunctive relief or other equitable remedies and (iii) insofar as
indemnification and contribution provisions may be limited by applicable law.

 
(b) Own Account. Such Purchaser understands that the Securities are “restricted securities” and have not been registered under the

Securities Act or any applicable state securities law and is acquiring the Securities as principal for its own account and not with a view to or for
distributing or reselling such Securities or any part thereof in violation of the Securities Act or any applicable state securities law, has no present
intention of distributing any of such Securities in violation of the Securities Act or any applicable state securities law and has no direct or indirect
arrangement or understandings with any other persons to distribute or regarding the distribution of such Securities in violation of the Securities Act
or any applicable state securities law (this representation and warranty not limiting such Purchaser’s right to sell the Securities pursuant to the
Registration Statement or otherwise in compliance with applicable federal and state securities laws). Such Purchaser is acquiring the Securities
hereunder in the ordinary course of its business.
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(c) Purchaser Status. At the time such Purchaser was offered the Securities, it was, and as of the date hereof it is, and on each date on which
it exercises any Warrants, it will be, an “accredited investor” as defined in Rule 501(a)(1), (a)(2), (a)(3), (a)(7) or (a)(8) under the Securities Act.

 
(d) Experience of Such Purchaser. Such Purchaser, either alone or together with its representatives, has such knowledge, sophistication and

experience in business and financial matters so as to be capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the prospective investment in the Securities,
and has so evaluated the merits and risks of such investment. Such Purchaser is able to bear the economic risk of an investment in the Securities
and, at the present time, is able to afford a complete loss of such investment.

 
(e) General Solicitation. Such Purchaser is not, to such Purchaser’s knowledge, purchasing the Securities as a result of any advertisement,

article, notice or other communication regarding the Securities published in any newspaper, magazine or similar media or broadcast over television
or radio or presented at any seminar or any other general solicitation or general advertisement.

 
(f) Regulation M Compliance. During any time where a Registration Statement for the Securities has been filed or is effective, Purchaser



has not, and to its knowledge no one acting on its behalf has, (i) taken, directly or indirectly, any action designed to cause or to result in the
stabilization or manipulation of the price of any security of the Company to facilitate the sale or resale of any of the Securities, (ii) sold, bid for,
purchased, or paid any compensation for soliciting purchases of, any of the Securities, or (iii) paid or agreed to pay to any Person any compensation
for soliciting another to purchase any other securities of the Company.

 
The Company acknowledges and agrees that the representations contained in this Section 3.2 shall not modify, amend or affect such Purchaser’s right to
rely on the Company’s representations and warranties contained in this Agreement or any representations and warranties contained in any other
Transaction Document or any other document or instrument executed and/or delivered in connection with this Agreement or the consummation of the
transactions contemplated hereby.
 

ARTICLE IV.
OTHER AGREEMENTS OF THE PARTIES

 
4.1 Transfer Restrictions.
 

(a) The Securities may only be disposed of in compliance with state and federal securities laws. In connection with any transfer of
Securities other than pursuant to an effective registration statement or Rule 144, to the Company or to an Affiliate of a Purchaser or in connection
with a pledge as contemplated in Section 4.1(b), the Company may require the transferor thereof to provide to the Company an opinion of counsel
selected by the transferor and reasonably acceptable to the Company, the form and substance of which opinion shall be reasonably satisfactory to
the Company, to the effect that such transfer does not require registration of such transferred Securities under the Securities Act. As a condition of
transfer, any such transferee shall agree in writing to be bound by the terms of this Agreement and the Registration Rights Agreement and shall
have the rights and obligations of a Purchaser under this Agreement and the Registration Rights Agreement.
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(b) The Purchasers agree to the imprinting, so long as is required by this Section 4.1, of a legend on any of the Securities in the following
form:

 
THIS SECURITY HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR THE SECURITIES
COMMISSION OF ANY STATE IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF
1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”), AND, ACCORDINGLY, MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD EXCEPT PURSUANT TO
AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN AVAILABLE EXEMPTION
FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND IN
ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THIS SECURITY MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A
BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT WITH A REGISTERED BROKER-DEALER OR OTHER LOAN WITH A FINANCIAL INSTITUTION
THAT IS AN “ACCREDITED INVESTOR” AS DEFINED IN RULE 501(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR OTHER LOAN SECURED
BY SUCH SECURITIES.

 
The Company acknowledges and agrees that a Purchaser may from time to time pledge or grant a security interest in some or all of the

Securities to a financial institution that is an “accredited investor” as defined in Rule 501(a) under the Securities Act and, if required under the
terms of such arrangement, such Purchaser may transfer pledged or secured Securities to the pledgees or secured parties. Such a pledge or transfer
would not be subject to approval of the Company and no legal opinion of legal counsel of the pledgee, secured party or pledgor shall be required in
connection therewith. Further, no notice shall be required of such pledge. At the appropriate Purchaser’s expense, the Company will execute and
deliver such reasonable documentation as a pledgee or secured party of Securities may reasonably request in connection with a pledge or transfer of
the Securities, including, if the Securities are subject to registration pursuant to the Registration Rights Agreement, the preparation and filing of any
required prospectus supplement under Rule 424(b)(3) under the Securities Act or other applicable provision of the Securities Act to appropriately
amend the list of Selling Stockholders (as defined in the Registration Rights Agreement) thereunder.
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(c) Certificates evidencing the Shares and Warrant Shares shall not contain any legend (including the legend set forth in Section 4.1(b)
hereof), (i) while a registration statement (including the Registration Statement) covering the resale of such security is effective under the
Securities Act, (ii) following any sale of such Shares or Warrant Shares pursuant to Rule 144, (iii) if such Shares or Warrant Shares are eligible for
sale under Rule 144, or (iv) if such legend is not required under applicable requirements of the Securities Act (including judicial interpretations and
pronouncements issued by the staff of the Commission). The Company shall cause its counsel to issue a legal opinion to the Transfer Agent
promptly after the Effective Date or at such time as such legend is no longer under this Section 4.1(c), if required by the Transfer Agent or
requested by a Purchaser to effect the removal of the legend hereunder. If all or any portion of a Warrant is exercised at a time when there is an
effective registration statement to cover the resale of the Warrant Shares, or if such Shares or Warrant Shares may be sold under Rule 144 and the
Company is then in compliance with the current public information required under Rule 144, or if the Shares or Warrant Shares may be sold under
Rule 144 without the requirement for the Company to be in compliance with the current public information required under Rule 144 as to such
Shares or Warrant Shares or if such legend is not otherwise required under applicable requirements of the Securities Act (including judicial
interpretations and pronouncements issued by the staff of the Commission) then such Warrant Shares shall be issued free of all legends. The
Company agrees that following the Effective Date or at such time as such legend is no longer required under this Section 4.1(c), it will, no later
than the earlier of (i) two (2) Trading Days and (ii) the number of Trading Days comprising the Standard Settlement Period (as defined below)
following the delivery by a Purchaser to the Company or the Transfer Agent of a certificate representing Shares or Warrant Shares, as the case may
be, issued with a restrictive legend (such second Trading Day, the “Legend Removal Date”), deliver or cause to be delivered to such Purchaser a
certificate representing such shares that is free from all restrictive and other legends. The Company may not make any notation on its records or
give instructions to the Transfer Agent that enlarge the restrictions on transfer set forth in this Section 4. Certificates for Securities subject to legend
removal hereunder shall be transmitted by the Transfer Agent to the Purchaser by crediting the account of the Purchaser’s prime broker with the
Depository Trust Company System as directed by such Purchaser. As used herein, “ Standard Settlement Period” means the standard settlement
period, expressed in a number of Trading Days, on the Company’s primary Trading Market with respect to the Common Stock as in effect on the
date of delivery of a certificate representing Shares or Warrants Shares, as the case may be, issued with a restrictive legend.

 
(d) From and after the Public Company Date, in addition to such Purchaser’s other available remedies, the Company shall pay to a

Purchaser, in cash, (i) as partial liquidated damages and not as a penalty, for each $1,000 of Underlying Shares (based on the VWAP of the
Common Stock on the date such Securities are submitted to the Transfer Agent) delivered for removal of the restrictive legend and subject to
Section 4.1(c), $10 per Trading Day (increasing to $20 per Trading Day five (5) Trading Days after such damages have begun to accrue) for each
Trading Day after the Legend Removal Date until such certificate is delivered without a legend and (ii) if the Company fails to (a) issue and deliver
(or cause to be delivered) to a Purchaser by the Legend Removal Date a certificate representing the Securities so delivered to the Company by such
Purchaser that is free from all restrictive and other legends and (b) if after the Legend Removal Date such Purchaser purchases (in an open market
transaction or otherwise) shares of Common Stock to deliver in satisfaction of a sale by such Purchaser of all or any portion of the number of shares
of Common Stock, or a sale of a number of shares of Common Stock equal to all or any portion of the number of shares of Common Stock that
such Purchaser anticipated receiving from the Company without any restrictive legend, then, an amount equal to the excess of such Purchaser’s
total purchase price (including brokerage commissions and other out-of-pocket expenses, if any) for the shares of Common Stock so purchased
(including brokerage commissions and other out-of-pocket expenses, if any) (the “Buy-In Price”) over the product of (A) such number of
Underlying Shares that the Company was required to deliver to such Purchaser by the Legend Removal Date multiplied by (B) the lowest closing
sale price of the Common Stock on any Trading Day during the period commencing on the date of the delivery by such Purchaser to the Company
of the applicable Underlying Shares (as the case may be) and ending on the date of such delivery and payment under this clause (ii). Nothing
herein shall limit such Purchaser’s right to pursue actual damages for the Company’s failure to deliver certificates representing the Securities as
required by the Transaction Documents and such Purchaser shall have the right to pursue all remedies available to it at low or in equity, including,
without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive relief.
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(e) Each Purchaser, severally and not jointly with the other Purchasers, agrees with the Company that such Purchaser will sell any
Securities pursuant to either the registration requirements of the Securities Act, including any applicable prospectus delivery requirements, or an
exemption therefrom, and that if Securities are sold pursuant to a Registration Statement, they will be sold in compliance with the plan of
distribution set forth therein, and acknowledges that the removal of the restrictive legend from certificates representing Securities as set forth in
this Section 4.1 is predicated upon the Company’s reliance upon this understanding.
 
4.2 Furnishing of Information; Public Information.
 

(a) If the Common Stock is not registered under Section 12(b) or 12(g) of the Exchange Act on the date hereof, the Company agrees to
cause the Common Stock to be registered under Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act on or prior to the earlier of (i) one hundred and fifty (150) days
following the date hereof and (ii) the Second Closing Date. Following the Public Company Date, until the earliest of the time that (i) no Purchaser
owns Securities or (ii) the Warrants have expired, the Company covenants to maintain the registration of the Common Stock under Section 12(b) or
12(g) of the Exchange Act and to timely file (or obtain extensions in respect thereof and file within the applicable grace period) all reports required
to be filed by the Company pursuant to the Exchange Act, provided that, if after becoming subject to the Exchange Act, the Company is thereafter
no longer required to file reports pursuant to the Exchange Act, the Company will, for as long as any Purchaser owns Securities, prepare and
furnish to the Purchasers and make publicly available in accordance with Rule 144(c) such information as is required for the Purchasers to sell the
Securities, including without limitation, under Rule 144. The Company further covenants that it will take such further action as any holder of
Securities may reasonably request, to the extent required from time to time to enable such Person to sell such Securities without registration under
the Securities Act, including, without limitation, within the requirements of the exemption provided by Rule 144.
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(b) At any time during the period commencing from the six (6) month anniversary of the date hereof and ending at such time that all of the
Securities may be sold without the requirement for the Company to be in compliance with Rule 144(c)(1) and otherwise without restriction or
limitation pursuant to Rule 144, if the Company (i) shall fail for any reason to satisfy the current public information requirement under Rule 144(c)
or (ii) has ever been an issuer described in Rule 144(i)(1)(i) or becomes an issuer in the future, and the Company shall fail to satisfy any condition
set forth in Rule 144(i)(2) (a “Public Information Failure”) then, in addition to such Purchaser’s other available remedies, the Company shall pay to
a Purchaser, in cash, as partial liquidated damages and not as a penalty, by reason of any such delay in or reduction of its ability to sell the
Securities, an amount in cash equal to one percent (1.0%) of the aggregate Subscription Amount of such Purchaser’s Securities on the day of a
Public Information Failure and on every thirtieth (30th) day (pro rated for periods totaling less than thirty days) thereafter until the earlier of (a) the
date such Public Information Failure is cured and (b) such time that such public information is no longer required for the Purchasers to transfer the
Shares and Warrant Shares pursuant to Rule 144. The payments to which a Purchaser shall be entitled pursuant to this Section 4.2(b) are referred to
herein as “Public Information Failure Payments.” Public Information Failure Payments shall be paid on the earlier of (i) the last day of the calendar
month during which such Public Information Failure Payments are incurred and (ii) the third (3rd) Business Day after the event or failure giving rise
to the Public Information Failure Payments is cured. In the event the Company fails to make Public Information Failure Payments in a timely
manner, such Public Information Failure Payments shall bear interest at the rate of 1.5% per month (prorated for partial months) until paid in full.
Nothing herein shall limit such Purchaser’s right to pursue actual damages for the Public Information Failure, and such Purchaser shall have the
right to pursue all remedies available to it at law or in equity including, without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive relief.

 
4.3 Integration. The Company shall not sell, offer for sale or solicit offers to buy or otherwise negotiate in respect of any security (as defined in

Section 2 of the Securities Act) that would be integrated with the offer or sale of the Securities in a manner that would require the registration under the
Securities Act of the sale of the Securities or that would be integrated with the offer or sale of the Securities for purposes of the rules and regulations of
any Trading Market such that it would require shareholder approval prior to the closing of such other transaction unless shareholder approval is obtained
before the closing of such subsequent transaction.

 
4.4 Securities Laws Disclosure; Publicity. From and after the Public Company Date, the Company acknowledges and agrees that (i) all material,

non-public information delivered to any of the Purchasers by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or any of their respective officers, directors,
employees or agents in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents shall have been publicly disclosed and (ii) any and
all confidentiality or similar obligations under any agreement, whether written or oral, between the Company, any of its Subsidiaries or any of their
respective officers, directors, agents, employees or Affiliates on the one hand, and any of the Purchasers or any of their Affiliates on the other hand, shall
terminate. From and after the Public Company Date, upon a Closing hereunder, the Company shall promptly issue a press release disclosing the material
terms of such closing and shall filed a Current Report on Form 8-K as required by the Exchange Act. From and after the Public Company Date, the
Company shall not publicly disclose the name of any Purchaser in any press release, or include the name of any Purchaser in any filing with the
Commission or any regulatory agency or Trading Market, without the prior written consent of such Purchaser, except: (a) as required by federal securities
law in connection with any registration statement contemplated by the Registration Rights Agreement or the Company’s reporting requirements under the
Exchange Act and (b) to the extent such disclosure is required by law or Trading Market regulations, in which case the Company shall provide the
Purchasers with prior notice of such disclosure permitted under this clause (b).
 
 

29



 

 
 

4.5 Shareholder Rights Plan. No claim will be made or enforced by the Company or, with the consent of the Company, any other Person, that any
Purchaser is an “Acquiring Person” under any control share acquisition, business combination, poison pill (including any distribution under a rights
agreement) or similar anti-takeover plan or arrangement in effect or hereafter adopted by the Company, or that any Purchaser could be deemed to trigger
the provisions of any such plan or arrangement, by virtue of receiving Securities under the Transaction Documents or under any other agreement between
the Company and the Purchasers.

 
4.6 Non-Public Information. From and after the Public Company Date, the Company covenants and agrees that neither it, nor any other Person

acting on its behalf will provide any Purchaser or its agents or counsel with any information that constitutes, or the Company reasonably believes
constitutes, material non-public information, unless prior thereto such Purchaser shall have consented to the receipt of such information and agreed with
the Company to keep such information confidential. On or prior to the Public Company Date, the Company agrees to publicly disclose any and all
material non-public information provided to the Purchasers. The Company understands and confirms that each Purchaser shall be relying on the foregoing
covenant in effecting transactions in securities of the Company. To the extent that the Company delivers any material, non-public information to a
Purchaser without such Purchaser’s consent, the Company hereby covenants and agrees that such Purchaser shall not have any duty of confidentiality to
Company, any of its Subsidiaries, or any of their respective officers, directors, agents, employees or Affiliates, or a duty to the Company, and of its
Subsidiaries or any of their respective officers, directors, agents, employees or Affiliates not to trade on the basis of, such material, non-public
information, provided that the Purchaser shall remain subject to applicable law. To the extent that any notice provided pursuant to any Transaction
Document constitutes, or contains, material, non-public information regarding the Company or any Subsidiaries, the Company shall simultaneously file
such notice with the Commission pursuant to a Current Report on Form 8-K. The Company understands and confirms that each Purchaser shall be relying
on the foregoing covenant in effecting transactions in securities of the Company.

 
4.7 Use of Proceeds. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.7 attached hereto, the Company shall use the net proceeds from the sale of the Securities

hereunder for (i) payment of fees and expenses related to the Audit for each of Company’s fiscal years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2016,
(ii) payment of fees and expenses in connection with quotation of Common Stock on OTCQB and (iii) working capital purposes and shall not use such
proceeds: (a) for the satisfaction of any portion of the Company’s debt (other than payment of trade payables in the ordinary course of the Company’s
business and prior practices), (b) for the redemption of any Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents, (c) for the settlement of any outstanding
litigation or (d) in violation of FCPA or OFAC regulations.
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4.8 Indemnification of Purchasers. Subject to the provisions of this Section 4.8, the Company will indemnify and hold each Purchaser and its
directors, officers, shareholders, members, partners, employees and agents (and any other Persons with a functionally equivalent role of a Person holding
such titles notwithstanding a lack of such title or any other title), each Person who controls such Purchaser (within the meaning of Section 15 of the
Securities Act and Section 20 of the Exchange Act), and the directors, officers, shareholders, agents, members, partners or employees (and any other
Persons with a functionally equivalent role of a Person holding such titles notwithstanding a lack of such title or any other title) of such controlling
persons (each, a “Purchaser Party”) harmless from any and all losses, liabilities, obligations, claims, contingencies, damages, costs and expenses,
including all judgments, amounts paid in settlements, court costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of investigation that any such Purchaser Party
may suffer or incur as a result of or relating to (a) any breach of any of the representations, warranties, covenants or agreements made by the Company in
this Agreement or in the other Transaction Documents or (b) any action instituted against the Purchaser Parties in any capacity, or any of them or their
respective Affiliates, by any stockholder of the Company who is not an Affiliate of such Purchaser Party, with respect to any of the transactions
contemplated by the Transaction Documents (unless such action is based upon a breach of such Purchaser Party’s representations, warranties or covenants
under the Transaction Documents or any agreements or understandings such Purchaser Party may have with any such stockholder or any violations by
such Purchaser Party of state or federal securities laws or any conduct by such Purchaser Party which constitutes fraud, gross negligence, willful
misconduct or malfeasance). If any action shall be brought against any Purchaser Party in respect of which indemnity may be sought pursuant to this
Agreement, such Purchaser Party shall promptly notify the Company in writing, and the Company shall have the right to assume the defense thereof with
counsel of its own choosing reasonably acceptable to the Purchaser Party. Any Purchaser Party shall have the right to employ separate counsel in any such
action and participate in the defense thereof, but the fees and expenses of such counsel shall be at the expense of such Purchaser Party except to the extent
that (i) the employment thereof has been specifically authorized by the Company in writing, (ii) the Company has failed after a reasonable period of time
to assume such defense and to employ counsel or (iii) in such action there is, in the reasonable opinion of counsel, a material conflict on any material issue
between the position of the Company and the position of such Purchaser Party, in which case the Company shall be responsible for the reasonable fees and
expenses of no more than one such separate counsel. The Company will not be liable to any Purchaser Party under this Agreement (y) for any settlement
by a Purchaser Party effected without the Company’s prior written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed; or (z) to the extent, but
only to the extent that a loss, claim, damage or liability is attributable to any Purchaser Party’s breach of any of the representations, warranties, covenants
or agreements made by such Purchaser Party in this Agreement or in the other Transaction Documents. The indemnification required by this Section 4.8
shall be made by periodic payments of the amount thereof during the course of the investigation or defense, as and when bills are received or are incurred.
The indemnity agreements contained herein shall be in addition to any cause of action or similar right of any Purchaser Party against the Company or
others and any liabilities the Company may be subject to pursuant to law.

 
4.9 Reservation of Common Stock. As of the date hereof, the Company has reserved and the Company shall continue to reserve and keep

available at all times, free of preemptive rights, a number of shares of Common Stock that is sufficient for the purpose of enabling the Company to issue
Shares pursuant to this Agreement and Warrant Shares pursuant to any exercise of the Warrants, but in no event less than 250,000,000 shares of Common
Stock at any time which shall be reserved for issuance to the Purchasers pro rata based on each Purchaser’s respective Subscription Amount.
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4.10 Listing of Common Stock. The Company hereby agrees to use best efforts to maintain the listing or quotation of the Common Stock on the
Trading Market on which it is currently listed, and concurrently with the Closing, the Company shall apply to list or quote all of the Shares and Warrant
Shares on such Trading Market and promptly secure the listing of all of the Shares and Warrant Shares on such Trading Market. The Company further
agrees, if the Company applies to have the Common Stock traded on any other Trading Market, it will then include in such application all of the Shares
and Warrant Shares, and will take such other action as is necessary to cause all of the Shares and Warrant Shares to be listed or quoted on such other
Trading Market as promptly as possible. The Company will then take all action reasonably necessary to continue the listing or quotation and trading of its
Common Stock on a Trading Market and will comply in all respects with the Company’s reporting, filing and other obligations under the bylaws or rules
of the Trading Market. The Company agrees to maintain the eligibility of the Common Stock for electronic transfer through the Depository Trust
Company or another established clearing corporation, including, without limitation, by timely payment of fees to the Depository Trust Company or such
other established clearing corporation in connection with such electronic transfer.

 
4.11 Participation in Future Financing.
 

(a) From the date hereof until the date that is the eighteen (18) month anniversary of Effective Date, upon any issuance by the Company or
any of its Subsidiaries of Common Stock, Common Stock Equivalents for cash consideration, Indebtedness or a combination of units thereof (a
“Subsequent Financing”), each Purchaser shall have the right to participate in up to an amount of the Subsequent Financing equal to 50% of the
Subsequent Financing (the “Participation Maximum”) on the same terms, conditions and price provided for in the Subsequent Financing.

 
(b) At least five (5) Trading Days prior to the closing of the Subsequent Financing, the Company shall deliver to each Purchaser a written

notice of its intention to effect a Subsequent Financing (“Pre-Notice”), which Pre-Notice shall ask such Purchaser if it wants to review the details
of such financing (such additional notice, a “Subsequent Financing Notice”). Upon the request of a Purchaser, and only upon a request by such
Purchaser, for a Subsequent Financing Notice, the Company shall promptly, but no later than one (1) Trading Day after such request, deliver a
Subsequent Financing Notice to such Purchaser. The Subsequent Financing Notice shall describe in reasonable detail the proposed terms of such
Subsequent Financing, the amount of proceeds intended to be raised thereunder and the Person or Persons through or with whom such Subsequent
Financing is proposed to be effected and shall include a term sheet or similar document relating thereto as an attachment.
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(c) Any Purchaser desiring to participate in such Subsequent Financing must provide written notice to the Company by not later than 5:30
p.m. (New York City time) on the fifth (5 th) Trading Day after all of the Purchasers have received the Pre-Notice that such Purchaser is willing to
participate in the Subsequent Financing, the amount of such Purchaser’s participation, and representing and warranting that such Purchaser has
such funds ready, willing, and available for investment on the terms set forth in the Subsequent Financing Notice. If the Company receives no such
notice from a Purchaser as of such fifth (5th) Trading Day, such Purchaser shall be deemed to have notified the Company that it does not elect to
participate.

 
(d) If by 5:30 p.m. (New York City time) on the fifth (5th) Trading Day after all of the Purchasers have received the Pre-Notice,

notifications by the Purchasers of their willingness to participate in the Subsequent Financing (or to cause their designees to participate) is, in the
aggregate, less than the total amount of the Subsequent Financing, then the Company may effect the remaining portion of such Subsequent
Financing on the terms and with the Persons set forth in the Subsequent Financing Notice.

 
(e) If by 5:30 p.m. (New York City time) on the fifth (5th) Trading Day after all of the Purchasers have received the Pre-Notice, the

Company receives responses to a Subsequent Financing Notice from Purchasers seeking to purchase more than the aggregate amount of the
Participation Maximum, each such Purchaser shall have the right to purchase its Pro Rata Portion (as defined below) of the Participation
Maximum. “Pro Rata Portion” means the ratio of (x) the Subscription Amount of Securities purchased on the Closing Date by a Purchaser
participating under this Section 4.11 and (y) the sum of the aggregate Subscription Amounts of Securities purchased on the Closing Date by all
Purchasers participating under this Section 4.11.

 
(f) The Company must provide the Purchasers with a second Subsequent Financing Notice, and the Purchasers will again have the right of

participation set forth above in this Section 4.11, if the Subsequent Financing subject to the initial Subsequent Financing Notice is not
consummated for any reason on the terms set forth in such Subsequent Financing Notice within thirty (30) Trading Days after the date of the initial
Subsequent Financing Notice.

 
(g) The Company and each Purchaser agree that if any Purchaser elects to participate in the Subsequent Financing, the transaction

documents related to the Subsequent Financing shall not include any term or provision whereby such Purchaser shall be required to agree to any
restrictions on trading as to any of the Securities purchased hereunder or be required to consent to any amendment to or termination of, or grant any
waiver, release or the like under or in connection with, this Agreement, without the prior written consent of such Purchaser.

 
(h) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 4.11 and unless otherwise agreed to by such Purchaser, the Company shall

either confirm in writing to such Purchaser that the transaction with respect to the Subsequent Financing has been abandoned or shall publicly
disclose its intention to issue the securities in the Subsequent Financing, in either case in such a manner such that such Purchaser will not be in
possession of any material, non-public information, by the tenth (10th) Business Day following delivery of the Subsequent Financing Notice. If by
such tenth (10th) Business Day, no public disclosure regarding a transaction with respect to the Subsequent Financing has been made, and no notice
regarding the abandonment of such transaction has been received by such Purchaser, such transaction shall be deemed to have been abandoned and
such Purchaser shall not be deemed to be in possession of any material, non-public information with respect to the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries.
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(i) Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Section 4.11 shall not apply in respect of an Exempt Issuance or a firm commitment underwritten
offering of Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents.

 
4.12 Subsequent Equity Sales.
 

(a) From the date hereof until the date that is six (6) months following the Effective Date, neither the Company nor any Subsidiary shall
issue, enter into any agreement to issue or announce the issuance or proposed issuance of any shares of Common Stock or Common Stock
Equivalents.

 
(b) From the date hereof until such time as no Purchaser holds any of the Warrants, the Company shall be prohibited from incurring any

Indebtedness or effecting or entering into an agreement to effect any issuance by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries of Common Stock or
Common Stock Equivalents (or a combination of units thereof) involving a Variable Rate Transaction. “Variable Rate Transaction” means a
transaction in which the Company (i) issues or sells any debt or equity securities that are convertible into, exchangeable or exercisable for, or
include the right to receive, additional shares of Common Stock either (A) at a conversion price, exercise price or exchange rate or other price that
is based upon, and/or varies with, the trading prices of or quotations for the shares of Common Stock at any time after the initial issuance of such
debt or equity securities or (B) with a conversion, exercise or exchange price that is subject to being reset at some future date after the initial
issuance of such debt or equity security or upon the occurrence of specified or contingent events directly or indirectly related to the business of the
Company or the market for the Common Stock or (ii) enters into, or effects a transaction under, any agreement, but not limited to, an equity line of
credit or at-the-market offering, whereby the Company may issue securities at a future determined price. Any Purchaser shall be entitled to obtain
injunctive relief against the Company to preclude any such issuance, which remedy shall be in addition to any right to collect damages.

 
(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Section 4.12 shall not apply in respect of an Exempt Issuance, except that no Variable Rate

Transaction shall be an Exempt Issuance. For purposes of clarity, any issuance of Warrant Shares pursuant to the Warrant shall not be a Variable
Rate Transaction.
 
4.13 Equal Treatment of Purchasers. No consideration (including any modification of any Transaction Document) shall be offered or paid to any

Person to amend or consent to a waiver or modification of any provision of the Transaction Documents unless the same consideration is also offered to all
of the parties to the Transaction Documents. For clarification purposes, this provision constitutes a separate right granted to each Purchaser by the
Company and negotiated separately by each Purchaser, and is intended for the Company to treat the Purchasers as a class and shall not in any way be
construed as the Purchasers acting in concert or as a group with respect to the purchase, disposition or voting of Securities or otherwise.
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4.14 Company Acknowledgement on Certain Transactions. The Company expressly acknowledges and agrees that (i) no Purchaser makes any
representation, warranty or covenant hereby that it will not engage in effecting transactions in any securities of the Company following the Public
Company Date, (ii) no Purchaser shall be restricted or prohibited from effecting any transactions in any securities of the Company in accordance with
applicable securities laws from and after the Public Company Date and (iii) no Purchaser shall have any duty of confidentiality or duty not to trade in the
securities of the Company to the Company or its Subsidiaries from and after the Public Company Date. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary,
each Purchaser agrees, severally and not jointly with any other Purchaser, that such Purchaser will not enter into any Short Sales from the period
commencing on the Closing Date and ending on the date that such Purchaser no longer holds any Securities.

 
4.15 Form D; Blue Sky Filings. The Company agrees to timely file a Form D with respect to the Securities as required under Regulation D and to

provide a copy thereof, promptly upon request of any Purchaser. The Company shall take such action as the Company shall reasonably determine is
necessary in order to obtain an exemption for, or to qualify the Securities for, sale to the Purchasers at the Closing under applicable securities or “Blue
Sky” laws of the states of the United States, and shall provide evidence of such actions promptly upon request of any Purchaser.

 
4.16 [RESERVED]
 
4.17 Acknowledgment of Dilution. The Company acknowledges that the issuance of the Securities may result in dilution of the outstanding

shares of Common Stock, which dilution may be substantial under certain market conditions. The Company further acknowledges that its obligations
under the Transaction Documents, including, without limitation, its obligation to issue the Shares and Warrant Shares pursuant to the Transaction
Documents, are unconditional and absolute and not subject to any right of set off, counterclaim, delay or reduction, regardless of the effect of any such
dilution or any claim the Company may have against any Purchaser and regardless of the dilutive effect that such issuance may have on the ownership of
the other stockholders of the Company.

 
4.18 Most Favored Nation Provision. From the date hereof until the date that is the 18-month anniversary of Effective Date, to the extent a

Purchaser still holds Shares, such Purchaser may elect, in its sole discretion, to exchange all or some of the Shares (but not the Warrants) then held by
such Purchaser for additional securities (including any additional securities issued as part of a unit with such security) of the same type issued in such
Subsequent Financing (such exchange to be made at the same time as the closing of such Subsequent Financing), on the same terms and conditions as the
Subsequent Financing, based on the Per Share Purchase Price multiplied by the number of Shares being exchanged. By way of example, if the Company
undertakes a Subsequent Financing of convertible debentures and warrants, each Purchaser shall have the right to participate in such Subsequent
Financing and use the exchange of its Shares as consideration, on a $1 for $1 basis, in lieu of cash consideration. The Company shall provide prior written
notice of any such Subsequent Financing in the manner set forth in Section 4.11. This Section 4.19(a) shall not apply in connection with a firm
commitment underwritten offering of Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents
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4.19 Information Rights. Until the Public Company Date, the Company shall deliver to each Purchaser the unaudited financial statements of the
Company within forty five days following the end of each fiscal quarter and audited annual financial statements with one hundred and twenty (120) days
following the end of each fiscal year. Each Purchaser shall also be entitled to customary inspection and visitation rights. These provisions shall terminate
on the Public Company Date.

 
4.20 Piggy-Back Registrations. If, at any time prior to the Effective Date there is not an effective Registration Statement covering all of the

Shares and Warrant Shares and the Company shall determine to prepare and file with the Commission a registration statement relating to an offering for
its own account or the account of others under the Securities Act of any of its equity securities, other than on Form S-4 or Form S-8 (each as promulgated
under the Securities Act) or their then equivalents relating to equity securities to be issued solely in connection with any acquisition of any entity or
business or equity securities issuable in connection with the Company’s stock option or other employee benefit plans, then the Company shall deliver to
each Purchaser a written notice of such determination and, if within fifteen days after the date of the delivery of such notice, any such Purchaser shall so
request in writing, the Company shall include in such registration statement all or any part of such Shares and Warrant Shares such Purchaser requests to
be registered.
 

ARTICLE V.
MISCELLANEOUS

 
5.1 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by any Purchaser, as to such Purchaser’s obligations hereunder only and without any effect

whatsoever on the obligations between the Company and the other Purchasers, by written notice to the other parties, if the First Closing has not been
consummated on or before October ____, 2017; provided, however, that such termination will not affect the right of any party to sue for any breach by
any other party (or parties).

 
5.2 Fees and Expenses. At the First Closing, the Company shall reimburse the Special Equities Group, LLC or a designee thereof (“SEG”) the

non-accountable sum of $25,000 for its legal fees and expenses. In lieu of foregoing reimbursement, the Subscription Amount to be paid by SEG or its
designee at the First Closing may be reduced by $25,000. The Company shall deliver to each Purchaser, prior to the applicable Closing, a completed and
executed copy of the Closing Statement, attached hereto as Annex A. Except as expressly set forth in the Transaction Documents to the contrary, each
party shall pay the fees and expenses of its advisers, counsel, accountants and other experts, if any, and all other expenses incurred by such party incident
to the negotiation, preparation, execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement. The Company shall pay all Transfer Agent fees (including,
without limitation, any fees required for same-day processing of any instruction letter delivered by the Company and any exercise notice delivered by a
Purchaser), stamp taxes and other taxes and duties levied in connection with the delivery of any Securities to the Purchasers.
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5.3 Entire Agreement . The Transaction Documents, together with the exhibits and schedules thereto, contain the entire understanding of the
parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and thereof and supersede all prior agreements and understandings, oral or written, with respect to such
matters, which the parties acknowledge have been merged into such documents, exhibits and schedules.

 
5.4 Notices. Any and all notices or other communications or deliveries required or permitted to be provided hereunder shall be in writing and

shall be deemed given and effective on the earliest of: (a) the date of transmission, if such notice or communication is delivered via facsimile at the
facsimile number or email attachment at the email address as set forth on the signature pages attached hereto at or prior to 5:30 p.m. (New York City
time) on a Trading Day, (b) the next Trading Day after the date of transmission, if such notice or communication is delivered via facsimile at the facsimile
number or email attachment at the email address as set forth on the signature pages attached hereto on a day that is not a Trading Day or later than 5:30
p.m. (New York City time) on any Trading Day, (c) the second (2 nd) Trading Day following the date of mailing, if sent by U.S. nationally recognized
overnight courier service or (d) upon actual receipt by the party to whom such notice is required to be given. The address for such notices and
communications shall be as set forth on the signature pages attached hereto. Following the Public Company Date, to the extent that any notice provided
pursuant to any Transaction Document constitutes, or contains material, non-public information regarding the Company or any of the Subsidiaries, the
Company shall simultaneously file such notice with the Commission pursuant to a Current Report on Form 8-K.

 
5.5 Amendments; Waivers. No provision of this Agreement may be waived, modified, supplemented or amended except in a written instrument

signed, in the case of an amendment, by the Company and Purchasers which purchased at least 50.1% in interest of the Shares, based on the initial
Subscription Amounts hereunder or, in the case of a waiver, by the party against whom enforcement of any such waived provision is sought, provided that
if any amendment, modification or waiver disproportionately and adversely impacts a Purchaser (or group of Purchasers), the consent of such
disproportionately impacted Purchaser (or group of Purchasers) shall also be required. No waiver of any default with respect to any provision, condition or
requirement of this Agreement shall be deemed to be a continuing waiver in the future or a waiver of any subsequent default or a waiver of any other
provision, condition or requirement hereof, nor shall any delay or omission of any party to exercise any right hereunder in any manner impair the exercise
of any such right. Any proposed amendment or waiver that disproportionately, materially and adversely affects the rights and obligations of any Purchaser
relative to the comparable rights and obligations of the other Purchasers shall require the prior written consent of such adversely affected Purchaser, Any
amendment effected in accordance with this Section 5.5 shall be binding upon each Purchaser and holder of Securities and the Company.

 
5.6 Headings. The headings herein are for convenience only, do not constitute a part of this Agreement and shall not be deemed to limit or affect

any of the provisions hereof.
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5.7 Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their successors and permitted
assigns. The Company may not assign this Agreement or any rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of each Purchaser (other
than by merger). Any Purchaser may assign any or all of its rights under this Agreement to any Person to whom such Purchaser assigns or transfers any
Securities, provided that such transferee agrees in writing to be bound, with respect to the transferred Securities, by the provisions of the Transaction
Documents that apply to the “Purchasers.”

 
5.8 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is intended for the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted

assigns and is not for the benefit of, nor may any provision hereof be enforced by, any other Person, except as otherwise set forth in Section 4.8.
 
5.9 Governing Law. All questions concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of the Transaction Documents shall be

governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the internal laws of the State of New York, without regard to the principles of conflicts of law
thereof. Each party agrees that all legal Proceedings concerning the interpretations, enforcement and defense of the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement and any other Transaction Documents (whether brought against a party hereto or its respective affiliates, directors, officers, shareholders,
partners, members, employees or agents) shall be commenced exclusively in the state and federal courts sitting in the City of New York. Each party
hereby irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal courts sitting in the City of New York, Borough of Manhattan for the
adjudication of any dispute hereunder or in connection herewith or with any transaction contemplated hereby or discussed herein (including with respect
to the enforcement of any of the Transaction Documents), and hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees not to assert in any Action or Proceeding, any claim
that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of any such court, that such Action or Proceeding is improper or is an inconvenient venue for such
Proceeding. Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process being served in any such Action or Proceeding by
mailing a copy thereof via registered or certified mail or overnight delivery (with evidence of delivery) to such party at the address in effect for notices to
it under this Agreement and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service of process and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein
shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any other manner permitted by law. If any party hereto shall commence an Action or
Proceeding to enforce any provisions of the Transaction Documents, then, in addition to the obligations of the Company under Section 4.8, the prevailing
party in such Action or Proceeding shall be reimbursed by the non-prevailing party for its reasonable attorneys’ fees and other costs and expenses
incurred with the investigation, preparation and prosecution of such Action or Proceeding.

 
5.10 Survival. The representations and warranties contained herein shall survive the Closing and the delivery of the Securities.
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5.11 Execution. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, all of which when taken together shall be considered one and the
same agreement and shall become effective when counterparts have been signed by each party and delivered to each other party, it being understood that
the parties need not sign the same counterpart. In the event that any signature is delivered by facsimile transmission or by e-mail delivery of a “.pdf”
format data file, such signature shall create a valid and binding obligation of the party executing (or on whose behalf such signature is executed) with the
same force and effect as if such facsimile or “.pdf” signature page were an original thereof.

 
5.12 Severability. If any term, provision, covenant or restriction of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid,

illegal, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the terms, provisions, covenants and restrictions set forth herein shall remain in full force and effect and
shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated, and the parties hereto shall use their commercially reasonable efforts to find and employ an
alternative means to achieve the same or substantially the same result as that contemplated by such term, provision, covenant or restriction. It is hereby
stipulated and declared to be the intention of the parties that they would have executed the remaining terms, provisions, covenants and restrictions without
including any of such that may be hereafter declared invalid, illegal, void or unenforceable.

 
5.13 Rescission and Withdrawal Right. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in (and without limiting any similar provisions of)

any of the other Transaction Documents, whenever any Purchaser exercises a right, election, demand or option under a Transaction Document and the
Company does not timely perform its related obligations within the periods therein provided, then such Purchaser may rescind or withdraw, in its sole
discretion from time to time upon written notice to the Company, any relevant notice, demand or election in whole or in part without prejudice to its future
actions and rights; provided, however, that, in the case of a rescission of an exercise of a Warrant, the applicable Purchaser shall be required to return any
shares of Common Stock subject to any such rescinded exercise notice concurrently with the return to such Purchaser of the aggregate exercise price paid
to the Company for such shares and the restoration of such Purchaser’s right to acquire such shares pursuant to such Purchaser’s Warrant (including,
issuance of a replacement warrant certificate evidencing such restored right).

 
5.14 Replacement of Securities. If any certificate or instrument evidencing any Securities is mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Company

shall issue or cause to be issued in exchange and substitution for and upon cancellation thereof (in the case of mutilation), or in lieu of and substitution
therefor, a new certificate or instrument, but only upon receipt of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of such loss, theft or destruction. The
applicant for a new certificate or instrument under such circumstances shall also pay any reasonable third-party costs (including customary indemnity)
associated with the issuance of such replacement Securities.

 
5.15 Remedies. In addition to being entitled to exercise all rights provided herein or granted by law, including recovery of damages, each of the

Purchasers and the Company will be entitled to specific performance under the Transaction Documents. The parties agree that monetary damages may not
be adequate compensation for any loss incurred by reason of any breach of obligations contained in the Transaction Documents and hereby agree to waive
and not to assert in any Action for specific performance of any such obligation the defense that a remedy at law would be adequate.
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5.16 Payment Set Aside. To the extent that the Company makes a payment or payments to any Purchaser pursuant to any Transaction Document
or a Purchaser enforces or exercises its rights thereunder, and such payment or payments or the proceeds of such enforcement or exercise or any part
thereof are subsequently invalidated, declared to be fraudulent or preferential, set aside, recovered from, disgorged by or are required to be refunded,
repaid or otherwise restored to the Company, a trustee, receiver or any other Person under any law (including, without limitation, any bankruptcy law,
state or federal law, common law or equitable cause of action), then to the extent of any such restoration the obligation or part thereof originally intended
to be satisfied shall be revived and continued in full force and effect as if such payment had not been made or such enforcement or setoff had not
occurred.

 
5.17 Independent Nature of Purchasers’ Obligations and Rights. The obligations of each Purchaser under any Transaction Document are several

and not joint with the obligations of any other Purchaser, and no Purchaser shall be responsible in any way for the performance or non-performance of the
obligations of any other Purchaser under any Transaction Document. Nothing contained herein or in any other Transaction Document, and no action taken
by any Purchaser pursuant hereof or thereto, shall be deemed to constitute the Purchasers as a partnership, an association, a joint venture or any other kind
of entity, or create a presumption that the Purchasers are in any way acting in concert or as a group with respect to such obligations or the transactions
contemplated by the Transaction Documents. Each Purchaser shall be entitled to independently protect and enforce its rights, including, without
limitation, the rights arising out of this Agreement or out of the other Transaction Documents, and it shall not be necessary for any other Purchaser to be
joined as an additional party in any proceeding for such purpose. Each Purchaser has been represented by its own separate legal counsel in its review and
negotiation of the Transaction Documents. For reasons of administrative convenience only, each Purchaser and its respective counsel have chosen to
communicate with the Company through EGS. EGS does not represent all of the Purchasers and only represents SEG. It is expressly understood and
agreed that each provision contained in this Agreement and in each other Transaction Document is between Company and a Purchaser, solely, and not
between the Company and the Purchasers collectively and not between and among the Purchasers. The Company has elected to provide all Purchasers
with the same terms and Transaction Documents for the convenience of the Company and not because it was required or requested to do so by any of the
Purchasers.

 
5.18 Liquidated Damages. The Company’s obligations to pay any partial liquidated damages or other amounts owing under the Transaction

Documents is a continuing obligation of the Company and shall not terminate until all unpaid partial liquidated damages and other amounts have been
paid notwithstanding the fact that the instrument or security pursuant to which such partial liquidated damages or other amounts are due and payable shall
have been canceled.

 
5.19 Saturdays, Sundays, Holidays, etc. If the last or appointed day for the taking of any action or the expiration of any right required or granted

herein shall not be a Business Day, then such action may be taken or such right may be exercised on the next succeeding Business Day.
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5.20 Construction. The parties agree that each of them and/or their respective counsel have reviewed and had an opportunity to revise the
Transaction Documents and, therefore, the normal rule of construction to the effect that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party shall
not be employed in the interpretation of the Transaction Documents or any amendments thereto. In addition, each and every reference to share prices and
shares of Common Stock in any Transaction Document shall be subject to adjustment for reverse and forward stock splits, stock dividends, stock
combinations and other similar transactions of the Common Stock that occur after the date of this Agreement.

 
5.21 WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. IN ANY ACTION, SUIT, OR PROCEEDING IN ANY JURISDICTION BROUGHT BY ANY

PARTY AGAINST ANY OTHER PARTY, THE PARTIES EACH KNOWINGLY AND INTENTIONALLY, TO THE GREATEST EXTENT
PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, HEREBY ABSOLUTELY, UNCONDITIONALLY, IRREVOCABLY AND EXPRESSLY WAIVES
FOREVER TRIAL BY JURY.
 

(Signature Pages Follow)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Securities Purchase Agreement to be duly executed by their respective authorized
signatories as of the date first indicated above.
 
ICONIC BRANDS, INC.  Address for Notice:
    
By: /s/ Richard DeCicco  Fax:
Name: Richard DeCicco   
Title: President   
With a copy to (which shall not constitute notice):  Email:
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
SIGNATURE PAGE FOR PURCHASER FOLLOWS]
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[PURCHASER SIGNATURE PAGES TO ICNB SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT]
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Securities Purchase Agreement to be duly executed by their respective authorized
signatories as of the date first indicated above.
 
Name of Purchaser:  The Special Equities Group, LLC                                                                                   
 
Signature of Authorized Signatory of Purchaser:  /s/ Jonathan Schechter                                               
 
Name of Authorized Signatory:  Jonathan Schechter                                                                                      
 
Title of Authorized Signatory:  Principal                                                                                                            
 
Email Address of Authorized Signatory: ______________________________________________
 
Facsimile Number of Authorized Signatory: _____________________________________________
 
Address for Notice to Purchaser:
 
Address for Delivery of Securities to Purchaser (if not same as address for notice):
 
Subscription Amount (Total): $____________, allocated to First Closing: $___________; and Second Closing: $___________.
 
Shares (Total): ____________, allocated to First Closing: _______; and Second Closing: _______.
 
Warrant Shares (Total): __________, allocated to First Closing: _______; and Second Closing: ______.
 
EIN Number: _______________________

 
[SIGNATURE PAGES CONTINUE]
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[PURCHASER SIGNATURE PAGES TO ICNB SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT]

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Securities Purchase Agreement to be duly executed by their respective authorized

signatories as of the date first indicated above.
 
Name of Purchaser:  Iroquois Master Fund Ltd.                                                                                           
 
Signature of Authorized Signatory of Purchaser:  /s/ Richard Abbe                                                        
 
Name of Authorized Signatory:  Richard Abbe                                                                                                
 
Title of Authorized Signatory:   Director                                                                                                          
 
Email Address of Authorized Signatory: _____________________________________________
 
Facsimile Number of Authorized Signatory: ___________________________________________
 
Address for Notice to Purchaser:
 
Address for Delivery of Securities to Purchaser (if not same as address for notice):
 
Subscription Amount (Total): $____________, allocated to First Closing: $___________; and Second Closing: $___________.
 
Shares (Total): ____________, allocated to First Closing: _______; and Second Closing: _______.
 
Warrant Shares (Total): __________, allocated to First Closing: _______; and Second Closing: ______.
 
EIN Number: _______________________

 
[SIGNATURE PAGES CONTINUE]
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[PURCHASER SIGNATURE PAGES TO ICNB SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT]
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Securities Purchase Agreement to be duly executed by their respective authorized
signatories as of the date first indicated above.
 
Name of Purchaser:  Iroquois Capital Investment Group, LLC                                                                       
 
Signature of Authorized Signatory of Purchaser:   /s/ Richard Abbe                                                          
 
Name of Authorized Signatory:  Richard Abbe                                                                                                 
 
Title of Authorized Signatory:  Managing Member                                                                                           
 
Email Address of Authorized Signatory: ______________________________________________
 
Facsimile Number of Authorized Signatory: _____________________________________________
 
Address for Notice to Purchaser:
 
Address for Delivery of Securities to Purchaser (if not same as address for notice):
 
Subscription Amount (Total): $____________, allocated to First Closing: $___________; and Second Closing: $___________.
 
Shares (Total): ____________, allocated to First Closing: _______; and Second Closing: _______.
 
Warrant Shares (Total): __________, allocated to First Closing: _______; and Second Closing: ______.
 
EIN Number: _______________________

 
[SIGNATURE PAGES CONTINUE]
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[PURCHASER SIGNATURE PAGES TO ICNB SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT]
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Securities Purchase Agreement to be duly executed by their respective authorized
signatories as of the date first indicated above.
 
Name of Purchaser:  Gregory M. Castaldo                                                                                                          
 
Signature of Authorized Signatory of Purchaser:  /s/ Gregory M. Castaldo                                                
 
Name of Authorized Signatory:  Gregory M. Castaldo                                                                                      
 
Title of Authorized Signatory: _____________________________________________________
 
Email Address of Authorized Signatory: ______________________________________________
 
Facsimile Number of Authorized Signatory: ____________________________________________
 
Address for Notice to Purchaser:
 
Address for Delivery of Securities to Purchaser (if not same as address for notice):
 
Subscription Amount (Total): $____________, allocated to First Closing: $___________; and Second Closing: $___________.
 
Shares (Total): ____________, allocated to First Closing: _______; and Second Closing: _______.
 
Warrant Shares (Total): __________, allocated to First Closing: _______; and Second Closing: ______.
 
EIN Number: _______________________

 
[SIGNATURE PAGES CONTINUE]
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Annex A
 

CLOSING STATEMENT
 
Pursuant to the attached Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of the date hereto, the purchasers shall purchase up to $______ of Common Stock and
Warrants from Iconic Brands, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Company”). All funds will be wired into an account maintained by the Company. All
funds will be disbursed in accordance with this Closing Statement.
 
Disbursement Date: __________, _____
 
I. PURCHASE PRICE   
   

Gross Proceeds to be Received $  
  

II. DISBURSEMENTS  
 $  
 $  
 $  
 $  
 $  

  
Total Amount Disbursed: $  

 
 
  

WIRE INSTRUCTIONS:
See attached.  

   
Acknowledged and agreed
as of the date hereof:  

 
ICONIC BRANDS, INC.
   
By:
Name:  



Title:  
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EXHIBIT 10.5
 

REGISTRATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT
 

This Registration Rights Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of November 1, 2017, between Iconic Brands, Inc., a Nevada
corporation (the “Company”), and each of the several purchasers signatory hereto (each such purchaser, a “Purchaser” and, collectively, the “Purchasers”).

 
This Agreement is made pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of the date hereof, between the Company and each Purchaser

(the “Purchase Agreement”).
 
The Company and each Purchaser hereby agrees as follows:
 
1. Definitions.

 
Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein that are defined in the Purchase Agreement shall have the meanings given such

terms in the Purchase Agreement. As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
 

“Advice” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6(d).
 
“Effectiveness Date” means, with respect to the Initial Registration Statement required to be filed hereunder, the date that is 150 calendar

days following the earlier of (i) the Filing Date and (ii) the date on which the Initial Registration Statement is filed with the Commission and with
respect to any additional Registration Statements which may be required pursuant to Section 2(c) or Section 3(c), the 120th calendar day following
the date on which an additional Registration Statement is required to be filed hereunder; provided, however, that, in the event the Company is
notified by the Commission that one or more of the above Registration Statements will not be reviewed or is no longer subject to further review and
comments, the Effectiveness Date as to such Registration Statement shall be the fifth Trading Day following the date on which the Company is so
notified if such date precedes the dates otherwise required above, provided, further, if such Effectiveness Date falls on a day that is not a Trading
Day, then the Effectiveness Date shall be the next succeeding Trading Day.

 
“Effectiveness Period” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2(a).
 
“Event” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2(d).
 
“Event Date” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2(d).
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“Filing Date” means, with respect to the Initial Registration Statement required hereunder, the 20th calendar day following the date of
completion of the Audit for the Company’s fiscal years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2016 and, with respect to any additional
Registration Statements which may be required pursuant to Section 2(c) or Section 3(c), the earliest practical date on which the Company is
permitted by SEC Guidance to file such additional Registration Statement related to the Registrable Securities.

 
“Holder” or “Holders” means the holder or holders, as the case may be, from time to time of Registrable Securities.
 
“Indemnified Party” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(c).
 
“Indemnifying Party” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(c).
 
“Initial Registration Statement” means the initial Registration Statement filed pursuant to this Agreement.
 
“Losses” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(a).
 
“Plan of Distribution” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2(a).
 
“Prospectus” means the prospectus included in a Registration Statement (including, without limitation, a prospectus that includes any

information previously omitted from a prospectus filed as part of an effective registration statement in reliance upon Rule 430A promulgated by the
Commission pursuant to the Securities Act), as amended or supplemented by any prospectus supplement, with respect to the terms of the offering of
any portion of the Registrable Securities covered by a Registration Statement, and all other amendments and supplements to the Prospectus,
including post-effective amendments, and all material incorporated by reference or deemed to be incorporated by reference in such Prospectus.
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“Registrable Securities” means, as of any date of determination, (a) all Shares then issued and issuable pursuant to the Purchase
Agreement, (b) all Warrant Shares then issued and issuable upon exercise of the Warrants (assuming on such date the Warrants are exercised in full
without regard to any exercise limitations therein), (c) any additional shares of Common Stock issued and issuable in connection with any anti-
dilution provisions in the Purchase Agreement or the Warrants (without giving effect to any limitations on issuance set forth in the Purchase
Agreement or any limitations on exercise set forth in the Warrants) and (d) any securities issued or then issuable upon any stock split, dividend or
other distribution, recapitalization or similar event with respect to the foregoing; provided, however, that any such Registrable Securities shall cease
to be Registrable Securities (and the Company shall not be required to maintain the effectiveness of any, or file another, Registration Statement
hereunder with respect thereto) for so long as (a) a Registration Statement with respect to the sale of such Registrable Securities is declared
effective by the Commission under the Securities Act and such Registrable Securities have been disposed of by the Holder in accordance with such
effective Registration Statement, (b) such Registrable Securities have been previously sold in accordance with Rule 144, or (c) such securities
become eligible for resale without volume or manner-of-sale restrictions and without current public information pursuant to Rule 144 as set forth in
a written opinion letter to such effect, addressed, delivered and acceptable to the Transfer Agent and the affected Holders (assuming that such
securities and any securities issuable upon exercise, conversion or exchange of which, or as a dividend upon which, such securities were issued or
are issuable, were at no time held by any Affiliate of the Company, and all Warrants are exercised by “cashless exercise” as provided in Section
2(c) of each of the Warrants), as reasonably determined by the Company, upon the advice of counsel to the Company.

 
“Registration Statement” means any registration statement required to be filed hereunder pursuant to Section 2(a) and any additional

registration statements contemplated by Section 2(c) or Section 3(c), including (in each case) the Prospectus, amendments and supplements to any
such registration statement or Prospectus, including pre- and post-effective amendments, all exhibits thereto, and all material incorporated by
reference or deemed to be incorporated by reference in any such registration statement.

 
“Rule 415” means Rule 415 promulgated by the Commission pursuant to the Securities Act, as such Rule may be amended or interpreted

from time to time, or any similar rule or regulation hereafter adopted by the Commission having substantially the same purpose and effect as such
Rule.

 
“Rule 424” means Rule 424 promulgated by the Commission pursuant to the Securities Act, as such Rule may be amended or interpreted

from time to time, or any similar rule or regulation hereafter adopted by the Commission having substantially the same purpose and effect as such
Rule.

 
“Selling Stockholder Questionnaire” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3(a).
 
“SEC Guidance” means (i) any publicly-available written or oral guidance of the Commission staff, or any comments, requirements or

requests of the Commission staff and (ii) the Securities Act.
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2. Shelf Registration.
 
(a) On or prior to each Filing Date, the Company shall prepare and file with the Commission a Registration Statement covering the resale

of all of the Registrable Securities that are not then registered on an effective Registration Statement for an offering to be made on a continuous
basis pursuant to Rule 415. Each Registration Statement filed hereunder shall be on Form S-1 and shall contain (unless otherwise directed by at
least 85% in interest of the Holders) substantially the “Plan of Distribution” attached hereto as Annex A and substantially the “Selling
Stockholder” section attached hereto as Annex B; provided, however, that no Holder shall be required to be named as an “underwriter” without
such Holder’s express prior written consent. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the Company shall use its best efforts to cause a Registration
Statement filed under this Agreement (including, without limitation, under Section 3(c)) to be declared effective under the Securities Act as
promptly as possible after the filing thereof, but in any event no later than the applicable Effectiveness Date, and shall use its best efforts to keep
such Registration Statement continuously effective under the Securities Act until the date that all Registrable Securities covered by such
Registration Statement (i) have been sold, thereunder or pursuant to Rule 144, or (ii) may be sold without volume or manner-of-sale restrictions
pursuant to Rule 144 and without the requirement for the Company to be in compliance with the current public information requirement under Rule
144, as determined by the counsel to the Company pursuant to a written opinion letter to such effect, addressed and acceptable to the Transfer
Agent and the affected Holders (the “Effectiveness Period”). The Company shall telephonically request effectiveness of a Registration Statement as
of 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time on a Trading Day. The Company shall immediately notify the Holders via facsimile or by e-mail of the effectiveness of a
Registration Statement on the same Trading Day that the Company telephonically confirms effectiveness with the Commission, which shall be two
days prior to the effectiveness of such Registration Statement. The Company shall, by 9:30 a.m. Eastern Time on the second Trading Day after the
effective date of such Registration Statement, file a final Prospectus with the Commission as required by Rule 424. Failure to so notify the Holder
within one (1) Trading Day of such notification of effectiveness or failure to file a final Prospectus as foresaid shall be deemed an Event under
Section 2(d).

 
(b) Notwithstanding the registration obligations set forth in Section 2(a), if the Commission informs the Company that all of the

Registrable Securities cannot, as a result of the application of Rule 415, be registered for resale as a secondary offering on a single registration
statement, the Company agrees to promptly inform each of the Holders thereof and use its commercially reasonable efforts to file amendments to
the Initial Registration Statement as required by the Commission, covering the maximum number of Registrable Securities permitted to be
registered by the Commission, on Form S-3 or such other form available to register for resale the Registrable Securities as a secondary offering,
subject to the provisions of Section 2(e); with respect to filing on Form S-3 or other appropriate form, and subject to the provisions of Section 2(d)
with respect to the payment of liquidated damages; provided, however, that, prior to filing such amendment, the Company shall be obligated to use
diligent efforts to advocate with the Commission for the registration of all of the Registrable Securities in accordance with the SEC Guidance,
including without limitation, Compliance and Disclosure Interpretation 612.09.
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(c) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement and subject to the payment of liquidated damages pursuant to Section 2(d), if
the Commission or any SEC Guidance sets forth a limitation on the number of Registrable Securities permitted to be registered on a particular
Registration Statement as a secondary offering (and notwithstanding that the Company used diligent efforts to advocate with the Commission for
the registration of all or a greater portion of Registrable Securities), unless otherwise directed in writing by a Holder as to its Registrable Securities,
the number of Registrable Securities to be registered on such Registration Statement will be reduced as follows:

 
 a. First, the Company shall reduce Registrable Securities represented by Warrant Shares (applied, in the case that some Warrant Shares

may be registered, to the Holders on a pro rata basis based on the total number of unregistered Warrant Shares held by such Holders);
and

   
 b. Second, the Company shall reduce Registrable Securities represented by Shares (applied, in the case that some Shares may be

registered, to the Holders on a pro rata basis based on the total number of unregistered Shares held by such Holders).
 

In the event of a cutback hereunder, the Company shall give the Holder at least five (5) Trading Days prior written notice along with the
calculations as to such Holder’s allotment. In the event the Company amends the Initial Registration Statement in accordance with the foregoing,
the Company will use its best efforts to file with the Commission, as promptly as allowed by Commission or SEC Guidance provided to the
Company or to registrants of securities in general, one or more registration statements on Form S-3 or such other form available to register for
resale those Registrable Securities that were not registered for resale on the Initial Registration Statement, as amended.
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(d) If: (i) the Initial Registration Statement is not filed on or prior to its Filing Date (if the Company files the Initial Registration Statement
without affording the Holders the opportunity to review and comment on the same as required by Section 3(a) herein, the Company shall be
deemed to have not satisfied this clause (i)), or (ii) the Company fails to file with the Commission a request for acceleration of a Registration
Statement in accordance with Rule 461 promulgated by the Commission pursuant to the Securities Act, within five Trading Days of the date that
the Company is notified (orally or in writing, whichever is earlier) by the Commission that such Registration Statement will not be “reviewed” or
will not be subject to further review, or (iii) prior to the effective date of a Registration Statement, the Company fails to file a pre-effective
amendment and otherwise respond in writing to comments made by the Commission in respect of such Registration Statement within twenty (20)
calendar days after the receipt of comments by or notice from the Commission that such amendment is required in order for such Registration
Statement to be declared effective, or (iv) a Registration Statement registering for resale all of the Registrable Securities is not declared effective by
the Commission by the Effectiveness Date of the Initial Registration Statement, or (v) after the effective date of a Registration Statement, such
Registration Statement ceases for any reason to remain continuously effective as to all Registrable Securities included in such Registration
Statement, or the Holders are otherwise not permitted to utilize the Prospectus therein to resell such Registrable Securities, for more than three (3)
consecutive Trading Days or more than an aggregate of ten (10) calendar days (which need not be consecutive calendar days) during any 12-month
period (any such failure or breach being referred to as an “Event”, and for purposes of clauses (i) and (iv), the date on which such Event occurs, and
for purpose of clause (ii) the date on which such five (5) Trading Day period is exceeded, and for purpose of clause (iii) the date which such twenty
(20) calendar day period is exceeded, and for purpose of clause (v) the date on which such three (3) Trading Day or ten (10) calendar day period, as
applicable, is exceeded being referred to as “Event Date”), then, in addition to any other rights the Holders may have hereunder or under applicable
law, on each such Event Date and on each monthly anniversary of each such Event Date (if the applicable Event shall not have been cured by such
date) until the applicable Event is cured, the Company shall pay to each Holder an amount in cash, as partial liquidated damages and not as a
penalty, equal to the product of 1.0% multiplied by the aggregate Subscription Amount paid by such Holder pursuant to the Purchase Agreement.
The parties agree that the maximum aggregate liquidated damages payable to a Holder under this Agreement shall be 6.0% of the aggregate
Subscription Amount paid by such Holder pursuant to the Purchase Agreement. If the Company fails to pay any partial liquidated damages
pursuant to this Section in full within seven days after the date payable, the Company will pay interest thereon at a rate of 18% per annum (or such
lesser maximum amount that is permitted to be paid by applicable law) to the Holder, accruing daily from the date such partial liquidated damages
are due until such amounts, plus all such interest thereon, are paid in full. The partial liquidated damages pursuant to the terms hereof shall apply on
a daily pro rata basis for any portion of a month prior to the cure of an Event.

 
(e) If Form S-1 is not available for the registration of the resale of Registrable Securities hereunder, the Company shall (i) register the

resale of the Registrable Securities on another appropriate form and (ii) undertake to register the Registrable Securities on Form S-1 as soon as such
form is available, provided that the Company shall maintain the effectiveness of the Registration Statement then in effect until such time as a
Registration Statement on Form S-1 covering the Registrable Securities has been declared effective by the Commission.



 
(f) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, in no event shall the Company be permitted to name any Holder or affiliate

of a Holder as any Underwriter without the prior written consent of such Holder.
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3. Registration Procedures.
 
In connection with the Company’s registration obligations hereunder, the Company shall:



 
(a) Not less than five (5) Trading Days prior to the filing of each Registration Statement and not less than one (1) Trading Day prior to the

filing of any related Prospectus or any amendment or supplement thereto (including any document that would be incorporated or deemed to be
incorporated therein by reference), the Company shall (i) furnish to each Holder copies of all such documents proposed to be filed, which
documents (other than those incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference) will be subject to the review of such Holders, and (ii) cause
its officers and directors, counsel and independent registered public accountants to respond to such inquiries as shall be necessary, in the reasonable
opinion of respective counsel to each Holder, to conduct a reasonable investigation within the meaning of the Securities Act. The Company shall
not file a Registration Statement or any such Prospectus or any amendments or supplements thereto to which the Holders of a majority of the
Registrable Securities shall reasonably object in good faith, provided that the Company is notified of such objection in writing no later than four (4)
Trading Days after the Holders have been so furnished copies of a Registration Statement or one (1) Trading Day after the Holders have been so
furnished copies of any related Prospectus or amendments or supplements thereto. Each Holder agrees to furnish to the Company a completed
questionnaire in the form attached to this Agreement as Annex C (a “Selling Stockholder Questionnaire”) on a date that is not less than two (2)
Trading Days prior to the Filing Date or by the end of the fourth (4th) Trading Day following the date on which such Holder receives draft
materials in accordance with this Section.

 
(b) (i) Prepare and file with the Commission such amendments, including post-effective amendments, to a Registration Statement and the

Prospectus used in connection therewith as may be necessary to keep a Registration Statement continuously effective as to the applicable
Registrable Securities for the Effectiveness Period and prepare and file with the Commission such additional Registration Statements in order to
register for resale under the Securities Act all of the Registrable Securities, (ii) cause the related Prospectus to be amended or supplemented by any
required Prospectus supplement (subject to the terms of this Agreement), and, as so supplemented or amended, to be filed pursuant to Rule 424,
(iii) respond as promptly as reasonably possible to any comments received from the Commission with respect to a Registration Statement or any
amendment thereto and provide as promptly as reasonably possible to the Holders true and complete copies of all correspondence from and to the
Commission relating to a Registration Statement (provided that, the Company shall excise any information contained therein which would
constitute material non-public information regarding the Company or any of its Subsidiaries), and (iv) comply in all material respects with the
applicable provisions of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act with respect to the disposition of all Registrable Securities covered by a
Registration Statement during the applicable period in accordance (subject to the terms of this Agreement) with the intended methods of disposition
by the Holders thereof set forth in such Registration Statement as so amended or in such Prospectus as so supplemented.
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(c) If during the Effectiveness Period, the number of Registrable Securities at any time exceeds 100% of the number of shares of Common
Stock then registered in a Registration Statement, then the Company shall file as soon as reasonably practicable, but in any case prior to the
applicable Filing Date, an additional Registration Statement covering the resale by the Holders of not less than the number of such Registrable
Securities.

 
(d) Notify the Holders of Registrable Securities to be sold (which notice shall, pursuant to clauses (iii) through (vi) hereof, be accompanied

by an instruction to suspend the use of the Prospectus until the requisite changes have been made) as promptly as reasonably possible (and, in the
case of (i)(A) below, not less than one (1) Trading Day prior to such filing) and (if requested by any such Person) confirm such notice in writing no
later than one (1) Trading Day following the day (i)(A) when a Prospectus or any Prospectus supplement or post-effective amendment to a
Registration Statement is proposed to be filed, (B) when the Commission notifies the Company whether there will be a “review” of such
Registration Statement and whenever the Commission comments in writing on such Registration Statement, and (C) with respect to a Registration
Statement or any post-effective amendment, when the same has become effective, (ii) of any request by the Commission or any other federal or
state governmental authority for amendments or supplements to a Registration Statement or Prospectus or for additional information, (iii) of the
issuance by the Commission or any other federal or state governmental authority of any stop order suspending the effectiveness of a Registration
Statement covering any or all of the Registrable Securities or the initiation of any Proceedings for that purpose, (iv) of the receipt by the Company
of any notification with respect to the suspension of the qualification or exemption from qualification of any of the Registrable Securities for sale in
any jurisdiction, or the initiation or threatening of any Proceeding for such purpose, (v) of the occurrence of any event or passage of time that
makes the financial statements included in a Registration Statement ineligible for inclusion therein or any statement made in a Registration
Statement or Prospectus or any document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated therein by reference untrue in any material respect or that
requires any revisions to a Registration Statement, Prospectus or other documents so that, in the case of a Registration Statement or the Prospectus,
as the case may be, it will not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or
necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, and (vi) of the occurrence or
existence of any pending corporate development with respect to the Company that the Company believes may be material and that, in the
determination of the Company, makes it not in the best interest of the Company to allow continued availability of a Registration Statement or
Prospectus, provided, however, in no event shall any such notice contain any information which would constitute material, non-public information
regarding the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.
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(e) Use its best efforts to avoid the issuance of, or, if issued, obtain the withdrawal of (i) any order stopping or suspending the effectiveness
of a Registration Statement, or (ii) any suspension of the qualification (or exemption from qualification) of any of the Registrable Securities for sale
in any jurisdiction, at the earliest practicable moment.

 
(f) Furnish to each Holder, without charge, at least one conformed copy of each such Registration Statement and each amendment thereto,

including financial statements and schedules, all documents incorporated or deemed to be incorporated therein by reference to the extent requested
by such Person, and all exhibits to the extent requested by such Person (including those previously furnished or incorporated by reference)
promptly after the filing of such documents with the Commission; provided, that any such item which is available on the EDGAR system (or
successor thereto) need not be furnished in physical form.

 
(g) Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the Company hereby consents to the use of such Prospectus and each amendment or

supplement thereto by each of the selling Holders in connection with the offering and sale of the Registrable Securities covered by such Prospectus
and any amendment or supplement thereto, except after the giving of any notice pursuant to Section 3(d).

 
(h) Prior to any resale of Registrable Securities by a Holder, use its commercially reasonable efforts to register or qualify or cooperate with

the selling Holders in connection with the registration or qualification (or exemption from the Registration or qualification) of such Registrable
Securities for the resale by the Holder under the securities or Blue Sky laws of such jurisdictions within the United States as any Holder reasonably
requests in writing, to keep each registration or qualification (or exemption therefrom) effective during the Effectiveness Period and to do any and
all other acts or things reasonably necessary to enable the disposition in such jurisdictions of the Registrable Securities covered by each Registration
Statement; provided, that, the Company shall not be required to qualify generally to do business in any jurisdiction where it is not then so qualified,
subject the Company to any material tax in any such jurisdiction where it is not then so subject or file a general consent to service of process in any
such jurisdiction.

 
(i) If requested by a Holder, cooperate with such Holder to facilitate the timely preparation and delivery of certificates representing

Registrable Securities to be delivered to a transferee pursuant to a Registration Statement, which certificates shall be free, to the extent permitted by
the Purchase Agreement, of all restrictive legends, and to enable such Registrable Securities to be in such denominations and registered in such
names as any such Holder may request.
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(j) Upon the occurrence of any event contemplated by Section 3(d), as promptly as reasonably possible under the circumstances taking into
account the Company’s good faith assessment of any adverse consequences to the Company and its stockholders of the premature disclosure of
such event, prepare a supplement or amendment, including a post-effective amendment, to a Registration Statement or a supplement to the related
Prospectus or any document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated therein by reference, and file any other required document so that, as
thereafter delivered, neither a Registration Statement nor such Prospectus will contain an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made,
not misleading. If the Company notifies the Holders in accordance with clauses (iii) through (vi) of Section 3(d) above to suspend the use of any
Prospectus until the requisite changes to such Prospectus have been made, then the Holders shall suspend use of such Prospectus. The Company
will use its best efforts to ensure that the use of the Prospectus may be resumed as promptly as is practicable. The Company shall be entitled to
exercise its right under this Section 3(j) to suspend the availability of a Registration Statement and Prospectus, subject to the payment of partial
liquidated damages otherwise required pursuant to Section 2(d), for a period not to exceed 60 calendar days (which need not be consecutive days)
in any 12-month period.

 
(k) Otherwise use commercially reasonable efforts to comply with all applicable rules and regulations of the Commission under the

Securities Act and the Exchange Act, including, without limitation, Rule 172 under the Securities Act, file any final Prospectus, including any
supplement or amendment thereof, with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424 under the Securities Act, promptly inform the Holders in writing if,
at any time during the Effectiveness Period, the Company does not satisfy the conditions specified in Rule 172 and, as a result thereof, the Holders
are required to deliver a Prospectus in connection with any disposition of Registrable Securities and take such other actions as may be reasonably
necessary to facilitate the registration of the Registrable Securities hereunder.

 
(l) The Company shall use its best efforts to maintain eligibility for use of Form S-1 (or any successor form thereto) for the registration of

the resale of Registrable Securities.
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(m) The Company may require each selling Holder to furnish to the Company a certified statement as to the number of shares of Common
Stock beneficially owned by such Holder and, if required by the Commission, the natural persons thereof that have voting and dispositive control
over the shares. During any periods that the Company is unable to meet its obligations hereunder with respect to the registration of the Registrable
Securities solely because any Holder fails to furnish such information within three Trading Days of the Company’s request, any liquidated damages
that are accruing at such time as to such Holder only shall be tolled and any Event that may otherwise occur solely because of such delay shall be
suspended as to such Holder only, until such information is delivered to the Company and an amendment to the Registration Statement is filed to
incorporate Holder’s information, provided that such filing is made within two (2) days of receipt of such information from Holder.
 
4. Registration Expenses. All fees and expenses incident to the performance of or compliance with, this Agreement by the Company shall be

borne by the Company whether or not any Registrable Securities are sold pursuant to a Registration Statement. The fees and expenses referred to in the
foregoing sentence shall include, without limitation, (i) all registration and filing fees (including, without limitation, fees and expenses of the Company’s
counsel and independent registered public accountants) (A) with respect to filings made with the Commission, (B) with respect to filings required to be
made with any Trading Market on which the Common Stock is then listed for trading, and (C) in compliance with applicable state securities or Blue Sky
laws reasonably agreed to by the Company in writing (including, without limitation, fees and disbursements of counsel for the Company in connection
with Blue Sky qualifications or exemptions of the Registrable Securities), (ii) printing expenses (including, without limitation, expenses of printing
certificates for Registrable Securities), (iii) messenger, telephone and delivery expenses, (iv) fees and disbursements of counsel for the Company, (v)
Securities Act liability insurance, if the Company so desires such insurance, and (vi) fees and expenses of all other Persons retained by the Company in
connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. In addition, the Company shall be responsible for all of its internal
expenses incurred in connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (including, without limitation, all salaries and
expenses of its officers and employees performing legal or accounting duties), the expense of any annual audit and the fees and expenses incurred in
connection with the listing of the Registrable Securities on any securities exchange as required hereunder. In no event shall the Company be responsible
for any broker or similar commissions of any Holder or, except to the extent provided for in the Transaction Documents, any legal fees or other costs of
the Holders.
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5. Indemnification.
 

(a) Indemnification by the Company. The Company shall, notwithstanding any termination of this Agreement, indemnify and hold
harmless each Holder, the officers, directors, members, partners, agents, brokers (including brokers who offer and sell Registrable Securities as
principal as a result of a pledge or any failure to perform under a margin call of Common Stock), investment advisors and employees (and any
other Persons with a functionally equivalent role of a Person holding such titles, notwithstanding a lack of such title or any other title) of each of
them, each Person who controls any such Holder (within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act) and
the officers, directors, members, stockholders, partners, agents and employees (and any other Persons with a functionally equivalent role of a
Person holding such titles, notwithstanding a lack of such title or any other title) of each such controlling Person, to the fullest extent permitted by
applicable law, from and against any and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities, costs (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees) and
expenses (collectively, “Losses”), as incurred, arising out of or relating to (1) any untrue or alleged untrue statement of a material fact contained in
a Registration Statement, any Prospectus or any form of prospectus or in any amendment or supplement thereto or in any preliminary prospectus,
or arising out of or relating to any omission or alleged omission of a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements
therein (in the case of any Prospectus or supplement thereto, in light of the circumstances under which they were made) not misleading or (2) any
violation or alleged violation by the Company of the Securities Act, the Exchange Act or any state securities law, or any rule or regulation
thereunder, in connection with the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, except to the extent, but only to the extent, that (i) such
untrue statements or omissions are based solely upon information regarding such Holder furnished in writing to the Company by such Holder
expressly for use therein, or to the extent that such information relates to such Holder or such Holder’s proposed method of distribution of
Registrable Securities and was reviewed and expressly approved in writing by such Holder expressly for use in a Registration Statement, such
Prospectus or in any amendment or supplement thereto (it being understood that the Holder has approved Annex A hereto for this purpose) or (ii)
in the case of an occurrence of an event of the type specified in Section 3(d)(iii)-(vi), the use by such Holder of an outdated, defective or otherwise
unavailable Prospectus after the Company has notified such Holder in writing that the Prospectus is outdated, defective or otherwise unavailable
for use by such Holder and prior to the receipt by such Holder of the Advice contemplated in Section 6(d). The Company shall notify the Holders
promptly of the institution, threat or assertion of any Proceeding arising from or in connection with the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement of which the Company is aware. Such indemnity shall remain in full force and effect regardless of any investigation made by or on
behalf of such indemnified person and shall survive the transfer of any Registrable Securities by any of the Holders in accordance with Section
6(h).
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(b) Indemnification by Holders. Each Holder shall, severally and not jointly, indemnify and hold harmless the Company, its directors,
officers, agents and employees, each Person who controls the Company (within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act and Section 20 of
the Exchange Act), and the directors, officers, agents or employees of such controlling Persons, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law,
from and against all Losses, as incurred, to the extent arising out of or based solely upon: any untrue or alleged untrue statement of a material fact
contained in any Registration Statement, any Prospectus, or in any amendment or supplement thereto or in any preliminary prospectus, or arising
out of or relating to any omission or alleged omission of a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein (in
the case of any Prospectus or supplement thereto, in light of the circumstances under which they were made) not misleading (i) to the extent, but
only to the extent, that such untrue statement or omission is contained in any information so furnished in writing by such Holder to the Company
expressly for inclusion in such Registration Statement or such Prospectus or (ii) to the extent, but only to the extent, that such information relates to
such Holder’s information provided in the Selling Stockholder Questionnaire or the proposed method of distribution of Registrable Securities and
was reviewed and expressly approved in writing by such Holder expressly for use in a Registration Statement (it being understood that the Holder
has approved Annex A hereto for this purpose), such Prospectus or in any amendment or supplement thereto. In no event shall the liability of a
selling Holder be greater in amount than the dollar amount of the proceeds (net of all expenses paid by such Holder in connection with any claim
relating to this Section 5 and the amount of any damages such Holder has otherwise been required to pay by reason of such untrue statement or
omission) received by such Holder upon the sale of the Registrable Securities included in the Registration Statement giving rise to such
indemnification obligation.

 
(c) Conduct of Indemnification Proceedings. If any Proceeding shall be brought or asserted against any Person entitled to indemnity

hereunder (an “Indemnified Party”), such Indemnified Party shall promptly notify the Person from whom indemnity is sought (the “Indemnifying
Party”) in writing, and the Indemnifying Party shall have the right to assume the defense thereof, including the employment of counsel reasonably
satisfactory to the Indemnified Party and the payment of all fees and expenses incurred in connection with defense thereof; provided, that, the
failure of any Indemnified Party to give such notice shall not relieve the Indemnifying Party of its obligations or liabilities pursuant to this
Agreement, except (and only) to the extent that it shall be finally determined by a court of competent jurisdiction (which determination is not
subject to appeal or further review) that such failure shall have materially and adversely prejudiced the Indemnifying Party.
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An Indemnified Party shall have the right to employ separate counsel in any such Proceeding and to participate in the defense thereof, but
the fees and expenses of such counsel shall be at the expense of such Indemnified Party or Parties unless: (1) the Indemnifying Party has agreed in
writing to pay such fees and expenses, (2) the Indemnifying Party shall have failed promptly to assume the defense of such Proceeding and to
employ counsel reasonably satisfactory to such Indemnified Party in any such Proceeding, or (3) the named parties to any such Proceeding
(including any impleaded parties) include both such Indemnified Party and the Indemnifying Party, and counsel to the Indemnified Party shall
reasonably believe that a material conflict of interest is likely to exist if the same counsel were to represent such Indemnified Party and the
Indemnifying Party (in which case, if such Indemnified Party notifies the Indemnifying Party in writing that it elects to employ separate counsel at
the expense of the Indemnifying Party, the Indemnifying Party shall not have the right to assume the defense thereof and the reasonable fees and
expenses of no more than one separate counsel shall be at the expense of the Indemnifying Party). The Indemnifying Party shall not be liable for
any settlement of any such Proceeding effected without its written consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. No
Indemnifying Party shall, without the prior written consent of the Indemnified Party, effect any settlement of any pending Proceeding in respect of
which any Indemnified Party is a party, unless such settlement includes an unconditional release of such Indemnified Party from all liability on
claims that are the subject matter of such Proceeding.

 
Subject to the terms of this Agreement, all reasonable fees and expenses of the Indemnified Party (including reasonable fees and expenses

to the extent incurred in connection with investigating or preparing to defend such Proceeding in a manner not inconsistent with this Section) shall
be paid to the Indemnified Party, as incurred, within ten Trading Days of written notice thereof to the Indemnifying Party; provided, that, the
Indemnified Party shall promptly reimburse the Indemnifying Party for that portion of such fees and expenses applicable to such actions for which
such Indemnified Party is finally determined by a court of competent jurisdiction (which determination is not subject to appeal or further review)
not to be entitled to indemnification hereunder.

 
(d) Contribution. If the indemnification under Section 5(a) or 5(b) is unavailable to an Indemnified Party or insufficient to hold an

Indemnified Party harmless for any Losses, then each Indemnifying Party shall contribute to the amount paid or payable by such Indemnified
Party, in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of the Indemnifying Party and Indemnified Party in connection with the
actions, statements or omissions that resulted in such Losses as well as any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative fault of such
Indemnifying Party and Indemnified Party shall be determined by reference to, among other things, whether any action in question, including any
untrue or alleged untrue statement of a material fact or omission or alleged omission of a material fact, has been taken or made by, or relates to
information supplied by, such Indemnifying Party or Indemnified Party, and the parties’ relative intent, knowledge, access to information and



opportunity to correct or prevent such action, statement or omission. The amount paid or payable by a party as a result of any Losses shall be
deemed to include, subject to the limitations set forth in this Agreement, any reasonable attorneys’ or other fees or expenses incurred by such party
in connection with any Proceeding to the extent such party would have been indemnified for such fees or expenses if the indemnification provided
for in this Section was available to such party in accordance with its terms.

 
The parties hereto agree that it would not be just and equitable if contribution pursuant to this Section 5(d) were determined by pro rata

allocation or by any other method of allocation that does not take into account the equitable considerations referred to in the immediately preceding
paragraph. In no event shall the contribution obligation of a Holder of Registrable Securities be greater in amount than the dollar amount of the
proceeds (net of all expenses paid by such Holder in connection with any claim relating to this Section 5 and the amount of any damages such
Holder has otherwise been required to pay by reason of such untrue or alleged untrue statement or omission or alleged omission) received by it
upon the sale of the Registrable Securities giving rise to such contribution obligation.
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The indemnity and contribution agreements contained in this Section are in addition to any liability that the Indemnifying Parties may
have to the Indemnified Parties.

 
6. Miscellaneous.
 

(a) Remedies. In the event of a breach by the Company or by a Holder of any of their respective obligations under this Agreement, each
Holder or the Company, as the case may be, in addition to being entitled to exercise all rights granted by law and under this Agreement, including
recovery of damages, shall be entitled to specific performance of its rights under this Agreement. Each of the Company and each Holder agrees that
monetary damages would not provide adequate compensation for any losses incurred by reason of a breach by it of any of the provisions of this
Agreement and hereby further agrees that, in the event of any action for specific performance in respect of such breach, it shall not assert or shall
waive the defense that a remedy at law would be adequate.



 
(b) No Piggyback on Registrations; Prohibition on Filing Other Registration Statements. Neither the Company nor any of its security

holders (other than the Holders in such capacity pursuant hereto) may include securities of the Company in any Registration Statements other than
the Registrable Securities. The Company shall not file any other registration statements until all Registrable Securities are registered pursuant to a
Registration Statement that is declared effective by the Commission, provided that this Section 6(b) shall not prohibit the Company from filing
amendments to registration statements filed prior to the date of this Agreement.

 
(c) [RESERVED]
 
(d) Discontinued Disposition. By its acquisition of Registrable Securities, each Holder agrees that, upon receipt of a notice from the

Company of the occurrence of any event of the kind described in Section 3(d)(iii) through (vi), such Holder will forthwith discontinue disposition
of such Registrable Securities under a Registration Statement until it is advised in writing (the “Advice”) by the Company that the use of the
applicable Prospectus (as it may have been supplemented or amended) may be resumed. The Company will use its best efforts to ensure that the
use of the Prospectus may be resumed as promptly as is practicable. The Company agrees and acknowledges that any periods during which the
Holder is required to discontinue the disposition of the Registrable Securities hereunder shall be subject to the provisions of Section 2(d).
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(e) Piggy-Back Registrations. If, at any time during the Effectiveness Period, there is not an effective Registration Statement covering all
of the Registrable Securities and the Company shall determine to prepare and file with the Commission a registration statement relating to an
offering for its own account or the account of others under the Securities Act of any of its equity securities, other than on Form S-4 or Form S-8
(each as promulgated under the Securities Act) or their then equivalents relating to equity securities to be issued solely in connection with any
acquisition of any entity or business or equity securities issuable in connection with the Company’s stock option or other employee benefit plans,
then the Company shall deliver to each Holder a written notice of such determination and, if within fifteen days after the date of the delivery of such
notice, any such Holder shall so request in writing, the Company shall include in such registration statement all or any part of such Registrable
Securities such Holder requests to be registered; provided, however, that, following the date on which no Warrants remain outstanding, the
Company shall not be required to register any Registrable Securities pursuant to this Section 6(e) that are eligible for resale pursuant to Rule 144
(without volume restrictions or current public information requirements) promulgated by the Commission pursuant to the Securities Act or that are
the subject of a then effective Registration Statement that is available for resales or other dispositions by such Holder.

 
(f) Amendments and Waivers. The provisions of this Agreement, including the provisions of this sentence, may not be amended, modified

or supplemented, and waivers or consents to departures from the provisions hereof may not be given, unless the same shall be in writing and signed
by the Company and the Holders of 50.1% or more of the then outstanding Registrable Securities (for purposes of clarification, this includes any



Registrable Securities issuable upon exercise or conversion of any Security), provided that, if any amendment, modification or waiver
disproportionately and adversely impacts a Holder (or group of Holders), the consent of such disproportionately impacted Holder (or group of
Holders) shall be required. If a Registration Statement does not register all of the Registrable Securities pursuant to a waiver or amendment done in
compliance with the previous sentence, then the number of Registrable Securities to be registered for each Holder shall be reduced pro rata among
all Holders and each Holder shall have the right to designate which of its Registrable Securities shall be omitted from such Registration Statement.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, a waiver or consent to depart from the provisions hereof with respect to a matter that relates exclusively to the
rights of a Holder or some Holders and that does not directly or indirectly affect the rights of other Holders may be given only by such Holder or
Holders of all of the Registrable Securities to which such waiver or consent relates; provided, however, that the provisions of this sentence may not
be amended, modified, or supplemented except in accordance with the provisions of the first sentence of this Section 6(f). No consideration shall be
offered or paid to any Person to amend or consent to a waiver or modification of any provision of this Agreement unless the same consideration
also is offered to all of the parties to this Agreement.

 
(g) Notices. Any and all notices or other communications or deliveries required or permitted to be provided hereunder shall be delivered as

set forth in the Purchase Agreement.
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(h) Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors and permitted assigns of each
of the parties and shall inure to the benefit of each Holder. The Company may not assign (except by merger) its rights or obligations hereunder
without the prior written consent of all of the Holders of the then outstanding Registrable Securities. Each Holder may assign their respective rights
hereunder in the manner and to the Persons as permitted under Section 5.7 of the Purchase Agreement.

 
(i) No Inconsistent Agreements. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has entered, as of the date hereof, nor shall the Company

or any of its Subsidiaries, on or after the date of this Agreement, enter into any agreement with respect to its securities, that would have the effect
of impairing the rights granted to the Holders in this Agreement or otherwise conflicts with the provisions hereof. Except as set forth on Schedule
6(i), neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has previously entered into any agreement granting any registration rights with respect to any
of its securities to any Person that have not been satisfied in full.

 
(j) Execution and Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, all of which when taken together shall be

considered one and the same agreement and shall become effective when counterparts have been signed by each party and delivered to the other
party, it being understood that both parties need not sign the same counterpart. In the event that any signature is delivered by facsimile transmission



or by e-mail delivery of a “.pdf” format data file, such signature shall create a valid and binding obligation of the party executing (or on whose
behalf such signature is executed) with the same force and effect as if such facsimile or “.pdf” signature page were an original thereof.

 
(k) Governing Law. All questions concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of this Agreement shall be

determined in accordance with the provisions of the Purchase Agreement.
 
(l) Cumulative Remedies. The remedies provided herein are cumulative and not exclusive of any other remedies provided by law.
 
(m) Severability. If any term, provision, covenant or restriction of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid,

illegal, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the terms, provisions, covenants and restrictions set forth herein shall remain in full force and effect
and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated, and the parties hereto shall use their commercially reasonable efforts to find and employ
an alternative means to achieve the same or substantially the same result as that contemplated by such term, provision, covenant or restriction. It is
hereby stipulated and declared to be the intention of the parties that they would have executed the remaining terms, provisions, covenants and
restrictions without including any of such that may be hereafter declared invalid, illegal, void or unenforceable.
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(n) Headings. The headings in this Agreement are for convenience only, do not constitute a part of the Agreement and shall not be deemed
to limit or affect any of the provisions hereof.

 
(o) Independent Nature of Holders’ Obligations and Rights. The obligations of each Holder hereunder are several and not joint with the

obligations of any other Holder hereunder, and no Holder shall be responsible in any way for the performance of the obligations of any other
Holder hereunder. Nothing contained herein or in any other agreement or document delivered at any closing, and no action taken by any Holder
pursuant hereto or thereto, shall be deemed to constitute the Holders as a partnership, an association, a joint venture or any other kind of group or
entity, or create a presumption that the Holders are in any way acting in concert or as a group or entity with respect to such obligations or the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement or any other matters, and the Company acknowledges that the Holders are not acting in concert or as a
group, and the Company shall not assert any such claim, with respect to such obligations or transactions. Each Holder shall be entitled to protect
and enforce its rights, including without limitation the rights arising out of this Agreement, and it shall not be necessary for any other Holder to be
joined as an additional party in any proceeding for such purpose. The use of a single agreement with respect to the obligations of the Company
contained was solely in the control of the Company, not the action or decision of any Holder, and was done solely for the convenience of the
Company and not because it was required or requested to do so by any Holder. It is expressly understood and agreed that each provision contained



in this Agreement is between the Company and a Holder, solely, and not between the Company and the Holders collectively and not between and
among Holders.

 
********************

 
(Signature Pages Follow)

 
 

18



 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Registration Rights Agreement as of the date first written above.
 
 ICONIC BRANDS, INC.
    

By: /s/ Richard DeCicco



 Name: Richard DeCicco  
 Title: President  
 

[SIGNATURE PAGE OF HOLDERS FOLLOWS]
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[SIGNATURE PAGE OF HOLDERS TO ICNB RRA]
 
Name of Holder:  The Special Equities Group, LLC                                                      
 



Signature of Authorized Signatory of Holder:  /s/ Jonathan Schechter                  
 
Name of Authorized Signatory:  Jonathan Schechter                                                   
 
Title of Authorized Signatory:  Principal                                                                        
 

[SIGNATURE PAGES CONTINUE]
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[SIGNATURE PAGE OF HOLDERS TO ICNB RRA]
 
Name of Holder: Iroquois Master Fund Ltd.                                                          
 
Signature of Authorized Signatory of Holder:  /s/ Richard Abbe                    
 
Name of Authorized Signatory:  Richard Abbe                                                    



 
Title of Authorized Signatory:  Director                                                                 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGES CONTINUE]
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[SIGNATURE PAGE OF HOLDERS TO ICNB RRA]
 
Name of Holder:  Iroquois Capital Investment Group, LLC                                   
 



Signature of Authorized Signatory of Holder:  /s/ Richard Abbe                      
 
Name of Authorized Signatory:  Richard Abbe                                                      
 
Title of Authorized Signatory:  Managing Member                                                 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGES CONTINUE]
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[SIGNATURE PAGE OF HOLDERS TO ICNB RRA]
 
Name of Holder:  Gregory M. Castaldo                                                                           
 
Signature of Authorized Signatory of Holder:  /s/ Gregory M. Castaldo                  
 
Name of Authorized Signatory:  Gregory M. Castaldo_____________________



 
Title of Authorized Signatory:  ______________________________________
 

[SIGNATURE PAGES CONTINUE]
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Annex A
 

Plan of Distribution
 



Each Selling Stockholder (the “Selling Stockholders”) of the securities and any of their pledgees, assignees and successors-in-interest may, from
time to time, sell any or all of their securities covered hereby on OTCQB or the principal Trading Market or any other stock exchange, market or trading
facility on which the securities are traded or in private transactions. These sales may be at fixed or negotiated prices. A Selling Stockholder may use any
one or more of the following methods when selling securities:
 
 · ordinary brokerage transactions and transactions in which the broker‑dealer solicits purchasers;
   

 · block trades in which the broker‑dealer will attempt to sell the securities as agent but may position and resell a portion of the block as
principal to facilitate the transaction;

   
 · purchases by a broker‑dealer as principal and resale by the broker‑dealer for its account;
   
 · an exchange distribution in accordance with the rules of the applicable exchange;
   
 · privately negotiated transactions;
   
 · settlement of short sales;
   

 · in transactions through broker‑dealers that agree with the Selling Stockholders to sell a specified number of such securities at a
stipulated price per security;

   
 · through the writing or settlement of options or other hedging transactions, whether through an options exchange or otherwise;
   
 · a combination of any such methods of sale; or

   
 · any other method permitted pursuant to applicable law.
 

The Selling Stockholders may also sell securities under Rule 144 or any other exemption from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the “Securities Act”), if available, rather than under this prospectus.

 
Broker‑dealers engaged by the Selling Stockholders may arrange for other brokers‑dealers to participate in sales. Broker‑dealers may receive

commissions or discounts from the Selling Stockholders (or, if any broker‑dealer acts as agent for the purchaser of securities, from the purchaser) in
amounts to be negotiated, but, except as set forth in a supplement to this Prospectus, in the case of an agency transaction not in excess of a customary
brokerage commission in compliance with FINRA Rule 2440; and in the case of a principal transaction a markup or markdown in compliance with FINRA
IM-2440.
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In connection with the sale of the securities or interests therein, the Selling Stockholders may enter into hedging transactions with broker-dealers
or other financial institutions, which may in turn engage in short sales of the securities in the course of hedging the positions they assume. The Selling
Stockholders may also sell securities short and deliver these securities to close out their short positions, or loan or pledge the securities to broker-dealers
that in turn may sell these securities. The Selling Stockholders may also enter into option or other transactions with broker-dealers or other financial
institutions or create one or more derivative securities which require the delivery to such broker-dealer or other financial institution of securities offered
by this prospectus, which securities such broker-dealer or other financial institution may resell pursuant to this prospectus (as supplemented or amended to
reflect such transaction).

 
The Selling Stockholders and any broker-dealers or agents that are involved in selling the securities may be deemed to be “underwriters” within

the meaning of the Securities Act in connection with such sales. In such event, any commissions received by such broker-dealers or agents and any profit
on the resale of the securities purchased by them may be deemed to be underwriting commissions or discounts under the Securities Act. Each Selling
Stockholder has informed the Company that it does not have any written or oral agreement or understanding, directly or indirectly, with any person to
distribute the securities.

 
The Company is required to pay certain fees and expenses incurred by the Company incident to the registration of the securities. The Company

has agreed to indemnify the Selling Stockholders against certain losses, claims, damages and liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act.
 
We agreed to keep this prospectus effective until the earlier of (A) the date on which all of the securities have been sold pursuant to this

prospectus or Rule 144 under the Securities Act and (B) following the date on which no Warrants are outstanding, the date on which all of the securities
may be resold pursuant to Rule 144 without regard to any volume or manner-of-sale limitations by reason of Rule 144 and without the requirement for the
Company to be in compliance with the current public information under Rule 144 under the Securities Act. The resale securities will be sold only through
registered or licensed brokers or dealers if required under applicable state securities laws. In addition, in certain states, the resale securities covered hereby
may not be sold unless they have been registered or qualified for sale in the applicable state or an exemption from the registration or qualification
requirement is available and is complied with.

 
Under applicable rules and regulations under the Exchange Act, any person engaged in the distribution of the resale securities may not

simultaneously engage in market making activities with respect to the common stock for the applicable restricted period, as defined in Regulation M, prior
to the commencement of the distribution. In addition, the Selling Stockholders will be subject to applicable provisions of the Exchange Act and the rules
and regulations thereunder, including Regulation M, which may limit the timing of purchases and sales of the common stock by the Selling Stockholders
or any other person. We will make copies of this prospectus available to the Selling Stockholders and have informed them of the need to deliver a copy of
this prospectus to each purchaser at or prior to the time of the sale (including by compliance with Rule 172 under the Securities Act).
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SELLING SHAREHOLDERS

 
The common stock being offered by the selling shareholders are those previously issued to the selling shareholders, and those issuable to the

selling shareholders, upon exercise of the warrants. For additional information regarding the issuances of those shares of common stock and warrants, see
“Private Placement of Common Shares and Warrants” above. We are registering the shares of common stock in order to permit the selling shareholders to
offer the shares for resale from time to time. Except for the ownership of the shares of common stock and the warrants, the selling shareholders have not
had any material relationship with us within the past three years.

 
The table below lists the selling shareholders and other information regarding the beneficial ownership of the shares of common stock by each of

the selling shareholders. The second column lists the number of shares of common stock beneficially owned by each selling shareholder, based on its
ownership of the shares of common stock and warrants, as of ________, 2017, assuming exercise of the warrants held by the selling shareholders on that
date, without regard to any limitations on exercises.

 
The third column lists the shares of common stock being offered by this prospectus by the selling shareholders.
 
In accordance with the terms of a registration rights agreement with the selling shareholders, this prospectus generally covers the resale of the

sum of (i) the number of shares of common stock issued to the selling shareholders pursuant to the securities purchase agreement and (ii) the maximum
number of shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the related warrants, determined as if the outstanding warrants were exercised in full as of
the trading day immediately preceding the date this registration statement was initially filed with the SEC, each as of the trading day immediately
preceding the applicable date of determination and all subject to adjustment as provided in the registration right agreement, without regard to any
limitations on the exercise of the warrants. The fourth column assumes the sale of all of the shares offered by the selling shareholders pursuant to this
prospectus.

 
Under the terms of the warrants, a selling shareholder may not exercise the warrants to the extent such exercise would cause such selling

shareholder, together with its affiliates and attribution parties, to beneficially own a number of shares of common stock which would exceed 9.99% of our
then outstanding common stock following such exercise, excluding for purposes of such determination shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of
the warrants which have not been exercised. The number of shares in the second column does not reflect this limitation. The selling shareholders may sell
all, some or none of their shares in this offering. See “Plan of Distribution.”
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Name of Selling Shareholder

Number of shares of
Common Stock Owned

Prior to Offering

Maximum Number of
shares of Common Stock to be

Sold Pursuant to this Prospectus

Number of shares of
Common Stock Owned

After Offering
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Annex C
 

ICONIC BRANDS, INC.
 

Selling Stockholder Notice and Questionnaire
 

The undersigned beneficial owner of common stock (the “Registrable Securities”) of Iconic Brands, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Company”),
understands that the Company has filed or intends to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) a registration statement (the
“Registration Statement”) for the registration and resale under Rule 415 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), of the
Registrable Securities, in accordance with the terms of the Registration Rights Agreement (the “Registration Rights Agreement”) to which this document
is annexed. A copy of the Registration Rights Agreement is available from the Company upon request at the address set forth below. All capitalized terms
not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Registration Rights Agreement.

 
Certain legal consequences arise from being named as a selling stockholder in the Registration Statement and the related prospectus.

Accordingly, holders and beneficial owners of Registrable Securities are advised to consult their own securities law counsel regarding the consequences of
being named or not being named as a selling stockholder in the Registration Statement and the related prospectus.
 

NOTICE
 

The undersigned beneficial owner (the “Selling Stockholder”) of Registrable Securities hereby elects to include the Registrable Securities owned
by it in the Registration Statement.
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The undersigned hereby provides the following information to the Company and represents and warrants that such information is accurate:
 

QUESTIONNAIRE
 
1. Name.
   
 (a) Full Legal Name of Selling Stockholder
   
   
   
 (b) Full Legal Name of Registered Holder (if not the same as (a) above) through which Registrable Securities are held:
   
   
   
 (c) Full Legal Name of Natural Control Person (which means a natural person who directly or indirectly alone or with others has power to vote or

dispose of the securities covered by this Questionnaire):
   
   
   
2. Address for Notices to Selling Stockholder:
 
 
 
 
Telephone:  
Fax:  
Contact
Person:  

 
3. Broker-Dealer Status:
   
 (a) Are you a broker-dealer?
   
 Yes ¨ No ¨
   
 (b) If “yes” to Section 3(a), did you receive your Registrable Securities as compensation for investment banking services to the Company?
   
 Yes ¨ No ¨
   
 Note:  If “no” to Section 3(b), the Commission’s staff has indicated that you should be identified as an underwriter in the Registration Statement.
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 (c) Are you an affiliate of a broker-dealer?
   
 Yes ¨ No ¨
   
 (d) If you are an affiliate of a broker-dealer, do you certify that you purchased the Registrable Securities in the ordinary course of business, and at

the time of the purchase of the Registrable Securities to be resold, you had no agreements or understandings, directly or indirectly, with any
person to distribute the Registrable Securities?

   
 Yes ¨ No ¨
   
 Note: If “no” to Section 3(d), the Commission’s staff has indicated that you should be identified as an underwriter in the Registration Statement.
   
4. Beneficial Ownership of Securities of the Company Owned by the Selling Stockholder.
   

 Except as set forth below in this Item 4, the undersigned is not the beneficial or registered owner of any securities of the Company other than the
securities issuable pursuant to the Purchase Agreement.

   
 (a) Type and Amount of other securities beneficially owned by the Selling Stockholder:
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5. Relationships with the Company:
   

 
Except as set forth below, neither the undersigned nor any of its affiliates, officers, directors or principal equity holders (owners of 5% of more
of the equity securities of the undersigned) has held any position or office or has had any other material relationship with the Company (or its
predecessors or affiliates) during the past three years.

   
 State any exceptions here:

   
   
   
 

The undersigned agrees to promptly notify the Company of any material inaccuracies or changes in the information provided herein that may
occur subsequent to the date hereof at any time while the Registration Statement remains effective; provided, that the undersigned shall not be required to
notify the Company of any changes to the number of securities held or owned by the undersigned or its affiliates.

 
By signing below, the undersigned consents to the disclosure of the information contained herein in its answers to Items 1 through 5 and the

inclusion of such information in the Registration Statement and the related prospectus and any amendments or supplements thereto. The undersigned
understands that such information will be relied upon by the Company in connection with the preparation or amendment of the Registration Statement and
the related prospectus and any amendments or supplements thereto.

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the undersigned, by authority duly given, has caused this Notice and Questionnaire to be executed and delivered either

in person or by its duly authorized agent.
 
Date:   Beneficial Owner: ________________________
      

  By:
    Name:  



    Title:  

 
PLEASE FAX A COPY (OR EMAIL A .PDF COPY) OF THE COMPLETED AND EXECUTED NOTICE AND QUESTIONNAIRE TO:
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EXSHIBIT 10.6
 

SHARE EXCHANGE AGREEMENT
 

This Share Exchange Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into on May 21, 2018 (the ”Effective Date”) and is by and among Iconic Brands,
Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), on the one hand, and Gregory M. Castaldo, an individual (“Castaldo”), Iroquois Master Fund Ltd., a
Cayman Islands exempted limited company (“Iroquois”), Iroquois Capital Investment Group LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“ICIG”), and
The Special Equities Group, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“SEG,” and along with Castaldo, Iroquois and ICIG, each a “Shareholder” and
collectively the “Shareholders”), on the other hand. Each of the Company and the Shareholders may be referred to herein as a “Party” and collectively
as the “Parties.”
 

RECITALS
 

WHEREAS, the Shareholders are the beneficial and record owners of an aggregate of one hundred twenty million (120,000,000) shares of the
issued and outstanding common stock of the Company (the “Common Shares”), which were issued pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement, dated
as of November 1, 2017, between the Company and the Shareholders;

 
WHEREAS, the Shareholders desire to transfer to the Company, and the Company desires to acquire from the Shareholders, the Common Shares

in exchange for shares of Series E Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company (the “Exchange”); and
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as

follows:
 

AGREEMENT
1. Exchange of Shares.

 
(a) At the Closing (as defined in Section 2), subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the Shareholders shall convey, assign,

and transfer to the Company, and the Company shall acquire and accept from the Shareholders, the Common Shares. The Common Shares shall be
cancelled and added to the Company’s unissued and authorized shares of common stock.

 
(b) As consideration for the acquisition of the Common Shares, the Company shall issue to the Shareholders an aggregate of one million

two hundred thousand (1,200,000) shares of the Company’s Series E Convertible Preferred Stock (the ”Preferred Shares”), at a ratio of one (1) Preferred
Share for each one hundred (100) Common Shares, as set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto. The Company shall deliver stock certificates representing
the Preferred Shares to the Shareholders within five (5) business days of the Effective Date (the “Preferred Certificates”).
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2. Closing. The closing of the Exchange (the ”Closing”) will take place at 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time on the Effective Date. The Closing shall take

place at the offices of the Company or via the electronic exchange of documents, unless another date, time, or place is agreed to in writing by the Parties
hereto.

 
3. Deliveries at Closing.

 
(a) The Company will deliver:

 
(i) to each Shareholder, a counterpart signature page to this Agreement;
 
(ii) evidence of the filing and acceptance of the Certificate of Designation of the Rights, Preferences, Privileges and Restrictions

of the Preferred Shares (“Certificate of Designation”) from the Secretary of State of the State of Nevada; and
 
(iii) to each Shareholder, the Preferred Certificate registered in name of such Shareholder and satisfactory to such Shareholder,

which may be delivered within five (5) business days of the Effective Date.
 

(b) Each Shareholder will deliver:
 

(i) to the Company, a counterpart signature page to this Agreement; and
 
(ii) to the Company, certificates evidencing the Common Shares, if existing, along with an executed Irrevocable Stock Power, or

confirmation of instructions to its/his broker to transfer the Common Shares back to the Company, which may be delivered within five (5) business days
of the Effective Date.
 

4. Representations and Warranties of the Company.
 

(a) The Company has the requisite corporate power and authority to enter into and to consummate the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement and otherwise to carry out its obligations hereunder and thereunder. The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Company and
the consummation by it of the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of the Company and
no further action is required by the Company, its board of directors or its stockholders in connection therewith. This Agreement has been duly
executed by the Company and, when delivered in accordance with the terms hereof will constitute the valid and binding obligation of the Company
enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms except (i) as limited by general equitable principles and applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other laws of general application affecting enforcement of creditors’ rights generally, (ii) as limited by
laws relating to the availability of specific performance, injunctive relief or other equitable remedies and (iii) insofar as indemnification and
contribution provisions may be limited by applicable law.
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(b) The Preferred Shares and Conversion Shares (as defined below) are duly authorized and, when issued and paid for in accordance with

this Agreement and the Certificate of Designation, will be duly and validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, free and clear of all liens imposed by the
Company other than restrictions on transfer provided for in this Agreement. The Conversion Shares, when issued in accordance with the terms of the
Certificate of Designation, will be validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, free and clear of all liens imposed by the Company other than restrictions
on transfer provided for in the Certificate of Designation.

 
(c) The Company represents and agrees that the holding period of the Preferred Shares and Conversion Shares tack back to the original

issue date of the Common Shares for Rule 144 purposes. The Company agrees not to take a position contrary to this paragraph. If requested by a
Shareholder, the Company shall promptly, and in any event within 3 business days of such request, at the cost of the Company, deliver a legal opinion of
outside counsel opining to the immediate availability of Rule 144 for the resale of the Preferred Shares and Conversion Shares.

 
5. Representations and Warranties of the Shareholders. Each Shareholder represents to the Company as of the date hereof that (a) at the time such

Holder was offered the securities, it was, and as of the date hereof it is, and on each date on which it converts any Preferred Shares it will be, an
“accredited investor” as defined in Rule 501(a) under the Securities Act, (b) it will acquire the Preferred Shares, and the shares of common stock issuable
upon conversion of the Preferred Shares (the “Conversion Shares”), for its account for the purpose of investment and not with a view to the distribution
or resale thereof, (c) it has such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters that the Shareholder is capable of evaluating the merits and
risks of acquiring the Preferred Shares and Conversion Shares, and (d) the Shareholder understands the Preferred Shares and Conversion Shares have not
been registered under the Securities Act of 1933 or under any other securities law and, therefore, none of the Preferred Shares or Conversion Shares can
be sold, assigned, transferred, pledged or otherwise disposed of without registration under applicable securities laws or unless an exemption from such
registration thereunder is available.

 
6. Transfer Restrictions. The Preferred Shares and Conversion Shares may not be sold, assigned, pledged, hypothecated or otherwise transferred

except in accordance with applicable securities laws. The Company shall not be required (a) to transfer on its books any Preferred Shares or Conversion
Shares that have been sold or otherwise transferred in violation of the foregoing transfer restrictions or (b) to treat as the owner of such Preferred Shares
or Conversion Shares or to accord the right to vote or make distributions to any Shareholder or other transferee to whom such Preferred Shares or
Conversion Shares shall have been so transferred.

 
7. Amendment; Waiver. No provision of this Agreement may be amended except by a written instrument signed by the Parties. No provision of

this Agreement may be waived except by a written instrument signed by the Party against which such waiver is to be enforced. Except as expressly
provided otherwise in a waiver, no such waiver shall constitute an ongoing or future waiver of any provision of this Agreement.
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8 . Severability. Should any provision of this Agreement be found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or unenforceable, such

provision shall be severed from this Agreement and the other provisions shall continue in full force and effect.
 
9. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original, but all of which

together will constitute one and the same agreement. Facsimile copies of signed signature pages shall be binding originals for all purposes hereunder.
 
10. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding between the parties with respect to the subject matter

hereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements, written or oral, between the parties with respect thereto.
 
11. Governing Law; Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York. Venue for

any cause of action brought hereunder shall be in New York County, New York.
 
[remainder of page intentionally left blank, signature page to follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Share Exchange Agreement as of the date first set forth above.

 
“Company”  “Shareholders”
     
Iconic Brands, Inc.,  The Special Equities Group, LLC
a Nevada corporation    
     
By: /s/ Richard J. DeCicco  By: /s/ Jonathan Schechter  
 Richard J. DeCicco    Jonathan Schechter  
Its: Chief Executive Officer  Its: Principal  
    
   Iroquois Master Fund Ltd.  
    
   By: /s/ Richard Abbe  
    Richard Abbe  
   Its:  Director  
    
   Iroquois Capital Investment Group, LLC  
    
   By: /s/ Richard Abbe  
     Richard Abbe  
   Its:  Managing Member  
    
    /s/ Gregory M. Castaldo  
    Gregory M. Castaldo  
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Exhibit A

 
Selling Shareholders

 

Name Common Shares

Preferred Shares
(Series E Convertible

Preferred Stock)
The Special Equities Group, LLC 40,000,000 400,000
Iroquois Master Fund Ltd. 30,000,000 300,000
Iroquois Capital Investment Group, LLC 10,000,000 100,000
Gregory M. Castaldo 40,000,000 400,000

Total 120,000,000 1,200,000
 
 

 
 



EXHIBIT 10.7
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1
SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT

 
This First Amendment to the Securities Purchase Agreement (this “Amendment”) is entered into on May 21, 2018 by and among Iconic Brands,

Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), and the purchasers identified on the signature pages hereto (including its successors and assigns, each a
“Purchaser” and collectively with the other undersigned purchasers, the “Purchasers”). Each of the Purchasers and the Company may be referred to herein
as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”
 

RECITALS
 

WHEREAS, the Parties are parties to that certain Securities Purchase Agreement with an effective date of November 1, 2017 (the “Agreement”);
 
WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend certain terms of the Agreement as set forth in this Amendment.
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby

agree as follows:
 

AGREEMENT
 

1. Section 2.1(b) of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety as follows:
 

“(b) Second Closing. On the Second Closing Date, upon the terms and conditions set forth herein, the Company agrees to sell, and the
Purchasers, severally and not jointly, agree to purchase, one million two hundred thousand (1,200,000) shares of Series E Preferred Shares and
Warrants which closing shall occur on May 21, 2018, or as soon as reasonably practicable following, and in any event within five (5) Trading Days
of, that date (the “Second Closing”). Each Purchaser shall deliver to the Company, via wire transfer or a certified check, immediately available
funds equal to such Purchaser’s Subscription Amount as set forth on the signature page hereto executed by such Purchaser, and the Company shall
deliver to each Purchaser its respective Series E Preferred Shares and a Warrant, as determined pursuant to Section 2.2(a), and the Company and
each Purchaser shall deliver the other items set forth in Section 2.2 deliverable at the Second Closing. Upon satisfaction of the covenants and
conditions set forth in Sections 2.2 and 2.3, the Second Closing shall occur at the offices of EGS or such other location as the parties shall mutually
agree.
 

Following the Second Closing, the Company will: (i) file a registration statement to register the Common Stock under Section 12(g) of the
Exchange Act and take all action necessary to have the registration statement declared effective by the Commission as soon as reasonably possible,
(ii) remain current in filing of reports required by the Exchange Act until the Purchasers have sold all Registrable Securities, and (iv) apply for the
Common Stock to be quoted for trading on OTCQB and promptly take all action necessary to have the application approved by the OTC Markets
and have the Common Stock quoted on the OTCQB.”

 
 
 



 

 
 

2. Section 2.2(a) of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety as follows:
 

“(a) On or prior to each Closing Date (except as otherwise indicated), the Company shall deliver or cause to be delivered to each Purchaser
the following:

 
(i) as to the First Closing, this Agreement duly executed by the Company;
 
(ii) as to the First Closing, a legal opinion of Company Counsel, substantially in the form of Exhibit B attached hereto, and as to

each subsequent Closing a legal opinion reasonably satisfactory to the Purchasers, which shall include customary opinions with respect to
the Series E Preferred Shares reasonably satisfactory to the Purchasers;

 
(iii) as to the First Closing, a copy of the irrevocable instructions to the Transfer Agent instructing the Transfer Agent to deliver,

on an expedited basis, a certificate evidencing a number of Shares equal to such Purchaser’s Subscription Amount, as to the applicable
Closing, divided by the Per Share Purchase Price, registered in the name of such Purchaser;

 
(iv) as to the First Closing, a Warrant registered in the name of such Purchaser to purchase up to a number of shares of Common

Stock equal to 100% of such Purchaser’s Shares issued on such applicable Closing, with an exercise price equal to $0.01, subject to
adjustment therein;

 
(v) as to the Second Closing, a Warrant registered in the name of such Purchaser to purchase up to a number of shares of Common

Stock equal to 100% of such Purchaser’s Conversion Shares on the Second Closing Date, with an exercise price equal to $0.01, subject to
adjustment therein;

 
(vi) as to each Closing, the Company shall have provided each Purchaser with the Company’s wire instructions, on Company

letterhead and executed by the Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer;
 
(vii) as to each Subsequent Closing, a bring-down of the Disclosure Schedules;
 
(viii) as to the First Closing, the Lock-Up Agreements;
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(ix) as to the Second Closing, a letter from the Transfer Agent to the Purchasers certifying as to the Company’s reservation of at

least 500,000,000 shares of Common Stock for issuances of Common Stock upon conversion of the Series E Preferred Shares and exercise
of the Warrants;

 
(x) as to the First Closing, the Registration Rights Agreement duly executed by the Company;
 
(xi) as to the Second Closing, within five (5) Trading Days of the Second Closing Date, evidence of the filing and acceptance of

the Certificate of Designation from the Secretary of State of the State of Nevada; and
 
(xii) as to the Second Closing, within five (5) Trading Days of the Second Closing Date, a certificate evidencing a number of

Series E Preferred Shares equal to such Purchaser’s Subscription Amount, as to the Second Closing, divided by the Per Share Purchase
Price and further divided by one hundred (100), registered in the name of such Purchaser.”

 
3. Definitions.

 
A. The following definitions are added to Section 1.1:
 
“Certificate of Designation” means the Certificate of Designation of the Rights, Preferences, Privileges and Restrictions of the Series E
Convertible Preferred Stock to be filed with the Secretary of the State of Nevada, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit E.
 
“Conversion Shares” means the shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the Series E Preferred Shares.
 
“Share Exchange Agreement” means the Share Exchange Agreement, dated as of May 21, 2018, between the Company and the
Purchasers.
 
“Series E Preferred Shares” means shares of the Company’s Series E Convertible Preferred Stock having the rights, preferences and
privileges set forth in the Certificate of Designation that are issued pursuant to the Share Exchange Agreement and this Agreement.
 
“Underlying Shares” means the Conversion Shares and the Warrant Shares.
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B. The following definitions in Section 1.1 are amended and restated in their entirety as follows:

 
“Registrable Securities” means, as of any date of determination, (a) all shares of Common Stock then issued and issuable upon conversion
in full of the Series E Preferred Shares (assuming on such date that the Series E Preferred Shares are converted in full without regard to
any conversion limitations therein), (b) all Warrant Shares then issued and issuable upon exercise of the Warrants (assuming on such date
the Warrants are exercised in full without regard to any exercise limitations therein), (c) any additional shares of Common Stock issued
and issuable in connection with any anti-dilution provisions in the Series E Preferred Shares or the Warrants (without giving effect to any
limitations on conversion set forth in the Series E Preferred Shares or any limitations on exercise set forth in the Warrants) and (d) any
securities issued or then issuable upon any stock split, dividend or other distribution, recapitalization or similar event with respect to the
foregoing; provided, however, that any such Registrable Securities shall cease to be Registrable Securities (and the Company shall not be
required to maintain the effectiveness of any, or file another, Registration Statement hereunder with respect thereto) for so long as (a) a
Registration Statement with respect to the sale of such Registrable Securities is declared effective by the Commission under the Securities
Act and such Registrable Securities have been disposed of by the Holder in accordance with such effective Registration Statement, (b)
such Registrable Securities have been previously sold in accordance with Rule 144, or (c) such securities become eligible for resale
without volume or manner-of-sale restrictions and without current public information pursuant to Rule 144 as set forth in a written opinion
letter to such effect, addressed, delivered and acceptable to the Transfer Agent and the affected Holders (assuming that such securities and
any securities issuable upon exercise, conversion or exchange of which, or as a dividend upon which, such securities were issued or are
issuable, were at no time held by any Affiliate of the Company, and all Warrants are exercised by “cashless exercise” as provided in
Section 2(c) of each of the Warrants), as reasonably determined by the Company, upon the advice of counsel to the Company.
 
“Registration Rights Agreement” means the Registration Rights Agreement, dated on or about the date hereof, among the Company and
the Purchasers, in the form of Exhibit A attached hereto, as amended.
 
“Securities” means the Shares, the Warrants, the Warrant Shares, the Series E Preferred Shares and the Conversion Shares.
 
“Transaction Documents” means this Agreement, the Certificate of Designation, the Warrants, the Lock-Up Agreement, the Registration
Rights Agreement, all exhibits and schedules thereto and hereto and any other documents or agreements executed in connection with the
transactions contemplated hereunder
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4. Section 3.1(f) is hereby amended and restated in its entirety as follows:
 

“Issuance of the Securities. The Securities are duly authorized and, when issued and paid for in accordance with the applicable Transaction
Documents, will be duly and validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, free and clear of all Liens imposed by the Company other than
restrictions on transfer provided for in the Transaction Documents. The Conversion Shares and the Warrant Shares, when issued in
accordance with the terms of the Transaction Documents, will be validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, free and clear of all Liens
imposed by the Company other than restrictions on transfer provided for in the Transaction Documents. The Company has reserved from
its duly authorized capital stock the maximum number of shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant to this Agreement, the Series E
Preferred Shares and the Warrants.”

 
5. A new Section 3.1(uu) is inserted as follows:
 

“(uu) Audited Financials. As of May 18, 2018, the Audit for the Company’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2017
have been completed and such Audit for such fiscal years meets the requirements for purposes of the effectiveness of the Registration
Statement.”

 
6. Section 4.1(c) is hereby amended and restated in its entirety as follows:
 

“Certificates evidencing the Underlying Shares shall not contain any legend (including the legend set forth in Section 4.1(b) hereof): (i)
while a registration statement (including the Registration Statement) covering the resale of such security is effective under the Securities
Act, (ii) following any sale of such Underlying Shares pursuant to Rule 144 (assuming cashless exercise of the Warrants), (iii) if such
Underlying Shares are eligible for sale under Rule 144 (assuming cashless exercise of the Warrants) or (iv) if such legend is not required
under applicable requirements of the Securities Act (including judicial interpretations and pronouncements issued by the staff of the
Commission). The Company shall cause its counsel to issue a legal opinion to the Transfer Agent or the Purchaser promptly after the
Effective Date or at such time as such legend is no longer required under this Section 4.1(c) if required by the Transfer Agent or requested
by a Purchaser to effect the removal of the legend hereunder. If all or any Series E Preferred Shares are converted or any portion of a
Warrant is exercised at a time when there is an effective registration statement to cover the resale of the Underlying Shares, or if such
Underlying Shares may be sold under Rule 144 and the Company is then in compliance with the current public information required under
Rule 144, or if the Underlying Shares may be sold under Rule 144 (assuming cashless exercise of the Warrants) without the requirement
for the Company to be in compliance with the current public information required under Rule 144 as to such Underlying Shares and
without volume or manner-of-sale restrictions or if such legend is not otherwise required under applicable requirements of the Securities
Act (including judicial interpretations and pronouncements issued by the staff of the Commission) then such Underlying Shares shall be
issued free of all legends. The Company agrees that following the Effective Date or at such time as such legend is no longer required under
this Section 4.1(c), it will, no later than the earlier of (i) two (2) Trading Days and (ii) the number of Trading Days comprising the
Standard Settlement Period (as defined below) following the delivery by a Purchaser to the Company or the Transfer Agent of a certificate
representing Underlying Shares, as applicable, issued with a restrictive legend (such date, the “Legend Removal Date”), deliver or cause to
be delivered to such Purchaser a certificate representing such shares that is free from all restrictive and other legends. The Company may
not make any notation on its records or give instructions to the Transfer Agent that enlarge the restrictions on transfer set forth in this
Section 4. Certificates for Underlying Shares subject to legend removal hereunder shall be transmitted by the Transfer Agent to the
Purchaser by crediting the account of the Purchaser’s prime broker with the Depository Trust Company System as directed by such
Purchaser. As used herein, “Standard Settlement Period” means the standard settlement period, expressed in a number of Trading Days, on
the Company’s primary Trading Market with respect to the Common Stock as in effect on the date of delivery of a certificate representing
Underlying Shares, as applicable, issued with a restrictive legend.”
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7. A new Section 4.21 is inserted as follows:
 

4.21 Form 10 Information. The Company covenants to file “Form 10 information” (as such term is used in Rule 144(i)) for the Company
with the Commission on or prior to June 8, 2018.

 
8. A new Section 4.22 is inserted as follows:
 

4.22 Company Covenants. The Company covenants (i) file a registration statement to register the Common Stock under Section 12(g) of
the Exchange Act and take all action necessary to have the registration statement declared effective by the Commission as soon as
possible, (ii) to remain current in filing of reports required by the Exchange Act until the Purchasers no longer hold any Conversion Shares
or Warrant Shares, and (iii) to apply for the Common Stock to be quoted for trading on OTCQB and promptly take all action necessary to
have the application approved by the OTC Markets and have the Common Stock quoted on the OTCQB as soon as possible.

 
9. For purposes of clarity, no Shares will be issued to Purchasers in the Second Closing, only Series E Preferred Shares and Warrants.
 
10. Other than as set forth herein, the terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

 
[remainder of page intentionally left blank; signature page to follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Amendment No. 1 to the Securities Purchase Agreement as of the date first

above written.
 
“Company”  “Purchasers”  
     
Iconic Brands, Inc.,  The Special Equities Group, LLC  
a Nevada corporation    
     
By: /s/ Richard J. DeCicco  By: /s/ Jonathan Schechter  
 Richard J. DeCicco   Jonathan Schechter  
Its: Chief Executive Officer  Its: Principal  
    
   Iroquois Master Fund Ltd.  
    
   By: /s/ Richard Abbe  
    Richard Abbe  
   Its: Director  
    
   Iroquois Capital Investment Group, LLC  
    
   By: /s/ Richard Abbe  
    Richard Abbe  
   Its: Managing Member  
    
    /s/ Gregory M. Castaldo  
    Gregory M. Castaldo  
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EXHIBIT 10.8
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1
REGISTRATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT

 
This First Amendment to the Registration Rights Agreement (this “Amendment”) is entered into on May 21, 2018 by and among Iconic Brands,

Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), and the purchasers identified on the signature pages hereto (including its successors and assigns, each a
“Purchaser” and collectively with the other undersigned purchasers, the “Purchasers”). Each of the Purchasers and the Company may be referred to herein
as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”
 

RECITALS
 

WHEREAS, the Parties are parties to that certain Registration Rights Agreement with an effective date of November 1, 2017 (the “Agreement”);
 
WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend certain terms of the Agreement as set forth in this Amendment.
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby

agree as follows:
 

AGREEMENT
 

1. The definition of “Filing Date” in Section 1 is hereby amended and restated in its entirety as follows:
 

““Filing Date” means, with respect to the Initial Registration Statement required hereunder, June 8, 2018 and, with respect to any
additional Registration Statements which may be required pursuant to Section 2(c) or Section 3(c), the earliest practical date on which the
Company is permitted by SEC Guidance to file such additional Registration Statement related to the Registrable Securities.”

 
 

1



 

 
 

2. The definition of “Registrable Securities” in Section 1 is hereby amended and restated in its entirety as follows:
 

““Registrable Securities” means, as of any date of determination, (a) all shares of Common Stock then issued and issuable upon
conversion in full of the Series E Preferred Shares (assuming on such date that the Series E Preferred Shares are converted in full without
regard to any conversion limitations therein), (b) all Warrant Shares then issued and issuable upon exercise of the Warrants (assuming on
such date the Warrants are exercised in full without regard to any exercise limitations therein), (c) any additional shares of Common
Stock issued and issuable in connection with any anti-dilution provisions in the Series E Preferred Shares or the Warrants (without giving
effect to any limitations on conversion set forth in the Series E Preferred Shares or any limitations on exercise set forth in the Warrants)
and (d) any securities issued or then issuable upon any stock split, dividend or other distribution, recapitalization or similar event with
respect to the foregoing; provided, however, that any such Registrable Securities shall cease to be Registrable Securities (and the
Company shall not be required to maintain the effectiveness of any, or file another, Registration Statement hereunder with respect
thereto) for so long as (a) a Registration Statement with respect to the sale of such Registrable Securities is declared effective by the
Commission under the Securities Act and such Registrable Securities have been disposed of by the Holder in accordance with such
effective Registration Statement, (b) such Registrable Securities have been previously sold in accordance with Rule 144, or (c) such
securities become eligible for resale without volume or manner-of-sale restrictions and without current public information pursuant to
Rule 144 as set forth in a written opinion letter to such effect, addressed, delivered and acceptable to the Transfer Agent and the affected
Holders (assuming that such securities and any securities issuable upon exercise, conversion or exchange of which, or as a dividend upon
which, such securities were issued or are issuable, were at no time held by any Affiliate of the Company, and all Warrants are exercised
by “cashless exercise” as provided in Section 2(c) of each of the Warrants), as reasonably determined by the Company, upon the advice
of counsel to the Company.”

 
3. Clause (b) of Section 2(c) is hereby amended and restated in its entirety as follows:
 

“b. Second, the Company shall reduce Registrable Securities represented by Conversion Shares (applied, in the case that some
Conversion Shares may be registered, to the Holders on a pro rata basis based on the total number of unregistered Conversion Shares held
by such Holders).”



 
4. Other than as set forth herein, the terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

 
[remainder of page intentionally left blank; signature page to follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Rights Agreement as of the date first
above written.
 
“Company”  “Purchasers”  



     
Iconic Brands, Inc.,  The Special Equities Group, LLC  
a Nevada corporation    
     
By: /s/ Richard J. DeCicco  By: /s/ Jonathan Schechter  
  Richard J. DeCicco   Jonathan Schechter  
Its:  Chief Executive Officer  Its: Principal  
    
   Iroquois Master Fund Ltd.  
    
   By: /s/ Richard Abbe  
    Richard Abbe  
   Its: Director  
    
   Iroquois Capital Investment Group, LLC  
    
   By: /s/ Richard Abbe  
    Richard Abbe  
   Its: Managing Member  
    
    /s/ Gregory M. Castaldo  
    Gregory M. Castaldo  
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EXHIBIT 10.9
 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
 

This Employment Agreement (this “Agreement”) shall be effective as of April 1, 2018 (the “Effective Date”) by and bet ween Iconic Brands,
Inc. (the “Company”), a Nevada corporation, and Richard DeCicco (the “Employee”), an individual residing 71 Shore Drive, Copaigue, New York
11726.

 
RECITALS

 
A. The Company’s Board of Directors has determined that it is in the best interest of the Company and its stockholders to continue to employ the

Employee on the terms and conditions set forth herein.
 
B. The Company desires to employ the Employee and the Employee desires to continue to be employed by the Company, in each case, on the

terms and conditions set forth herein.
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth below, the parties agree as follows:

 
ARTICLE 1. DUTIES AND SCOPE OF EMPLOYMENT
 
Section 1.01 Employment. Employee shall be employed by the Company, subject to the terms of this Agreement, beginning on the Effective Date and
continuing for twenty-four (24) months thereafter, unless terminated as provided in Article 3 (the “Employment Term”). After the Employment Term,
Employee’s employment may continue on terms to be agreed upon between the Company and Employee. The date on which Employee’s employment
with the Company terminates is referred to herein as the “Termination Date.”
 

Section 1.01 Duties and Services. During the Employment Term, Employee shall serve as the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer
and shall report directly to the Company’s Board of Directors. Employee’s duties and services will be consistent with Employee’s title, position and
stature with the Company, subject to the direction of the Company’s Board of Directors. Employee will devote his reasonable best efforts to the provision
of duties and services under this Agreement and shall perform such duties and services to the best of his abilities in a diligent, trustworthy, businesslike
and efficient manner.
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ARTICLE 2. SALARY AND BENEFITS
 
Section 2.01 Base Salary; Bonus. During the Employment Term, the Company will pay Employee as compensation for his services a base salary at the
rate of $265,000 per annum, payable in installments consistent with the Company’s normal payroll schedule, subject to applicable withholding and other
taxes (the “Base Salary”), subject to increase in the sole discretion of the Company’s Board of Directors. Employee may participate in a bonus program as
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors.
 
Section 2.02 Compensation Stock Award.
 

2.02.1 In consideration for work previously performed, for which no compensation was paid, the Company shall issue Employee 75,000,000
(pre-split) shares of its common stock, $0.001 par value (the “Compensation Stock Award”) upon the effective date of a reverse stock split. (For clarity, if
the Company undergoes a 250:1 reverse stock split, Employee shall be issued 300,000 shares.)

 
2.02.2 The Company shall not be obligated to reserve any shares for the Compensation Stock Award prior to undergoing a reverse stock split.
 
2.02.3 All shares of the Compensation Stock Award shall have registration rights in the next S-1 Registration Statement filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission after the Compensation Stock Award is issued.
 
Section 2.03 Benefits. During the Employment Term, Employee will be entitled to participate in the employee benefit plans currently and hereafter
maintained by the Company of general applicability to other executives of the Company. The Company reserves the right to cancel or change the benefit
plans and programs it offers to its employees at any time.
 
Section 2.04 Paid Time Off. Employee will be entitled to paid time off of twenty days per calendar year to be taken in such amounts and at such times as
approved in advance by the Company’s Board of Directors.
 
Section 2.05 Expenses. The Company will reimburse Employee for reasonable travel, lodging, entertainment or other expenses incurred by Employee in



the furtherance of or in connection with the performance of Employee’s duties hereunder, in accordance with the Company’s expense reimbursement
policy as in effect from time to time.
 
Section 2.06 Automobile. The Company will provide Employee with an automobile and will pay for fuel, maintenance, and insurance for business use
per Company policy.
 
Section 2.07 Brand Sale. If the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, sells any brand owned by the Company or a subsidiary during the Employment Term
or within three (3) years following the Termination Date, Employee shall receive twenty-three percent (23%) of the gross sales proceeds of the sale. For
the purposes of this section, a brand sale includes, but is not limited to, any and all direct or indirect (i) transfers of assets, including intellectual property
rights, associated with the Company’s spirits, mixers and non-alcoholic products, (ii) transfers of controlling equity interests in the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, and/or (iii) granting of options, warrants or convertible debentures, which, if exercised, would give the holder or holders a controlling equity
interests in the Company or any of its subsidiaries. This Section 2.7 shall survive any termination of this Agreement.
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Section 2.08 Equity Incentives. Employee will be entitled to participate in any equity incentive plan adopted by the Company. The amount and type of
securities to be issued will be determined by the Company’s Board of Directors.
 
ARTICLE 3. TERM; TERMINATION
 
Section 3.01 Definitions. For the Purposes of this Agreement, the following capitalized terms shall have such stated meaning ascribed to them:
 

3.01.1 Cause shall mean (i) a finding by a court of competent jurisdiction of a material act of dishonesty in connection with Employee’s



responsibilities as an employee; or (ii) Employee’s conviction of, or plea of nolo contendere to, a felony involving fraud or moral turpitude;
 
3.01.2 Disability shall mean the Employee’s incapacity due to physical or mental illness as determined by a qualified physician or incapacity for

a period of 90 days, consecutive or otherwise, in any 360-day period.
 
3.01.3 Good Reason shall mean the occurrence of one or more of the following events arising without the express written consent of Employee,

but only if Employee notifies the Company in writing of the event within sixty (60) days following the occurrence of the event, the event remains uncured
after the expiration of twenty (20) days from receipt of such notice, and Employee voluntarily resigns effective no later than thirty (30) days following the
Company’s failure to cure the event: (i) a material reduction in the duties, authority, or responsibilities of Employee, relative to the duties, authority, or
responsibilities of Employee as in effect immediately prior to such reduction; (ii) a material reduction in Employee’s annualized Base Salary; (iii) a
relocation of the Company’s primary office of more than fifty (50) miles from where it is located as of the Effective Date; or (iv) the failure of the
Company to obtain the assumption of this Agreement by any successors.

 
3.01.4 Person shall mean an individual, partnership, corporation, business trust, limited liability company, limited liability partnership, joint

stock company, trust, unincorporated association, joint venture, other entity, or a governmental body.
 
3.01.5 Restricted Business shall mean any business competing with or which may compete with the business of the Company or its subsidiaries

within any state in which the Company is then doing business or marketing its products.
 
3.01.6 Voluntary Termination  shall mean the voluntary resignation by the Employee without Good Reason. Employee agrees to provide the

Company with at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice of Voluntary Termination.
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Section 3.02 Termination Without Cause; Termination for Good Reason; Disability; Continued Employment. During the Employment Term, in the
event that (i) Employee terminates his employment with the Company for Good Reason; (ii) Employee is terminated by the Company without Cause, (iii)
Employee is terminated by the Company due to Disability, or (iv) Employee and the Company are unable to reach an agreement for the Employee’s
continued employment following the Employment Term, then Employee shall be entitled to receive the following severance benefits.
 

3.02.1 Salary. Employee shall receive severance payments in an amount equal to two times Employee’s annual Base Salary as of the Termination
Date, paid over two years, in accordance with the customary payroll practices of the Company as if Employee were then an employee of the Company.

 
3.02.2 Bonuses. The Company shall pay to Employee any earned but unpaid bonuses in accordance with the Company’s normal payroll practices

plus an amount equal to one times the prior year’s bonus earned by the Employee, as a lump sum payment on the Termination Date.
 
3.02.3 Company Benefits. If Employee received health benefits immediately prior to the Termination Date, the Company shall pay Employee

cash payments equal to the cost that Employee would incur if Employee continued medical and dental coverage under Section 4980B of the Internal
Revenue Code (“COBRA”) for Employee and dependents, for six (6) months (the “COBRA Amount”). The COBRA Amount shall include a tax gross
up to cover Employee’s income and FICA taxes imposed on the payment under this subsection. Payment of the COBRA Amount shall be paid in equal
installments on the Company’s customary payroll dates for the pay periods following the Termination Date. Employee may elect COBRA continuation
coverage according to the terms of the Company’s applicable benefit plans, for the period permitted under such plans. Other than as set forth in this



section, all COBRA costs shall be the sole responsibility of Employee.
 
Section 3.03 Termination for Cause; Voluntary Termination; Death. If Employee’s employment with the Company is terminated for Cause by the
Company, by Voluntary Termination, or due to Employee’s death, then the Company shall only be obligated to pay to the Employee, on or within a
reasonable time after the effective date of such termination, the Employee’s earned portion of the Base Salary through the effective date of such
termination and any earned but unpaid bonuses.
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Section 3.04 Limitation on Payments. In the event that the severance and other benefits provided for in this Agreement or otherwise payable to
Employee (i) constitute “parachute payments” within the meaning of Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and



(ii) would be subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code (the “Excise Tax”), then Employee’s benefits under this Agreement shall be
either (A) delivered in full, or (B) delivered as to such lesser extent which would result in no portion of such benefits being subject to the Excise Tax,
whichever of the foregoing amounts, taking into account the applicable federal, state and local income taxes and the Excise Tax, results in the receipt by
Employee on an after-tax basis, of the greatest amount of benefits, notwithstanding that all or some portion of such benefits may be taxable under Section
4999 of the Code; provided that, in connection with the reduction of payments that would otherwise constitute parachute payments, Employee may choose
the amounts, types and priority of such reductions (e.g., whether cash, stock or otherwise) in Employee’s sole discretion. Unless the Company and
Employee otherwise agree in writing, any determination required under this section shall be made in writing by the Company’s independent public
accountants (the “Accountants”), whose determination shall be conclusive and binding upon Employee and the Company for all purposes. For purposes
of making the calculations required by this section, the Accountants may make reasonable assumptions and approximations concerning applicable taxes
and may rely on reasonable, good faith interpretations concerning the application of Section 280G and 4999 of the Code. The Company and Employee
shall furnish to the Accountants such information and documents as the Accountants may reasonably request in order to make a determination under this
section. The Company shall bear all costs the Accountants may reasonably incur in connection with any calculations contemplated by this section.
 
ARTICLE 4. COVENANTS
 
Section 4.01 Nondisclosure. During the Employment Term and following the Termination Date, Employee (i) will hold all Proprietary Information
(defined hereafter) in trust and in strict confidence; (ii) will not disclose, and will use commercially reasonable efforts to protect, the Proprietary
Information; (iii) will not, directly or indirectly, use or assist others to use Proprietary Information; and (iv) will not, directly or indirectly, use,
disseminate or otherwise disclose any Proprietary Information to any third party, except in the case of each of (i) through (iv) above, as required by
Employee’s duties in the course of his employment by the Company or as required by applicable law. “ Proprietary Information” includes, but is not
limited to, the Company’s internal information, trade secrets, customer information, customer lists, marketing information, sales information, cost
information, financial information, technical data, know-how, methods, patentable or unpatentable ideas, technical business operations information,
business practices, methods, products, processes, equipment or any confidential or secret aspect of the business of the Company that is or has been
disclosed to Employee or of which Employee became aware as a consequence of or through his employment with the Company. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the Employee is not obligated to keep Proprietary Information confidential if it (x) is or becomes available to the public, other than because of
disclosure by Employee in breach of this Agreement; (y) was or becomes available to Employee from a source other than the Company, but only if such
source is not known to Employee to be bound by an obligation of secrecy to the Company with respect to the information disclosed; or (z) has been
independently developed by Employee without breaching an of his obligations under this Agreement.
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Section 4.02 Books and Records. All books, records, reports, writings, notes, notebooks, computer programs, sketches, drawings, blueprints, prototypes,
formulas, photographs, negatives, models, equipment, chemicals, reproductions, proposals, flow sheets, supply contracts, customer lists and other
documents and/or things relating to the business of the Company, whether prepared by Employee or otherwise coming into Employee’s possession in the
course of Employee’s performance of his duties, shall be the exclusive property of the Company, as the case may be, and shall not be copied, duplicated,
replicated, transformed, modified or removed from the premises of the Company except pursuant to and in furtherance of the business of the Company and
shall be returned immediately to the Company on the Termination Date or on the Company’s request at any time.
 
Section 4.03 Inventions and Patents. All inventions, innovations or improvements related to the Company’s methods of conducting its business
(including new contributions, improvements, ideas and discoveries, whether patentable or not), conceived or made by Employee during his employment
with the Company belong to the Company, and Employee hereby will assign and assigns all of such inventions, innovations and improvements,
contributions, ideas and discoveries to the Company. Employee will cooperate and perform all actions reasonably requested to establish and confirm such
ownership in the Company. To the extent Employee’s assistance is so requested following the end of the Employment Term, Employee will be
compensated at the rate of $100.00 per hour for his services, and Employee shall be entitled to reimbursement of all reasonable and documented out-of-
pocket expenses incurred by Employee in the course of providing such services.
 
Section 4.04 Non-Solicitation of Employees. During the Employment Term and for a period of twenty-four (24) months from and after the Termination
Date, Employee will not, directly or indirectly, (i) solicit for employment or employ (or attempt to solicit for employment or employ), for Employee or on
behalf of any other Person (other than the Company) (provided that nothing herein shall prevent Employee from making a general solicitation not targeted
at the Company’s employees), any employee of the Company or any Person who was such an employee during the Employment Period; or (ii) otherwise
encourage any such employee to leave his or her employment with the Company.
 
Section 4.05 Non-Solicitation of Others. During the Employment Term and for a period of twenty-four (24) months from and after the Termination Date,
Employee will not, directly or indirectly, (i) solicit, call on or transact or engage in the Restricted Business with (or attempt to do any of the foregoing with
respect to) any customer, distributor, vendor, supplier or agent with whom the Company shall have dealt, or that the shall have actively sought to deal, at



any time during the Employment Term for or on behalf of Employee or any other Person (other than the Company) in connection with a Restricted
Business; or (ii) encourage any such customer, distributor, vendor, supplier or agent to cease, in whole or in part, its business relationship with the
Company.
 
 
 



 

 
 
Iconic Brands, Inc.
Richard DeCicco Employment Agreement
Page 7 of 11



 
Section 4.06 Covenants Reasonable; Court Modification. Employee acknowledges and agrees that the covenants provided for in this Agreement are
reasonable and necessary in terms of scope, duration, area, line of business and all other matters to protect the Company’s legitimate business interests,
prevent the future misuse of trade secrets and Proprietary Information, or present solicitation of customers. To the extent that any of the provisions
contained in this Agreement may later be adjudicated by a court of competent jurisdiction to be too broad to be enforced with respect to such provision’s
scope, duration, area, line of business or any other matter, such provision shall be deemed amended by limiting and reducing such provision, scope,
duration, area, line of business or other matter, as the case may be, so as to be valid and enforceable to the maximum extent compatible with the
applicable laws of such jurisdiction and this Agreement as drafted. Any such deemed amendment shall only apply with respect to the operation of such
provision in the applicable jurisdiction in which such adjudication is made.
 
Section 4.07 Uniqueness of Employee’s Services; Specific Performance. Employee hereby represents and agrees that the services to be performed by
Employee under this agreement are of a special, unique, unusual, extraordinary and intellectual character that gives them a peculiar value, the loss of
which cannot be reasonably or adequately compensated in damages in an action at law. Employee acknowledges that any breach by him of the provisions
of this Article 4 shall cause irreparable harm to the Company and that a remedy at law for any breach or attempted breach of Article 4 of this Agreement
will be inadequate. Employee agrees that, notwithstanding any other provision contained in this Agreement, the Company shall be entitled to exercise all
remedies available to it, including specific performance and injunctive and other equitable relief, in the case of any such breach or attempted breach.
 
Section 4.08 Trade Secrets
 

4.08.1 Definition. The parties acknowledge and agree that during Employee’s employment and in the course of the discharge of his duties
hereunder, Employee shall have access to and become acquainted with information concerning the operation and processes of the Company, including
without limitation, financial, personnel, sales, intellectual property, and other information that is owned by the Company’s business, and that such
information constitutes the Company’s trade secrets (“Trade Secrets”). Notwithstanding the foregoing, Trade Secrets do not include: (i) information that
is or becomes available to the public, other than because of disclosure by Employee in breach of this Agreement; or (ii) information that subsequently
becomes part of public knowledge or literature through a deliberate act of the Company as of the date of its becoming public.

 
4.08.2 Covenant. Employee specifically agrees that he shall not misuse, misappropriate, or disclose any such Trade Secrets, directly or indirectly

to any other Person or use them in any way, either during the term of this Agreement or at any other time thereafter, except as is required in the course of
his employment hereunder.
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4.08.3 Trade Secret Misappropriation. Employee acknowledges and agrees that the sale or unauthorized use or disclosure of any Company’s
Trade Secrets obtained by Employee during the course of his employment with the Company, including information concerning the Company’s current or
any future and proposed work, services, or products, the facts that any such work production, as well as any descriptions thereof, would constitute unfair
trade practices and unauthorized use of the Company’s Trade Secrets, whether such information is used during the Employment Term or at any other time
thereafter.

 
4.08.4 Company Property. Employee further agrees that all files, records, documents, drawings, specifications, equipment, and similar items

relating to the Company’s business, whether prepared by Employee or others, are also considered Trade Secrets and that they are and shall remain
exclusively the property of the Company and that they shall not be copied, duplicated, replicated, transformed, modified or removed from the premises of
the Company except pursuant to and in furtherance of the business of the Company and shall be returned immediately to the Company on the Termination
Date or on the Company’s request at any time.
 
ARTICLE 5. GENERAL PROVISIONS.
 
Section 5.01 Employee’s Representations. Employee hereby represents and warrants to the Company that (i) the execution, delivery and performance of
this Agreement by Employee do not and shall not conflict with, breach, violate or cause a default under any contract, agreement, instrument, order,
judgment or decree to which Employee is a party or by which he is bound; (ii) Employee is not a party to or bound by any employment agreement, non-
compete agreement or confidentiality agreement with any other person or entity; and (iii) upon the execution and delivery of this Agreement by the
Company, this Agreement shall be the valid and binding obligation of Employee, enforceable in accordance with its terms. Employee hereby
acknowledges and represents that he has had the opportunity to seek independent legal counsel regarding his rights and obligations under this Agreement,
and has done so or decided not to do so, at Employee’s choosing, and that he fully understands the terms and conditions contained herein.
 
Section 5.02 Notices. All notices and other communications under this Agreement shall be in writing and delivered personally, sent by reputable,
overnight courier service (charges paid by sender), by email or by facsimile, at the following addresses and facsimile numbers (or to such other address or
facsimile number as a party may have specified by notice given to the other party pursuant to this provision). Such notices and other communications shall



be deemed given: at the time delivered by hand, if personally delivered; one business day after being sent, if sent by reputable, over-night courier service;
and at the time when confirmation of successful transmission is received, if sent by email or facsimile.
 

 

If to Company: Iconic Brands, Inc.
44 Seabro Avenue
Amityville, NY 11701
Attn: Paul Rachmuth, General Counsel
Email: paul@unitedspiritsinc.com
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With a copy to: Clyde Snow & Sessions
201 South Main Street, Suite 1300
Salt Lake City, UT 84111
Attn: Brian A. Lebrecht
Email: bal@clydesnow.com

   

 

If to Employee: Richard DeCicco
71 Shore Drive
Copaigue, New York 11726.
Email: Richard.decicco@gmail.com

   
  (or current address in Company’s file)
 
Section 5.03 Severability. Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement will be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under
applicable law, but if any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect under any applicable law or rule in any,
jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability will not affect any other provision or such application in any other jurisdiction, but this
Agreement will be reformed, construed and enforced in such jurisdiction as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained
herein; provided, that if any of the provisions of this Agreement are held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, then such provisions shall be deemed
amended in the manner and to the extent provided for in Section 4.06 above.
 
Section 5.04 Complete Agreement. This Agreement embodies the complete agreement and understanding among the parties relating to the subject matter
hereof and supersede and preempt any prior understandings, agreements or representations by or among the parties, written or oral, which may have
related to the subject matter hereof in any way.
 
Section 5.05 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in separate counterparts, each of which is deemed to be an original and all of which taken
together constitute one and the same agreement. Any signature delivered by facsimile transmission or by e-mail delivery of a “.pdf” format data file, such
signature shall be deemed a manually executed and delivered original.
 
Section 5.06 Successors and Assigns. Employee may not delegate any of his obligations hereunder. Further, this Agreement may not be assigned by
either the Company or Employee, except that the Company may assign this Agreement to a Person who purchases or succeeds to all or substantially all of
the assets of the Company, by operation of law, asset purchase or otherwise. Subject to the two immediately preceding sentences, this Agreement is
intended to bind and inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by Employee and the Company and their respective successors and assigns (and, in the case
of Employee, heirs and personal representatives).
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Section 5.07 Attorney’s Fees and Costs. If any action at law or in equity is necessary to enforce or interpret the terms of this agreement, the prevailing
party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees, costs, and necessary disbursements in addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled.
This provision shall be construed as applicable to the entire Agreement.
 
Section 5.08 Choice of Law; Jurisdiction and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New
York without regard to conflicts of laws principles thereof and all questions concerning the validity and construction hereof shall he determined in
accordance with the laws of said state. Each party irrevocably submits to the personal and exclusive jurisdiction of any federal or state court of competent
jurisdiction located in Suffolk County, State of New York, in any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement and hereby irrevocably
agrees on behalf of himself, herself or itself and on behalf of such party’s heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns that all claims in respect
of such action or proceeding may be heard and determined in any such court.
 
Section 5.09 Waiver of Jury Trial. THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY JUDICIAL
PROCEEDING INVOLVING, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, ANY MATTER (WHETHER IN TORT, CONTRACT OR OTHERWISE) IN ANY
WAY ARISING OUT OF, RELATED TO, OR CONNECTED WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR THE RELATIONSHIP ESTABLISHED HEREUNDER.
 
Section 5.10 Amendments and Waivers. No provision of this Agreement may be amended or waived without the prior written consent of the parties
hereto. The waiver by either party to this Agreement of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be construed or operate as a waiver of any
preceding or succeeding breach of the same, or any other term or provision, or as a waiver of any contemporaneous breach of any other term, or provision
or as a continuing waiver of the same or any other term or provision.
 

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first above written.
 
“Company”  “Employee”  
    
Iconic Brands, Inc.   
    
By: /s/ Richard DeCicco  /s/ Richard DeCicco  
Name: Richard DeCicco  Richard DeCicco  
Title: President   
 
 

 
 



EXHIBIT 10.10
 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
 

This Employment Agreement (this “Agreement”) shall be effective as of April 1, 2018 (the “Effective Date”) by and bet ween Iconic Brands,
Inc. (the “Company”), a Nevada corporation, and Roseann Faltings (the “Employee”), an individual residing 71 Shore Drive, Copaigue, New York
11726.

 
RECITALS

 
A. The Company’s Board of Directors has determined that it is in the best interest of the Company and its stockholders to continue to employ the

Employee on the terms and conditions set forth herein.
 
B. The Company desires to employ the Employee and the Employee desires to continue to be employed by the Company, in each case, on the

terms and conditions set forth herein.
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth below, the parties agree as follows:

 
ARTICLE 1. DUTIES AND SCOPE OF EMPLOYMENT
 
Section 1.01 Employment. Employee shall be employed by the Company, subject to the terms of this Agreement, beginning on the Effective Date and
continuing for twenty-four (24) months thereafter, unless terminated as provided in Article 3 (the “Employment Term”). After the Employment Term,
Employee’s employment may continue on terms to be agreed upon between the Company and Employee. The date on which Employee’s employment
with the Company terminates is referred to herein as the “Termination Date.”
 

Section 1.01 Duties and Services. During the Employment Term, Employee shall serve as the Company’s Vice President of Sales and Marketing
and shall report to the Company’s President. Employee’s duties and services will be consistent with Employee’s title, position and stature with the
Company, subject to the direction of the Company’s President. Employee will devote his reasonable best efforts to the provision of duties and services
under this Agreement and shall perform such duties and services to the best of his abilities in a diligent, trustworthy, businesslike and efficient manner.
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ARTICLE 2. SALARY AND BENEFITS
 
Section 2.01 Base Salary; Bonus. During the Employment Term, the Company will pay Employee as compensation for his services a base salary at the
rate of $150,000 per annum, payable in installments consistent with the Company’s normal payroll schedule, subject to applicable withholding and other
taxes (the “Base Salary”), subject to increase in the sole discretion of the Company’s Board of Directors. Employee may participate in a bonus program as
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors.
 
Section 2.02 Compensation Stock Award.
 

2.02.1 In consideration for work previously performed, for which no compensation was paid, the Company shall issue Employee 25,000,000
(pre-split) shares of its common stock, $0.001 par value (the “Compensation Stock Award”) upon the effective date of a reverse stock split. (For clarity, if
the Company undergoes a 250:1 reverse stock split, Employee shall be issued 100,000 shares.)

 
2.02.2 The Company shall not be obligated to reserve any shares for the Compensation Stock Award prior to undergoing a reverse stock split.
 
2.02.3 All shares of the Compensation Stock Award shall have registration rights in the next S-1 Registration Statement filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission after the Compensation Stock Award is issued.
 
Section 2.03 Benefits. During the Employment Term, Employee will be entitled to participate in the employee benefit plans currently and hereafter
maintained by the Company of general applicability to other executives of the Company. The Company reserves the right to cancel or change the benefit
plans and programs it offers to its employees at any time.
 
Section 2.04 Paid Time Off. Employee will be entitled to paid time off of twenty days per calendar year to be taken in such amounts and at such times as
approved in advance by the Company’s Board of Directors.
 



Section 2.05 Expenses. The Company will reimburse Employee for reasonable travel, lodging, entertainment or other expenses incurred by Employee in
the furtherance of or in connection with the performance of Employee’s duties hereunder, in accordance with the Company’s expense reimbursement
policy as in effect from time to time.
 
Section 2.06 Automobile. The Company will provide Employee with an automobile and will pay for fuel, maintenance, and insurance for business use
per Company policy.
 
Section 2.07 Brand Sale. If the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, sells any brand owned by the Company or a subsidiary during the Employment Term
or within three (3) years following the Termination Date, Employee shall receive twenty-three percent (23%) of the gross sales proceeds of the sale. For
the purposes of this section, a brand sale includes, but is not limited to, any and all direct or indirect (i) transfers of assets, including intellectual property
rights, associated with the Company’s spirits, mixers and non-alcoholic products, (ii) transfers of controlling equity interests in the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, and/or (iii) granting of options, warrants or convertible debentures, which, if exercised, would give the holder or holders a controlling equity
interests in the Company or any of its subsidiaries. This Section 2.7 shall survive any termination of this Agreement.
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Section 2.08 Equity Incentives. Employee will be entitled to participate in any equity incentive plan adopted by the Company. The amount and type of
securities to be issued will be determined by the Company’s Board of Directors.
 
ARTICLE 3. TERM; TERMINATION
 
Section 3.01 Definitions. For the Purposes of this Agreement, the following capitalized terms shall have such stated meaning ascribed to them:
 

3.01.1 Cause shall mean (i) a finding by a court of competent jurisdiction of a material act of dishonesty in connection with Employee’s
responsibilities as an employee; or (ii) Employee’s conviction of, or plea of nolo contendere to, a felony involving fraud or moral turpitude;



 
3.01.2 Disability shall mean the Employee’s incapacity due to physical or mental illness as determined by a qualified physician or incapacity for

a period of 90 days, consecutive or otherwise, in any 360-day period.
 
3.01.3 Good Reason shall mean the occurrence of one or more of the following events arising without the express written consent of Employee,

but only if Employee notifies the Company in writing of the event within sixty (60) days following the occurrence of the event, the event remains uncured
after the expiration of twenty (20) days from receipt of such notice, and Employee voluntarily resigns effective no later than thirty (30) days following the
Company’s failure to cure the event: (i) a material reduction in the duties, authority, or responsibilities of Employee, relative to the duties, authority, or
responsibilities of Employee as in effect immediately prior to such reduction; (ii) a material reduction in Employee’s annualized Base Salary; (iii) a
relocation of the Company’s primary office of more than fifty (50) miles from where it is located as of the Effective Date; or (iv) the failure of the
Company to obtain the assumption of this Agreement by any successors.

 
3.01.4 Person shall mean an individual, partnership, corporation, business trust, limited liability company, limited liability partnership, joint

stock company, trust, unincorporated association, joint venture, other entity, or a governmental body.
 
3.01.5 Restricted Business shall mean any business competing with or which may compete with the business of the Company or its subsidiaries

within any state in which the Company is then doing business or marketing its products.
 
3.01.6 Voluntary Termination  shall mean the voluntary resignation by the Employee without Good Reason. Employee agrees to provide the

Company with at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice of Voluntary Termination.
 
 
 



 

 
 
Iconic Brands, Inc.
Roseann Faltings Employment Agreement
Page 4 of 11
 
Section 3.02 Termination Without Cause; Termination for Good Reason; Disability; Continued Employment. During the Employment Term, in the
event that (i) Employee terminates his employment with the Company for Good Reason; (ii) Employee is terminated by the Company without Cause, (iii)
Employee is terminated by the Company due to Disability, or (iv) Employee and the Company are unable to reach an agreement for the Employee’s
continued employment following the Employment Term, then Employee shall be entitled to receive the following severance benefits.
 

3.02.1 Salary. Employee shall receive severance payments in an amount equal to two times Employee’s annual Base Salary as of the Termination
Date, paid over two years, in accordance with the customary payroll practices of the Company as if Employee were then an employee of the Company.

 
3.02.2 Bonuses. The Company shall pay to Employee any earned but unpaid bonuses in accordance with the Company’s normal payroll practices

plus an amount equal to one times the prior year’s bonus earned by the Employee, as a lump sum payment on the Termination Date.
 
3.02.3 Company Benefits. If Employee received health benefits immediately prior to the Termination Date, the Company shall pay Employee

cash payments equal to the cost that Employee would incur if Employee continued medical and dental coverage under Section 4980B of the Internal
Revenue Code (“COBRA”) for Employee and dependents, for six (6) months (the “COBRA Amount”). The COBRA Amount shall include a tax gross
up to cover Employee’s income and FICA taxes imposed on the payment under this subsection. Payment of the COBRA Amount shall be paid in equal
installments on the Company’s customary payroll dates for the pay periods following the Termination Date. Employee may elect COBRA continuation



coverage according to the terms of the Company’s applicable benefit plans, for the period permitted under such plans. Other than as set forth in this
section, all COBRA costs shall be the sole responsibility of Employee.
 
Section 3.03 Termination for Cause; Voluntary Termination; Death. If Employee’s employment with the Company is terminated for Cause by the
Company, by Voluntary Termination, or due to Employee’s death, then the Company shall only be obligated to pay to the Employee, on or within a
reasonable time after the effective date of such termination, the Employee’s earned portion of the Base Salary through the effective date of such
termination and any earned but unpaid bonuses.
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Section 3.04 Limitation on Payments. In the event that the severance and other benefits provided for in this Agreement or otherwise payable to
Employee (i) constitute “parachute payments” within the meaning of Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and
(ii) would be subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code (the “Excise Tax”), then Employee’s benefits under this Agreement shall be



either (A) delivered in full, or (B) delivered as to such lesser extent which would result in no portion of such benefits being subject to the Excise Tax,
whichever of the foregoing amounts, taking into account the applicable federal, state and local income taxes and the Excise Tax, results in the receipt by
Employee on an after-tax basis, of the greatest amount of benefits, notwithstanding that all or some portion of such benefits may be taxable under Section
4999 of the Code; provided that, in connection with the reduction of payments that would otherwise constitute parachute payments, Employee may choose
the amounts, types and priority of such reductions (e.g., whether cash, stock or otherwise) in Employee’s sole discretion. Unless the Company and
Employee otherwise agree in writing, any determination required under this section shall be made in writing by the Company’s independent public
accountants (the “Accountants”), whose determination shall be conclusive and binding upon Employee and the Company for all purposes. For purposes
of making the calculations required by this section, the Accountants may make reasonable assumptions and approximations concerning applicable taxes
and may rely on reasonable, good faith interpretations concerning the application of Section 280G and 4999 of the Code. The Company and Employee
shall furnish to the Accountants such information and documents as the Accountants may reasonably request in order to make a determination under this
section. The Company shall bear all costs the Accountants may reasonably incur in connection with any calculations contemplated by this section.
 
ARTICLE 4. COVENANTS
 
Section 4.01 Nondisclosure. During the Employment Term and following the Termination Date, Employee (i) will hold all Proprietary Information
(defined hereafter) in trust and in strict confidence; (ii) will not disclose, and will use commercially reasonable efforts to protect, the Proprietary
Information; (iii) will not, directly or indirectly, use or assist others to use Proprietary Information; and (iv) will not, directly or indirectly, use,
disseminate or otherwise disclose any Proprietary Information to any third party, except in the case of each of (i) through (iv) above, as required by
Employee’s duties in the course of his employment by the Company or as required by applicable law. “ Proprietary Information” includes, but is not
limited to, the Company’s internal information, trade secrets, customer information, customer lists, marketing information, sales information, cost
information, financial information, technical data, know-how, methods, patentable or unpatentable ideas, technical business operations information,
business practices, methods, products, processes, equipment or any confidential or secret aspect of the business of the Company that is or has been
disclosed to Employee or of which Employee became aware as a consequence of or through his employment with the Company. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the Employee is not obligated to keep Proprietary Information confidential if it (x) is or becomes available to the public, other than because of
disclosure by Employee in breach of this Agreement; (y) was or becomes available to Employee from a source other than the Company, but only if such
source is not known to Employee to be bound by an obligation of secrecy to the Company with respect to the information disclosed; or (z) has been
independently developed by Employee without breaching an of his obligations under this Agreement.
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Section 4.02 Books and Records. All books, records, reports, writings, notes, notebooks, computer programs, sketches, drawings, blueprints, prototypes,
formulas, photographs, negatives, models, equipment, chemicals, reproductions, proposals, flow sheets, supply contracts, customer lists and other
documents and/or things relating to the business of the Company, whether prepared by Employee or otherwise coming into Employee’s possession in the
course of Employee’s performance of his duties, shall be the exclusive property of the Company, as the case may be, and shall not be copied, duplicated,
replicated, transformed, modified or removed from the premises of the Company except pursuant to and in furtherance of the business of the Company and
shall be returned immediately to the Company on the Termination Date or on the Company’s request at any time.
 
Section 4.03 Inventions and Patents. All inventions, innovations or improvements related to the Company’s methods of conducting its business
(including new contributions, improvements, ideas and discoveries, whether patentable or not), conceived or made by Employee during his employment
with the Company belong to the Company, and Employee hereby will assign and assigns all of such inventions, innovations and improvements,
contributions, ideas and discoveries to the Company. Employee will cooperate and perform all actions reasonably requested to establish and confirm such
ownership in the Company. To the extent Employee’s assistance is so requested following the end of the Employment Term, Employee will be
compensated at the rate of $100.00 per hour for his services, and Employee shall be entitled to reimbursement of all reasonable and documented out-of-
pocket expenses incurred by Employee in the course of providing such services.
 
Section 4.04 Non-Solicitation of Employees. During the Employment Term and for a period of twenty-four (24) months from and after the Termination
Date, Employee will not, directly or indirectly, (i) solicit for employment or employ (or attempt to solicit for employment or employ), for Employee or on
behalf of any other Person (other than the Company) (provided that nothing herein shall prevent Employee from making a general solicitation not targeted
at the Company’s employees), any employee of the Company or any Person who was such an employee during the Employment Period; or (ii) otherwise
encourage any such employee to leave his or her employment with the Company.
 
Section 4.05 Non-Solicitation of Others. During the Employment Term and for a period of twenty-four (24) months from and after the Termination Date,
Employee will not, directly or indirectly, (i) solicit, call on or transact or engage in the Restricted Business with (or attempt to do any of the foregoing with



respect to) any customer, distributor, vendor, supplier or agent with whom the Company shall have dealt, or that the shall have actively sought to deal, at
any time during the Employment Term for or on behalf of Employee or any other Person (other than the Company) in connection with a Restricted
Business; or (ii) encourage any such customer, distributor, vendor, supplier or agent to cease, in whole or in part, its business relationship with the
Company.
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Section 4.06 Covenants Reasonable; Court Modification. Employee acknowledges and agrees that the covenants provided for in this Agreement are
reasonable and necessary in terms of scope, duration, area, line of business and all other matters to protect the Company’s legitimate business interests,
prevent the future misuse of trade secrets and Proprietary Information, or present solicitation of customers. To the extent that any of the provisions
contained in this Agreement may later be adjudicated by a court of competent jurisdiction to be too broad to be enforced with respect to such provision’s
scope, duration, area, line of business or any other matter, such provision shall be deemed amended by limiting and reducing such provision, scope,
duration, area, line of business or other matter, as the case may be, so as to be valid and enforceable to the maximum extent compatible with the
applicable laws of such jurisdiction and this Agreement as drafted. Any such deemed amendment shall only apply with respect to the operation of such
provision in the applicable jurisdiction in which such adjudication is made.
 
Section 4.07 Uniqueness of Employee’s Services; Specific Performance. Employee hereby represents and agrees that the services to be performed by
Employee under this agreement are of a special, unique, unusual, extraordinary and intellectual character that gives them a peculiar value, the loss of
which cannot be reasonably or adequately compensated in damages in an action at law. Employee acknowledges that any breach by him of the provisions
of this Article 4 shall cause irreparable harm to the Company and that a remedy at law for any breach or attempted breach of Article 4 of this Agreement
will be inadequate. Employee agrees that, notwithstanding any other provision contained in this Agreement, the Company shall be entitled to exercise all
remedies available to it, including specific performance and injunctive and other equitable relief, in the case of any such breach or attempted breach.
 
Section 4.08 Trade Secrets
 

4.08.1 Definition. The parties acknowledge and agree that during Employee’s employment and in the course of the discharge of his duties
hereunder, Employee shall have access to and become acquainted with information concerning the operation and processes of the Company, including
without limitation, financial, personnel, sales, intellectual property, and other information that is owned by the Company’s business, and that such
information constitutes the Company’s trade secrets (“Trade Secrets”). Notwithstanding the foregoing, Trade Secrets do not include: (i) information that
is or becomes available to the public, other than because of disclosure by Employee in breach of this Agreement; or (ii) information that subsequently
becomes part of public knowledge or literature through a deliberate act of the Company as of the date of its becoming public.

 
4.08.2 Covenant. Employee specifically agrees that he shall not misuse, misappropriate, or disclose any such Trade Secrets, directly or indirectly

to any other Person or use them in any way, either during the term of this Agreement or at any other time thereafter, except as is required in the course of
his employment hereunder.
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4.08.3 Trade Secret Misappropriation. Employee acknowledges and agrees that the sale or unauthorized use or disclosure of any Company’s
Trade Secrets obtained by Employee during the course of his employment with the Company, including information concerning the Company’s current or
any future and proposed work, services, or products, the facts that any such work production, as well as any descriptions thereof, would constitute unfair
trade practices and unauthorized use of the Company’s Trade Secrets, whether such information is used during the Employment Term or at any other time
thereafter.

 
4.08.4 Company Property. Employee further agrees that all files, records, documents, drawings, specifications, equipment, and similar items

relating to the Company’s business, whether prepared by Employee or others, are also considered Trade Secrets and that they are and shall remain
exclusively the property of the Company and that they shall not be copied, duplicated, replicated, transformed, modified or removed from the premises of
the Company except pursuant to and in furtherance of the business of the Company and shall be returned immediately to the Company on the Termination
Date or on the Company’s request at any time.
 
ARTICLE 5. GENERAL PROVISIONS.
 
Section 5.01 Employee’s Representations. Employee hereby represents and warrants to the Company that (i) the execution, delivery and performance of
this Agreement by Employee do not and shall not conflict with, breach, violate or cause a default under any contract, agreement, instrument, order,
judgment or decree to which Employee is a party or by which he is bound; (ii) Employee is not a party to or bound by any employment agreement, non-
compete agreement or confidentiality agreement with any other person or entity; and (iii) upon the execution and delivery of this Agreement by the
Company, this Agreement shall be the valid and binding obligation of Employee, enforceable in accordance with its terms. Employee hereby
acknowledges and represents that he has had the opportunity to seek independent legal counsel regarding his rights and obligations under this Agreement,
and has done so or decided not to do so, at Employee’s choosing, and that he fully understands the terms and conditions contained herein.
 
Section 5.02 Notices. All notices and other communications under this Agreement shall be in writing and delivered personally, sent by reputable,
overnight courier service (charges paid by sender), by email or by facsimile, at the following addresses and facsimile numbers (or to such other address or



facsimile number as a party may have specified by notice given to the other party pursuant to this provision). Such notices and other communications shall
be deemed given: at the time delivered by hand, if personally delivered; one business day after being sent, if sent by reputable, over-night courier service;
and at the time when confirmation of successful transmission is received, if sent by email or facsimile.
 

 

If to Company: Iconic Brands, Inc.
44 Seabro Avenue
Amityville, NY 11701
Attn: Paul Rachmuth, General Counsel
Email: paul@unitedspiritsinc.com
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With a copy to: Clyde Snow & Sessions
201 South Main Street, Suite 1300
Salt Lake City, UT 84111
Attn: Brian A. Lebrecht
Email: bal@clydesnow.com



   

 

If to Employee: Roseann Faltings
44 Seabro Avenue
Amityville, NY 11701
Email: rofaltings@gmail.com

   
  (or current address in Company’s file)
 
Section 5.03 Severability. Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement will be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under
applicable law, but if any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect under any applicable law or rule in any,
jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability will not affect any other provision or such application in any other jurisdiction, but this
Agreement will be reformed, construed and enforced in such jurisdiction as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained
herein; provided, that if any of the provisions of this Agreement are held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, then such provisions shall be deemed
amended in the manner and to the extent provided for in Section 4.06 above.
 
Section 5.04 Complete Agreement. This Agreement embodies the complete agreement and understanding among the parties relating to the subject matter
hereof and supersede and preempt any prior understandings, agreements or representations by or among the parties, written or oral, which may have
related to the subject matter hereof in any way.
 
Section 5.05 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in separate counterparts, each of which is deemed to be an original and all of which taken
together constitute one and the same agreement. Any signature delivered by facsimile transmission or by e-mail delivery of a “.pdf” format data file, such
signature shall be deemed a manually executed and delivered original.
 
Section 5.06 Successors and Assigns. Employee may not delegate any of his obligations hereunder. Further, this Agreement may not be assigned by
either the Company or Employee, except that the Company may assign this Agreement to a Person who purchases or succeeds to all or substantially all of
the assets of the Company, by operation of law, asset purchase or otherwise. Subject to the two immediately preceding sentences, this Agreement is
intended to bind and inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by Employee and the Company and their respective successors and assigns (and, in the case
of Employee, heirs and personal representatives).
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Section 5.07 Attorney’s Fees and Costs. If any action at law or in equity is necessary to enforce or interpret the terms of this agreement, the prevailing
party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees, costs, and necessary disbursements in addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled.
This provision shall be construed as applicable to the entire Agreement.
 
Section 5.08 Choice of Law; Jurisdiction and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New
York without regard to conflicts of laws principles thereof and all questions concerning the validity and construction hereof shall he determined in
accordance with the laws of said state. Each party irrevocably submits to the personal and exclusive jurisdiction of any federal or state court of competent
jurisdiction located in Suffolk County, State of New York, in any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement and hereby irrevocably
agrees on behalf of himself, herself or itself and on behalf of such party’s heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns that all claims in respect
of such action or proceeding may be heard and determined in any such court.
 
Section 5.09 Waiver of Jury Trial. THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY JUDICIAL
PROCEEDING INVOLVING, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, ANY MATTER (WHETHER IN TORT, CONTRACT OR OTHERWISE) IN ANY
WAY ARISING OUT OF, RELATED TO, OR CONNECTED WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR THE RELATIONSHIP ESTABLISHED HEREUNDER.
 
Section 5.10 Amendments and Waivers. No provision of this Agreement may be amended or waived without the prior written consent of the parties
hereto. The waiver by either party to this Agreement of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be construed or operate as a waiver of any
preceding or succeeding breach of the same, or any other term or provision, or as a waiver of any contemporaneous breach of any other term, or provision
or as a continuing waiver of the same or any other term or provision.
 

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first above written.
 
“Company”  “Employee”  
    
Iconic Brands, Inc.   
   
By: /s/ Richard DeCicco  /s/ Roseann Faltings  
Name: Richard DeCicco  Roseann Faltings  
Title: President   
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